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Annual Report and Accounts

Banking that matters. ‘ ¢4 UniCredit




Do the right t mg.
For the Real

AWARDED ‘WORLD'S
BEST BANK FOR SMES’

in October, UniCredit was
awarded ‘Best Bank for SMES’
by Global Finance madgazine in
its World’s Best Global Banks
Awards. This was based on

our performance over the past
year, based on criteria including
reputation and management
excellence.




Contents

Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and External Auditors as at 31 December 2020 5
Chairman's message 10
Chief Executive Officer's message 14
Preliminary notes KK]
CONSOLIDATED REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 OF UNICREDIT GROUP 7
COMPANY REPORT AND ACCOUNTS 2020 OF UNICREDIT S.P.A. 503
Incorporations of qualitative information by reference 755
Glossary 781
Contacts 775

Nates

The fellowmg canventional symbols have been ysed in the tables

* 3 Jash (-} ndicates that the itemifigure is nen-existent;

* fW’J stops (.) or "n.m." when the figures do not reach the minimum considened significant o are not meanmingful,
* "n.a" indicales that the figure is not available.

Any discrepancies between data are solely due to the effect of rounding.

UniCredit - 2020 Annual Report and Accounis 3



UniCredit S.p.A.

A joint stock company

Registered Office and Head Office: Piazza Gae Aulenti, 3 - Tower A - 20154 Milano

Share capital €21,059,536,950.48 fully paid in

Registered in the Register of Banking Groups and Pargnt Company of the UniCredit Banking Group, with cod. 02C08.1
Cod. ABI 02008.1

Fiscal Code, VAT number and Registration number with the Company Register of Milan-Menza-Brianza-Lodi: 00348170101
Member of the National Interbank Deposit Guarantee Fund and of the National Compensation Fund

Stamp duty paid vinually, if due - Auth. Agenzia delle Entrate, Ufficio di Roma 1, No.143106/07 of 12.21.2007
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Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and

External Auditors as at 31 December 2020

Board of Directars

Cesare Bisoni Chairman

Lamberto Andrectti Deputy Vice Chairman
Jean Pierre Mustier CEQ

Mohamed Hamad Al Mehairi Directors

Sergio Balbinot

Vincenzg Cariello

Elena Carlett]

Diego De Giorgi

Beatriz Lara Bartolomé
Stefanc Micossi

Pietro Carlo Padoan!™
Maria Pierdicchi
Francesca Tondi

Alexander Wolfgring
Gianpaolc Alessandro Company Secretary
Board of Statutory Auditors
Marco Rigotti Chairman
Antonella Bientinesi Standing Auditors

Angelo Racco Bonissoni
Benedetta Navarra
Guido Paolucc

Stefans Porro Manager in charge of preparing
the financial reports

Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. External Auditors

Note:
("} Prof. Pietre Carlo Padoan has been coopted starting from 13 Cetober 2020 replacing Ms, Elena Zambon,
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At A Glance Do the right thing!
A simple successful pan-European Ethics and respect: these two values unite us and define our
commercial kank Group culture

Do the right

thing!

21
For our Communities

For our
{lients

23
For the

Real Economy

26

For the
Environment

2/

For
Diversity & Inclusion
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Financial highlights

GROUP SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY  GROUP NET RESULT

...........................

Strong global
products and
local excellence:
well-diversified

by Business by Region

revenues lines
.20
& Commercial Banking Italy & laly
CEE Divisicn Germany
® (B ® CEC
“* Commercial Banking Germany . Austria

Commercial Banking Austria

» Customers! (%) Employees! (%)*

by Region by Redion

& (taly & |taly

1. Data as at 31 December 2020. .

* FTE "Full Time Equivalent”= nurmber Germany Germany

of employees counted for the rate - @ CEE ® (et

of presence. © 2 Austria - Austria
& Other
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“UniCredit will remain
a solid pan-European
commercial bank
with local roots,
supporting families
and companies in their
international growth
and development”.

EHTuERE
message

Cesare Bisoni
CHAIRMAN
UNICREDIT S.PA.
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Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the UniCredit Board of Directors, | start by sharing
our heartfelt dgratitude to Jean Pierre Mustier for all of his
achievements. Jean Pierre took the tead of UniCredit almost five
years ago, at a delicate historical moment. He teaves our Group
in a position of strength. He led through years of an extracrdinary
turnaround, achieved with the unwavering support of all those
working at UniCredit, to whom | am also grateful. Thanks to the
successful implementation of Transform 2019, despite the crisis
triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, our Group is and remains in
a solid position. We have high capitat levels and are a true pan-
European bank, with a wetl-diversified presence. We will continue
to turn challenges into opportunities.

The year 2020, marked by Covid-19, was difficult for everyone, | am
proud of how the Group swiftly responded to the crisis, to suppert
all of our stakeholders. First and foremost, we prioritised the
personal safety of our employees and clients, by taking immediate
and decisive actions to protect them. We also rolled out numergus
initiatives to suppert the real economy, rapidly implementing
maoratoriums and providing qovernments-backed loans. At the
same time, we provided significant support for hospitals and the
civil protection service.

As a response to the pandemic, the Superviscry Authority requested
in relation to 2019 financial year, a freeze of all dividend payments,
to protect capital levels in the banking system and ensure continued
support for the real economy. More recently, the ECB announced the
resumption of bank profit distribution. UniCredit is also planning
an extraordinary capital distribution in the last quarter of the year,
should the caonditions recur and subject to the Supervisory Authority
authorization. i is important that Eurgpean banks are perceived
as a good investment, to encourage international shareholders to
commit capital that the financial sector can put to good use across
Europe. As such, the Group has recently confirmed its dividend
policy, to create solid value for our sharehotders.

The way the Group has achieved its turnaround and served our
clients and communities leaves me very optimistic about the future,
In October, we co-opted in our Board of Directors Piercarto Padoan
who is the best candidate for the position of UniCredit Chairman
for the next term. The Group will benefit from his extraordinary
experience and extensive knowledge of Eurgpean institutional and
financial framework. His co-optation well in advance of the end of
my mandate has ensured a smooth hand-over and has played a
key role in the Board renewal process. Tagether, we have identified
the new Chief Executive Officer, Andrea Orcel, an outstanding
banker with g broad experience in the international banking sector
combined with proven track recard in business transformation
and risk management focus. We strongly believe his cantribution
to UniCredit will be distinctive. Over the coming years, Piercarlo

UniCredit - 2020 Annual Regort and Accounts 1



and Andrea will have the opportunity to work clesely with the
wonderful peaple at UniCredit, benefitting from their extraordinary
skills and dedication.

in a challenging economic context, with rapidly evolving client
needs, digital transformation plays a critical role. On the one hand,
it responds to the dgrowing demand for simplicity and speed. On
the other hand, it allows the gptimisation of company processes.
UniCredit will continue to invest in innovation.

This is my final message to you as Chairman. My mandate,
together with that of the current Board, is coming to an end. We
leave a transformed Group, fully dedicated to supporting the
real economy: clients and communilies. UniCredit is inspired hy
two core values, ethics and respect, which form the basis of our
long-term vision, and it will continue to provide finance and drive
positive changde in society. Furthermore, at UniCredit, the ways
in which results are achieved are as important as the results
themselves. We are proud that the attention to sustainability has
been acknowledged externally, through numergus awards.

The Group will continue to drow and strendthen the client
franchise, transfarm its service model and optimise productivity,
with disciplined risk manadement and controls as well as rigorous
capital and balance sheet management. UniCredit will remain a
solid "pan-European commercial bank with lecal roots" supporting
the real economy: families and companies, in their internaticnal
growth and development.

Your faithfully,

CFenn

Cesare Bisoni
Chairman UniCredit S.p.A.
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“I am very proud of
everything that we have
achieved at UniCredit,
over the past few years,
especially in 2020”.

Chief Executive |
Officer's messade

Jean Pierre Mustier
CHIEF EXECUTIVE QFFICER
UNICREDIT S.P.A.
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Dear Shareholders,

the year 2020 was a big shock for all of us. We faced new challenges
with the benefit of a strong balance sheet, thanks to all the great work
done by our teams. We were able to assist and support our clients and
team members, while protecting them.

The needs of our clients changed even faster, so we accelerated the
transformation of the Group already planned for in Team 23. All
transformation requires courage and 2020 has been a year where our
team members have shown extraordinary commitment. In UniCredit,
we celebrated our branch heroes, who supported our customers
throughout the lockdowns, We continue to collect their stories and
those of other teams, across the Group, to discover haw we have been,
and are still, facing these unprecedented times. The health and safety
of gur team members and clients has always been and will remain our
top priority.

Outside the Group, we also supported heroes in the medical sectors by
sypporting medical innovation, such as the CURA pod prototype, as well
as offering zero interest rate loans and danating millions to hospitals
and the healthcare services in several of our countries.

UniCredit in 2020: Do the right thing!

| am very proud of everything that we have achieved at UniCredit,
over the past few years, especially in 2020. Thanks ta our strong
position, and our people, we were able to be part of the solution
during a very challenging year.

Throughout the health emerdency, we remained open for business
and continued to serve customers in all our countries, while keeping
them and our people safe. We did this by accelerating the switch to
digital and remote banking. We made decisions quickly, based on
gata, to protect colleaques and clients. We rolled out new laptops
and VPN access to dive around 80,600 UniCredit employees the
possibility of working remotely. We unlocked potential by giving our
people the opportunity to work safely and effectively, while making
sure they cauld continue to contribute.

While all this began as a response to the health crisis, the ongaing
situation led to pronounced changes in our clients’ mindset, behaviours
and needs, aswell as developments in our own. The Covid-19 pandemic
created a need and an opportunity to accelerate our transformation.

We are now investing to make sure that these improvements are
long-lasting. For example, we are rolling out training to help our
people lead remote teams and manage hybrid working. We will
also continue to support cur employees with a new welfare and
wellness offer: work-life balance will be increasingly important in
the future.

UniCredit - 2020 Annual Report and Accounts 15



Ethics &

Respect

Do the right
thing!

*as 8t 3Q 2020.

At the same time, human interactions will remain key to our Group
culture. Our strong working relationships are one of the reasons
why UniCredit has been able to work remotely so effectively
over the pasl few months, The workplace will continue to be an
important element of our lives, and while things will certainly be
different, the change may be less extreme than some might think.

In 2020, we made important contributions to our communities
and the real economy. These include our Social Impact Banking,
which started in ttaty in 2017 and has since been extended to 10
other Group countries. As at the end of 2020, we had disbursed
well gver €225 million to support nearly 4,400 projects and
microenterprises that make a sogcial impact. We remain on track
to meet our goal of praviding €1 billion of social impact financing
by 2023.

We also responded to the health and economic emergency with
a wide range of volunteering initiatives and donations, including
millions of euras donated by UniCredit employees and customers
and the UniCredit Foundation. You can read about some of these
activities later in this report and on our website.

All this was possible thanks to our corporate culture, which is
based on two values, Ethics and Respect, and our commitment
to always Do the Right Thing! This quiding principle governs our
interactions with all our stakeholders.

In 2020, we continved to lead most international peers on
governance, such as pay practices and board structure. We are
the only bank in Haly with an EE+ rating from Standard Ethics,
recognised as a European excellence in terms of sustainability.

This is all thanks to our concrete ESG actions, such as the launch
of our new coal policy, that commits UniCredit to ending all
coal financing by 2028. We alse ranked number one globally for
sustainability-linked loans by Bloomberg™ and were awarded Best
Sacial Impact Bank in Eurape by Capital Finance International.
UniCredit will soon be launching other new initiatives, in line with
our E5G6 strategy.

With our management leading by example, we will continue
to build a sustainable future, where environmental, social and
dovernance factors are essential for long-term growth. At UniCredit,
sustainability is part of our DNA. We say what we do and do what
we say, and we always favour long-term sustainable outcomes
over short-term solutions. We will continue to support our clients,
communities, partners and the industry at larde, in becaming
increasingly sustainable.

16 2020 Annual Repori and Acoounts - UniCredit



One Bank
One

¢4 UniCredit

Team 23: focused on our customers

Our strategy remains “One Bank, One UniCredit” and our mission is
unchanged: UniCredit is a simple successful pan-European commercial
bank, with a fully plugged in CIB, delivering a unique Western, Central and
Eastern European network to our extensive and growing client franchise.
We will continue to build on our existing competitive advantades.

In 2020, we continued to focus on the four strategic pillars we
introduced to investors at our Capital Markets Day in 2019.

.Discigliﬂeé.{‘isk‘  Capitatand

~ managerment balance sheet

&controls. . management .

As mentioned earlier, the Covid-19 pandemic accelerated the
change in our clients’ behaviours. We responded to this by speeding
up our own digital transformation, so that we can continue to
support their evolving needs. UniCredit is a multi-channel bank
and we have made good progress in the areas of mobile banking,
call centres, internet banking and paperless branches. Qur goal
is to transition towards a true omni-channel approach that will
provide all UniCredit clients with the same customer experience,
whichever channels they prefer to use.

We maintained a very strong capitat tevel at all times, continuing
our disciplined management of the business to sustain our
liquidity levels, focused on high asset quality. It is this strength
and discipline - together with the successful completion of our
Transform 2019 strategy - that allowed us to keep supporting our
clients and communities when they needed us most.

in 2020, we delivered an underlying net profit of €1.3bn, successfully
navidating an extracrdinary year from a position of strength. We
delivered lower costs and provisions, with a stated cost of risk well
within guidance, at 105bps. Qur Non Core rundown is fully on track
and we confirm the strendth of our balance sheet, with very strong
capital and liquidity positions. All this would not have been possible
without your unwavering support and the steadfast commitment of
UniCredit colleagues.
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CET1r Fully Loaded evolution  SEEEEEAAEEEEEAEE

Common Equity Tier 1 ratio Fully Loaded evolution™

) -

Dec 2018

Dec 2016 Dec 2017 Dec 2019 Dec 2020

----- European Debt and Trade Finance Powerhouse

« Most active player in EUR Bonds since 2012 (no. 1 by number
of deals)

- No. 2 in EMEA Bonds in EUR (by number of deals) in 2020 {no. 1
in ltaly, no. 1 in Germany, no. 2 i Austria)

« No. 1 Bookrunner EMEA Corporate Loans in EUR (by number
of deals)

« No. 4 Lead Bank Combined EMEA Green and £SG-linked Loans
and Bonds in EUR

+« in ECM:
- No. 1 all ECM transactions in Germany by number of deals
- No. 2 Equity-linked transactions in Italy

- The Banker’'s Transaction Banking Awards 2020 — Best Bank
for Supply Chain Finance
+ Euromoney Cash Manadgement 2020 Survey — Best Service

*Source: Market Presentations

and Reports.

Paers’ sample: Intesz Sanpaoio,
Santander, BBVA, Deutsche Bank,
Commerzbank, Socldté Générale,

Credit Adricole SA, BNP Paribas, Erste,
Raiffeisen, ING.

Data: Year End fidures. Stated Comman
Equity Tler 1 ratio Fylly Loaded where
disclosed (for ING CET1r Transitional
available only; Intesa Sanpasle discloses
Pro-forma CET1r FL, at 15.4% as at
December 2020, at 14% excluding the
mitigation of the Impact of the FTA of
IFRS9; UniCredit Pro-forma CET1r at
15.08% as at December 2020, including
deducticn of crdinary share buyback of
€179m, subject to supervisory and AGM
approval, Stated CET1r FL at 15.14%).

Provider in Austria, Germany and Market Leader in Austria

and ltaly

Euromoney Trade Finance 2020 Survay — Market Leader in
Austria, taly and Best Service in All Services in Western Europe,
Austria and italy

Global Finance’s 2021 Treasury & Cash Management Awards
including CEE:

- Best Bank for Liquidity Management in Central & Eastern Europe
- Best Treasury & Cash Manadgement Bank in Germany and ltaly

.................................................................
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Looking to the future

As the world adjusts to the changes brought about and accelerated
by the Covid-19 pandemic, there is a clear need for companies
investing in a long-term vision that is shared with all their
stakeholders. This includes the financial services industry: banks
will continue to play a very important role in ensuring that local
companies have access to adequate funding.

UniCredit has shown the importance of pan-European banks,
combining strong global products and local excellence. Our long-
term focus is on being One Bank. The Group will continue to
leverage on technolody to accelerate the digital and remote banking
transformation, while focusing on sustainability: continuing to look
beyand purely ecanomic profit to consider social impact banking
initiatives and other community support.

This is the last time that | will address you as the UniCredit CEQ.
| am very happy that Andrea Orcel is joining the Group as my
successor. He will be supported by a fantastic team, loyal clients
and supportive sharehotders. My warmest regards go to all my
outstanding colleagues, who have worked relenttessly to transform
the bank. | am immensely proud of everything that we have
achieved together.

UniCredit is a very strong bank and all our stakeholders can count
on us. We will continue to “Do the Right Thing!” to support our
clients, communities and our team members, in order to create
value for our shareholders.

Thank you!

Jean Pierre Mustier
Chief Executive Cfficer UniCredit S.p.A.
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Do the right

thing!

€500,000 FOR THE “Your generous contribution will help, through
RED CROSS our wark, the entire Italian population forced
During the Cavid-19 pandamic, to face this moment of emerdency linked to
UniCredit made dcnations ta the Red \

Crass in ltaly, Bosnia & Herzedovina, the spread of the new Coronavirus. Thanks to
and Croatia. your donatian, the Italian Red Cross continues

to expand, investing in services, resources
and training for volunteers and operators to
be alongside those who need it most”.

Francesco Rocca
President cof the Italian Red Cross
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MAKING AN IMPACT
ACROSS EUROPE

UniCredit Social Impact Banking

has now disbursed €225.1 millicn

of impact financing and microcredit
loans. New projects in 2020

included the laynch of a dedicated
offer in italy to support femate
entrepreneurship and profit and
nan-profit businesses with a focus on
wormen and the family, and financing
for new facilities to support young
people with disabilities in Germany.

SUPPORTING MEDICAL
INNOQVATION
UniCredit provided €250,000 to

build the first CURA Pod prototype,
an intensive care unit made from a

shipping container. The first unit was

transported to Turin where it was
used to treat Covid-19 patients.

SUPPORTING SOCIAL
ENTREPRENEURSHIP

By partnering with Finance 4 Social
Chande, UniCredit’s Social Impact
Banking initiative is supporting
sgtlal entrepreneursnip as a driver
of sustainable development in
eight different UniCredit countries,
including: Austria, Buldaria, Croatia,
Germany, Hundary, Romania, Serbia
and Slovakia.

MILLIGNS DONATED TO
EUROPEAN HOSPITALS

Thanks to donations from UniCredit
employeas and the UniCredit
Foundation, €1.2 million was raised
to help hospitals in #taly. On top of
this, UniCredit and its local banks
danated mare than €2.5 million to
hospitals and healthcare services in
Bulgaria, Czech Regublic, italy, Serbia
and Slovakia.

For our Communities

Thanks to UniCredit's strong position, we were able
to support communities in all of our countries.
Formal initiatives such as UniCredit’s Social

impact Banking and the UniCredit Foundation were
supplemented by a wide rande of volunteering
activities and donations, including millions of euros
donated by UniCredit employees and customers.

YouTube views.

SUPPORTING ARTISTS
AND LIVE MUSIC

UniCredit’s smart phone bank,
buddybank, taunched Niente

Di Strano, a serfes of six music
concerts to support the Italian
music industry. The live-streamed
events attacted over 3 million

€1m

DONATED TO 11

SOCIAL AND CULTURAL
ORGANISATIONS
IN GERMANY
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SHARING INSIGHTS

In 2020, UniCredit launched several success initiatives
to support clients. These include STARTUP ACADEMY,
a manaderial programme fnr 60 talian startups,

a series of events focused on the ESG aspects of
corporate financing attended by over 1,100 ciients
from Italy, Germany, Austria and the CEE, and ITALY
TECH DAY 2020, an annual event to showcase Italian
innovation and support the startup industry.

For our

€10 MILLION OF NEW FINANCING FOR
A 100-YEAR OLD PASTA PRODUCER

The loan was ysed to meet the working capital
needs of Gragnanc-based Pastificic Di Martino.
It was also the first larde loan issued under
Italy’s guaranteed leans proegramme.

“Thanks to this deal, we can
better absorb the shock to our
production chain from the spread
of Covid-19, meet our working
capital needs and ensure the
cnnfinuity of operations and the
supply of our products”.

Giuseppe Di Martino
Owner of Pastificio Di Martino

SUPPORTING ECOMMERCE

UniCredit partnered with Gocdle to develop
UniCredit Easy ECommerce to help italian
companies access to digital markets and boost
their B2C e-commerce. Only 30% of ltalian
companies have an e-commerce website and
just 10% currently sell online, creating a huge
digital opportunity.

ients

2020 was a chalienging year for clients of all
sizes. From billion euro funding prodrammes
for multinational companies to mentoring
new start-up businesses, UniCredit was
committed to beind part of the solution.

ACCESSING CAPITAL STAYING ON TRACK WITH
MARKETS €600 MILLION

UniCredit contirued to help clients UniCredit supported italy’s state-
access capital markets inctuding those  owned railways operator - Ferravia
of the Republic of Austria, the Free dello Stato - by raising €600 million
State of Bavaria, the German State of new funding. This incluged a €200
of North Rhine Westphalia and the millien ESG loan to fund new electric
European Investment Bank, UniCredit trains and upgrade on-board safety
also supperted the Itatian Ministry systems,

of Finance with record breaking BTR
issuance to help the country fund it's
pandemic response and was joint
bookrunner on a €17 billion sacial
bond far the EL.
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BEING THERE FOR
FAMILIES

To ensure the bank understecd
indivigual and family needs
sternming from the Covie-19 crisis
and identify possibla solutions,
UniCrachit formed a new Family
Board. The 20 person team meets
reqularly and has made a series of
recommendations, on flexibilities,
peyeho-physical wetlbeing,
homeschool/homework support.

NEW WAYS OF WORKING

In October, UniCredit and the
UniCredit Eyropean Works Council
signed a joint declaration on remote
work. This will atiow the Greug to
axtend the opportunities offered

by technological advancements

and enable new ways of working to
suppart a better work-life balance
and dreater efficiency.

Colleagues

Throughout 2020, we made decisions quickly
to protect our colleagues. We distributed
millions of items of PPE to our branches

and offices, and with fast IT upgrades, we
rotted out new laptops and remote access to
around 80,000 UniCredit employees, allowing
them to work safely and effectively. ;

SUPPORTING OUR
BRANCH HEROES

Thanks to our branch heroes,
LniCredit remained open for business
and cantinued to serve customers
in all our countries, while keeping
clients and our people safe. During
the lockdown, UniCredit's CEC and
ather members of the Executive
Management Committee made
hundreds of video ¢alls to branch
colleagues across Itaty, Austria,
Germany and the CEE to recognise
their extracrdinary efforts,

TURNING IDEAS
INTO ACTION

UniCredit’s Millennisl Boarg —
comgrised entirety of erriptoyees
aged 22-32 - continued to
implement some of the 1,200 ideas
and sudgestions made by thelr
UniCredit colleagues. Successful
initiatives in 2020 included starting
pianting more than 90,000 trees to
establish the UniCredit Forest.
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HELP FOR :
ENTREPRENEURS

The UniCredit Start Lab programme
. supports growth of 60 italian
innovative comparnies with its
Startup Academy initiative,
demanstrating the haric's
willingness to support innovation
and young entreprenaurs.

€34.8bn

MORATORIA LOANS

€20.8bn

STATE-GUARANTEED
LOANS

With over 16 million clients in 13 countries,

- GRANTING MORATORIA
_ LOANS..QUICKLY!

CAs the mndemic hit E.ufope puahmg;

- ‘many countries into lockdown, we
. provided our clients with morateria
“Hoans worth £34.8 biitionand

dranted £20.8 biltion of state -
. duararitéed ioars.

Given the circumstances, speed

- Was smgortant ancf 1 SO0 UniCrednt
' em;)iovees warked overthe weekend :

to process the fitst 100 GGO

o appttcatlcns_

L we teok deciswe action to give famiiles and

- Thanks toa partnership with-54

the: italian credit export agencv, :

UniCredit dishursed a 1ot of loans
£ with st p{tmessed injust afew
o -Murs Simiiar paﬂﬁerships with the




AWARDED ‘WORLD'S BEST
BANK FOR SMES’

In October, Global Finance magdazine
recognised UniCredit in its Werld's
Best Global Banks Awards. Based

on performance over the past year
and criteria including reputation and
management excellence, UniCredit
was awarded ‘Best Bank for SMES’,

SUPPORTING SUPPLIERS

To help companies with their working
capital needs and inject liquidity

into the economy, UniCredit started
to pay over 20,000 suppliers an
‘sight’ of the invoice rather that

in accordance with contractual
payment terms. The initiative has
been continued in 2021.

GIVING ABOOSTTO
BUSINESS

In June, UniCredit launched the
Digital&Export Business School

in partnership with SACE and
Microsoft with the aim of proviging
an integrated path, lasting 6 months,
which was concretely supportive

for Made in Italy entrepreneurship.
The entire course was designed

to be full digital, and has allowed
more than 3,200 registered and
over 2,700 participants to converse
with about 50 UniCredit, Microsoft,
Sace experts but also journatists,
sociologists, researchers, through

8 inspiring national events and

26 tocal live Coaching on specific
issues carried out with over 19 local
associations.

HELPING CUSTOMERS
SUPPORT COMMUNITIES

In 2020, aver €2,600,000 in donaticns

were funded by customers using
UniCredit’s Carta Etica payment card.
UniCredit’s Flexia Classic Etica credit
card lets customers contribute to
charitable projects at no added cost,
For every £1,000 spent, UniCredit
contributes €2 to the Carta Etica fund.

“The bank reacted quickly after
the state of emerdency was
declared. We immediately
applied to reschedule our
debt, which helped us keep
our company our staff, and
preserve our partners.

[ would like to express my
gratitude”.
lvelin Bezhev

Manader, Santulita Limited
Customer of UniCredit Bulbank, Buldaria
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Our new sustamabil;t\; targets, tmveiled towards .
the end of 2019, were the focus of several
sustamabihty-wfocused imtiatives in 2020

LEADING THEWAYON  ° ANEWGOALFORCOAL |

GREEN FINANCE -UniCredit’s updated coat poticy,. .

As 2 leader in the sustainable finance ‘which will see the bank fully exit: 'compan es ‘and projecta 2hat are
sector, UniCredit participated ta the ... €03l sector financing by 2028, supporting the transitiontoa -~
placement of nearly €120 nnof - was praised as best-in-class by Sl lower carbon fumre Fhis ngluded
sustainable bonds and loans in 97 - Recldim Finance, & non-profit : ~E700: m:ltmn af new ftmciing far a:
denls, UniCredit was aiso recognised organisation focused on reducing. =« .- . renewiable energy portfolio, 3 €l43
by Bloomberg as a leading provider of financing of fossil fuels by the ™ ‘miflion funding packade for one. of
sustainability-tinked loans. Moreover, world’s largest financiat institutions. - Austﬁa s iargest wing farmsiand. -
with reqgard o green bonds, gther _ . - fingncing support to buitd EWQP@ 5 :
major transactions included a €750 : - lanESt baftéfv !actorv :

miltion bond for real estate fiem CPI - e

Property Group to fund néw dreen

projects, €750 mitlion for Euradrid ta

fund cffshore wind farm projects and

€500 mitlion for Swisscom te finance

enerdy efficiency projects. '

CAUSING A BUZZ AT OUR

#1'* " NEWAUSTRIANHQ
DU Hwasnt just empmyees that mnvecs

| - ¢ ] into UniiCredit's new Austrian :
g?oN ('3( ;,!N;'Egg " headquarters. They wera joinad by over
SUSTAINABILITY LINKED | one millfon haneybees vino will btk
LOANS ' pollinate nearby surroundings and make -
i horey to be harvested bs; UnlCredlt ’ ;
empicuyees What a sweet fesyltd

“as at 3Q 2020
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TAKING ACTION AT
D&l WEEK 2020

Maore than 21,000 colleagues
participated in 145 hours of
workshops, ceaching sessions
and nnline discissinng as part
ot UniCredit's second annual
Diversity & inclusion Week.
With 100 events held in 15
markets, there was a chance for
everyone to join in or listen to
270 external speakars,

or Diversi

ty &

UniCredit is committed to promoting
a positive working environment that embraces
our core values of Ethics and Respect.

SUPPORTING FEMALE
ENTREPRENEURS

In ltaly, UniCredit unveiled a packade
of support for fernale entrepreneurs
and companies that provide family-
orientated services. The suppert
inciudes discounted loans for
entrepreneurs, social impact financing
for companies providing welfare,
health and educational services, and
a dedicated mentaring programme.

A GREAT PLACE FOR
WOMEN TO WORK

UniCredit was named italy's ‘Best
Employer for Women' by Istituto
Tedesco Qualita e Finanza (ITQF) -
a leading European market research
institution - and its media partner
La Repubblica Affari&Finanza. (TQF
uses big data to review a company’s
online reputaticn and sentiment
amongst women at work, with
UniCredit receiving the top score

in the banking sector.

GENDER-EQUALITY
EFFORTS RECOGNISED
BY BLOOMBERG

UniCredit was included in Bloomberd's
2020 Gender-Equality Index (GED,
which tracks the performance of
public companies committed to
disclosing their efforts to support
gender equality through policy
development, representation and
transparency. The bank was inclucded
adain in 2021, joining 380 companies
across 44 countries and 11 sectors.

TAKING ACTION ON
DISABILITY LEADERSHIP

UniCredit joined The Valuable 500,
a movement that aims to put
disapility an the global business
leadership agenda by attracting
the support of 500 national and
multinaticnal corporation.
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“Sustainability is part
of our DNA and we
continue to further
incorporate £SG
factors in the
decision processes
across the business”.

Roberta Marracino
HEAD OF GROUP ESG
STRATEGY & IMPACT BANKING
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Taking stock of the challenges of 2020, which in many
ways further contributed to the growing significance of
ESG, our Group Head of ESG Stratedy and Impact Banking,
Roberta Marracino, explains UniCredit's commitment
to sustainability and why that’s important.

Q. There has been a lot of talk about ESG issues by different
companies, but what does ESG mean to you and to UniCredit?

A. Firstly, you are absolutely right. The importance of ESG
continues to graw and this is causing all companies to rethink
their business models in many ways. For UniCredit, sustainability
is not something new. Nevertheless, today we have set very
ambitious tardets including the full phase-out from the coal
sector by 2028, which goes to show our growing efforts and
commitment.

Sustainability is part of our DNA and we continue to further
incorporate €SG factors in the decision processes across the
business and our operations, which is fundamental for long-term
value creation and helps us drive positive change in society.

For me, ESG is a “hard" discipline rather than “soft”, because
it has to be fully integrated in the business maodel. It is crucial
in helping us respond to market and societal challenges, as it
plays a key role in how we support our clients, colleagues, and
communities now and in the future.

Q. How did 2020 change the €SG landscape and what does
that mean for the industry going forward?

A. The challenges of 2020 showed once and for all that ESG is
prominent and here to stay and will only grow in its importance.
It is something that every company must take into consideration
and adapt their approach accordingly. Furthermare, the business
opportunity is clear and not one companies can affard to miss.

in addition, we've seen the dgrowing importance of the "S”
component in ESG. In fact, the interaction and intersection
between “E” and “S” are increasingly relevant and their impact is
often combined.

Goingforward, sustainability will become more and more embedded
acrass society impacting client demand and expectations. This
will be reflected in changing client behaviours, investar attitudes,
and the requlatory context as well as the significant amount of
ESG-relevant upcoming national and supranational investments.
We are starting to see a mounting sensitivity of both retail and
corporate clients to £5G topics, particularly on the environmental
side, and we expect this trend to grow in 2021 and beyond.
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Q. What role does ESG play in helping UniCredit progress
towards its stratedic goals?

A. ESG is instrumental in helping us cnsure our corporate values
are concretely implemented across the whole business from
lending to risk management as well as in our short-and long-term
incentive plans.

ESG helps us live and deliver on our vatues and continually grow our
impact in the community.

This is evident in our approach to partner with our clients in the
transition to a low carben economy as well as in the activities of
our Sociat Impact Bank and the UniCredit Foundation aimed at
supporting the more vulnerable parts of our territories ang helping
them acress finance and grants and nurture their projects. ILis also
evident in our strong corporate governance and in our continued
focus on diversity and inclusion both internally and externally.
Defining clear ESG metrics and targets, as we are doing, helps a lot
in setting the overall direction.

Q. Finally, how is UniCredit helping to advance sustainability
within the financial sector?

A. Playing our role as part of the solution within the wider industry
is key. To that end, UniCredit belongs to several institutional
and international working droups with specific monitoring
requirements also for our ESG progress, including the Task
Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures, Principles for
Responsible Banking, and the OECD Business for Inclusive Growth
Coalition. This is important to ensure a consistent global ambition
towards increased sustainability with a long-term view that takes
into account the needs of our future generation.

We are all working towards commaon standards and definitions of
“dreen” and “sustainable”, setting the right direction to help all
the companies in our sector raise the bar together. Making this a
common doal, helps us all reach it faster.

i35

FUNDING THE FUTURE

Throughout 2020, we suppoerted companies and projects in the transition to a more
sustainable econcmy: we have an expasure of more than 6 billion in the renewable energy
sector and we have participated in the financing of mare than 64 billion loans linked to
sustainability goals.

30 2020 Annual Report and Accounts - UniCredit



Our ]ntegrated approach .............................

Ethics and Respect and Do the right thing! are the values
and principles that drive our decisions

.............................................................................

UniCredit has a clear ESG stratedy, goals and plan, including
short and long term €5G KPIs for Top Management

.............................................................................

We work closely with our clients in their transition also helping
to unlock potential new financing opportunities

With a clear commitment to the environment and to reduce
the Group's direct and indirect carbon footprint

Our corporate dovernance is best in class and we remain
committed to sustainable value creation for all stakeholders

..............................................................................

ESG factors are intedrated in our risk assessment models
and Risk Appetite Framework

..............................................................................

We continue to expand our ESG offer in line with client needs
and feadback

............................................................................

Our social strateqy combines philanthropy and social impact
finance to drive positive social chande and inclusion in our
countries

..............................................................................

Our Sacial Impact Bank is currently present in 11 Group
countries

We adhere to international climate and social impact initiatives
working together as part of the solution
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Do the right thing!
For our Colleagues

Throughout 2020, we focused on protecting our people:
we provided them with millions of PPE items and

fast IT upgrades, rolling out new laptops and remote
access to around 80,000 UniCredit employees, to
make sure they could work safely and effectively.




Preliminary notes

UniCredit prepares a single document called *Annual report and accounts” replacing the two decuments relating to the UniCredit group consolidated
financial statements and the UniCredit S.p.A. company financial statements.

The integration of the contents of the two financial statements documents into a single one leadsto the elimination of duplications of the qualitative
infarmation presented in beth files and, in order to faciitale the reading, the adoption of a system of cross-references between the chapters
dedicated 1o the consolidated financial statements and the company ones; pursuant tc these references the contents of the each referenced
paragraph is enfirely reported in the paragraph containing the reference.

The chapter *Incarporations of quaitative information by reference” reports the fist of the references.

General aspects

The UniCredit group's Consolidated financial statements and UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements as at 31 December 2020 were drafted in
accordance with the IAS/IFRS international accounting standards, in compliance with the instructions of Banca d'ltalia with the Circular No 262 of 22
December 2005 (and subsequent amendments), These instructions define binding requirements for the related fulfilling methods as well as
regarding the minimal contents of the Naies to the accounts.

The Consolidated financiat statements is made up of the Balance shest, the Income statement, the Statement of Gther compreensive income, the
Statement of changes in Shareholders’ Equity, the Cash flow statement, the Notes to the accounts, as well as the Report on operations. the
economic results achieved, the Group's financial situation and Annexes.

A section dedicated to Corporate Governance is also included within the document.

The Consolidated financial statements include:

» the Cansolidated financial statements certification pursuant to Art.81-ter of Consob Reguiation No.11971/39 as amended;

s the Independent Auditer's Report pursuant to Art.14 of Legislative Decree No.39 of 27 January 2010 and Art.10 of the EU Regulation
No.537/2014.

UniCredit S.p.A. financial statements is made up of the Balance sheel, the income statement, the Statement of other comprehensive income, the
Statement of changes in Shareholder's Equity, the Cash flow statement, the Notes to the accounts as well as the Report on operation, the economic
results achieved, the Bank's financial situation and Annexes.

UniCredit $.p.A. financial statements include:
« the Annual financial statements certification pursuant to Art.81-ter of Consob Regulation No.11971/89. as amended;
« the Report of the Board of Statutory Auditors pursuant to Art.153 of Legislative Decres No.58/1498;

« the Independent Auditor's Report pursuant to Art. 14 of Legislative Decree No.39 of 27 January 2010 and Art.10 of the EU Regulation
N0.537/2014,

UniCredit's group website also contains the press releases concerning the main events of the period, the market presentation of Group results and
the UniCredit group Disclosure (Pillar 11T}, this latier is subject of joint publication with this document.

For the dedaration of a non-financial nature, refer to the Integrated Report published on the company website,
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Consolidated report on operations

Introduction and Group highlights

Introduction to the Consolidated report on operations of UniCredit group

The Consolidated report en operations illustrates the performance of UniCredit group and the related amounts and results. It includes financial
information such as Group highlights, Reclassified consclidated accounts and their Quarterly figures, Summary results by business segment, Group
and UniCredit share historical data series as well as a comment on "Group results™,

Ta further illustrate the results of the period. the Consolidated report on operations includes Reclassified consolidated accounts prepared using the
same criteria of previous quarterly reports.

In order to provide further evidences about the performance achieved by the Group, the Consolidated report on cperations s aiso supported by
some alternative performance indicators (*API") such as: Cost/income ratio, Economic Value Added {(EVA), Return On Tangible Equity (ROTE), Net
bad loans to custamers/Loans to customers, Net non-performing loans 1o customers/Loans to customers, Absorbed capital, Return On Allogated
Capital (ROAC), Return On Assets (ROA), Cost of risk.

Although some af this information, including certain APIs, is neither extracted nor directly reconciled with the Consalidated financial statements, it is
worth mentioning ¢hat the Consolidated repert on operations, the Annexes and the Glossary provide explanatory descriptions of the conlents and, in
case, the calculation methods used, in accordance with European Securities and Markets Authority Guidelines {ESMA/2015/1415) of 5 October
2015.

In particular the Annex 1 includes the reconciliation between the reclassified accounts and the mandatory reporting schedule, as required by Consch
Notice No.6064293 of 28 July 20086,

The amounts related to year 2019 Reclassified consclidated income statement differ from the ones published at that time, For further detaits about
the reasans of these rastatement, refer to following paragraphs relating to the "Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified consalidated
income statement’.

For information on relations and transactions with related-party, it shalt be referred to the Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part H of
Consolidaled financial statements of UniCredit group.

Far a complete description of risks and uncertainties that the Group has to face in the current market situation, it shalf be referred to the specific
paragraph of this Consolidated report on operations and to the Notes to the consclidated accounts - Part E of the Consolidated financial statements
of UniCredit group.

Group highlights, alternative performance indicators and other measures

Income statement

{€ million}

YEAR
KA e 2020 - 2013 % CHANGE
Qperating income 17,140 18,839 -9.0%

of which:

- net interest §.441 10,071 -8.3%
- dividends and other income from equily investments 415 637 -34.8%
- net fees and commissions 5,976 8304 -5.2%
Operating costs (9,805} (9,929) -1.2%
Operating profit {loss) 7,335 8,910 -17.7%
Net write-downs on loans and provisicns for guarantees and commitmenis {4.996) (3.382) +47.7%
Net aperating profit {loss) 2339 5,027 -57.7%
Profit (Loss) before tax {1,546) 3,085 n.m.
Group net profit (loss) {2,785) 3373 n.m.

The figures in this table refer to the reclassified income statement. The amounts related to year 2018 differ from the ones published at that time.
For further details refer fo “Reconciliation principles foliowed for the reclassified consolidated income statement”. In Annex 1 is included the
reconciliation between the reclassified accounts and the mandatory reperting schedule.
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Balance sheet

{€ million)
AMGUNTS AS AT
S " . ) ) ) 1234, 2020 12312018 % CHANGE
Total assets 931,458 855,647 +83.9%
Financial assets held for trading 72,705 63,280 +14.9%
Loans and receivables with customers 450.550 482,574 -5.6%
Financial liabilities held for trading 47 787 41,483 +15.2%
Deposits from customers and debt securities issue 600,364 566,871 +8.0%
of which:
- deposits from customers 468,440 470,570 +58%
- debt securities issue 102,524 96,301 +6.6%
Group shargholders' equity 58,507 61416 -3.1%
The figures in the table abave refer to the reclassified balance sheet.
For further details refer to “Reconciliation principies followad for the reclassified consclidated balance sheet’. In Annex 11is included the
reconciliation between the reclassified accounts and the mandatory reporting schedule.
Profitability ratios
YEAR
" : : : 2020 e CHANGE
EPS™ (€) {1.306) 1.462 -2.768
Caost/Income ratiof? 57.2% 52.7% +4.5%
EVAR (€ million) (3.347) {21) -3,326
ROTE® -5.4% 6.7% -121%
ROAS -0.3% 0.4% -0.7%
Notes:
(1} Eamings per share. For further details refer to Part C - Secton 25.
(2) Ratic between operating expenses and operating income.
(3) Econonmc value atded equal to the difference between Net operatng profit after tax (NOPAT) and the Cost of the absorbed capital.
(4} Annuahised ratio between the net profit and the average tangible equity.
{5} Return on assets calculated as the ratio between Net profit (loss) atfributable ta the Group and Tetat assets pursuant to art 90 of CRI IV,
Risk ratios
S ‘ ASAT.
R RN . 412.31.2020 12.31.2049 % CHANGE
Net bad loans to customers/Loans to customers 0.4% (6% -(.2%
Net non-performing loans to customers/Loans fo customers 1.9% 1.8% +0.1%

For the amounts, refer ta the table “Loans to custemers - Asset quality” in the paragraph *Net write-downs on loans and provisicns for guarantees
and commitments” of this Consolidated report on ¢perations of the UniCredit group.
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Staff and Branches
o AS AT
. . 12.31,2020 12.31.2018 CHANGE
Employees!” 82,107 84 245 -2,138
Branchesi? 3,490 3717 -227
of which:
_ltaly 2,229 2,387 -158
- Qther countries 1261 1,330 -69
Notes:

{1) "Full tme equivalent” data (FTE): number of employees counted for the rate of presence. Employees of sub-group Koc Finansal Hizmetler AS are notincluded.
12} Retail branches only. The branches of sub-group Kac Finanzal Hizmetier AS are not included.

Transitional capital ratios

AS AT
e 12.31.202001 12.31.20180 CHANGE
Total gwn funds (€ milfion) N 67,464 ____beo82 L *483
Total risk-weighted assets {€ million} 325665 | 378,718 . -53054
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio o 1596% | 13.22% _ . *2T% |
Total CapitaiRate 2072% | 17.69% A30%

Notes:

() Transitional own funds and capia ratios neluding all transitienal adjustments according to the yearly apphcable percentages

Furthermore, starling from 30 June 2020, UniCredit group has decided to apply the IFRSY transitianal approach as reported in article 47 3a of the Regulaten (UE} No.873/2020 that amends the Regulabon {EU) No.575/2013
and Regulation {EU} Na.B76/2019. Therefore the values as at 31 December 2020 here reported reflact the impact of the transihonal amangements provisianed n such Regulation.

For further details refer to the paragraph "Capital and value management - Capital ratios” of this Consolidated report on operations.

Ratings
S SHORT-TERM NEDIUM AND STANDALONE
L ; DEBT LONG-TERM QUTLOOK RATING
Fitch Ratings F3 BBB- stable thb-
Moody's Investors Semvice P-2 Baal stable baa3
Standard & Poor's A2 288 negative bbb

Ratings updated as at 9 February 2021.
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Reclassified consolidated accounts

Changes occurred in the scope of consolidation

During 2020, with referance to the consolidation perimeter, the fatlowing changes were recorded:

« the number of fully consolidated companies, including thase ones classified as non-current assets and assel disposal groups based on the
accaunting principle IFRS5, decreases for 16 (17 in and 33 out) changing from 482. at the end of 2019, to 486 as at 31 December 2020;

« the number of companies consolidated by using the equity method, including those cnes classified as non-current assets and asset disposal
groups, present a decrease of 16 (1 in and 17 out) changing from 47, at the end of 2019, to 31 as at 31 December 2620.

For further details, refer to the paragraph “Sestion 3 - Consolidation scope and methads” of the Consolidated financial staterents gf UniCredit
group, Notes to the consolidated accounts Part A - Accounting Policies; A.1 - General, and refer ta the paragraph “Sectioln 7 - Equity investments -
Itesm 70" of the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit group, Notes ta the consolidated accounts Part B - Censolidated balance sheet -
Assets,

Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

As at 31 December 2020, the main assets which, based on the application of IFRS5 accounting principle, were reclassified as non-current assets
and asset disposal groups, are the fellowing:
« regarding the single asset and liability held for sale:
- the companies of the DC Bank AG, SIA UniCredit Leasing and Wealthcap groups the joint venture Capital Dev S.p.A. and the assaciated
company Risanamento S.pA.;
- the non-performing loans related to the disposai of certain portfolios;
- the real estate properties held by certain Group entities, mainly in Germany,
» regarding the data relating to the discantinued operations, the companies of the Immobilien Holding group (Austria).

For additional information, reference is made ¢ the paragraph “Section 12 - Non-current assets and dispesal groups classified as held for sale - [tem
120 (Assels) and ltem 70 {Liabilities)" of the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit group, Notes to the consclidated accounts - Part B -
Consolidated batance sheat -Assets.

Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified consolidated balance sheet

The main reclassifications, whese amounts are provided analytically in the tables enclosed with this report, involve:

» the inclusion in *Loans 1o banks® of "Financiat assels at amortised cost: a) Loans and receivables with banks” net of debt securities reclassified in
*Other financial assets” and of lozns reclassified from *Other financial assets - item 20 ¢)';

« the inclusion in “Loans t¢ customers” of “Financial assets at amortised cost; b) Loans and receivables with customers” net of debt securities
reclassified in “Other financial assets” and of loans reclassified from “Other financial assets - ltem 20 ¢)" and leasing asset IFRS18 b} loans to
customers reclassified in “Other financial assets”;

« the aggregation as "Other financial assets” of (i) *Financial assets at fair value through profii and loss: b) Financial assets designaled at fair value
and c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value' net of loans reclassified in *Loans to banks and to customers®, of (il) ‘Financial assets at fair
value through olher comprehensive income” of (iii) "Equity investments”, (iv) "Financial assets at amortised cost’ — debt securities a) fcans 1o
banks and b} loans to customers and - assets liabilities JFRS16 b) from loans 1o customers;

» The inclusion in item “Cther financial Fabilities” of leasing liabilities IFRS16 related 1o item 10. Financial liabilities at amortised cost: a} deposits
from banks and b) deposits from customers;

» grouping under “Hedging instruments”, both assets and liabilities, of *Hedging derivatives” and “Changes in fair value of portfolic hedged items”;

e the inclusion of "Provision for employee severance pay” and *Provisions for risks and charges” under *Other liabilities’.
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Reclassified cansolidated balance sheat

(€ milion)

L 3 T S AMOUNTS AS AT ' ' CHANGE - :
(ASSETS I L - | A231am0 12.31.2019 AMOUNT %
Cash and cash balance: 101,707 17,305 +84,402 n.m.
Financial assets held for trading 72,705 63,280 +9.426 +14.9%
Loans to banks 111,814 97.888 +13,926 +14.2%
Loans te customers 450,550 482 574 - 32,024 -6.6%
Other financial assets 153,349 149,091 +4.258 +29%
Hedging instruments 7 687 9.230 - 1,943 -16.7%
| Property, plant and equipment 9,939 11,097 -1157 -10.4%
Goodwill 0 386 - 884 -100.0%
Other intangible assets 2,117 1,914 + 204 +10.6%
Tax assets 13,097 12,822 +176 +14%
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 2017 2,512 - 494 -18.7%
Other assets 6473 6,949 -477 -5.9%
Total assets 931,456 855,647 +75,810 +8.9%
{€ million)

T T AMOUNTS AS AT CHANGE
LIABIITIES AND SRAREHOLDERS EQUITY ' ' : 12312020 12312019 AMOUNT %
Deposits from banks 172 465 135,563 +36,902 +27.2%
Deposits from customers 498,440 470,570 + 27,869 +59%
Debt securities issued 102,524 96,301 +6,223 +65%
Financial liabikities held for trading 47,787 41,483 +6,304 +15.2%
Other financial liabilities 12,887 12,083 +§03 +5.6%
Hedging instruments 11,764 12,150 -385 -3.2%
Tax Habilities 1,358 1,378 -21 -1.5%
Ligbilities included in dispasal groups classified as held for sale 761 725 +35 +5.0%
Other liabilities 23,529 23608 -79 -0.3%
Minorities 438 369 +56 +17.8%
Group shareholders' equity 58,507 51,416 - 1,908 -31%
of which:

- capital and reserves 62,292 56,042 + 4,250 +7.3%
- net profit (foss) {2,785) 3373 -6,158 n.m.
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 931,456 855,647 +75,810 +88%
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Reclassified consolidated balance sheet - Quarterly figures

(€ million)
. AMOUNTS AS AT AMOUNTS AS AT
L 2260 90020 0602020 03312020 | 12342019 08302019 06302018 05312019
Cash and cash balances 101,707 37,500 17,342 20,726 17.305 30,997 32,578 31.891
Financial assets held for trading 72,705 73,165 67,236 69,756 63,280 74,871 67,344 67,135
Loans to banks 111,814 129,140 126,541 94 525 97,888 81,483 77511 83,655
Loans to customers 450,550 466,776 479,253 489,973 482,574 480,887 469,298 471,653
Other financial assets 153,349 153,407 155.884 151,907 149,091 146,292 138,438 148,061
Hedging instruments 7 687 R.241 11 445 11,051 5,230 11,673 9,801 8,516
Property, plant and equipment 9.93¢ 10,148 10,242 10,519 11,097 8,276 9,549 1,162
Goodwill 0 878 §78 886 886 386 886 1,484
Other intangible assets 2117 1,994 1,857 1,865 1,914 1,852 1,915 1,996
Tax assets 13,087 13,024 12,978 12,855 12,922 12,673 12,780 13,019
Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as
held for sale 2.017 2,104 1,984 2,045 2512 4,535 3.286 1,764
Other assets 6,473 6,575 5,994 6,542 6,949 8,008 8,824 7,692
Total assets 931,456 903,353 892,735 872,753 855,647 863,544 832,611 848,128
(€ million,
woi e - AMOUNTSAS AY AMOUNTS AS AT
EQUITY ‘ 12312020 09302020 00302020 03342020 | 12312019 09332015  08.30.2019  03.31.20%
Deposits from banks 172,465 163,775 164,843 161,497 135,563 143,213 132,695 136,882
Deposits from customers 498,440 474,780 468,315 454,956 470,570 455473 453,019 473514
Debt securities issued 102,524 101,588 95,902 35,197 96,301 97,575 92,434 84,283
Financial liabilities held for trading 47,787 47 812 45,551 46,785 41,483 46,102 40,410 41,879
Other financial liabilities 12,887 12,963 12,656 11,094 12,083 13,401 13,689 13,815
Hedging ingtruments 11,764 12,551 15,029 14,236 12,150 16,023 13,848 11,440
Tax liabilities 1,358 1,469 1,454 1.509 1,378 1,079 1,020 1,285
Liabilities included in disposal groups classified as
held for sale 761 593 615 559 725 626 632 547
Other liabilities 23.529 26,722 27,186 25.669 23,608 29,137 24,948 25.267
Minorities 435 443 437 430 369 482 445 1,018
Group shareholders’ equity 59,507 60,645 60,748 60,820 51415 60,454 59,471 58,188
of which:
- capital and reserves 62,292 62.252 63,034 63,526 58,042 56,245 56,443 57,012
- nigt profit (foss) {2,785) (1,606} (2,285 {2.706) 3.373 4,208 3,028 1,175
Total liabilittes and shareholders' equity 931,456 903,353 892,735 872,753 855,647 863,544 832,614 848,128
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Reconciliation principles followed for the reclassified consolidated income statement

The main reclassifications, whase amounts are provided analytically in the tables enclosed with this repor, invoive:

» the inclusion in *Dividends and other income from equity investments” of *Profit (Loss) of equity investments valued at equity” and the exclusion of
(i) *Dividends from held for trading equity instruments” and (i) "Dividends from Other financial assels mandatorily at fair valug” which are included
in “Net trading income”;

« the inclusion in the *Net other cperating expensesfincome’ of “Other aperating expenses/income’, excluding "Recovery of expenses” which is
classified under its own item, the exclusion of the costs for “Write-downs on leasehold improvements' classified among "Other administrative
expenses” and inclusion of result of industrial companies,

o presentation of “Net other expensesfincome’, *Payroli costs'’, “Other administrative expenses’, *Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses
on tangible and intangible assets® and "Other charges and provisions™ net of any “Integration costs” retating to the reorganisation operations,
classified as a separate item;

o tha exclusion from the “Other administrative expenses” of the Contributions to the Resolution Funds (SRF), the Deposit Guarantee Schemes
(DGS), the Bank Levies and the Guarantes fees for DTA reclassified in item “Other charges and provisions”;

» the exclusion from "Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible and tangible assets" of (/) property owned for investment (i)
inventorias assets (IAS2) obtained from recavery procedures of NPE (i) right of use of land and buildings used in the business (all classified in
itern "Net income from investments) and (iv} langible in operating lease assets (2l classified in item "Net other expensesfincome’),

« the exclusion fram “Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible and tangible assets of property owneg for investment and
those related to operating lease assets. which are reclassified respectively among "Net income from investmenis” and “Net other
expensesfincome’;

= in "Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments”, the inclusion of net losses/recoveries on financial assets at
amoartised cost and at fair value through other comprehensive income net of debt securities, the gains (losses) on disposal and repurchase of non-
performing financial assets at amortised cost net of debt securilies and of the "Net provisions for risks and charges” refated to commitments and
financial quarantees given;

« the inclusion in “Net income from investments” of write-downs and write-backs on financial assets at amortised cost and at fair value thrcugh other
comprehensive income - debt securities, gains (losses) on disposal of invesiments, gains (losses) on tangible and intangible assets measured at
fair value as well as gains (losses} on equity investments and on disposal of investments, including impacts from revaluation arising from IFRS5
non-current assets and disposal groups related to equity investrment consalidated line by line and at net equity method not presented to item *Profit
{Lass) from non-current assets held for sale after tax”;

« the inclusion among “Net trading income” {i} of the net gains {losses) on trading, (i} of the net gains (losses} on hedge accounting, (iii) of the net
gains/losses on the financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, (iv) of the gains/losses on disposal ar repurchase of financiai
assets at fair value through other camprehensive income and (v} of the interest income and expenses deriving frsm Trading Sock instruments,
excluded the economical hedging or funding banking book pasitions.

Figures of Reclassified consolidated income statement have been restated, starting from June 2020 and with reference to 2019 quarters and first
quarter 2020, for interest income and expenses deriving from Trading Book instruments, excluded the economical hedging or funding banking baok,
thal have been classified to the item *Net trading income”,
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Reclassified consolidated income statement

{€ million}
YEAR CHANGE
- : ' % AT CONSTANT
2020 21 PRL % FX0 RATES
Net interest 9441 10,071 -631 -5.3% -5.3%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 415 637 -222 - 34.8% -35.9%
| Net fees and commissions 5976 5,304 - 328 -5.2% -4.8%
Net trading income 1,412 1,669 -257 -15.4% -14.4%
Net other expenses/income {104) 196 - 260 nm nm
OPERATING INCOME 17,140 18,339 - 1,698 -9.0% -8.3%
Payroll costs {5,968} (6,146) +178 -2.9% -24%
Cther adminisirative expenses (3,223 {3,279) +56 -1.7% -1.2%
Recovery of expenses 523 592 -69 -1M.7% -11.1%
Armortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible
and tangible assets {(1,137) {1,036} -41 +3.7% +4.5%
QOperating costs (8,805} (8.829) +124 - 1.2% -1.7%
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 7335 8,910 -1,575 -173% - 16.8%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and
commitments (4,996) (3,382 - 1,614 +47.7% +48.9%
NET OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 2,338 5,527 - 3,189 - 57.7% - 56.9%
Other charges and provisions {1,055) {954) -102 +10.7% +11.2%
of which: systemic ¢harges {958 (886) -2 +8.2% +85%
Integration costs {1,464} (664) - 800 n.m. n.m.
Net incame from investments (1,365) (844) -521 +61.7% +681.7%
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX {1,546) 3,065 -4,611 nm, n.m.
Inome tax for the period (344) (890) +545 -61.3% -B0.5%
NET PROFIT {(LOSS) {1,890} 2176 - 4,066 n.m. n.m.
Profi {Loss) from non-current assets held for sale after tax 49 1,383 -1,334 -96.5% - 96.5%
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIQD (1,842) 3,559 - 5,400 n.m. n.m.
Minorities I {118) +110 -93.9% -93.7%
NET PROFIT {LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP
BEFORE PPA {1,849) 3,441 - 5,200 n.m, n.m,
Purchase Price Allocation effect (50 (68} + 18 - 26.6% - 26.6%
Googwill impairment {886) - - 886 n.m. n.m.
NET PROFIT {(LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP {2,785) 3,373 - 6,158 n.m, n.m.

Note:
[} Foreign Exchange.
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Reclassified consotidated income statement - Quarterly figures

(€ millign)
) 2028 2019

S : o - o @ at o @ [+ @
Net interest 2,250 2,303 2,393 2,494 2,508 2,520 2,507 2,537
Dividends and other in¢ome from equity investments 124 128 62 102 133 183 154 167
Net fees and commissions 1,506 1,469 1,380 1,620 1,629 1,569 1,565 1,541
Net trading income 428 455 357 173 472 M3 300 484
Net other expenses/income {69) (1 (22) {11) 108 17 {8) 39
OPERATING INCOMF 4,238 4,354 4,170 4378 4,850 4,703 4,518 4,768
Payroll costs {1,456) {1.479) (1492  (1542) (1.549) {1,522 {1,519) {1,559)
Other administrative expenses (827 (788) (797} (812) (858) (788) (803) (832
Recovery of expenses 147 124 128 125 150 142 151 150
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on
intangible and tangibie assets (323 (266) (284) (265) (267) (281) (276) (272

Operating costs (2,458) (2,410) (2,444 {2,493} (2,525) (2,447 {2,448) {2,510)
OPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) 1,780 1,945 1,726 1,385 2325 2,256 2,070 2,258
Net write-downs an loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments (2.058) (741) {937} (1,261} {1,645) {563 (707} (467
NET QPERATING PROFIT (LOSS) {278} 1,204 788 624 681 1,694 1,362 1,791
QOther charges and provisions (91) (251) (185) (528) (316 (187) (236) (214)

of which: systemic charges (53) {201 {166) {538) (82} (148) {118) {538)
Integration costs (82) (30 (6) {1,347} (857) {2) (2} (3}
Net income from investments 130 (141} (92) _{1,281) (665) 41 (311} 90
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX {322) 782 505 (2,512 (958) 1,545 814 1,664
Income tax for the period (34) 97) (73) (140} 119 (338) (176) {494)
NET PROFIT {LOSS) (356} 685 432 (2,652) (839) 1,207 837 1,11
Prafit {Loss} from non-current assets heid for sale
after tax 48 {0) 1 (@) " 0 1,307 65
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (308) 685 433 {2,652) {828) 1,207 1,944 1,235
Mincrities 8 (5) () (5) (4 {26} (29) (59)
NET PROFIT (LOSS} ATTRIBUTABLE TQ THE
GROUP BEFORE PPA {300) 680 428 (2,656) {832) 1,181 1,916 1,176
Purchase Price Allacation effect )] )] (0) (50) (3) (1 (63} (1)
Goodwill impairment (878) - {8} - - - _ -
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE
GROUP {(1,179) 680 420 {2,706) [835) 1,180 1,853 1,175
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Reclassified consolidated income statement - Comparison of Q4 2020/Q4 2019

{€ million)
o ‘ . CHANGE
- . % AT CONSTANT
; i o . 20 2049 P&L % FX RATES
Net interest 2,250 2,508 - 257 -10.3% -85%
Dividends and other income from equity investments 124 133 - -6.5% -7.5%
Net fees and commissions 1,506 1,629 -123 -7.6% -6.9%
Net frading income 428 472 -45 -9.6% -8.4%
| Net other expensesiincome {639) 108 =477 . n.m.
OPERATING INCOME 4,238 4,850 - 612 -12.6% - 11.5%
Payroll costs {1,456) {1,549) +93 -68.0% -5.2%
Other administrative expenses (827) (858) +32 -3.7% -25%
Recovery of expenses 147 150 -3 -2.0% -1.4%
Amortisation, depreciation and impairment losses on intangible
and tangible assets {323) (267) -55 +20.8% +224%
QOperating costs {2,458) {2,525) + B6 - 2.6% -1.7%
OPERATING PROFIT (L 0SS) 1,780 2,325 - 546 -23.5% -22.1%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guaraniees and
commitments (2,058) {1,645) -413 +251% +26.1%
NET OPERATING PROFIT {LOSS) {278) 681 - 958 n.m. n.m.,
Other charges and provisions 91) (316) +225 -711% -70.9%
of which: systemic charges {63} (82} +29 -35.1% -33.9%
Integration costs (82) (657) + 575 -87.5% -87.3%
Net income from investments 130 (665) + 754 n.m. n.m.
PROFIT (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (322} {958) +636 « 66.4% -67.7%
| Inzome tax for the period {34) 119 -153 n.m, n.m. |
AET PROFIT {LOSS} (356} {839) +483 -57.6% - 58.8%
Profit (Loss) frem non-cument assets held for sale after tax 48 14 +37 n.m, n.m.
PROFIT (LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD (348) (828) +520 -62.9% - 54.1%
Minorities 8 (4} +12 n.m. n.m.
NET PROFIT (LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GRQUP
BEFQRE PPA (300} (832) +532 - 64,0% - §5.2%
Purchase Price Allgcation effect () 3) +3 -58.0% -98.0%
| Goodwill impaimment (878} - -878 - -
NET PROFIT {LOSS) ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE GROUP {1,179} {835 =343 +41.1% +39.3%
Note;

{") Foreign Exchange.
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Summary results by business segments

Key figures by business segment

{€ million)
COMMERCIAL  COMMERCIAL  COMMERCIAL GROUP CONSOLITATED
" BARIGNS BANKENG BANKING CEE CORPONATE NON BROUP
L ALY SERMANY AUSTHIA oIVIgION o8 CENTRES CORE . _JOTAL
eoma statament i ;
OPERATING INCOME :
2020 5311 2,354 1,363 3427 35947 121 5) 17,140
|_2019 o 7,062 2,404 _ 1546 400 L3985 L I I ) 2
OPERATING COSTS ' ‘
2020 (3,668 |4 651} 1991; 11,485 {1525 1369) s (9,905}
M9 (3,782 [1.626) [958 11,535 {1849 (292; __am . 9.929) |
OPERATING PROFIT i :
020 2573 703 an 1537 2422 10 {54 TA3
2019 - 3280 7 s 2466 243 {410 e _ 8910
PROFIT BEFORE TAX . :
2020 11,339 256 1 723 1,47 12242} (K (1.548)
{ 2ms 173 863 325 1716 2068 1403 (2267 . . AgEs
Balatice sheet ‘
CUSTOMERS [OANS®
2s at 31 Dacember 2020 132,311 87,168 433406 B187¢ 87,72 1631 77 4793
as 2t 31 Dacamber 2019 134574 AL A 44,571 . _B7.5M 85 970 2205 1896 4351
CUSTOMERS DEFGSY ! !
as al 31 Dacamber 2020 172,372 102,957 52,124 71,287 58,279 2,459 518 45994
s al 37 December 209 - 153,283 89,799 _ 48.45q 70, 148 B5ME 2332 488 420449
TOTAL RISK WEIGHTED ASSETS k
as al 31 Decambsr 2020 8301 35536 21,509 55 ME 83043 39,999 7542 325,685
as a1 31 Decomber 2013 . 96,067 36t 23,041 67 560 85,081 39733 togs6 . 3ATIA
EVA . .
2020 {1097) 1195 1225 (276, 194 11234 1228} (3.347) |
2019 o s 45 4 6 649 11,051 517 ] o
Costincoms ratic - T - T . .
2000 51.8% 0.7% 727% 4347, W E% nm L S72%
2019 _ 536% _ 676% E27%  __384% 38 9% . _m am o S17%
Employees ) 7 ) B ’ ) - -
as at 31 Degambar 7020 26 B84 9,002 4,587 2358 3,443 14047 e 82107
as at 31 December 2013 o 28,379 5,096 4798 4142 3484 14047 295_1 B4
Notas:

(1) COO Services, Corporate Centre Global Functions, imter-segment adjustments and consolidation adjustments not attnbutable to individual segments,
(2) Net of repas, intercompany transactions.

Figures ag of 2019 were recast, where necessary, on a like-to-Jike basis to consider changes in scope of business segment and methodological
rules. In particular, the sub-group Koc Finansal Hizmetler AS figures hava been reclassified from CEE Division to Group Carporate Centre,
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IASAFRS
218 1 0y 244 2018 014 21 FIard 1L
Operating income . 17140 | 18,839 19723 19,519 18801 22405 22513 23973 25048 25200 26347
E:ratihg‘costs ‘ 0,805 | (907200 (106981 (11.350) (12.453) (13518)  (13B38) (14801} (14979 (15460) (15483
| Opersting prafil {loss} . ‘ 7335) 8910  §075  B268 6348 8787 BE/5 8472 10070 9740 10.864
Profit {loss) before income tax ] {1,546 3065 3619 4148 (10978) 267 4001 (4,888) N7 2060 2517
Net profit {loss) for the period : (1842 | 3550 4112 5790 {11,081 2739 2669 (3920y 1687 544 1,976
Net profit (loss) atfributable to the Gronp (@785 | 3373 3892 5473 (11.700} 5,084 2006 {13.950) 885 (9,208} 1.323
Reglassified balance sheet (€ million}
Total assels - 931456 | 855647 831469 B36790 859533 860433 844217 845838 926827 92769 929483
Loans and receivables with customers B "450550 | 482,574 471839 447727 444607 473999 470563 503142 547144 559593  555.6593
| of which: bad exposures - 16451 2958 5787 9499 10945 19924 19701 18058 19360 18118 16344
}_Deposiis from cuslomers and debt sesurities issued 600,964 | 566,871 50141 561498 567.665 584268 560589 571024 578965 581370  583.239
Grotip shareholders’ aquity . 535074 #1416 55841 58331 30336 50,067 45300 46811 62784 51470 64224
‘| Profitability ratios (%) t
Cperating profit (loss)/Tatal assets 0.7% 1.04 1.09 0.99 0.74 1.02 1.03 1.08 1.09 1.05 1.17
Costiincome ratio - B - 57.0 52.7 54.2 57.9 86.2 0.8 615 617 59.8 1.4 58.9

The figures here reported refer to the information published in the reference year.

Share information

S 2048 wmE . a0 2018 25 014 21 2 2011 010
Share prica (€)")
- maximum 14174 13.494 18.212 18.350 25.733 32.824 34.427 28.213 22.440 §5.912 76243
- minimurty 6.213 9.190 9.596 12.160 8783 24,605 25583 16.227 11 456 21157 49.212
- Jverage 8.650 11.183 14.635 i15.801 13820 28.508 30.018 72.667 18.520 42.823 63 702
- end of period 7.648 13.020 9.894 15.580 13701 26.733 26735 26.861 18.572 21.190 51.09§_‘
Nurnber of outstanding shares (million)
- at peried end™ 2.237 223 2.230 222 6180 5,970 45.868 5.792 5784 1.830 192876
- shares cum dividend 2,228 2,224 2,220 2.218 6 084 5.873 5,769 5685 5,693 1,833 18.330,5
of which: savings shares - - - 0.25 2582 2.48 245 242 242 247 242
-averager" 2238 223 2,229 1.957 6,110 5927 5837 5,791 5473 1,930 19,1018
Bividand?™
- total dividends {€ mitlion} L - 601 726 - 705 697 570 512 - 560
- gividend per ordinary share ] - G270 0.320 - 0.120 0.120 0100 0.080 - 1.030
| ; divigend per savings share - - - 0.120 1.068 3.100 0.080 - 0.045

Notes:

(") Due to extraordinary corporate operaticns (such as shares' grouping, demergers, drstribution of extraardinary dnidends, etc.) share prices might change being no longer comparable frem one finansial year to another.
The histoncal series of share prices have been therefore adjusted to allow a better comparison.

{*) The number of shares, existing at the end of the reference periad is net of treasury shares and includes 9.576 million of shares held under a contract of usufruct signed with Mediobanca S.p.A.

(™ or what concer to the amount of dividend related to 2020, subject to the 15 April 2021 General Sharehclders Meeting sporaval refer to the paragraph "Capal and valoe management - Capital rabos” of this
Consolidated regost on operaticns,

The following paragraph outlines additionat information concerning shares capital changes and dividends pay-out with reference to the last two
financial years.

On 4 April 2019, the resolution to increase the share capital for €54,401.485.00 by issuing No.3,200,177 ordinary free shares for the execution of
Group Incentive System was registered with the Company Register. On 11 April 2019, the Shareholders’ Meeting approved the payment to the
shareholders of a dividend of €0.27 for each share outstanding and entitled to dividend at payment date, for a maximum amount of €601 million,
from allocation of 2018 net profit.

On 27 March 2020 was registered with the Company Register the resolution to increase the share capital for €64,736,388.57 by issuing
No.3,884,961 ordinary free shares for the execution of Group Incentive System, Cn 29 March 2020 UniCredit S.p.A. Beard of Directors, following
ECB's recommendation issued on 27 March 2020 on dividends distribution and share buybacks, resolved to withdraw the proposed resclutions to be
submitted to Shareholders' Meeting convened on 9 April 2020, related to the distribution of a dividend for the year 2013 of €0.63 per share from

profit reserves and authorization for a share buyback up 1o €487 million and subsequent cancellation of treasury shares purchased with no reduction
of share capital.
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On 29 July 2020, following the ECB's recommendation on 27 July 2020 (ECB/2020/35), UniCredit S.p.A. confirmed that it would not have paid
dividends and would not have repurchased its own shares in 2020, This is neutral for coupen payments on AT1 bond and Cashes instruments.

On 15 December 2020, the European Central Bank issued the Recommendation 2020/82 *on dividend distributions during the Covid-18 pandemic
and repealing Recommendation ECB/2020/35"; the recommendation asks banks to "refrain from or limit dividends untit September 2021",

For the implications related to its application at UniCredit group, refer ta the paragraph "Capital and value management - Capital ratios” of this
Cansoligated report on operations.

Earnings ratios

IASAFAS

i . 2020 26819 2018 017 2018 s 2014 2013 2012 2011 200
Sh s equity (€ million) 59,507 | 61,416 55,841 59.331 39.336 50,087 43,380 45.841 62784 51,479 64,224
Net profit fioss) atiribuible 16 the Group
(€ million) {2.788) 3371 3,892 5473 111,790) 1,684 2.008 {13.965) 885 19,706} 1.323
Shareholders' equity per share (€] 26.60 27.50 25.04 2665 6.36 .39 8.42 8.0% 13.85 26.67 133
Price/Boak value 0.2¢ 047 0.40 0.58 0.43 0.81 .63 0.57 0.34 0.16 1.06
Earnings per share(€)( {1,308} 1.462 1.712 2.794 {1.982) 0.27 0.34 (2.47) 0,15 (5.12) 0.96
Payout rang (%) ‘ - 15.4 13.3 - #.7 4.7 4.1 59.2 - 4.6
Dividend yielg on average price per ordinary share
(%) : - 1.84 2.03 . 204 200 2.2 2.73 - 1.55

Notes:

() For further detas an Earnings per share (EPS) refer to Fart C - Section 25 Earnings per share.

("} For what concern to the amount of dvitend related to 2020. subject to the 15 April 2021 General Shareholders Meeting approval, refer to the paragraph "Capital and value management - Capital rabos” of this
Consolidated repart on operations

The amounts in the table are published "hisiorical figures” and they should be read with reference fo each reference period.

Starting from 2009, the net prefit for the period used to calculate EPS is reduced for the foliowing amounts related to disbursements, charged to
equity, made in connection with the usufruct contract signed with Mediobanca S.p.A. an UniCredit shares supperting the issuance of convertible
securities denominated “Cashes”: €131 million for 2009, €156 million for 2010, €172 million for 2011, €46 million for 2012, €105 million for 2013, €35
millicn for 2014, €100 million for 2015, €128 million for 2016, €32 million for 2017, €93 million for 2018, €124 million for 2019 and €122 million for
2020.

Eamings per share
€)

400
1112 1482

e e EE

-1.306

200 4

0.06 0.15 0.34 027
0.00 T
2010

2014 2015
-2.00

4,00 4

-6.00 4
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Macroeconomic situation, banking and financial markets

International situation

In 2020 the world economy faced an unprecedented economic contraction, triggered by the Covid-19 pandemic, that forced governments fc adopt
drastic containment measures to flatten their epidemiological curves at the cost of severe economic recessions. April was the month of the Great
Lockdown, when global economic activity halted almost comeletely, with services sectors fike restaurants, hospitality and retall trace being hit
hardest. Most ecenomies recorded double digit GDP centractions in first half 2020 and recovered part of the lost ground in second half 2020, despite
a second wave of contagion.

The Covid-19 shock was counterad by an equally unprecedented policy response from both monetary and fiscal authorities. In order to contain the
economic losses, govemments have adopted ambitious fiscal respanses aimed at curbing unemployment and supporting the most vuinerable
sectors. Expansicnary fiscal policies were coupled with the introduction of government-guaranteed bank lending tc allow firms ta stay afloat during
the most challenging months. The increase in budget deficits and public debts will represent the lasting legacy of the current crisis. On top of thal,
central banks intervenad with the adoption of uncenventional monetary policies on @ massive scale.

Global growth is expected to contract by around 4% in 2020, with global trade contracting even more sharply, reflecting weak demand. the collapse
in cross-border tourism, and supply dislocations related to shutdowns. Global economic activity rebounded strongly in third quarter 202C, driven by
rising household consumption. and reflecting the easing of Covid-19-related restrictions across Furope and the US in the second half of second
quarter 2020 and the associated release of pent-up demand. Economic acivity in third quarter 2020 remainad well below pre-crisis levels almost
everywhere, with GDP in the eurozone and the US around 4 5% and 3.5% below fourth quarter 2019 levels, respectively, while China's GDP was
3.5% above pre-crisis levels. China will be the only major economy that will post positive growth in 2020, with real GCP expanding by 2.3%. The
Japanese economy, despite a less intense Covid-19 shock than other advanced economies, will likely experience a 5.6% contraction.

Eurozane's GDP approximately contracted by cumulated 15 percentage points in first half 2020, amid Covid-18 containment measures and the
associated extreme uncertainty. Thanks to a sharp rebound in second half 2020, the contraction for the whole 2020 will amount to around 7.0%. The
restrictions that were adopted since Qctober 2020 1o contain the second wave of contagion were less stringent and better targeted than those of the
first wave. Industrial activity fared relatively well, while the most-exposed service seclors were hit rather hard. Although the health shock was
symmetric, national economies were hit asymmetricafly as a result of diverging poticy responses due to different room of fiscal maneuver. Among
the largest eurozane economies, France, Italy and Spain experienced deeper contractions than Germany and the Netherlands.

The total impact of the Covid-19 shock on inflation has been to the downside as demand weakness has prevailed over supply-side bottlenecks.

The European Ceniral Bank (ECB) adopted an ambitious monetary package to support the eurozone ecenomy. It expanded its existing QE program
of €20 billien of menthly purchased by €120 billion until end-2020. Mareover, the ECB introduced an additional €750 billion asset purchase program
of private and public sector securities catled Pandemic Emergency Purchase Program ("PEPP") and more favarable conditions for its TLTRO-III
between June 2020 and June 2021, with interest rates that can go as low as 50bp below the average deposit facility rate. In addition, the ECB
introduced a new liquidity facility Fandemic Emergency Longer-Term Refinancing Operations (‘PELTRC"). On June 4, the weaker inflation outlook in
the ECB's June projections prompted the Governing Council to expand the size of the PEFF by €600 billion to €1,350 billion. On 10 December, the
ECB Governing Council extended the duration and scale of several monetary policy instruments, reflecting a weaker inflation outlook. The
recaliaration of the ECB's instruments included: (1) increase in the Pandemic Emergency Purchase Program {PEFF} by €500 billion to €1,850 billion
and extension of its duration 10 at east the end of March 2022 (from June 2021} and (i) the relaxation of the terms of existing lending facilities, for
TLTRO-N and for the eligibility criteria applicable to guarantees up to June 2022 (from June 2021).

With reference the US economy a contraction by around 3.5% is expected in 2020. It registered a record expansion of 7.5% qog (non-annualised) in
third quarter 2020 following a record contraction of 9.0% in second quarter, Strong federal government support for incomes earlier in the year,
including direct payments 1o households and generous enhanced unemployment benefits established through the CARES Act, significantly
contributed to the strength of the recovery. The Fed has immediately intervened by lowering federal funds rate by 150bp to -0.250p, reducing the
cost of discount window lending, introducing facilities to support the flow of credit and decreasing existing cost of swap lines with major central banks
and extended the maturity of FX operations. In its latest meetings of 2020, the Federal Open Market Committee - 'FOMC” dacided to leave ralas,
forward guidance and the pace of asset purchases all unchanged.
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Banking and financial markets

In 2020, in the eurozone loans to the private sector began to accelerate in March, growing on an annual basis al a rate of 4.7% in December
compared to 3.7% at the end of 2019, This acceleration in loans lo the private sector was driven by growth of loans to nen-financial corporations, up
by 7.0% on an annual bas's in December, compared to growth of around 3% at the end of 2019. Loans to households, on the other hand, were
characterised by a decline in the rate of expansion, to just abave 3% yoy in December, mainly reflecting a weakening of household purchases.
Given the cantext of deep weakness in economic activity, induced by the negative impacts of the restrictions introduced to stem the spread of
Covid-13, and the detericration in investment prospects, the acceleration of loans to non-financial corparations was supported by guarantees
infroduced by national governments,

While in the first part of 2020 the dynamics of loans to the private sector showed a fairly homogenous trend among the main reference countries of
the UniCredit group (Austria, Germany and ltaly), divergences emerged towards the end of the year. The evolution of loans remained positive in
Germany, but the growth rate of loans to non-financial corparations showed a slowing trend in the second half of the year compared to the end of
2019, while the growth rate of household loans stabilised just above 4.5%. Simitar trends characterised credit aggregates in Austria, while in taly,
corporate loans accelerated sharply in the second half of 2020, with a growth rate, on an annual basis, of around 8.0%, compared to a decrease of
1.5% at the end of 2019. Increasing recourse to guaranteed credit, which continued throughout 2020, appears to be the factar behind this
acceleration. tn carnitrast, leans to households showed a general slowdown in fialy, with gradua' recovery towards the end of the year (+2.2% yoy in
Deacember).

With regard to bank funding at the system level, deposits from households and non-financial corporations showed strong acceleration in 2020 and in
all three main reference Countries ¢f the UniCredit group. The increase in depesits, and in particular in sight deposits, primarily reflected firms' wish
to accumulate a liquidity buffer and a sharp increase in household savings as a consequence of the pandemic and directives to stay at home and for
precautionary reasons, given a detericration of prospects in the labor market, and as a consequence of the very low interest rate environment.

The European Central Bank (ECB) approved bold measures in 2020 aimed at countering the effects of the pandemic ang supporting the economy
and guaranteeing the availability of credit to households and businesses, with the latest intervention a recallbraticn of the conditions of the bank's
assel purchase program and long-term liquidity operations, approved in December. Consequently, for the mast part, bank interest rates showed a
trend towards reduction/stabilization in all three UniCredit reference countries. Interest rates on sight deposits remained close to zero throughout
202C.

The evolution of the pandemic was the main factor driving the performance of financial markets during 2020. The introduction of restrictions in spring
to curb the spread of the contagion was accompanied by a sudden deteriaration in the performance of financial markets in a context of growing risk
aversion. The easing of conlainment measures towards the end of first haif prompled a recovery of market perfarmance and then stabilization. A
return to levels closer to where they were prior to the onset of the pandemic materialised towards the end of the year as positive news on vaccines
wffset an increase in risk aversion related to the beginning of the second Covid-19 wave in the fall. As a consequence, the Italian stock exchange
closed 2020 with a loss of only around 5% compared to December 2019, At the height of risk aversion in spring it was down by araund 35%. The
Austrian stock exchange registered a decline of around 13% year-to-date in December after dipping around 55% in spring. The German stack
exchange outperformed the other two and was even able to record an improvement of 3.5% year-to-date in December 2020.

CEE countries

CEE was significantly affected by the Covid-19 crisis. In 2020, GOP fell in ali CEE countries but Turkey, where the econemy grew by around 1.2%.
around 3pp below patential growth, In the rest of the region, the GDP contraction is expected ranged between 1.1% in Serbia to almost 4.0% in
Russia and around 5.0% in EU-CEE! and the western Balkans.

The heatth crisis caused by the Cavid-1$ pandemic led to a deeper slump in the second quarter 2020 than that which occurrad Guring the global
financial crisis. Economies that are mare refiant on domestic demand and that benefitted from timely gavernment suppart were more resifient than
the small, apen ecancmies in central Europe. The recavery in the third quarter was propartional to the second quarter slump but incomplete. In the
fourth quarter 2020, GDP is expected to decrease again in most CEE countries due 1o logkdowns imposed in response to the second wave of the
Covig-18 pandemic, both domestically and by the CEE's largest European economic partners.,

1Bulgana, Croatia, Czech Rapublic, Hungary, Poland, Romania, Stovakia and Slovenia,
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To mitigate the impact of Covid-19 on the ecanomy, governmentis in the region introduced very significant support packages which ranged from
around 3.0% to close to 11% of GDP. These packages included direct measures, such as labour-market support, tax exemptions and deferrals, and
sectoral support, and indirect measures, for example moratoria on loan repayments. guarantees for lending and lower borrowing costs. Central
banks cut interest rates significantly in most countries and intraduced also band purchases programs.

Support measures helped avert a sharp rise in unemployment, with furlough and part-time work schemes helping cushio_n the bicw 1o household
income. This, in tum, helped avoid large declines in house prices and returmed durable geods purchases to pre-pandemic levels before year-end.

Main results and performance for the period

Introduction

The year was marked by the spread of Covid-19 pandemic, which had a major impact on the community, the employees, and the customers. The

first negative consequences on the international and domestic economic activity, refated to the spreading of the virus, started to be known, with un-

avoidable impacts on the Group profit, already from the first months of 2020.

From the main effects of Covid-19 observed, important to be noticed are the following:

« negative impacts on the retail loans demand and on the corporate lzans interest rates, even following the facilitation of loans with state
quarantees, with resulling decrease on the interest margin: about the customer loans moratorium, they didn't significantly affect the imerest
margin;

e decreases of the commissions, in all service areas;

» additional costs, specifically for davices and equipment needed for the employee's protection and for a massive transfer to a remote way of
working (smart working),

= worsening of the cost of risk because of higher provisions on loans. The current environment continues tc be characterised by highly uncertain
slements, with the possibility that the slowdown of the econamy. jointly with the terminaticn of the safeguard measures, such as the customer
loans moratorium, generate a worsening of the loan portfolic quality, followed by an increase of the non-performing loans and the necessity to
increase the provisions to he charged fo the income statement. In this respect during 2020, €5.0 billion fcan loss provisions have been detected, of
which €2.2 billion overlay, as described in the fallowing paragraph "Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guaranteas and commitments”.

In relation 1o the crisis caused by the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group ensured an effective operational response, thanks to the acceleration and the
strengthening of some digitalization initiatives already provided for by the plan's strategic guidelines, with the aim to increase the product range and
services accessible remotely by the customers and to improve the service level granted by all the channels operating as a complement of the
physical network of branches. The digital transformation plan of the Bank has been furtherly accelerated through a new investments' series aimed
at:

* increass the activation and use of gigital services and of our mobile App;

« sirengthen the contact center rale through the full integration with the cther channels also leveraging on new lechnalogies:

« evolve the financial advice making available a large range of products and services remotely,

» accelerate the digial experience for the enterprises through a single-entry point (Corporate portal) and redesigning specific "customer journeys”.

These initiatives are part of a wider custemer service model review that is evolving from a setting mainly based on the physical interaction to a
model where the Bank/Customer interaclion wilt be designed basing on the needs and preferences of the lafter.

Furthermore measures 1o protect the health, safety and wellbeing of all stakeholders have been activated. including, for example, the “smart
working” massive adoption for the employees of the headquarters and specific measures for the access and use of the branches.

The financial objectives of Team 23, in the light of the worsening macroecanomic context and cost of risk reviewed estimates, can no fonger be
considered as reachable for 2020 and no longer valid for 2021, while confirming the strategic priorities communicated last December 2019. It has to
be considered however that the current picture of strong uncartainty and volatility, does not allow yet te pursue an overall final valuation of the
impacts on the medium-long term objectives of the Plan, to determine whether also these ones are still valid or not. The needed analysis started
during the sacend part of the year. will probably be finalised during the next months, after the new Board of Birectors begins its activity.

During 2020 the Group's activity, with the purpose of maximizing the added value for the investors, was oriented towards realizing the strategic
priorities of the plan Team 23, whose validity, as mentioned above, was still fully confirmed.
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[n detail, the 4 main strategic pillars of “Team 23 are:
« Grow and strengthen client franchise;

= Transform and maximize productivity;

« Disciplined risk management & controls;

« Capital and balance sheet management.

Also, because of a financial-econcmic context deteriorated by the Covid-18 crisis. the Graup recorded in 2020 a net loss of €2, 785 million, compared
with the €3,373 million of net profit achieved in 2019,

The net Inss of the Group in 2020 was also impactad by the accountiry of sume nen-recurring items, amaunting to about -€4 billion net of taxes and

minorities; more specifically:

« with negative impact, -€1,272 million {-€1,347 million gross) due to severance for the personnel in Italy, as planned by "Team 23", £1,576 million
(including transfer charges for -€3 million) for charges related 10 the sales of 20.95% of Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. and resulting unwinding of Joint
Venture agreements, -€99 million for negative profits on investment stemmad out frem impairment of real estate assets of the Nen Core division,

= €500 million (-€535 million grass) for loan loss provisians related 1o the effecis quantification of the new European rules concemning the Definition
of Default, €878 million for devaluation of goodwill of CIB division carried out in the fourth quarter 2020 and additicnal -€20 million (-€18 millich
gross) for other write-downs,

= with positive impact, €296 million (€466 million gross, including -€49 million of PPA) connected with real estate dispasal in Germany,

Simitarly, on the 2018 net result, the following non-recurring items, amouniting to a total of appreximatety -€1.3 billion net of taxes and minorities, had

an effect:

« with negative impact, €194 million (-283 million gross) for changes related to disposal of Ocean Breeze Group, €1.055 million of increased write-
downs of “Non Core" non performing credit exposures resulting from the update of Group rundown strategy, -€365 million related to agreements
for the conclusion of the Joint Venture with Kog Financial Services and the disposal of 8.02% of Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S., €319 miflion (-€436
million gross) integration costs for leaving incentives of workers in Germany and Austria, €208 million (€222 million gross) for write-downs
recognised on intangible assets, -€203 millian (€204 million gress) for assets devaluation of Non Core division and a total of €214 million for other
net investment losses

« with positive effect, €1,176 million (€1,178 million gross, including -€62 million of PPA) from disposal of FinecoBank S.p.A. (including the related
deconsolidation for €1,287 million, valuation of the trademark and pledges proviced) and €79 million (€103 million gross) for adoption of fair value
model and revatuation model for the measurement of Group Real Estate portfolio respectively held for invesiment and used in business.

Net of the mentioned non-recurring items, the Group recorded an underlying net profit of €1,264 million. compared with €4 675 million of underlying
net profit of 2019

As already mentioned before, this trend was also negatively impacted by the already mentioned lzan loss provisions on icans {overlay) for -€2.2
billion {-€2.0 billion nel of tax and minorities).

Operating income

In 2020 Group's revenues were €17,140 million, decreasing by 8.0% versus 2019 (down by 8.3% at constant exchange rates}.

The decrease was widespread amonag all the revenues items, mainly because of the different economical-financial conditions, resulted from the
Covid-19 crisis and the related lockdown measures.

Net interest was equal to €9.441 million, decreasing by 6.3% compared 1o prior year {down by 5.3% at constant exchange rates).

During 2020 net interest was characterised by a drop of the interest income on loans to customers, as well as by the reduction of the time value
compenent and of the interest on the non-performing loans as a consequence of the rundown actions on the Non Core portfolio.

In redation to the Covid-19 crisis in the first haif of 2020 a growing loans demand in various countries of the Group has been recorded, while followad
by a sharp slowing down in the second half of the year, when the second wave of the pandemic and the related new lockdown measures that
heavily hit many of the economic and financial sector activities, generated an abrupt slowdown of the credit demand. Moratoriums on loans
prolongation has alsc slowed their nermal turn over; it is worth to underline, in any case, that these moratorium generated a suspensian of the
repayments of the granted loans, but not of the active interests accrual and therefore they didn't generate negative impacts on the net inferest
margin.

In this contex! we assisted furthermore at a widespread reduction of the loans interest rates, particularly obvious in the CEE countries and in CIB
division, The rates of the latter, in particular, have been affected by the decrease of the Libor rate, together with the effect of the loans with state
guarantees that imply, in general, rates more favorable for the customers than the ordinary ones,

The loan spreads have been negatively affected by the situation. with the decrease of customer icans interest rates being only minimally mitigated
by the decrease of deposit interest rates.
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Customer loans velumes dynamic shows decreasing results of €32.0 bitlion, or down 6.6%, going from £482 6 billion at 31 Cecember 2019 to
€450 6 billion at 31 Decamber 2020. This decrease is due as well, ta €1.1 billion from the Non Core division, where the initiatives related to the
Group rundown strategy of nan-performing loans (NPE) werg continued, with the objective of the complete run off by the year 2021.

The customer loans excluding the repos component, showed a contraction in 2020 of €9.6 billion, or down by 2.3% compared 1o last year (down by
1.4% at constant exchange rates). _ -
The decrease of the customers loans net of repos involved all the countries of the Group, with lialy, which shows the Commercial Banking division
decreasing by 2.0% compared with 2018 and the Non Care division dropping 58.9% driven by portfolio rundown actions, in the scope of the
complete run off strategy as above highlighted.

CFF division decreased by 8.4% comparcd with 2019, or 3,2% at constant exchanye rates. Particularly noticeable are the decreases in Russia
{down by 32.2% or down by 11.3% at constant exchange rates), Bosnia (down by 11.4%), Slovenia (down by 8.6%), Romania {down by 4.3%, or
down by 2.4% at constant exchange rates) and Croatia (down by 2.0% or down by 0.5% at constant exchange rates).

Customer loans volumes excluding the repos camponent, were stable in Commercial Banking Germany (C.0%) compared with last year, while
Commercial Banking Austria suffered a decline by 2.7%.

As & contra tendency, the customers loans net of repos of CIB division were up by 2.0%, compared to previous year, also as a censequence of the
relevant liquidity needs of companies, induced by the lockdown restrictions adopted in order to reduce the spreading of Covid-19.

Deposits from customers, equal to €498.4 billion, have been growing of €27.9 billion or 5.9% (up by 6.9% at constant exchange rates) compared to
2019, The increase was alsa higher for the deposits from customers net of repas, maounting in 2020 up by 9.4% {up by 10.5% &l constant exchange
rates) in comparison to 2018, More specifically the deposits from customers net of repos grew in all divisions of the Group, with Commercial Banking
ftaly Division up by 12.5%, Commercial Banking Germany Division up by 14.7%, Commercial Banking Austria Divisian up by 7.6% and CIB Division
up by 5.2%. The CEE Division recorded a growth of +0.8% {up by 7.5% at constant exchange rates), mainly driven by Serbia (up by 17.4% or up by
17.0% at constant exchange rates), Hungary (up by 14.8% or up by 26.4% at conslant exchange rates), Slovenia (up by 8.9%), Bulgaria (up by
5,5%) and Croatia (up by 3.5%, or up by 5.1% at constant exchange rates), while decreases are seen in Czech Republic {down by 0.9%, but up by
2.3% at constant exchange rates) and Russia {down by 16.1%, but up by 9.7% at constani exchange rates).

Dividends and other income from equity investments (which include the profits of the companies accounted at equity method) in 2020 amaunted to
€415 million, decreasing by €222 million, or down by 34,8% (down by 35.9% at constant exchange rates) compared with 2019, The drop is
substantiatly due to the lower contribution of Yapi Kredi, with a remaining share quota, after the disposal, finalised in the first quarter 2020, reduced
from 41% to 20% and, compared to 2019, in the absence of the cantribution of Medichanca, following the safe of the participation in the fourth
quarter of 2019 and al Jast, to the profitability drop of the participated Austrian banks (Bank fuer Tirol und Vorarlberg Actiengesellschaft, BKS Bank
Ag, Oberbank Ag), as a consequence ¢f the Covid-19 pandemic.

The net fees and commissions of 2020 amaunted to €5,976 million, decreasing by -5.2% {down by 4.8% at consiant exchange rates) compared to
the previous year.

In particutar. the investment services recarded a decline of €108 million, or down by 4.5% in comparison to 2019 (down by 4.4% at constant
exchange rates), mainly due to the assets under management diminished sales, impacted by the lockdown periods.

Financing services are decreasing too by €73 million, or down by 4.7% compared to 2019 {down by 4.0% at constant exchange rates), mainly as an
effect of the lower credit protection insurance commissions,

The transactional services fees suffered the largest decrease, -€143 million (down by 8.3% in comparison to 2019; down by 5.7% at constant
exchange rates), mainly due to the lower performance of debit and credit cards fees, payment fees and damage insurance products fees. Debit and
credit cards commissions were particularly impacted by the effects of Covid-19, that provoked a general decreasing of number of transactions ang

the implementation of temporary penalizing measures from some of the National Banks (for example ATM wilhdrawals without commission, in
Croatia).

In 2020 alsa the net trading income decreased by -€257 million, moving from €1,569 million in 2019 to €1,412 mitlion in the current year (down by
15.4%, or down by 14.4% at constant exchange rate). The drop is mainly derived from client’s activity, particularly from the operations on stogk
market, partially mitigated by the results of the activities non-related to customers, mainly thanks to earnings on sales of securities measured at fair
value through ather comprehensive income and to the results of the operations on exchange rates derivatives.

Finally, in 2020, the net cther expensesfincome were in a negative amount of €104 miflion, compared with the positive results of €156 million of
2019.
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Operating income

{€ million

__YEAR % w020 % CHANGE

L . P 2018 CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 2020
Net interest 9441 10,071 -6.3% 2,250 -2.3%
Dividends and olher inceme from equity 45 637 -34.8% 124 -3.1%
Net fees and commissions 5,976 6,304 -5.2% 1,506 +2.5%
Met trading income 1412 1,669 -15.4% 426 -6.4%
Net other expensesfincome (104) 156 n.m, (69) n.m.
Qgeraling income 17,140 18,838 -9.0% 4,238 <27%

Operating costs

Group'’s operating costs in 2020 were equal to €9,805 million, decreasing by 1.2%, or €124 million compared 1o 2018 (down by 0.7% at constant
exchange rates), thanks to the continuation of the staff resizing initiatives and the administralive expenses control actions. The year was impacted
by approximate -€136 million of extracrdinary costs connected to Covid-19, net of which the decreasing compared to the same period of the prior
year would have been down by 2 6%.

In detail, the staff expenses in 2020 were €5,968 million, decreasing by 2.9% over 2019 {down by 2.4% at constant exchange rates).

This result was achieved mainly thanks to approximate €123 miliion savings on the variable component, jointly with the pesitive effect of the
persistent dynamic of employee's reduction, characterised by a drap of 2,138 FTEs (equivalen! to a drop of 1.282 FTEs average) compared to 2018,
equal te a decrease of 2.5%.

The other administrative expenses in 2020 amounted ‘o €3,223 million, decreasing by 1.7% or €36 millior in comparisen to 2019 (down by 1.2% at
constant exchange rates). Lower costs have been recorded mainly among the expenses refated to personnel (in particular on the travel expenses
thanks to the restrictive policies for the contrast of Covid-19 adopted by the Group), communication and marketing expenses, consulting and credit
recovery expenses, the later thanks to the non performing porfolio reduction actions. These savings more than mitigated the extracrdinary
protection expenses from Codiv-19 that the Group had to account for in this period, particularly expenses for the acquisition of sanitary protection
equipment, buitding disinfection, interventions on the IT infrastructure and security systems, donations.

The expanses recovery in 2020 amounted to €523 million, decreasing in compariscn to €592 million of last year (down by 11.7%). In particular, the
drop was mainly related to the credit inquiries of the Non Core Division, as a consequence of the rundown actions that have diminished the non-
performing exposures and that, consequently, implie the drop of the correspondent expense recaveries.

Finally, in 2020 were posted write-downs on tangible and intangible assets for €1,137 million, increasing by €41 million (up 3.7%) in comparison to
the €1,096 million posted in 2019,

Operating costs

_ {€ million)

o YEAR Y% 020 % CHAKGE
R L . _2030 201 CHANGE o4 ON Q3 2020
Payrall costs {5,968} {5.146) -29% (1,456) -15%
Other administrative expenses {3,223} (3,279 -1.7% (827} +4.8%
Recovery of expenses 523 592 -11.7% 147 +18.7%
Write downs of 1angible and intangible assets (1,137} {1,096) +3.7% (323) +21.2%
Qperating costs (9,805) {9,929} =1.2% (2,498} +2.0%

Due 1o the decline of the revenues, the Graup grass operating profit of €7,335 million, showed a decrease of 17.7% compared to 2019 (down by
16.8% at constant exchange rates).

The cost income ratio of 2020 amounted to 57.2%, worsening by 4.5 percentage points over the previous year. or by 4.4 percentage points net of
the nen-recurring components which impacted 2019,
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Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees and commitments

Net write-downs an oans and provisions for guarantees and commitments af the Group of 2020 were €4 996 million, compared to €3,382 million of
2019 {up by 47.7% or up by 48.9% at constant exchange rates). _ ‘

The growth is due to loan loss provisions overlay for €2.2 billion about which, with reference lo the component related to performirg loans, i shall be
mentioned that, as at 31 December 2020, as already carried out in March 2020, the Group has updated the macroeconamic scenarios used for loan
los$ proviston calculation in compliance with IFRSS that requires to consider the future evolution of the economic cycle also recurring to muttiple
scenarios. In this context a base scenario, which is the central reference scenario considered most likely, a positive scenario and a negative
scenario have been elaborates. These positive and negative scenarios differ from the base scenario in term of evolution of the economies in which
the Group operates as a result of the effects of the Cavid-19 pandemics, vaccine distribution and econamic policies fallnwed by the goverrments,
Always with reference to performing [cans, on 31 December 2020, the assessment of the significant increase in credit risk, which determines the
classification of the credit exposures in Stage 2 and the resulting calculation of loan loss provision determined considering the overall residual life of
the credit exposures, has been performed considering indicators of counterparty financial strength and the economic sector, this in order to
represent the asymmetric effacts that lockdown measures have on the different econamic sectars and to grant & proper valuation of credit risk also
in the context of Moratoria measures that, by praviging payment holidays, can defer the occurrence of events indicating a significant deterioration of
the counterparty credit quality.

For additional details refer to the Notes to consclidated acceunts: Part A - Accounting policies, A.1 - General, Section 2 - General preparation criteria
for a description of the scenarios underlying the measurement of credit exposures and Part E - Information on risks and hedging policias, Section 2 -
Risks of the prudential cansolidated perimeter, 2.1 Credit risk for a description of the tapics concerning the assessment of signifizant increase in
credit risk.

With reference to the overlay component related to non-performing loans, it should be noted that their measurement cansiders possible selling
scenarios when Group strategy foresees the recovery through their disposal on the market. In this case the recoverable amount of exposuras
classified as Bad loans and Unlikely to pay is determined considering the expected sale prices weighted for the probabilities of disposal evidenced
by the already mentioned Group sirategy.

Iri this context, on 31 December 2020, the Group has updated its 2021 -2023 disposal pian by (i) confirming its intention, already manifested in 2019
financial year, to fully run-down the sc called "Non Core” portfolio by the end of 2021 financial year and (i} foreseeing the disposal of non-performing
loans belonging to the “Core" perimeter for which recovery was expected through the work-out, This circumstance has determined the recognition of
additional write-downs mainly related o the Care portfolio,

For additional details refer to paragraph *Aspects relating to the valuation of credit exposures as at 31 December 2020" of the Nates to the
censalidated accounts, Part £ - Information on risks and hedging policies, Section 1 - Risks of the accounting consolidated perimeter, Quantitative
information.

Furthermore, the year was negatively impacted by the additional €535 million related 1o the quantification of the valuative effects correlated ic the
new European rules on to the classification of the default clients (new Definition of Default),

Because of the higher provisions recorded in the year, the cost of risk was equal to 105 basis paints, coherently with the market guidance, in
camparison 10 71 basis points of 2019.

In particular, the Commercial Banking Italy Division recorded a cost of risk of 201 basis paints, worsening by -125 basis points in comparisen to
2019. The Commercial Banking Germany Division recorded 41 basis paints, worsening by -29 basis points over last year and the Commercial
Banking Austria Division recorded 55 basis points, warsening by -46 basis points over 2019, The CIB Division showed a cost of risk of 51 basis
points, worsening by -43 basis points in comparisan to 2019. Finally, the CEE Division highlighted a cost of risk of 150 basis points, warsening by -
83 basis points in comparison ta 2018,

The Group gross impaired loans at 31 December 2020 decreased to €21.2 billion. lower by -€4.0 billion compared to 31 December 2019, thanks to
the continuous proactive risk reduction measures.

Thanks o this decrease, the gross non-performing loans on total leans ratio impraved, moving from 5.04% of December 2019 to 4.55% of
December 2020. Gross bad exposure stock was at €7.6 billion, decreasing by -€4.9 billion over December 2015 (€12.5 billion).

The Group coverage ratio of the gross non-performing loans as of 31 December 2020 was 59.85%, decreasing in comparisan to 65.24% (down 5.38
basis points) of December 2019, as an effsct of the write offs and NPE disposals carried out during the year,
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Loans to customers - Asset quality

(€ million)
NON+ TOTAL
BAD UNLIKELY PERFORMING NON- TOTAL
R : EXPOSURES TO BAY PAST-OUE PERFORMING PERFORMING LOANS
As at 12.31.20200
GImss exposure 7613 12,874 759 21,246 446 157 467,403
as a percentage of fotal foans 163% 2.75% {16% 4.55% §5.45%
Writedowns 5967 6.462 256 12,7116 4138 16,853
s a percentage of gross value 78.39% 50.43% 3370% 39.85% 0.93%
Carrying valie 1,645 8,381 503 8,530 4201 450,550
a3 a percentage of total foans 037% 742% J11% 1.89% 98.11%
As at 12.31.20199
Gross exposure 12 491 11,934 B70 25,285 478,333 501,628
as & percentage of lotal loans 2.49% 2.38% 017% 5.04% 94.96%
Writedowns 9535 5.675 293 16,503 2552 18,055
as a percentage of gross vaiue 76 33% 55 83% 33.70% 63.24% 054%
Carrying value 2.956 5.259 577 8,792 473,782 482,574
as a percentage of total foans (61% 10%% 012% 1.82% 98 18%
Nate:
{*) Total loans to customers exciude the receivables arising from subleases grised due to the appli of IFRS1§

The non-performing exposures do not incorporate the effects of the new definition of default classification applicable from 1 January 2021, However,
if the new classification criteria were implemented as at 31 December 2020, the non-performing leans as a percentage of total loans to customers
would have been 4.8%, higher than the one really detected (4.5%).

From net operating profit to profit before tax

The worsening of the operating profit (€7,335 million in 2020) and the increase of the net write-Gowns on loans and of provisions for guarantees and
commitments (-€4,996 million in 2020) have resulted in a Group's ret operating profit of €2,339 million, decreasing by €3,188 million compared 1o
2019 (down by 57.7% or dewn by 56.9% at constant exchange rates),

Group's provisions for risk and charges were £1,055 miflion, compared to €954 million of 201¢ that included the release of provisions following the
conclusian of the seflement agreements with the United States Autherity,

This item includes legal cases and estimated liabilities of various nature totaling €97 million, in addition to the systemic charges, ameunting to -€958
million, The latter include the contributions to the Single Resolution Fund {SRF). the harmonised guarantee schemes charges (Deposits Guarantee
Scheme - DGS) and the nen-harmonised ones, as well as the Bank Levies.

Integration costs in 2020 were -€1,484 million, in compariscn o €664 millien recorded in 2619 In the first half 2020 have been accounted the
charges for severance of the personnel related 1o Team 23 plan amounting to -£1,347 million, while in the second semester of 2018 have bean
accounted the charges for severance of the personnel related to Austria and Germany perimeter of -€436 million and cther integration costs of €222
million, mainly related to value adjustments on intangible assets.

The net income from investments in 2020 was -€1,365 million, in comparison to -€844 million recorded in 2019, 2020 figures were mailny affected by
-€1,576 million related to the disposal of 20.95% of Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.S. and ta the agreements for the conclusion of the Joint Venture with
Kog Finangial Services and by +€526 million for gains on real estate sales in Germany. In 2019 have been instead posted some charges mainly
related 1o the agreements for the conclusion of the Joint Venture with Kog Finangial Services and the disposal of 9.02% of Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi
A.§, to the Ocean Breeze disposal and to Non Core division's assets devaluations..

As an effect of the items mentioned above, in 2020 the Group registered a loss before tax of -€1,546 millicn, compared to a profit of €3,065 million
profit of 2019,
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Profit before tax by business segment

€ million)
N s o NET . FROFIT BEFORE TAX

1 : ' OPERATING  OPERATING LOANS  OPERATING YEAR
L teE ' INCOME COSTS _ AND PROVISIONS PROFIT 2020 201
| Commercial Banking taly 6,341 (3,668) (2.681) (8 (1.339) 1732
) . Commercial Banking Germany 2,354 (1,651) (359) 343 256 863
Commercial Banking Austria ) 1,363 (991} (245} 127 (77) 326
Central Eastern Europe 3422 (1,486 (874) 263 723 1716
{ Curporate & Investment Bankirg ™ " ° 3947 (1.525) {733) 1,690 1471 2,098
| Group Corporate Centre (241 (369) @ 614) (2,242) {1.409)
Non Core - 45) (115) (1 {162) (339) (2.267)
Group Tolal : 17,140 {9,805) {4,996} 2,339 (1,546) 3,065

.,Prof:t (Loss) attributable to the Group

In 2020, the Group s income 1axes line was recording -€344 million, in comparison lo €830 million of 2019

Profit from discommued operations net of taxes in 202C was €49 million, in comparisan to £1,383 million of last year. The 2019 figure included non-
recurring items to be excluded from the calculation of the underlying profit of €1,287 million connected to the FinecoBank 5.p.A. sale and related
deconsclidation.

The loss for the period of 2020 was -€1,842 million, in comparison to €3,559 miltion of 2018
Minarities, conventicnally exposed with regative sign, were €7 million against -€118 million of 2019.

Purchase price allocation was -€50 million, compared to -€68 million of 2018, €48 miltion recorded in 2020 are ralated to the real estate sate in
Germany, while €62 miliicn recorded in 2013 were referred to the non-recurring component of the FinecoBank S.p.A. trademark devaluation.

In 2020 a goodwill impairment of €886 million has been recorded, for the mast part related ta €878 miltion of gocdwill allocated to CiB division and
carried out in the fourth quarter of the year.

This impairment stems from the executicn, at 31 December 2020, of the impairment test process in line with the iAS36 and in light of the ESMA
Public Statement of 28 October 2020 recommending issuers, in fight of the significant level of uncertainty linked 1o the Covid-19 pandemic, to make
use of alternative scenarics.

Consequently, in addition to the valuation parameters updating in relatian to the evidences available at the moment, the cash flows or which the
madel is based have been determined cansidering a base scenario and a downturn scenario, on which have been applied appropriate weightings
indicative of the probability of occurrence. Furthermore, the model's results have been the subject of a sensitivity analysis that showed as changes,
even limited, of the main parameters could produce relevant impacts on the tests' results. This considered and in light of the meaningful uncertainty
level of the macroeconomic environment, the Group goodwill complete impairment has been carried cut. It is worth 1o specify that this impairment
does not generate any impact neither on the regulatory capital (and on the tangible equity} nor on the amaunt of the distributed dividends.

Refer to Part B, Section 10 of the Notes to the consalidated accounts for further information.

Cansequently, in 202C the net loss attributable to the Group amounted to £2,785 million, compared to the profit of €3,373 million of 2019, Net of
non-recurring items, the Group achieved a profit underlying of €1.264 millien, compared to €4.875 million of 2019,
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Profit {L oss) attributable to the Group

€ mullion}
YEAR % o] % CHANGE
B R 20 201¢ CHANGE Q4 ON Q3 207
Operating income 17,140 18,839 -9.0% 4238 -2.7%
Operating costs (8.805) (8.928) -1.2% {2.458) +2.0%
Operating profit (loss) 7,335 8,910 -17.7% 1,780 -8.5%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for guarantees
and commitments {4,996} {3382) +477% (2,068 n.m.
Net operating profit {loss) 2,338 5527 -51.7% (278} m.m.
Other charges and provisions {1.055) (854) +10.7% (91} -63.5%
Integration costs (1,464; (664) n.m. (82) n.m.
Net incame from investment (1,365} (844) +61.7% 130 n.m,
Profit (Loss) before tax {1,546) 3,065 m.m. {322} n.m.
Income tax for the period {344) (8905 -61.3% (34) -64.8%
Profit {Loss) from non-current assets held for sale. after
fax 48 1.383 - 96.5% 48 n.m.
Profit (Loss) for the period (1,842} 3,559 n.m. {308) nm.
Minofities ) (118) -93.9% B n.m.
Net profit {loss) attributable
to the Group bhefore PPA {1,849 4 n.m. (300} n.m,
Purchase Price Allocation effects (50 (68) - 26.6% {0)
Goodwil impairment (888) - n.m. (878 nm.
Net profit (loss) attributable
to the Group (2,785) 3,373 n.m. {1,179) n.m.

Capital and value management

Principles of value creation and capital allocation

in order 1o create valug for the shareholdars, the Group's strategic guidelines aim at cptimising the composition of the business portfalia.
This goal is pursued through a process of capitat aflocation 1o each business line in relation to its specific risk prafile and abiiity to generate
sustainable earnings measured as EVA (Economic Value Added), which is the main performance indicator linked to TSR {Total Sharehalder
Return). The capital allocated 1o business segments is quantified applying internal capitalisation targets to regulatory capital requirements
(Regulatory Capital).

The development of Group operations with a view to value creation requires a process of allocating and managing capital governed by different
phases in the process of planning and control, arficulated as:

» formuylation of the proposed risk propensity and capitalisation targets;

= analysis of the risks associated with the value drivers and resulting allecation of capital to the business lines and to the Business Units;

= assignment of performance targets in line with risk;

» analysis of the impact on the Group's value and of the creation of value for shareholders;

» drafting and proposal of the financial plan, capital plan and dividend policy.

The Group dynamically manages its capital base by monitoring regulatory capital ratios, anticipating the appropriate changes necassary to achieve
its defined targets, and optimising the composition of its assets and equity. Planning and monitoring refer, on the one hand, 1o the tolal Own Funds
{Commen Equity Tier 1, Additional Tier 1 and Tier 2 Capital) and new TLAC requirement and, on the other hand, 1o the Risk-Weighted Assets
(RWAs). The Risk-Weighted Assets, for portfolios managed using the internal advanced models, do not only depend on the nominal value of the
assets but also on the relevant credit parameters. Besides volume dynamics, it is alse crucial to monitor and forecast the change in the asset quality
af the portfolio in view of the macroeconemic scenario (the so-called pro-cyclical effect),

Fallowing the financal crisis that unfolded in 2007-2008, the European Union implemented a substantial reform of the financial services regulatory
framewark to enhance the resilience of its financial institutions. This reform was largely based on international standards agreed in 2010 by the
Basel Committee an Banking Supervisian, known as the Basel 3 framework. Among its many measures, the reform package included the adoption
of Regulation (EU} No 575/2013 of the European Parliament and of the Council and Direciive 2013/36/EU of the European Parliament and of the
Council, which strengthened the prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms.
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These rules have been modified by Regulation (EU) No.2019/876 of the Eurapean Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2018 (sc called CRR2),
amending Regulation (EU) No.575/2013 and by Directive {EU) 2019/878 of the Eurcpean Parliament and of the Council of 20 May 2019 (so-called
CRD V), amending Directive 2013/36/€0).

Capital ratios

Transitional own funds and capitaj ratios

(€ million}
AS AT |
SRR o ‘ ) Y ) 123180190 |
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital o ) . l 51971 o 50,054
Tier 1 Capital o . 59321 : 56414
Total own funds ~ s - 67484 - 66.982
Total RWA - N 325665 . 378.718
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio ) ~ ; o 15.96% | . 13.22% |
Tier 1 Capital Ratio ) i 18.22% 1490%
Total Capital Ratio ~ s J T2 _ 17.89% |
Notes:

{*} Transitional own funds and capital ratios including &l transitonal adjustments according to the yearly applicable percentages.
Furthermore, starting from 30 June 2020, UniCredit group has decided to apply the IFRSD transibanal approach as reported i article 473a of the Regulation (UE) No.873/2020 that amends the Regulation {EU} No.575/2013
and Regulation (EU) No.876/2019. Therefore, the values here reported, related to 3t December 2020, reflect the impact of the transitional arrangements provisioned in such Regulation,

The positive change with respect to 31 December 2019, equal to €1.9 billion on Common Equity Tier 1 Capital, mainly reflects: (i} the inclusion into
reserves of the dividends of 2019 (€1,404 million) no more distributed in line with the recommendation published by European Central Bank on 27
March 2020 (BCE/2020/19) whose effects have been extended until 1 January 2021 by the ECB recommendation published on 27 July 2020
(BCE/2020/35}, {ii} positive effect for €2 648 million related to the iFRSY transitional adjustments applied starting from June 2020, {iii) the exclusion
of the deduction related 10 gocawill following the full impairments (equal to €886) and the new exempticn for the deduction from CET1 capital of
software assels in line with article 36 (1) (b} of CRR (equal to €707 million}, (v} the loss of 2020 equal to €2,785 million and €268 million <f deduction
related to the cash component of the dividends that the Board of Directors has proposed to distribute of the Shareholders' Meeting (v) the negative
change due to the payment of Additional Tier 1 capital instruments coupons (€326 million) and {vi) other negative impacts for €0.35 billion related to
minarity interests, exceedance of 17.65% threshold on CET1, and deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability and nct arise from temporary
differences.

With reference 1o the Tatal Own Funds, the positive change with respect to 31 December 2019. equal to €0.5 billion, reflects in addition to the effects
on Commen Equity Tier 1 Capital positive for €1.9 hillion, the additional negative effects for €1.4 billion deriving from: (i) the new Issuance of one
subordinated instrument classified in Additional Tier 1 Capital for €1 240 million, for any further details please refer to section Capital strengthening
of the Consolidated report on operations {ii} two new issuance of subordinated instruments classified as Tier 2 for €2 458 million {iil) negative effect

on Tier 2 Capital deriving from the autharization received by the competent authority ta early redeem the instruments 170005087116 and
X80886063864 for €

3,464 million (iv) the combined negative effect (€725 million) of regulatory amortisation and exchange rate variance on instruments in USD, {v)
negative impact for €419 million that considers the effects of iIFRSY transitional adjustments and it is referred ta the re-calculation of the excess of
the credit risk adjustments included in Tier 2 capital, {vi) other negative impacts for €0.4 billion mainly related to the change of the consolidation
method of Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.§. from proportional to equity.

The minimum capilal requirements applicable to the Group as at 31 December 2020 in coherence with CRR article 92 are the fallowing (Pillar 1}:
» Common Equity Tier 1 Capital: 4.50%

o Tier 1 Capital; 6.00%

» Total Capital: 8.00%
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In addition to such requirements, for 2020 the Group shall also meet the fallowing additional requirements: _

* 1.75%, as Pillar 2 Requirements in coherence with SREP results; the anticigation of article 134a.4 of CRD V applies the following extraorci_lnary
measures issued by ECB in reaciion to the emergency of Covid-19: in particuar the Fillar 2 requirement can be satisfied also through Additicnal
Tier 1 and Tier 2 instruments {i.e. at least 75% with Tier 1 Capital and at least 56.25% with Commeon Equity Tier 1 Capital);

« 2.50%, as Capital Conservation buffer according to CRD arficle 129;

» 1.00%, as Global Systemically Important instilutions buffer?,

« 0.04%, as Countercyciical Capital buffer? according to the CRDIV article 130, to be calculated on a quarterly basis.

As at 31 December 2020, the Group shall meet the following cverall capital requirements:

« Common Equity Tier 1 Capital: 9.03%
« Tier 1 Capital: 10.85%
« Totaf Capital: 13.29%

Here below a scheme of the UniCredit group capital requirements and buffers which also provides evidences of the *Total SREP Capital
Requirement” (TSCR} and the *Overall Capital Requirement” (OCR) related to the outcome of the SREP process held in 2019 and applicable for
2020,

The scheme reflects the anticipation of article 104a.4 of CRD V application, as mentioned above.

2020 Capital requirements and buffers for UniCredit group

S

REQUIREMENT ) ' CEV L L
|_A) Pillar 1 Requirements L ) o  4.50% ) 6.00%

B) Pillar 2 Requirements 088% 1.31% 1.75%
| C)TSCR (A+B) '  sam% R 9.75%
| D) Combined capital buffer requirement, of which: . 354% ) 3.54% 3.54%
| 1. Capital Conservation buffer (CCB) B ) 2.50% __250% . _2.50%
| 2. Global Systemically Importarnt Institution buffer (G-Sil) o 1.00% . 1.00% ) C1.00%

3 Institution-specific Countercyciical Capilal buffer ({CCy8) - 0.04% _ 0.04% B T 004%
"E)OCR (C+D) ' ' - T 9.03% R 13.29%

The above-mentioned requiremeants are the ones which are relevant for MDA purposes for UniCredit group as at 31 December 2020.
As at 31 December 2020, UniCredit group's ratios are compliant with all the above requirements.

On 15 December 2020, updating the communication of 28 July 2020, the ECB published the Recommendation 2026/62 “on dividend distributions
during the Covid-19 pandemic and repsaling Recommendation ECB/2020/35". The recommendation asks banks to "refrain fram or limit dividends
until September 2021"; banks are asked to limit dividends to the lower between (i} 15% of cumulated 2019-20 adjusted profits and (i) 2C basis peints
of CET1 ratio. At UniCredit, the lower value is represented by the 15% ("ECB cap") of the cumulated stated net profits for the vears 2019 and 2020,
adjusted, as per ECB recommendation.

In particular, in accordance with the ECB recommeandation, the cumulated 2019-20 adjusted profit at conselidated level. on which the 15% payout
ratio is applied, is calculated by adjusting the profitloss result for the following items: (i) goodwill and intangible assets impairment, {ii} impairment of
deferred tax assets that rely en future profitability and do not arise from temporary differences net of assoclated tax liabilities, {iii} reclassifications
from other comprehensive income into profit and {iv} distribution related to AT1 instruments charged against equity.

The amount resulting from such calculation is equal 1o a total amount of €447 million. whose distribution is envisaged for (i) 60% via cash dividends
{equal to €268 million) and for {ji) 40% via shares buy-back {equal to €179 million). The cash component is deducted from Qwn Funds as of fourth
quarter 2020, while the shares buy-back component will be deducted once the ECB authorization will be released,

2 It should be noted that LiniCredit group was ientified by the Banca d'ltalia as an O-SIl authorised to operate i haty, and 1t has to maintain a CET1 capital buffer, such level s equal to 0.75% in 2020 and will reach the
target of 1.00% from 1 January 2021. Nevertheless, it is worth mentioring that according to the CRD IV article 131.14, the higher of the G-Sli and the 0-Sii buffer will apply hence, UniCredit group is subject to the
application of 1.00% G-SIl buffer for 2020

3 Amount rounded to two decimal numbers. With reference to 3t December 2020. {I) countercyclical capital rates have generally been set at 0% axcept for the fallowing countries Czech Republic (0.50%), Hong Kong
{1.00%;); Norway {1 00%), Slovakia {1 00%), Luxemburg (0.25%): Bulgana (3.50%} (II) with reference to the axposures towards Italian counterparbes, Banca dtalia has set the rate equal 1o 0%.
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Capital strengthening

On 12 February 2020 UniCredit 5.p.A., taking advantage of the extremely positive market window, placed an issue of equity instruments Additional
Tier 1 (in particutar Non-Cumulative Temparary Write-Down Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rate Resettable Notes), for a total amount of €1.25 billion
targeted 1o instifutionaf investors.

The issue completed in advance the 2020 UniCredit's Funding Plan for these instruments and contribuled to improve the Tier 1 ratio,

The securifies are perpetual {with maturity linked tc corporate duration ef UniCredit S.p.A.) and may be called by the Issuer on 3 June 2027 and,
thereafter, on any interest payment dale, subject to regulatory approval. Notes pay fixed rate coupons of 3.875% per annum up (0 June 2027 ona
semi-annual basis: if not called, coupon will be reset every 5 years to the aggregate of the then 5-Years Mid-Swap rate plus 408.1bps, calculated on
an annual basis and then converted to a semi-annual rate in accordance with markel conventions. In line with the regulatory requirements, the
coupon payments are fully discretionary.

Mareaver with reference to share capital, on 5 February 2020 the Board of Cirectors of UniCredit S.p.A., by the powers conferred time by time by the
Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting pursuant to the art.2443 of the Italian Civil Code in order to execute the Group Incentive System, resolved a
free share capital increase of €65 million by issuing No.3,884 961 ordinary shares to be granted to the employees of UniCredit S.p.A. and of Group’s
banks and companies. The resolution to increase the share capital was registered with the Company Register on 27 March 2020 and the fully
subscribed and paid-up share capital of UniCredit S.p.A. currently amounts fo €21,060 million and it is divided into No.2,237 261,803 ordinary
shares with no nominal value.

Shareholders’ equity attributable to the Group

The Shareholders' aquity of the Group, including the resuit of the periad equal to -€2,785 million, amaunted to £€59,507 million as at 31 December
2020, compared to €61,416 million as at 31 December 2019,

The statement of changes in shareholders’ equity is included in the consolidated accounts,

The following table shows the main changes accurred in 2020.

Shareholders' equity attributable to the Group

{€ milkon)

61416

Equity instruments 1,238
Change in reserve relates coupon on AT1 instruments (326)
Charges related to transaction denominated "Cashes’ {126)
Change in the valuation reserve of the companies accounted for using the equity method:! 726
Change in the valuation reserve of non-gurrent assets classified held-for-salel 658
Change in the valuation reserve refating to the actuarial gains/losses on defined benefit plang {434
Exchange differences reserver (917)
QOther changes 56
Profit {loss) for the year (2,785)
Shareholders' equity as at 31 December 2020 59,507

Motes:

{1) The change in the valuation reserve of the companies accounted for using the equity method for +€726 mitlion and in the reserve of non-current assets classified held-for-sale for +€658 million 15 mainly due to the
dispasal of respectively 11.93% and 9.02% stake of Yagi Ve Kredi Bankasi AS with the consequent recycle mostly to profit of loss of these reserves basically referred to exchange rate differences on Turkish Lira.

{2) Mainly referred o drop in DBO discount rate induced hy increase in prices of High Quality Corporate Bonds partially offset by plan assets performance,

{3) This effect is mainly due to the impact of Russian Ruble for €661 mikion, Hunganan Forint for -€33 millien and Czech Crown for €81 millien.

For further information, refer to section Consolidated accounts - Statement of changes in the consolidated shareholders' equity.
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Reconciliation parent company UniCredit S.p.A. - Consolidated accounts

The fallawing table reconciles the Parent Company's sharehalders’ equity and Net profit to the cormesponding consolidated figures.

Reconciliation of parent company UniCredit 8.p.A. to Consolidated accounts

(€ millign)

SHAREHOLDERY of which;

L EQUITY KETPROAT
Balance as at 31 December 2020 of parent company UniCredit S.p.A. 49,493 {2,732}
Gonsolidated contribution: 10,322 4,631
- fully consolidated subsidiaries 7.658 6118

- invesiments valued at equify method 2.664 {1,487)
Reverse of ordinary dividends approved in the period: - {3.814)
- fully consolidated subsidiaries - {3.856)

- investments valued at equity method - (58}
Other consolidation adjustments 127 (763}
Balance as at 31 December 2020 {minorities included) 59,942 (2,778)
of which Group 59507 {2,785)
L_of which mincrities 435 7
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Contribution of the sector of activity to the resuits of the Group

Commercial Banking Italy

Commercial Barking ltaly is composed by UniCredit S.p.A. commerciak network limited to Core clients {excluding Corporate ciients, supported by
Corporate and Investment Banking Division and clients supported by Foreign Branches), Leasing (excluding Non-Core clients), Factoring and
UniCredit S.p.A. structures included in local Corparate Centre that support the italian business netwerk. In relation to individual clients {Mass market,
Affluent, Private and Wealth), Commerciat Banking ltaly' s goal is to offer a full range of products, services and consultancy to fulfill Iransactional,
investments and credit needs, relying on branches and multichanne! services provided thanks to new technologies.

income statement, key ratios and indicators

{€ milion)
YEAR - % . % CHAHGE
i . 2070 i 2019 CHANGE o4 0N Q3 2029
Qperating income 6,341 7,062 -10.2% 1,530 -2.3%
Operating costs (3,668} {3,782 -3.0% (894} -2.7%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments (2,681) {1,041} n.m. (1,136) n.m.
Net operating profit (8) 2239 n.m. (500) n.m.
Profit before tax (1,338} 1,732 n.m. {592 nm. |
Customers loans {net Repos and IC) 132,311 134,974 -2.0% 132311 -0.8%
Customers depos (net Repes and IC) 172,372 153,283 +12.5% 172,372 +51%
Total RWA Eop 83,011 96,067 -13.6% 83.0M1 -4.6%
EVA (€ million) {1,097) 305 n.m. (480 n.m,
Absorbed Capital (€ millien} 11,054 12,040 -8.2% 10.418 -4.1%
ROAC -87% +11.2% -199p.p. -17.0% -20.6 p.p.
Caostlincome 57.8% 53.6% 43 p.p. 58.4% -0.2 p.p.
Cost of Risk 201 bps 76 bps 125 bps 342 bps 207 bps
Full Time Equivalent (gop) 26,884 28,379 -5.3% 26,884 -3.4%

Commercial Banking Germany

Commercial Banking Germany provides all German customars (excluding Large Corporate and Multinational clierts, supported by Corporate and
Investment Banking Division) with a complele range of banking products and services. it is composed of *Privatkundenbank” {Individual Clients
segment), *Unternahmerbank” (Corporate segment) and the local Corporate Centre.

Commercial Banking Germany holds large market shares and a strategic market position in retail banking, in private banking and especially in
business with local corporate customers (including factoring and leasing).

Income statement, key ratios and indicators

1€ miflion}
e L i . YEAR o % w20 % CHANGE
| COMMFRCIAL BANKING GERMANY ’ B N I 201 CHANGE o4 ON Q3 2020
Cyperating income 2,354 2,404 -2.1% 584 +3.2%
Cperating costs (1,651 (1,626} +1.6% (415 +3.4%
Net write-towns on loans and previsians for
guarantees and commitments {359) {100) n.m. (84) +65.0%
Net aperating profit 343 678 -48.4% 85 -24.%%
Profit before tax 256 863 -70.3% 94 +33.5%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 87,168 87,172 -0.0% 87168 -21%
Customers depos {net Repos and IC) 102,957 89,798 +14.7% 102,957 +0.7%
Total RWA Eop 35,536 36,171 -1.8% 35,536 -4.3%
EVA (€ millign} (195} 45 1.0, {70} +62.1% |
Absarbed Capital (€ million) 4,536 4,624 -1.9% 4,456 -3.1%
ROAC +35% +11.9% -84pp. +1.1% -31pp.
Cost/income 70.2% 67.6% 25p.p. 71.1% 0.1p.p.
Cost of Risk 41 bps 12 bps 29 bps 38 bps 15 bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 9,002 9,098 -1.0% 9,002 -0.6%
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Commercial Banking Austria

Commercial Banking Austria provides its Austrian customers {excluding Large Corporate and Multinational clients, supported by ‘Corporate and
Investment Banking Division) with a complete range of banking products ard services. It is composed of "Privatkund_enbank" (Private Customer
Bank), “Unternehmerbank’ (Corporate Customer Bank, exctuding CIB clients} that includes the product factory Leasing and the Local Corporate

Centre.

Commercial Banking Austria holds significant market shares and a strategic market position in refail banking, private banking and especially in
business with local corporate customers and is ane of the leading providers of banking services in Austria,

Incomae statement, key ratios and indicators

{€ million)
T YEAR % 200 % CHANGE
DOMMERGIAL BANKING AUSTRIA - 2020 2018 CHANGE o4 ON 03 2020
Operating income 1,363 1,546 -11.8% 360 +04%
Operating costs {891) (96%) +2.3% (255) +5.3%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments (245) (41} n.m. (140} n.m.
Net operating profit 127 536 -76.3% {35) n.m.
Profit before tax (77) 326 n.m. (93} n.m.
Customers loans {net Repos and IC) 43,308 44,521 -2.7% 43,308 -2.0%
Customers depos {net Repos and IC} 52121 48,454 +7.6% 52,121 +6.3%
Total RWA Eop 21,509 23,141 -71% 21,508 -6.7%
EVA (€ milfion} (225) 426 n.m. (51) m.m.
Absorbed Capital {€ million) 2,791 2,845 -1.9% 2,695 -4,6%
ROAC -0.7% +19.7% -205p.p. -5.2% - 15.8 p.p.
Cost/income 72.7% 62.7% 10.1 p.p. 70.8% 3.3p.p.
Cost of Risk 55 bps 9 bps 46 bps 127 bps 108 bps
Full Time Equivalent (eop} 4667 4,798 -2.3% 4,687 - 15%

CEE Division

The Group, through the CEE business segment, offers a wide range of products anc services 1o retail, corperate and institutional clients in 10
Central and Easlern Europe countries: Bosnia- Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania, Russia, Serbia, Slovakia and

Slovenia.

UniCredit group is able to offer its retail customers in the CEE countries a bread porifolio of products and services similar to those offered to its

[talian, German and Austrian customers.

Income statement, key ratios and indicators

(€ milhon}
. YEMR % 2020 % CHANGE
CEE BIVISION 2020 2019 CHANGE 04 ONQ3 2020
Qperating income 3422 4,001 -14.5% 790 -4.0%
Cperating costs (1,486) {1,535} -3.2% {367) +0.6%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments (974 (453} n.m, (313} +89.4%
Net operating profit 963 2,014 -52.2% 16 -62.6%
Profit before tax 723 1,716 -57.9% 40 -86.0%
Customers loans (net Repos and IC) 61,879 67,534 -8.4% 61,879 -1.0%
Gustomers depos (net Repos and IC) 71,287 70,745 +0.8% 71,287 +1.5%
Total RWA Eop 55,018 67,560 -18.6% 55,016 -1.3%
EVA (€ million) (276) 561 n.m. (115} n.m.
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 7,189 8,143 -11.7% 6,754 -1.2%
ROAC +6.9% +16.7% -98p.p. +1.2% -9.3pp.
Costncome 43.4% 38.4% 5.0 p.p. 46.5% 22pp.
Cost of Risk 150 bps 68 bps 83 bps 200 bps 97 bps
Pull Time Equivalent {eop) 23,829 24,142 -1.3% 23,829 -1.4%
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Corporate & Investment Banking

The CIB Division targets mainly Large Carporate and Muttinational clients with highly sophisticated financial profile and needs for investment
banking services, as well as institutional clients of UniCredit group. Moreover, CIB acts as products and solutions provider for the commerqal
network, provides structured financing, hedging and treasury solutions for corporate and investment praducts far private and retail, according to the
“CIB fully plugged-in concept". The arganizational structure of CIB is based on a matrix that integrates market coverage (carned out ihroggh an
extensive network in Western Eurcpe and an internationat network of branches and representative offices) and product offering (divided into three
Proguct Lines - Financing and Advisory, Markets, Global Transaction Banking - that consolidate the breadth of the Group's CIB know-how).

Income statement, Key ratios and indicators

{€ mdhon)
el s ‘ YEAR % 2020 % CHANGE
| ¢ORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANIGNG ‘ 2020 21 CHANGE o4 ON Q3 2020

QOperating income 3,947 3,985 -0.9% 1,092 +1.5%
Operating costs {1,525) {1,549) -1.6% (388) +4.1%
Net write-downs cn loans and provisions for

guarantees and commitments (733} {109} n.m. (252) n.m.
Net operating profit 1,680 2327 -274% 452 -26.9%
Profit befare tax 1471 2,098 -29.8% 520 -12.4%
Customers foans (net Repos and IC) 87,721 B5 970 +2.0% 87 721 -1.7%
Cusiomers depos {net Repos and IC) 58,229 55,349 +52% 58,229 +24%
Totat RWA Eop §3,043 85,081 -2.4% 83.043 -22%
EVA (€ million) (¢4) 649 n.m. 137 +12.0%
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 10,844 11,057 -1.9% 10,439 -2.8%
ROAC +8.6% +12.8% -4.1p.p. +13.6% -1.1p.p.
Cost/lncome 38.6% 38.9% -0.2 p.p. 35.6% 08p.p.
Cost of Risk 51 bps 8 bps 43 bps 77 hps 54 bps
Full Time Equivalent {ecp; 3443 3,494 -1.5% 3,443 -0.8%

Non Core

Non-core segment reports separately assets that the Group considers not strategic and with a poar fit fo the Group’s risk-adjusted returns
framewark. The final goal is the full rundown of the overall exposure by 31 December 2021, Specifically, the segment includes selected assets
previously included in the segment Commercial Banking italy {icentifizd on a single deal/client basis), to be managed with a risk mitigation approach
and scme special vehicles for securitization transactions.

Income statement, key ratios and indicaters

(€ milhan}
et o o __YEAR % b B % CHANGE
CNONGORE - -~ . D020 e CHANGE Q4 ONG3 2020
Operating income (46) (41) +12.5% {21) n.m.
Operating costs {115} (177) -34.5% (21) -34.1%
Net write-downs on loans and provisions for
guarantees and commitments (1) (1,632) -99.9% {121 n.m.
Net operating profit (162) {1,850 -91.2% (162} n.m.
Profit before tax {339) {2,267 - 85.0% {208} n.m,
Customers loans (net Repos and iC) 775 1,886 -58.9% 775 -44.7%
Customers depos {net Repos and IC) 518 488 +6.2% 518 +4.6%
Net Impaired Loans (percentage of total net loans 100.00% 100.00% - 100.00% -
Total RWA Eop 7,642 10,965 -30.3% 7,642 -11.4%
EVA (€ million) (226) {917) -75.3% (202) n.m.
Absorbed Capital (€ million) 1,126 1,635 -31.1% 996 -8.7%
ROAC -20.7% n.m. n.m. -74.1% -86.5pp.
Cost/Income n.m. n.m. n.m. n.m. n.m.
Cost of Risk 6 bps n.m. n.m. n.m. n.m.
Full Time Equivalent (eop) 214 285 -27.3% 214 -19.3%
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Report on corporate governance and ownership structure

Within the meaning of Art.123-bis par.3 of the Legislative Decree No.58 datec 24 February 1998, the "Report on carporate govemance and
ownership structure” is available in the “Governance” section of the UniCredit wabsite {http:/www .unicreditgroup eu;.

An explanatory chapter on the corporate govemance structure is likewise included below in this document (‘Corporate Governance'}.

Report on remuneration

Pursuant to Art.123-ter of the Legislative Decree dated 24 February 1898 No.58 and of Art.84-quater, of the Consob issuers’ Regulations, the
"Group Remuneration Policy and Report’ is available on UniCredit's website (http:/www.unicreditgroup.eu).

Non-financial information

The process aimed at strengthening the integration of sustainability in the business strategy. initiated in 2018, bore first important fruits with the
presentation by the CEQ in November 2019 of a set of commitments and targets covering Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) topics.
Such process was greatly encouraged by the Corporate Governance Nominations & Sustainability (CGN&S} Committee and the Board of Dirgctors
and involved different structures of the company. The inclusion of ESG-linked indicators in the Long Term Incentive Plan for the top management
was an important milestone of this process, with a weight of 10% on the variable compensation based on the assessment of three indicators: the
ranking in terms of ESG rating by an external rating agency, people engagement index and customer satisfaction index.

At UniCredit, the way financial results are achieved is as important as the results themselves.

The commitments bear witness that Sustainability is part of Group DNA and UniCredit is continuing to take concrete actions to fully integrate ESG
into the core activities of the bank.

Sustainability is recognised as a crucial component of bank's success in the medium term.

At the end of 2020, UniCredit's sustainability performance against key ESG targets gave positive results: as shown below, the Groug has afready
achieved some of them and is well on track for the ones remaining, again demonstrating the strategic importance that sustainability has for UniCredit
and all iis employees, who work as Cne Team, One UniCredit to achieve the success of the Group.

Main achievements in 2020 vs, 2023 targets

B8 WEY PERFORMANCE INDICATOR - : - 018 WA 2033 TAHGEY STATUS
Exposure to renewable energy sectorl™, bn 69 6.1 >g On track
New angnation of energy efficiency loans in CEE!™), % of total loans nm. 10 >0 Achigved
Energy efficiency [oans to WEL individuals, % increase nm. 67 +25 Achieved
Reduction of Green House Gases by 20200 55 60 60 Achieved
Usage of renewable energy in UniCredit Buildings in WEU, % 99 99 100 On track
Position in EMEA combined Green Bonds & ESG-linked loans!™ #5 # Top5 Qn track
Support prajects with a positive social impact, bn 013 0.22 1 On track
Wamen in senior leadership roles, % 12 15 30 On track

Notes:

{*) Including biomass, hydre, phatovoltaic, wind, CHP. hattery storage. energy from waste and other renewahles as well as corporates predominantly oparating rengwable energy assets.

{**} Including {ndividuds and SME.

() Vs. base year 2008, Long term target 80% by 2030.

[} ESG-linked include: green Loans, ¥P1-inked loans, E5G-score finked loans. Green Bonds include Green, Secial and Sustainabilty bonds. Posiioning based on Dealogic League Tables.

The outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic has produced dramatic impacts on peaple, behaviors and the economy, UniCredit has taken decisive
actions to protect and support its employees and customers while remaining fully open for business across all geographies. Thanks to the unfailing
commitment of alf team members, the Group has continued to serve its customers ang the economies in which it operates.

Some pre-existing trends have been further accelerated in this context. On one hand, the Group's strategic investments in technology fead to
successfully release ta customers several digital features, boosting the digitatization process. Covid-19 acted as a catalyst an sustainability
momentum: sustainability materiality and ESG factors gained intensity, with Sccial and Governance compaonents under the spotlight. The increasing
atlention paid to the social impact of banking activities by the stakeholders is contributing to accelerate the transition towards a more ESG-driven
organization. In this context, regulators are playing a strategic role, offering a huge amount funds to achieve a sustainable recover.
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UniCredit is already playing an important role in the ESG global framewark, and as a leader in the sustainable finance sector, aims at guiding capital
reaflocation towards economic activities which generate a posttive impact on saciety, UniCredit wishes Lo de at the forefront of sociat change and
green transition, drafting a long-term sustainability strategy, embedding ESG factors in the risk framework and improving transparency.

In July 2020, UniCredit decided to further enhance the govemance of ESG aspects and embed them in the overall business strategy by
strengthening the former sustainakility function and creating a structure fully dedicated to ESG Strategy and impact Banking. A new senior leader,
also member of the Executive Management Committee, was hired o cover this position.

The constant invalvement and support from the Beard of Directors and its committee dedicated to Corporate Governance, Nominations and
Sustainability are a clear signal that ESG tapics play a central role in the strategic discussions, The CGN&S Committee is regularly updated on a
monthly basis on the ongoing implementatien of the ESG strategy and provides guidance and sense of direction to senior management. Also, in
terms of governance, the Group has a number of policies in place that govern its functioning and sel a clear framewaork that takes into account and
embraces stakeholders’ expectations. Among these policies worth mentioning. those against harassment, sexual misconduct, bullying and
retaliation stand out, paving the road ta create a good working environment and respectful relations with all stakeholders. The Chief Ethics Officer, a
position created in 2013, oversees the application of these policies and the coordination of ethics-related activities at group level,

A Yong-term journey aimed at defining a new ESG sirategy was launched and represents a key component of a wider ongoing strategic review.
This journey started with the review of the Group's coat policy, that was issued in the third quarter of 2020 and sets an important and ambitious
target of complete phase-out from thermal coal financing by the end of 2028. Nat only will the Group cease its support to projects, as was already
foreseen by the previous policy, but it will also close its refationships with customers that de not share its ampition of abandoning coal operations
{mining or production of electricity) within the same timeframe.

QOur underfying gaal is 1o integrate all ESG factors in the bank's stralegy, care business and processes, fooking at bath risks and market
opportunities and with a clear multi-stakeholdars’ approach: this is UniCredit's mandate and the main aim of the journey.

With the certainty that sustainability is a key priority for the Group and an underlying pillar of ifs long-term strategy and in order to reinforce our role
of a purpose-driven global leader, the core functions of the Group have been invclved in 2 project to design and implement the journey towards the
definition of UniCredit's new ESG strategy.

o STERY - §TER2 STEPY- STEP4 STEPS
Benchmark of UniCredit Prioritization of initiatives to
Complete picture of the versus peers and best become a leading player in Definition of a Definition of ESG internal
Group current positioning on | practices to identify potential | some areas in the next 3 comprehensive strategy and | and external communication
ESG topics gaps years a full roadmap plan
The implementation of the ESG 2023 roadmap and its communication plan are key priorities to fulfill UniCredit's ambition in the next 3 years

The project team started its work by analyzing the ESG activities currently ongoing at all level of the organization and mapping them with a thorough
benchmarking against the most advanced peers in the banking system. Tha result of these activities was a list of the gaps that UniCredit wants to
close in the next three years, in order to fuffill its ambition of being recognised among the best banks in terms of ESG strategy and positioning.

The prioritization phase considered different variables, including the expectations of regulators and supervisors, the growing requirements from
institutional investors and the speed of change from our competitors. By analyzing these different views, we were able to define a list of initiatives
and create a detailed roadmap for the successful implementation of the plan. The definition of new ESG targets aligned with the renewed ambition of
the Group is ongoing and will be par of a wider communication plan that will follow the completion of the ESG strategy redefinition.

As an important part of this communication effort, we have started to review our Integrated Report. The 2020 report, that witl be approved by the
Board of Directors in March, will have a renewed set up, and an even greater focus on Key Performance Indicators. A separate document dedicated
to disclosure alighed with TCFD recommendations will also be issued in the month of June.

74 2020 Annual Report and Accounts - UniCredit



Consolidated report on operations

Other information

For a full description of the new ESG strategy and 2020 achievements, please refer to the 2020 Integrates Repart t_hat is publishedl on U.niCredH
website {http:/www. unicreditgroup.eu), and that, pursuant to articles 3 and 4 of Legislative Decree 254/2018, constitutes the Non-financia
Declaration.

Research and development projects

In 2019, UniCredit S.p.A.'s Research & Development Department primarily fecused on:

« Lupin: At madel to automate controls and checks on cheques, specifically signature checking;

» Gyros: use of innovative applications for automatic decuments and flows checking applied to loan approval;

» Pizza: {requested by Group Compliance) within the loan dispensing processes, this project aimed to automate all the checks for completeness and
coherence between price quotation and final contract;

« Pitchboak: aimed for the Commarcial Banking italy and Eastern Europe, the objective was tc automatically produce personalised "pitch”
documents starting fram the analysis of financial statements of our corporate clients. The project is currently in production and used by 4 countries
in the CEE divisian. Currently, we're working to extend it to all countries of CEE division and commercial banking italy. The Product could be
extended te other commercial banking division.

Group activities development operations and other corporate transactions

Transactions and initiatives involving shareholdings

Information about Yapi Kredi Bank

On 5 February 2020, the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. completed the transactions entered with the Keg group on 30 November 201§ regarding
inter alfia the termination of the shareholders agreement of Kog Finansal Hizmetleri A.S., the Turkish jcint venture vehicle through which the Kog
Group and UniCredit have run a commercial banking cperation in Turkey since 2002.

On the same day, UniCredit S.p.A. announced the placement to institutional investors of approximately 12% of the issued share capitat of Yapi ve
Kredi Bankast A.$. The settiement of such capital market transaction occurred on 13 February 2020.

The current shareholding of UniCredit S.p.A. in Yapi ve Kredi Bankasi A.5. is equal to 20.0%, after the completion of the transactions described
above.

For further details on Yapi Kredi transaction refer to the dedicated paragraph of the Nates to consolidated accounts in Part A - Accounting pelicies,
A1 General, Section 3 - Consolidation scope ang methods.

Disposal of SIA UniCredit Leasing

Following the signing of the binding agreement on December 2019, early 2021 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. completed the disposal of SIA
UniCredit Leasing,

The investment was classified among held for sale {IFRS5) as at 31 December 2020, in line with the previous year.

For further details refer to paragraph Subsequent events of this Consolidated report on operations.

Acquisition of a shareholding in La Villata S.p.A. Immobiliare di Investimento e Sviluppo

In April 2020, as part of the support for the reorganization of sharehclding structure that controls Esselunga group (one of the largest players in the
large-scale retail sector in Italy), the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. acquired, with an investment of €435 million euro, a 32.5% stake in capital of
La Villata S.p.A. immotiliare di Investimento e Sviluppo {a real estate company controlied by Esselunga that owns most of the real estate properties
that hosts the group’s stores).

As part of the agreements signed, UniCredit has entered into a lock-up commitment of up to 5 years (starting from the date of purchase of the
shares) and has granted Esselunga a call option for the purchase of 32.5% held in La Villala S.p.A. Immobiliare di Investimento e Svituppo,
exercisable from the expiry of the lock-up untit the end of 2027.

Patient Capital - Acquisition of a shareholding

In order to support the excellence of the "ltaly system” in their medium-long ferm growth path, the parent company UniCredit 3.p.A. has decided to
operate, together with a selected group of investment managers, in Patient Capital, acquiring minority interests in a longer-term perspective than
typical private equity instruments.

In this context, in September 2020, UniCredit S.p.A. acquired a minority stake (7.5%) in a newso (Delorean Partecipazioni S.p.A., controlled by
funds under management of Tikehau Capital, a group of asset management and investments listed on the Paris Stock Exchange) that subscribed a
stake of 26.4% of the capital of Eurc Group S.p.A.; the latter company {with @ 2013 turnover of ovar €400 million and cantracts in place for over €1.6
billicn) is the world leader in the production of compenents that are the basis of all electric motorsigenerators and is one of the most dynamic ltalian
companies active in the process of energy transition and environmental sustainability.
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Sale initiatives of non-performing portfolios

Sale to Banca Ifis of an individual unsecured non-performing credit portfolio

On 2 July 2020 UniCredit informed that. in June, it has reached an agresment with Banca Ifis ("IFIS"} in retation to the disposal on a non-recourse
basis (pro-soluto) of a non-performing unsecured individual credit portfolio. in faly.

The portfolio consists entirely of Italian unsecured individual credits, including Salary Backed Loans (CQS] with a claim value of €155 million. The
economic impact was reflected in the second quarter 2020.

Always on 2 July 2020, UniCredit and Banca Ifis have aiso reached an agreement for the cisposal of up to additional €180 million of ltalian
unsecured consumer loans, that became bad loans starting tram hrst quarter 2020 till the end of the year 2020.

Fallowing the agreements outlined abave, the total amount of the sales performed during all the year 2020 invelved credit expesures with a gross
book value at the transfer date of €168 million and a net book value, at the transfer date, of €21 million,

Sale to lllimity and Guber Banca with Barclays Bank plc of an Italian Small Medium Enterprise

unsecured non-performing loans portfolio

On 21 July 2020 UniCredit informed it has reached an agreement with a securitisation vehicle managed by illimity 3.p.A. {"illimity") and GAIA SPV
(“GAIA"), a securitisation vehicle with noteholders Guber Banca S.p.A. ("Guber') and Barclays Bank PLC (Barclays), managed by Guber. The
agreement concerns the dispasal of an ltalian Small and Medium Enterprise non-performing unsecured ioans portfolio, on a non-recourse basis
{pro-soluto).

The portfclio consists entirely of talian large-ticket exposures with a total grass claim value ("Claim Value'} of €702 million and a gross book value at
30 June 2020 of €436 milkion.

llimity has bought a pertion of the portfolio with a Claim Value of €477 million, a gross book value at the transfer date of €343 million and a net book
value, al the transfer date, of €10 million, and GAIA has bought €225 million of claim value, a gross book value at the transfer date of €75 millicn and
a net book value, at the transfer date, of €2 million.

The impact of the sale was accourtted in the secand quarter 2020,

Sale to Banca Ifis and Guber Banca with Barclays Bank plc of an ltalian Small Medium Enterprise

unsecured non-performing loans portfolio

On 22 July 2020 UniCredit anngunced an agreement with Ifis NPL (Banca Ifis Group) and GAIA for the disposal of a Small and Medium Enterprise
non-perferming unsecured loans portfolio, on a non-recourse basis (pro-solute).

The portfolio consists entirely of Italian exposures with a total claim value {"Claim Value") of €840 million, and a gross book value at 30 June 2020 of
€710 million.

Ifis NPL has bought a portion of the pertfolio with a claim value of €486 million, a gross book value at the transfer date of €431 million and a net book
value, at the transfer date, of €24 million, and GAIA has bought €354 million, a gross book value at the transfer date of €271 million and a net book
value, at the transfer date, of €5 million.

The impact of the sale was accounted in the second quarter 2020,

Sale to Illimity of an Italian Small Medium Enterprise secured non-performing loans portfolio

Cn 21 October 2020 UniCredit announced an agreement with a securifisation vehicle managed by illimity Bank S.p.A. {Villimity"). The agreement
concerns the disposal of an Htalian Small and Medium Enterprise nan-performing secured loans portfolio, on a non-recourse basis (pro-safuta),
The portfolio consists entirely of talian exposures with a total gross claim value of €692 millicn, a gross book value at the transfer date of €548
million and a net book value, at the transfer date, of €99 million.

The impact of the sale was accounted in the third quarter 2620.
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Sale to Illimity of an Italian Small Medium Enterprise secured and unsecured Unlikely to pay
portfolio

On 11 Navember 2020 UniCredit announced an agreement with Hlimity Bank S.p.A. "lllimity"). The agreement concerns the disposai of an italian
Small and Medium Enterprise secured unfikely Lo pay portfolio, on a non-recourse basis [pro-soluta).

The portfolio consists entirely of lialian exposures with a total gross claim value of €153 million. a gross bock value at the transfer date of €145
million and a net book valug, at the transfer date, of €55 million,

The impact of the sale was accounted in the third quarter 2020. _

Finally, for which concerns sale initiatives of non-performing portfotios relating to the rundown strategy for Non Care perimeter, refer to paragralph
“Further aspects relating to Ihe valuation of credit exposures as at 31 December 2020" of the Notes to consolidated accounts Part E - Infarmation an
risks and hedging policies, Section 1 - Risks on the acccunting consolidated perimeter, Quantitative information, A, Credit guality.

Other information on Group activities

FINO Project

In relation to the FINO Project (started in 2016 and completed in 2018), as at 31 December 2020, following the redemptions made, the Notes {Asset
Backed Securities) owned by UniCredit S.p.A. amount totally €175 million (€128 million recorded under item *30. Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income” pertaining to the Senior securities and in part to the Mezzanine securities. and €47 million recorded under
item *20. Financial assets at fair value through profit ar loss ¢} other financial assets mandatorily at fair value® in cannection with the remaining
Mezzanine securities and all the Junior Notes). The evaluation of the Notes classified among other assets mandatorily at fair value led in 2020 10 a
negative impact of €4 million, while the Notes classified among financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income an impairment has
been recognised for €7 million, due to the change in estimation of expected cash flows of the underlying securitised loans.

The receivables related to the Deferred Subscription Price (DSP/Deferred Purchase Price-DPP), owed to UniCredit S.p.A. by third-party entities
belonging to the relevant third-party investor's groups, and deriving from the securitisafion transactions compieted during 2017, have been fully
reimbursed during the second half 2020, according to the contractual provisions,

Prisma transaction

in relation to Prisma transaction, finalised in the fourth quarter 2018 and referring to the securitization of a nan-performing loan Residential Mortgage
Portfolio of €4.1 billion gross book value originated by UniCredit S.p.A. and transferred to the securitisation vehicle PRISMA SPY Srl., issuer of the
Asset Backed Securities {named also ABS or Note), it should be noted that as at 31 December 2020 UniCredit S.p.A, holds about 90% of Senior
Note and 5% of Mezzanine and Junior Naotes.

With reference to the Senior securities (supported by GACS - Garanzia Cartolarizzazioni Sofferenze, and which amounted to €1,215 million at 31
December 2019), in 2020, in addition 1o the reimbursements received {equal 1o €177 million}, the Bank sold 1o third party investors an amount of
nominal €120 million (approximately 10% of the value originally subscribed for €1,210 million), thus holding at the end of December 2020 an amount
classified in item “30. Financial asset at fair value through other comprehensive income” for €318 million. Regarding the residual Mezzanine and
Junior Notes, they are recognised in item "20, Financial assels at fair value through profit or loss ¢) other financiai agsets mandatorily at fair value”
for total amount of €3 mitlion, whose evatuation did not reveal any significant impacts an the 2020 income statement,

With reference to the regulatory treatment appiied, UniCredit, following the notificalion to the European Central Bank, represents the related
significant risk transfer when reporting the transaction above outlined,

Issue of a 12-year subordinated Tier 2 bond with a 2.731% coupon for an amount of €1.25 billion

On 8 January 2020 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. launched a Tier 2 subordinated benchmark with 12-yaar malurity, callable after 7 years.
The amount issued is equal to €1,25 billion and represents the first Tier 2 issuance in 2020, reaffirming UniCredil's sofid fixed income investors base
and its market access i different formats.

The bond pays a fixed coupon of 2.731% during the first 7 years, and has an issue price of 100%, equivalent to a spread of 280 bps over the 7-year
swap rate. If the issuer does not call the bonds after 7 years, the coupen for the subsequent period until maturity will be resat on the base of the 5
year swap rate at the end of the seventh year, increased by the inftial spread.

Issue of a dual tranche Senior Non-Preferred Notes for a total amount of €2 billion

On 13 January 2020 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. faunched €1.25 billion Senior Non-Preferred with 5-year maturity, callable after 5 years,
and €750 million Senior Non-Preferred with 10 years maturity. The combined amount represents the largest EUR institutional unsecured issuance
ever done by UniCredil.

The amount issued, part of the 2020 Funding Plan presented at the Capital Markets Day on 3 December 2019, are computed in UniCredit's TLAC
requirement, further confirms UniCredit's ability to access the markets in different formats,
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Violation of customers’ personal data

On % February 2020, the italian Personat Data Frotection Authority notified the parent company UniCredit .p.A. of the start of sanctioning
proceedings regarding a violation of customers' personal data following a Cyber-attack (dala breach) occurred in Octoter 2018, communicated
through its Group website on 22 October 2018, As required by the “ltalian personal data protection Code (Art. 166, ¢.6 of Legislative Decree 196/03)
the Bank presented ifs statement of defence on the matter and requested a hearing with the Autnority to explain its arguments. It is currently not
possible to define the timeline and cutcome of the proceedings.

For further details refer to paragraph '5. Cyber security risk” of the Notes to consalidated accounts Part E - [nformalion on risks and hedging
policies, Section 2 - Risks on the prudential consolidated perimeter, 2.5 Other risks, Top and emerging risks.

Issue of Additional Tier 1 PerpNC 6/2027 Notes {AT1) for €1.25 billion

UniCredit S.p.A. issued on 12 February 2020 Non-Cumulative Temporary Write-Down Deeply Subordinated Fixed Rale Resettable Notes -
Additional Tier 1, for a total amount of €1.25 billion targeted to institutional investors.

The Additional Tier 1 notes, included in the 2020 Funding Plan, have completed UniCredit's AT1 issuance needs for the year and will contribute 1o
improve the Tier 1 ratio.

The securities are perpetual (with maturity linked to corporate duration of UniCredit S.p.A.) and may be called by the Issuer on 3 June 2027 and
thereafter on any interest payment date, subject to Regulatory approval. Notes pay fixed rate coupons of 3.875% per annum up to June 2027 on a
semi-annual basis; if nat called, coupan will be reset every 5 years to the aggregate of the then 5-Years Mid-Swap rate plus 408.1bps, calculated on
an annual basis and then converted 10 a semi-annual rate in accordance with market conventions. In line with the regulatary reguirements, the
coUpon payments are fully discretionary.

Fitch affirmed UniCredit S.p.A.'s ratings and outlook and afterwards aligned them with the Italian

sovereign

On 24 March 2020 UniCredit informed that the rating agency Fitch Ratings has affirmed the 'BBB' Long-Term Issuer Default Rating (1DR'), 'F2'
Shart-Term Rating and ‘bbb’ Viability {i.e. standalone}. The outlook has been affirmed at negative.

Ratings for SNP, Tier2 and AT1 which have been under criteria observation {UCQ') due to update in Banking Rating Methodology, have been
resolved. SNP will be rated 'BEB-' Tier Z 'BB+ and AT1'B8-

Last 12 May 2020 UniCredit informed that the same rating agency has changed UniCredit 5.p.A's 'Long-Term Issugr Default Rating ('DR") 10 'BBB-
(from 'BBBY), the Short-Term Rating to 'F3' (from 'F2'} and the Viability Rating {i.e. standalone rating) to ‘bib-' (from 'bbb'). The outlook has been
placed at 'stable’.

UniCredit S.p.A.'s rating is aligned with the Italy sovereign rating at 'BBB-fstable/F-3'. SNP, Tier Z and AT1 ratings have been changed respectively
10 'BB+ {from 'BEB-"), ‘BB’ (from 'BB+) and to 'B+ ('BB-).

On 3 November 2020 UniCredit Informed that the same rating agency affirmed UniCredit S.p.A.'s 'BBB-' "Long-Term Issuer Default Rating ('IDR),
the 'F3' Short-Term Rating and the 'bbb-' Viability Rating (i.e. standalone rating). The autlook has been affirmed al 'statle’,

Moody's affirmed UniCredit S.p.A.'s ratings and outlook
On 26 March 2020 UniCredit informed that the rating agency Moody's has affirmed UniCredit S.p.A's deposit and senior dabt ratings at 'Baa1/P-2"
The outiook remains stable. The BCA/ stand-alone rating of UniCredit S.p.A. was affirmed at 'baa3'.

Postponement of resalutions on FY19 dividend and share buyback following ECB recommendation
On 28 March 2020 the Board of Directors of UniCredit S.p.A. resolved to withdraw, without modifying the Agenda of the Shareholders' Meeting
convenad on 9 April 2020, the proposed resofutions to: {i] distribute a FY19 dividend of €0.63 per share from profft reserves, {ii} authorise a share
buyback up to €467 million {not exceeding €67 million UniCredit shares), and {iii) cancel the treasury shares that may be purchased under the above
mentioned authorisation.

This decision was taken following the ECB's recommendation on 27 March 2020 to not pay dividends until at least October 2020. As a
consequence, the Group has also formally withdrawn its ECB application for the FY 19 €487 million share buyback.

Consequently, the Group did not deduct the FY19 dividend from consolidated Own Funds. This decision was neutral for coupon payments of AT1
bonds and for Cashes instruments.

78 2020 Annual Report and Accounts - UniCradit



Consolidated report on operations

Other information

Offering to shareholder Foundations of dedicated interest free loans up to the amount of dividends
Fallowing the withdrawn of the proposed AGM resolutions on the distribution of a 2019 dividend and aulhorisaticn of a share buyback, UniCredit, in
order to support and ensure the territorial Foundations that are shareholders of UniCredit. to continue fo carry out their vital work, decided to offer
them interest free loans up to the amount of dividends.

UniCredit top management decides to waive its entire 2020 bonus

On 31 March 2020 the UniCredit Remuneration Committee acknowledged the decision of UniCredit top management to waive their enfire bonus far
the year 2020.

The equivalent ameunt wiil be contributed to UniCredit Foundation to support social initiatives, The Committee welcomed and appreciated the
responsible managerial decision, considering the uncertain impact on the Eurapean economy of the current Covid-19 epidemic.

Agreement with ltalian Trade Unions related to Team 23 strategic plan

Cn 31 March 2020, UniCredit and itaiian Trade Unions reached an agreement on the implementation of the *Team 23" strategic plan in ltaly,

In the next four years, 5,200 FTEs is offerad a voluntary pre-retirement ptan with access to the financial secter solidary fund. In line with the
development of the multichannel offer of the Group. 800 FTEs will be requalified and reskilled for new professional roles.

As part of the agreement the Group commits to hiring 2,600 people over the nexl four years o ensure a positive generational turnover and digital
upskilling of the workforce. In addition, UniCredit will convert 300 apprenticeships into standard employment contract,

Anticipation of IFRS9 Covid-19 macroeconomic scenario update

To provide refevant guidance to alf market participants, last 22 April 2020 UniCredit announced that it was anticipating the update of macroeconomic
assumptions underlying the IFRSS calculation of generic Loan Loss Provisians (LLPs).

These assumptions have included the expected Covid-19 impact as well as the arnounced government and ECB mitigating actions and are aligned
with those published by UniCredit Economics Research an 2 April 2020 and also track closely, if somewhat more conservatively, those published by
the IMF on 14 April 2020.

As a result, in first quarter 2020 UniCredit booked an additional €0.9 billion generic LLPs and confirmed the outcomes for 30 June 2020 having
observed no significant changes in macroeconomic data used.

With reference to 31 December 2020, UniCredit has again updated the macroeconomic scenario underlying the calculation of write-down on loans,
for the description of the assumptions and methods adopted, please refer to the Consolidated financial statements - Notes to the consolidated
accounts - Part A - Accounting policies, Section 2 - General preparation criteria and to the Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part E - information
on risks and hedging policies - Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidated perimeter, mareover, reference should be made to the Consolidated
financial statements - Notes to the consolidated accounts - Part E - Information on risks and hedging pelicies - Section 1 - Risks of the accaunting
consolidaled perimeter - Quantitative information - Aspects relating to the valuation of credit exposures at 31 December 2020 for the evidence of the
write-downs on loans for the whole of 2020 related to the updating of the macroecenomic scenaria.

S&P changed outlook to negative from stable

On 29 April 2020 UniCredit informed that the rating agency S&P Global Ratings {"5&P") has changed UniCredit S.p.A.'s outlook to negative (from
statle).

The “BBB" long- and “A-2" short-term credit ratings of UniCredit 5.p.A. have been affirmed. The instrument ratings have been affirmed as weli.

On 28 October 2020 UniCredit informed that the same rating agency affirmed UniCredit S.p.A's "BBB" long- and "A-2" short-term [ssuer Credit
Ratings. The outicok remained at "negative”.

First EU-wide Transparency Exercise

On 8 June 2020 UniCredit noted the announcements on EU-wide Transparency Exercise,

At its meetings in April 2020, the EBA Board of Supervisors approved the package for the 2020 Spring EU-wide Transparancy Exercise. The annual
transparency exercise was based sclely on COREP/FINREP data on the form and scope to assure a sufficient and appropriate level of information
to market participants.

The templates were centrally filled in by the EBA and sent afterwards for verification by banks and supervisors. Banks had the chance to carrect any
errors detected and to resubmit correct data through the regular supervisory reporting channels.

The 2020 Spring EU-wide Transparency Exercise covers two reference dates: 30 September 2019 and 31 December 2018,
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Issue of a callable Senior Preferred henchmark bond |

On § June 2020 UniCredit taunched its first Seniar Preferred benchmark cut of its 2020 Funding Plan, with a b-year malurity and a calf afier 5 years
for an amount of €1.25 billion.

The bond pays a fixed coupon of 1.25% during the first 5 years, and has an issue price of 99.563%, equivalent to a spread of 160 bps over the
5-year swap rate. ‘ '

The band has a one-time issuer's call at year 5, in order to aptimize the regulatory efficiency. Should the call not being exerusgd after 5 years, the
coupon for final year uniil maturity will reset ta a floating rate equal to the 3-month Euribor plus the initial spread of 160 bips. paid quarterly.

ECB TLTRO lll auction

On 18 June 2020 UniCredit confirmed borrowing via the ECB's latest TLTROC 1! operation €94.3 billion at Group level, in line with the maximum
allowance, of which: €51.3 billion by UniCredit 5.p.A., €25.7 billion by UniCredit Bank AG, €15.4 billion by UniCredit Bank Austria AG and €1.9 billion
by CEE banks.

The outstanding TLTRO |l borrowings have been entirely repaid contextually.

Issue of Tier2 subordinated 15NC10 notes for USD 1.5 billion

On 24 June 2020 issued Tier 2 Notes targeted to institutional investors for a total amount of USG 1.5 billion

The securities have a 15-year tenar with a one-time call option after 10 years at par, subject tc prior regulatory approvai. The notes pay USD fixed
rate coupens of 5.459% per annum for the initial 10 years on a semi-annual basis, equivalent to 475bps over 10-year US Treasury rate.

This fransacticn allowed UniCredit to complete the execution of the subardinated compenent of its 2020 TLAC Funding Plan, contributing to further
strengthen the Total Capital Ratio.

Issues of a callable Senior Non-Preferred benchmark bond

On 15 July 2020 UniCredit launched a Senior Nan-Preferred benchmark, with a 7-year maturity and a call after year 6. The amount issued is equal
to €1.25 billion and represents the third issuance since Covid-19 outbreak, reaffirming UniCredit's solid fixed income investors base and its market
access in different farmats.

Issue of a callable Senior Non-Preferred benchmark bond for USD 1 billion

On 16 September 2020 UniCredit Jaunched a Fixed to Fixed Rate Senior Non-Preferrec benchmark, with a 6-year maturity and a call after year 5,
targeted to institutional investors for a total amount of USD 1 billion.

The band pays USD fixed rate coupons of 2.569% per cent per annum for the initial 5 years on a semi-annual basis, squivalent to 230bps over 5
years US Treasury rate. if not redeemed by the Issuer, coupon will be reset to the aggregate of the 1 year US Treasury rate plus 230bps.

Exclusive negotiations on the renewal of the card processing services

Last 5 October 2020 UniCredit informed that the subsidiary UniCredit Services and SIA group have entered into exclusive negotiations about their
current outsourcing agreement for the supply of certain processing services in Italy, Austria and Germany concerning card transactions and the
management of POS and ATM terminals, and its renewal until 2036. The parties aim to clese the transaction binding documents in early 2021,

Co-option to the Board of the Chairman designate

On 13 Qctober 2020 UniCredit unanimously co-opled Professar Pier Carlo Padoan as a nan-executive directar. Professor Padoan will serve as a
board member untif the Annual General Meeting will approve the 2020 financial statements and a new board of directors will be elected

UniCredit comfortably meets capital requirements set by ECB
On 26 November 2020 UniCredit informed that, following the communication received from the ECB in relation to the 2020 Supervisory Review and
Evaluation Process (SREP), UniCredit's Pillar 2 Capital Requirement (P2R) is confirmed at 175 basis points.
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The capital requirements for UniCredit, on a consolidaied basis, are confirmed vis-a-vis 2019; however, cansidering the ECB decision on 12 March
2020 {anticipating the adoption of CROV Art.104a%), and the reduction of the Countercyclical Capital Buffer, UniCredit shall respect in 2021 the
following capital ratios:

» 5.03 per cent CET1 ratio;

» 10.85 per cent Tier 1 ratio,

» 13.29 per cent Total Capital ratic.

For further details refer to the paragraph *Capital and value management - Capital ratios" of this Consolidated report on operatians.

Retirement from CEO role

On 30 November 2020 UniCredit informed that s current CEQ, Jear Pierre Mustier, has informed the board of directers that he wilt ba retiring from
his rode at the end of his mandate which expires in April 2021, cancurrent with the overall board, With the nomination of Professar Pier Carlo Padoan
as chairman designate, the wark on the future board compasition can be initiated. Mr. Mustier will remain in his post to ensure a smooth transition,
either until the end of his mandata or until a successor has been appainted.

2020 EU-wide Transparency Exercise
On 11 December 2020 UniCredit informed having noted the announcements made by the European Banking Autherity (EBA) and the European
Central Bank {(ECB) regarding the information of the 2020 EU-wide Transparency Exercise and fulfiiment of the EBA Beard of Supervisers’ decision.

UniCredit Leasing completed the first securitisation in Rtaly of €1.6 billion Claim of an ltalian non-

performing real estate lease portfolio

Last 14 December 2020 it has been informed that, as part of its program to accelerate the Nan Care portfofio rundown, UniCredit Leasing ("UCL")
completed the transfer of €1.6 billion Claim of an Italian non-performing real estate lease porticlic ("NPL Lease Portfolia”) to a securitisation vehicle
(Relais 8PV S.r.l. "RELAIS") and the assets to a LeaseCo, an ancillary company envisaged by the ltalian Securitisation Law for managing the real
estate assets {Relais LeaseCo S.rl, and together with Relais, the " Securitisation”).

The Securitisation has been structured by UniCredit Bank AG as Sole Arranger and it represents the first ltalian non-performing transaction backed
by leases receivables with the senior note aiming to obtain the GACS guarantee (Garanzia sulle Cartolarizzazioni delle Sofferenze).

For further details refer to paragraph "Relais Transactian” of the Notes to consalidated accounts Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies,
Section 1 - Risks on the accounting consolidated perimeter, Quantitative information, A. Credit quality.

Project Sandokan 2: Yanez SPV issued a first tranche of notes

The Sandokan programme continues with the issuance of a first tranche of Notes of the "Sandokan 2" Project. The Investors that bought the notes
are UniCredit, Pimco and GWM while Aurora REcovery Capital (AREC) is the manager acting as Asset Manager and Special Servicer of the
securitization. The Notes have been issued last 30 December 2020 by Yanez SPV, the Sandokan pragramme securitisation vehicle, for a total
amount of €908 million.

Sandokan 2 underying portfelio includes secured loans originated by UniCredit, mostly UTPs, related to 58 borrowers so far and is due to increase
in 2021 with further contributions up to a Gross Book Value (GBY) amaunt of €2 biliion,

4 This allows banks to parbally use capital instruments that do not quality as Corman Equity Tier 1 (CET1) captal, far example Additonal Tier 1 or Tier 2 instruments, to meet the Pillar 2 Requrements (P2R).
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Organisational model

Significant organisational changes in 2020

In March 2020, it has been set-up of ‘Business Operational Excellence’ structure with the responsibilty. with reference to “Commercial Banking
Western Eurgpe” {“CB WEL"), “Commercial Banking Central Eastern Evroped” ('CB CEE") and “Corporate Investment Banking” {"CI8Y's
perimeters, to ensure the effectiveness of the 1st level controls sysiem enabling the business functions to act as first fine of defense in reducing
operational risks.

In arder to further strengthen the govemance of sustainability issues, it has been separated the management of sustainability intiatives from that ot
institutional and cultural initiatives in two different and specific areas of competence and therefore starting from the 1 July 2020 it has been set up f
the "Group ESG Strategy & Impact Banking" structure, respensible for sacial and business initiatives at Group and UniCredit S.p.A. level, Social
Impact Banking activities and the development of the culture of solidarity within the Group.

Organisational structure

UniCredit group organisation reflects an organisational and business mede! that support our aim of being a commercial bank, that ensures
autonomy to the Ceuntries/Banks so to guarantee increased proximity to the client and faster decision-making processes, while maintaining a
divisional structure for the governance of the Corporate & Invesiment Banking (CIB) business/products and the business in Westemn Europe and
Centrat Eastern Europe, as well as overall conirol over the COO and Finance and Controls functions.

Specifically:

= the Chief Executive OHicer (Group CEQ) maintain a direct supervision on the definition of Group Strategy, Risks, Compliance, Legal and Human
Resources;

= co-Heads (Co-CEOs) of Commercial Banking Western Europe and Commercial Banking Central Eastern Europe are responsible of all the
business activities, focusing on the ongoing development of client services, aiming at maximizing the cross selling, for the countries in the
respective perimeter of competence;

« Finance and Controls js in charge of coordinating comorehensive pracess of Planning, Finance and Administration, managing ldentity and
Communication activities, daveloping relationships with institutional counterparties, managing the relationships with the European Banking
Supervisory Authorities {e.g. EBA, ECB} and Banca d'ltalia, as well as credit granting activities,

» the co-Chief (cc-COUs) of the Chief Operating Office are responsible for the oversight of the operating machine with a specific fecus on costs
and on IT, Security & Operations development, for the transformation in the Group operating model, in coherence with the defined Group
strategies, by ensuring at the same time synergies, savings and operational excellence, together with the supervisicn of strategic planning and the
rationalisation of the IT developing program;

= the Corporate & Investment Banking Division (CIB), position covered by CEO CIB. reporting to the appointed co-Head of CB Western Europe
and the appointed co-Head of CB Central Eastern Eurcpe has a coverage role for the multinational clients {"Multinational'}, for selected “Large
carporate” clients with a strong potential demand for investment banking producis, for the Financial Institutions (FIG) and “Global Family Office” as
well as for the global product lines "Global Transaction Banking (GTB)’, "Financing & Advisory (F&A)", "Markets" and for the international network;

e as far as the Italian perimeter is concerned, the co-Heads (co-CEOs) CB Maly, directly reporting to the co-CEQs Commiercial Banking Western
Europe, are responsible for the definition of the business strategies of the "commercial banking” and the assignment of such strategies to the
territaries and to the client segments {Family, First, Business First, Corporate and Private Banking);

e the functions called Competence Lines {Internal Audit, Planning, Finance & Administration, Risk Management, Lending, Legal, Compfiance,
identity & Communication, Human Capital) and the Service Lines (Group ICT, Group Security. Group Cperations, Group Real Estate, Group
Procurement & Cost Management, Group Data Office, Business Operation Excelience, Group Institutional & Cultural Affairs, Group ESG Strategy

& Impact Banking and Group Regulatory Affairs) aversee the guidance, coordination and control of UniCredit group's activities and manage the
related risks.

5 Covering the functions belonging to CEE CIB, CEF Prvate Banking and CEE Retal segments
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Conversion of Deferred tax assets (DTAs) into tax credits

Referring to financial year 2019, UniCredit S.p.A. and UniCredit Leasing S.p.A. regislered a loss in their separate financial statements; therefore,
there were the conditions for carrying out a new transformation of DTAs into tax credits pursuant to Art.2, paragraph 55, of Law Decree
N0.225/2010, Thus, following their separate financial statements approval, UniCredit S.p.A. converted €87 million of DTAS into tax credit while
UniCredit Leasing S.p.A. converted €13 million.

Following Covid-19 emergency, on 17 March 2020 was approved the Law Decree No.18 {so-called “Cura ltalia’) providing special measures 10
mitigate the effects of Covid-19 for taxpayers. in particutar, the Art.55, on the basis of the disposal of non-performing loans to legal entities not
belonging to the Group carried out in 2020, gives the possibility to cenvert into tax credits components previously not admitted, specifically the DTAs
on Tax Losses Carried Forward (TCLF) and refated to the *Aluto alia Crescita Economica” (ACE] even if these DTAs are not recognised in the
financial statements. Pursuant to the mentioned Law Decree, €110 million of DTAs were converted into tax credits during 2020

In order to preserve for the fulure the regime of conversion of DTAs into tax credits, and in order to overcome the issues raised by the European
Comimission in connection to the application of State aid rules, Art.11 of Law Dacree No 59/2018, converled inte Law No.119/2016 {as modified by
Law Decree No.237/2016, canverted in to Law No.15/2017) provides for the possibility, starting from 2016 till 2030, to elect for the payment of an
annual fee equal to 1.5% of an aggregate ameunt deriving from the difference between;

» the increase in convertible DTAs recognised at the end of the fiscal year and the convertible CTAs existing as at the end of 2007 for IRES tax,
and as at the end of 2012 for IRAP tax, taking into account the amounts already converted into lax credits (including thase carried out pursuant 10
Art.55 of Law Decree “Cura ltalia");

o taxes:

- IRES paid by tax group starting from 1 January 2008,
- IRAP paid registered starting from 1 January 2013 by Legal Entities included in Tax Group with convertible DTAs;
- substitute taxes that generated convertible DTAs.

The fee due for financial year 2020 has been paid on 26 June 2020 for an overall amount of €111.7 millicn relating to the whole Italian Tax Group, of
which €187.1 million for UniCredit S.p.A., €4.3 million for UniCredit Leasing S.p.A. and €0.3 million for UniCredit Factoring S.p.A.

Certifications and other communications

With reference to the "Rules of Markets grganised and managed by Borsa ltaliana S.p.A." dated 4 January 2021 (Title 2.6 "Obligations of issuers”,
Section 2.6,2, "Disclosure requirements’, paragraph 10) the satisfaction of condilions provided by Section 15 of Consob Regulation No.20249/2017,
letters a), b) and ¢} is hereby certified.

With reference to paragraph 8 of Art.5 - “Public information an transactions with related parlies” of Consob Regulation containing provisions relating
to transactions with related parties (adopted by Consob with Resolution No.17221 of 12 March 2010, as subsequently amended by Resolution
N0.21624 of 10 December 2020), it should be noted that:

a) according to the Global Policy *Transactions with related parties, associated persons and Corporate Officers ex art.136 CBA" adopted by the
Board of Directors of UniCredit S.p.A. on 6 February 2819, and published on the website www.unicreditgroup.eu, during 2020 the Bank's Presidio
Unica received no reports of transactions of greater importance ended in the pariod;

b} during 2020, no transactions with related parties as defined by article 2427, paragraph 22-his of the Civil Code were conducted, under different
conditions from normal market conditions and materially affecting the Group's financial and economic situation;

¢} during 2020, there were no changes or developments in the individual Iransactions with related parties already described in the iatest annual
feport that had a material effect on the Group's financial position or resulls during the reference period.

For more information on related-party transactions refer ta the paragraph *Part H - Related-party transactions” of the Censolidated financial
statements of UniCredit greup, Notes to the consolidated accounts,

Information on risks

For & complete description of the risks and uncertainties that the Group must face under the current market conditions, refer to the paragraph
“Part £ - Information on risks and hedging policies” of the Consalidated financial statements of UniCredit group, Notes to the consolidated accounts.
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Subsequent events and outlook

Subsequent events®

On 4 January 2021, foltowing the signing of the binding agreement on December 2019 and the obtainment of the refevant regulatory approvals, the
parent company UniCredit S.p.A. completed the disposal of SIA UniCredit Leasing and its subsidiary SIA UniCredit Insurance Broker to AS Citadele
banka. The intragroup funding has been fuily reimbursed at closing.

On 12 January 2021 the parent company UniCredit S.p.A. launched a dual tranche Senior Preferred €1 bilian with 5 years maturity and €1 billion
with 10 years maturity, The combined amaunt represents the largest Euro institutional Senior Preferred issuance ever done by UniCredit

On 27 January 2021 the Board uf Directors of UniCredit S.p.A. unanimously nominated Andrea Orcel as designated Chief Executive Officer (CEQ),
for inclusion in the list for the renewal of the Boarg of Directors, to replace the outgoing CEO, Jean Pierre Mustier. The list will be oresented for
approval at the upcaming AGM on 15 April 2021, Upon AGM approval of the list, the Board will confirm his appointment as CEQ.

6 Up to the date of approval by the Board of Directors’ Meeting of 10 Febiruary 2021 which, on the same date, authansed the publicaton alsa i accordance with 14510,
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QOutlook

Global GDP is expected 10 grow by about 5% in 2021, following a contraction of about 4% in 2020. In the first quarter of the year, GDP growth wil
stilt suffer from the negative impact of containment measures to curb the consequences of a possible third wave of Covid-19 pandemic, white a
recovery should begin to materialize in spring. However, until the vaccines become widely used, especially in Europe, precauticnary behaviours
might persist, slowing a return to pre-crisis levels of economic activity. We expect a stronger outlook for the US econcmy, mainly fuelled by an
additional large dose of fiscal stimulus and more advanced progress in the vaccination campaign.

in the euro area, economic activity is expected to contract in the first quarter of 2021. after a GCP decline of 0.7% compared to the fourth quarter of
2020. GOP weakness will mainly affect domestic demand. in parlivulas, privale consumption and, to a lesser extent, investment, with firms partially
benefitting from resilient demand in non-EU countries. The expected recovery in 2021 is unlikely to bring activity back to pre-crisis levels by the end
of this year.

In terms of Italian GDP, we expect it to contract in the first quarter of 2021, GDP data for fourth quarter 2020 (which shawed a coniraction by 2.0%
compared to the previpus quarter} highlighted the significant impact of restrictions on economic activity and, in particular, on the services sector and
the expectations are ihat restrictions will be maintained af least for the duration of the first quarter, before a recovery staris. The high amount of
uncertainty surrounding the impact of the crisis on the labour market is likely to moderate recovery in consumer confidence and private consumption,

In December, the EC3 increased the size of its Pandemic Emergency Purchase Pragram (PEPP) by €500 billion, to €1,850 billion, and extended the
program urtil at least March 2022, Given that we expect underlying inflation to be weak and new debt issuance for this year to be sizeable, the ECB
will probably have ic remain in the market for a long time, and it is likely to remain vigilant in its efforts to maintain favourable financial conditions in
the euro area.

Even ir a context still strongly influenced by the uncertainty about the evolution and end of the Covid-19 pandemic crisis, the Group will continue 1o
steer its activity tc the strategic plan “Team 23" execution, maintaining a strong discipline on risks and related controls, to allow the sustainable
returns’ achievement. In this perspective the improvement of the pan European client franchise and, at the same time, the continuous

costs and processes optimisation will continue to be key factors.

The Group will conlinue to keep a high level of capital, delivering growth of the tangible equity.

In this way UniCredit will prepare the best conditions for the taking office of the new Board of Directors, that will be appointed during the next

Shareholders Meeting set up for 15 April and that sees respectively Pietro Carlo Padoan and Andrea Orcel as the designated Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer.

Finally, as already done during 2020, the Group will keep the pricrity to protect the health of its employees and to support its customers and the
communities in which it operates, in order 1o best serve its shareholders.

Milan, 10 February 2021

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN CEO
CESARE BISONI JEAN PIERRE MUSTIER

ARenn N
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Do the right thing!
For our Communities

UniCredit is proud to support communities in all of its
countries: we launched formal and informal initiatives,
with a wide rande of volunteering activities and donations,
employees and customers raised and donated millions

of euros.




Corporate Governance

Governance organisational structure

The informaticn in this section refers to the date of 10 February 2021 {approval date by the Board of Directars of the Report and Accounts 202 -
Genera! Meeting Draft of UniCredit S.p.A. and of the Censolidated Report and Accounts 2020 of UniCredit group).

introduction

UniCredit's overall corporate governance framewaork, i.e. the system of rules and procedures that its corporate bodies refer to steer the principles of
their behaviour and fulfil their various responsibilities towards the Group's stakeholders, has been defined in compliance with current national and
Zuropean provisions as well as the recommendations conlained in the Italian Corporate Governance Code for fisted companies (hereinafter, also
the "Code’}. The Code, according to the major international markets' experience. identifies the corporate governance standards and best practices
for [talian listed companies recommended by the [talian Corporate Governance Committee, to be applied according fo the ‘comply or explain®
principle that requires the explanation in the corporate governance report of the reasens of failure to comply with one or more recommendations
contained in its principles or criteria.

Moreaver, UniCredit is subject to the provisions contained in the Supervisory Regulations issuec by Banca d'ltalia and, in detail, with regards 1o
carporate governance issues, 1o the Supervisory Regulations on banks' corporate governance (Circular No.285/2013, Part |, Title [V, Chapter 1},
In compliance with the aforementioned Supervisory Regulations UniCredit, as significant bank subject to the direct prudential supervision of the
ECB, as well as a listed bank, is qualifiable as bank of a major size or operational complexity and consequently complies with the provisions
applicable to such kind of bank,

Since 2001, UniCredit has adopted the Code which is available to the public en the Corporate Governance Committee website
(http:/iwww.barsaitaliana.it/comitato-corporate-governance/homepage/homepage.en.htm).

UniCredit yearly draws up a corporate governance report meant for its shareholders, institutional and non-institutional investors and the market. The
report supplies suitable information on the UniCredit own corporate governance system.

Consistently with the relevant legal and regulatary sbligations, as welf as in line with the provisians of the Code, in its edition as updated in July
2018, the 2020 Report on corporate governance and ownership structure has been drafted, in accordance with Section 123/his of the Legislative
Decree No.58 dated 24 February 1998 (hereinafter, also the Consglidated Law on Finance - “TUF").

The Report on corporate governance and ewnership structure, approved by the Board of Directors in its meeting held en 5 March 2621, will be
published at the same time as the Report on Cperations ¢n the Issuer's website {hitps:/Awww.unicreditgroup.eu/en/governance/our-govemance-
system.htmi). For further information on the UniCredit corperate govemnance system see the first of the above documents.

UniCredit, as issuer of shares also fisled on the Frankfurt and Warsaw regulated markets, also fulfils the legal and regulatory obfigations relating to
listings on said markets as well as the provisions on carperate governance contained in the Polish Corporate Governance Code issued by the
Warsaw Slock Exchange.

Since its establishment, UniCredit has adopted the so-called traditional management and cantral system.

The distinctive feature of this model is that the strategic supervision and the management of the company, the overseeing of its management and
the legal accounting supervision are separated, In particular, the Board of Diractors is solely responsible for the strategic supervision and the
management of the Company, while the Board of Statutory Auditors is entrusted with supervising its management. Legal accounting supervision is
assigned to an external audit firm by the Shareholders' Meeting on the basis of a proposal from the Board of Statutory Auditors, in compliance with
relevant current aws.

The reasons behing the choice of such governance model are that it has proven capable of managing the business efficiently, while ensuring
effective controls, That is, it creales the conditions for UniCredit S.p.A. to be able to guarantee the sound and prudent management of a complex
and global banking group, such as the UniCradit group.

Mereaver, the traditional management ascribes certain aspects to the sole responsibility of the Shareholders' Meeting, creating in this way an
opportunity for dialogue and debate between sharenoiders and management about the fundamental elemants of governance. These include the
appoiniment and dismissal of directors, the appointment of the Board of Statutory Auditors members, the assignment of the mandate for the extemal
audting to an sudit firm, the sefting of the related remuneration, as well as the approval of the financiat statements. the prefit allocations, the
resalutions cn the remuneration and incentive palicies and practices provided for by current pravisions and the criteria to determine the
compensation ta be granted in the event of early termination of empioyment or 2arly retirement fram office.
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Shareholders’ Meeting

The Crdinary Shareholders’ Meeting of UniCredit is convened at least once a year within 180 days of the end of the financial year, in order to
resalve upon the issues that current laws and the Articles of Association make it responsible for, An Extraordinary Shareholders’ Meeting is
canvened, instead, whenever it is necessary to resalve upon any of the matlers that are exclusively attributed to it by current faws.

The Agenda of the Shareholders' Meeting is established pursuant to legal requirements and to the UniCredit Articles of Association by whoever
exercises the power to call a Meeting.

The Ordinary Shareholders’ Meeting has adopted Regulations governing Ordinary and Extraordinary Mestings in a functional and regular way.
The Regulations are available cn the Governance/Shareheiders Section of the UniCredit website.

Board of Directors

The Board of Directors of UniCredit may be comprised of between a minimum of 9 up to a maximum of 24 members. As at ihe approval date of this
document, UniCredit has 14 Directors.

Their term in office is 3 financial years, unless a shorter term is established at the time they are appointed, and ends on the date of the
Shareholders' Meeting called upon to approve the financial statements relating to the latest year in which they were in office,

The term in office of the current Board of Directors, which was appointed by the Shareholders’ Meeting of 12 April 2018, ends on 15 Aprit 2021, the
date of the Shareholders’ Meeting called upon t¢ approve the 2020 financial statements.

According to the current Jegal and reguiatary provisions, the UniCredit Directars shall be appointed an the basis of a proportional representation
mechanism (“volo df fista") abiding by the membership criteria concerning, inter alia, minority and independent Directors, as well as the balance
between genders, pursuant to the procedures specified in Clause 20 of the UniCredit Articles of Association. The legitimate parties wha are entitled
to submit slates are the Board of Directors and the sharehalders, who individually or collectively with others represent at least 0.5% of share capital
in the form of ordinary shares with voting rights at the ordinary Shareholders’ Meetings.

The UniCredit Articles of Association envisage that, regardiess of the total number of the Board members, two Directors shall be appeinted from the
second slate receiving the highest votes, without any connection with the shareholders whe, even jointly, filed. or voted far, the slate first by number
of votes, 1o ensure 1o the minority shareholders a greater presence on the Board of Directors.

The Board establishes its gualitative and quantitative composition deemed to be optimal for the effective fulfillment of the duties and responsibilities
entrusted to the Board of Directors by law, by the Supervisory Provisions and by the UniCredit Articles of Association, according te the current
national and European provisians appiicable on such topics, also concerning the time commitment and the limits upon the maximum number of
offices that UniCredit Directors may hold.

Moreover, Directors must take into account the provisions of Section 36 of Law Decree No.201/2011 {"ban on interlocking directorships'), approved
as statute by Law No.214/2011, which establishes that holders of a seat in managerial, supervisory and controlling bodies, as well as tap
management officers in companies ar group of companies active in banking, insurance and financial markets are forbidden to hold similar offices, or
10 exercise similar duties, in competing companies or groups of companies.

The function and competencies of the Board of Directors are set forth in the UniCredit Corporate Bodies and Committees Regulation, available on
the Governance/Corporate Bedies Section of the UniCredit website.
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Independence of Directors

In compliance with the criteria established by the Code and the UniCredit Articles of Association, as well as the provisions in force time to time, the
Directors' independence shall be assessed by the Board of Directors every time the Board s renewed, as well as on an annual basis and whenaver
a person is appointed as Director, on the basis of the information provided by the Director him/herself or, however, avaitable to the Company. The
outcome of the assessments of the Board shall be natified after the appcintment. through a press release disclosed te the market and,
subsequently, within the Corporate Governance Report.

With reference to the Board of Directors' members, the Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee and the Board of
Diteclors, lhe latter at the annual verification carried out during 1ts meeting held on 7 July 2020, as well as at the verification of individual Directors (5
March, 5 May and 4 November 2020} carried out the assessment of the Directors’ independence requirements based on the stalements made by
the parties concerned and on the information available to the Company.

With specific reference to the independence requirements laid down by the Code and the Articles of Assaciation, information relating to the
existence of direct or indirect relaticnships (credit relationships, business/professional relationships and employee relationships, as well as
significant offices held) that the Directors and their other connected subjects may have with UniCredit and Group companies was taken into account.

In grder to assess the potential significance of the abovementioned relationships, the Board of Directors has decided not to proceed with merely
identifying predefined economic targets, which if simply exceeded could automatically indicate that independence has been compromised, as such
check requires an overall assessment of both objective and subjective aspects. Therefore, for this purpose, the following criteria should be taken into
account: () the nature and characteristics of the refationship; (i) the amount in absolute and relative terms of the transactions; and (jii) the subjective
profile of the relationship,

Mare specifically, when assessing the significance of the relationship, the following information, where available, is considered by the Board:

= as far as credit relations are congerned, the amount in absolute value of the credit granted, its weighting in relation 10 the system and, where
appropriate, the ecenamic and financial situation of the borrower;

» as far as professional/commercial relations are concarmed, the characteristics of the transaction/relationship, the amount of the consideration and,
where appropriate, the economic and financial situation of the counterparty:

« as far as offices held in Group companies are concerned, the total amount of any additional remunerations.

In all the above cases, all the parties involved {Director or family member; UniCredit or Group company) and. for relationships with
companigs/entities, the related kind of "connection” {past heldicontrol participation) with the Director or the family member were taken into account.

As aresult of such assessments and on the basis of the declaration provided ty the persons concerned, the number cof independent Directors
according to the provisicns of the Code is equal to 11.

According to the Code, the Board of Stalutery Auditors, in its meetings hetd on 10 March, 13 July and 10 November 2020, ascerained, with a
pasitive autcome, the proper application of the criteria and procedures adopted by the Board of Directors to assess the independance of its own
members.

UniCredit - 2020 Annual Repor and Accounts 89



Corporate Governance

Governance organisational structure

Status and activities of the Directors
In the following chart the infarmation regarding the members of the Board of Directors in office at the approval date of this document is reported.

INDEPENDENT AS PER ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION AND COBE

< HINDEPENDENT AS PER CONSOLIDATE AW ON FINANCE (TUF}

S |BOARD MEETINGS ATTENDANCE %!
NUMBER OF OTHER POSITIONS™

14
Eu b
. = E o
. o o O
e o . : _ INOFFICE S g §
POSITON  ° . MEMBERS . .. -~ SINCE o UNTIL i @i
Chairman Bisoni Cesare!! 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 M X 1 -
Beputy Vice
Chairman Andreotti Lamberto® 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 M X X X 100 1
CEQ® Mustier Jean Pierre (2 04.12.2018 02.10.2021 M X 100 -
Director Al Mehairi Mchamed Hamad 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 M X X X 100 B
Director Balbinot Sergic 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 M X X 823 %
Director Cariello Vincenzo 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 m X X X 100 1
Director Carletti Elena i 02.07.201¢ 4,15.2021 - X X X 100 -
Cirector De Giorgi Diegofs! 02.05.2020 04.15.2021 - X X X 100 -
Lara Barolome Beatriz
Director Angela® 02.05.2020 04.15.2021 - X X X 83 1
Birector Micossi Stefane 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 M X X X 100
Director Padoan Pigtro Carlo® 10.13.2020 04,15.2021 - X X X 100 -
Director Pierdicchi Maria 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 M X X X 100 2
Cirector Tondi Francesca 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 m X X X 100 1
Director Wolfgring Alexander 04.12.2018 04.15.2021 M X X X 100 2
----- Directors who left during the Period -
Director De Wismes Isabellet™ 04.12.2018 03.04.2020 X X X 50 -
Director Zambon Elena® 04.12.2018 10.13.2020 M X X X 8481 12

Quorum required for the submission of the sfates for the latest appointment: 0.5%
Number of meetings held during the financial year: 17

Notes:
() M = Member esected from the slate that obtained the majarity of the Sharehoiders votes.
m = Member elected from the siate voted by the minonty.
(**) Number of meetng attenrded/number of meetings held duning the concerned party's term of office with regard to the penod.
(™) Number of positions as Director or Auditor held in other companies listed on regulated markets (both in ltaly and abroad). including financial services cempanies, banks. insurance companies o ather large companies
There is a list of such companies for each Director attached to the Repart or comporate governance and gwnership structure.
¢ Director in charge of the intemat controls and nsks management system

(1) Appointed as Chairman on 20 September 2018, Mr. Bisoni, as Deputy Vice Chairman. acted as pro-ternpore Chawman from 8 August up to 20 September 2019,

(2) Appointed as Deputy Vice Chaimnan on 8 October 2019,

{3} Terminated following the anticipated ending from the position of Chief Executive Officer and General Manager (with effective from 11 Faruary 2021). In order to ensure full managenal continutty, the Board of Directors
has appointed a General Manager in accordance with Clause 21 (5) of the Articles of Assaciation.

(4} Co-opted effective from 7 February 2019 and confirmed by the Shargholders' Meeting held an 11 April 2019

(3} Co-opted on 5 February 202G and confirmed by the Shareholders’ Meeting held on 8 April 2020.

(&6} Co-opted an 13 Octaber 2020,

(7} Resigned effective from 4 March 2020.

(8} Resigned effective from 13 Cctober 2020
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Committees of the Board of Directors

In order to foster an efficient information and advisary system to enable the Board of Directors better to assess the topics for which it is responsible,
alse in accordance with the provisions of the Code, the Board has established four Committees, vested with research, aavisory and proposal-making
powers diversified by sector of competence: the Interat Controls & Risks Committee, the Cororate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Related-Parties Commitise. Their duties are underiaken based on terms of reference and
procedures set forth by the Board.

The Committees consist, as a rule, of a nurmber of members from 3 up to 5, More specifically, the Internal Centrols & Risks Commitiee, the
Corporate Governance, Nomination anc Sustainability Committee and the Remuneration Committee, set up in compliance with the provisians of the
Banca o ltalia Supervisory Regulations on banks' corporate governance, envisaging 3 specialist committees, one on appointments, ane on risks and
one on remuneration, are composed of non-executives Directors, mostly independent pursuant to the Articles of Association. Such Committees must
be differentiated from each other by at least one member and, if a Director elected by the minorities is present, that Director is a member of al least
one Committee. The Chairman af each Commillee shall be chosen from among the independent members. The Related-Parties Commiittee, sef up
for oversesing issues concerning transactions with related and associated parties, in compfiance with the CONSOB regulatory provisions and the
Banca d'ltalia Supervisory Regulations, consists only of independent Directors pursuant to the Code,

The Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Commitiee also supervises the sustainability issues linked to the activity exercised by
UniCredit and tc the dynamics of the interactions of the latter with alt the stakeholders,

None of the functions of one or more specialist Committeas on appointments, risks and remuneration envisaged by the Code has been reserved to
the Board of Directars. Moreover, none of the abovementioned Committees, per se, performs the multiple functicns of two or more committees as
envisaged by the Coda. The Committee functions have not been allocated amongst the various Committees in a differeni manner vis-a-vis the
provisions of the Code.

The Commitiee’s tasks are coordinated by the Chairman, who exercises all necessary powers for its proper functicning. Each Committee draws up
an annual plan of activities to ensure the fulfillment of its tasks. Committee meetings are convened by the Chairman with freguency adequate to the
fulfiliment of its tasks and plan of activiies or when needed or requested in writing, with proper motivation, by at least two members of the
Committee, The provisions set out for the Board of Directors' functioning shall apply, as compatible, to the Board Committees.

Committee members have the necessary knowledge, skills and experience to perfarm the duties assigned to them and ensure that any other
corparale positicns they hold in other companies or entities (including non-ltalian anes) are compatible with their availability and commitment to
serve as a Committee member.

At the invitation of each Commitiee Chairman, the CEQ, other Directors, the General Manager {when appointed), the Manager in charge of drafting
the company financial reports, as well as personnel betonging to the Company and the Greup, may attend Commitiee meetings on specific Agenda
items. Without prejudice to the possibility for the Statutory Auditors to altend the meetings, at the invitation of each Committee Chairman, the
Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors, or other Auditors designated by the latter, may be called upon to attend Committee meetings. Always
al the invitation of each Committee Chainman, personnel or externals appointed in the corporate bodies of the Group's subsidiaries may be called
upen to atlend Commitiee meetings.

To perform their duties, Board Committees have access to the financial resources necessary to guarantee their aperational independence and,
within the limitations of the budget approved by the Board of Directors, may censult independent external experts and invite them to attend
meetings; in the event of specific requirements, the relevant budget may be supplemented.

The Chairtman of each Committee, at the first available Board of Directors meeting, reports on the activities carried out during the Committee
meetings, with the support of specific documentation.

The Board Committees’ compasition, functions and competencies are set forih in the Corporate Bodies and Committees Regulation, available on the
Governance/Corporate bodies Section of the UniCredit website.

Internal Controls & Risks Committee
The Internal Controls & Risks Committze, as a rule, consisis of 5 non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Internal Controls & Risks Commitiee is the following: Mr. Alexander Wolfgring (Chairmany, Ms. Elena Carletti, Ms. Maria
Pierdicchi and Ms. Francesca Tondi,
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Al members of the Commitiee meet the independence requirements prescribed by the Code and by the UniCredit Articles of Association, and are
independent pursuant to article 148 of the Consolidated Law on Finance ("TUF").

All members of the Commitiee meel the experience required by the applicable provisicns, covering the pravided areas of competence related te risk
and control as well as in accounting and audit.

Committee meetings are attended by the Chairman of the Board of Statutory Auditors, the Head of Internal Audit, the Chief Compliance Officer and
the Group Chief Risk Officer. At the invitation of the Committee Chairman, the Chief Executive Officer, other Directors, the Manager in charge of
drafting the Company financial reports, as well as personnel belenging to the Company and the Group, may attend Committee: meetings, Staff from
the external audit firm may also be invited.

The Committee is responsitle for setting up the necessary functional links with the Board of Statutory Auditors, s¢ as 10 undertake activities deemed
common to the two bodies, and to exchange information of mutual interest, within the purview of their respective compelencies.

The Committee must be able 10 access relevant corporate information, consult external experts and, where necessary, communicate directly with
the Heads of Internal Audit, Group Risk Management and Group Compliance.

In 2020, the Committee held 18 meetings.

Duties
The Committee supports the Board of Directors on risk management and control-related issues.

Among other things, the Committee;

a) with the suppart of the Corporate Governance, Nominatien and Sustainability Committee, identifies and proposes to the Board who should be
appeinted as Head of the corporate control functions or assesses the evaluation of their dismissal; for the Head of Internal Audit functicn, issues its
opinion on setting the remuneration and the performance goals associated with its variable portion in line with the company policies;

b) pre-examines activity programmes {incfuding audit plans) and annual reports from corporate confrof functions to be seni to the Board, as well as
periodical reports prapared by these functions above and beyond legal or regulatery requirements;

¢} evaluates and issues opinicns 1o the Board on the compliance of the internal contro! system and corporate organisation with the applicable rules
and regulations, and on the requirements that must be complied with by the corperate control functions, drawing the Board's attention tq any
weaknesses and consequent corrective actions to be implemented; for this purpose, it assesses proposals put forwardg by the CEO;

d) through evaluations and opinians, contributes to defining company policy on the outsourcing of corporate cantrol functions;

e) verifies that the corparate control functions correctly comply with the Board's recommendations and guidelines, assisting the Board in drafting the
caordination documents envisaged under Banca d'Halia Circular No.285;

f} examines and assesses the correct use of accounting principles and their uniformity with regard to drafting the main accounting documents (such
as, by way of example, operating and consolidated financial statements, interim operating reports, etc.), for this purpose coordinating with the
Manager in charge of drafting the cempany financial reports and with the Board of Statutory Auditors;

g) examines the work carried out by the Group's external auditors and the results staled in their reports or any letters and suggestions;

h) assesses any findings reported by Intemal Audit and Group Compliance, or that may arise from enquiries and/or investigations carried out by
third partias;

i} may seek specific audit interventions, at such time informing the: Chairman of the Board of Statutary Auditors;

j} analyses Group guidelines for the Group Compliance function that fall within its remit, manitaring that they have been adopted and implamented;

k} requests that the Head of Internal Audit draft any proposals for the qualitative and quantitative impravement of the function itself;

I} is involved, within its specific remit, in the process of identifying material risk takers on an on-going basis.

With a special focus on risk management and control-related issues, the Committee supporis the Board of Directors in:

+ defining and approving strategic guidelines and risk management policies with specific reference to risk appetite and risk tolerance. For this
purpose, it also examines the annual budget drafting guidelines;

s verifying that risk strategies, management policies and the Risk Appetite Framewaork {RAF) have been carrectly implemented;

» defining policies and processes for evaluating corporate activities, including verification that the price ang conditions of ¢lient transactions comply
with the risk-related business model and strategies.
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Without prejudice to the competencies of the Remuneration Committee, the Committee checks that the incentives underlying the remuneration and
incentive system comply with the RAF, particularly taking into account risks, capital and liquidity.

Moreover, the Committee reports to the Board of Directers on the status of the Group's internal control system.

Furthermare, as regards investments in non-financial equities, the Committes assesses, supports and puts forward proposals with regard o
organizing and enacting internal controls on the making and managing of equity investments in non-financial companies, in addition to verifying
compliance within the framework of such equity investments in terms of strategic and operational guidelines.

Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee

The Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee, as a rule, consists of 5 non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Corporate Governance, Nomination and Sustainability Committee is the following: Mr. Stefanc Micossi (Chairman), Mr.
Pietro Carlo Padoan, Ms. Francesca Tondi and Mr, Alexander Wolfgring.

All members of the Commitige meet tha independence requirements prescribed by the Code and by the UniCredit Aricles of Assoclation and are
independent pursuant to Section 148 of the Consolidated Law on Finance {"TUF").

In 2020, the Committea held 15 meelings.

Duties

Among other things. the Committee:

a) provides opinions and support to the Board regarding the definition of the UniCredit corperate governance system, corporale structure and Group
governance models and guidelines;

b) drafts proposals to be submitted to the Board regarding the optimal qualitative and quantitative compasition of the Board, and the maximum
number of posts held by Directors in other companies considered compatible with effectively fulfilling these roles at UniCradit;

c) provides opinions and support regarding the Board self-assessment process, as directed by the Chairman of the Board of Directors;

d) sets fargets for the least well represented gender in corporate bodies as well as for management and staff belonging to the Group, and prepares
a plan to bring this proportion up to set targets;

e) drafts proposals to be submitied to the Chairman of the Board of Directors regarding the selection of staff appointed 1 conduct the Board's self-
assessment process.

The Committee provides opinions and support to the Board also regarding:

a) the verification that UniCredit Directors comply with the requirements provided by applicable laws and the Articles of Assaciation {including the
ban on interlecking directorships laid down by applicable laws), and that they collectively and individually ensure abidance with the qualitative and
guantitative compasition of the Board deemed to be optimal;

b} the selection of candidates for the post of Chairman, Chief Executive Officer and Cirector of UniCredit, in the event of co-optation, and, should the
Board present its own list of candidates for the position of independent Director for approval by the UniCredit Shareholders’ Meeting, taking into
due account any recommendaticns from shareholders, as per the process for selecting candidates to the past of Board of Directors members
(including the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer) approved by the Board itself;

¢} the appeintment of the CEQ, General Manager, Deputy General Managers and other Seniar Executive Vice Presidents wha are executives with
strategic responsibilities:

d} the verification that the General Manager and the Manager in charge of drafting the company financial reports comply with the requirements
proviged by applicable laws and the Articles of Association, if applicable;

ej the definition of appointment and succession plan policies for the CEQ, General Manager, Deputy General Managers and other executives with
strateqic responsibilities. Senior Executive Vice Presidents, the Group Management Team (Executive Vice Presidents} and Leadership Team
(Senior Vice Presidents);

f) the definitior of the policy for the appointment of corporate officers (members of the Board of Directors, Beard of Statutory Auditors and
Supervisory Board) at Group companies;

g) the designation of corporate officers imembers of the Board of Directors, Board of Statutory Auditors and Supervisary Soard} at the main
companies.
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Moreover, the Committee.

« provides support, coordinating with the Internal Controts & Risks Committee, in proposing candidates or assessing dismissal for the rcles of Heads
of corporate control functions to the Board of Directors;

« undertakes research 1o help the Board of Directors draft a succession plan for executive directors.

Furthermere, the Committee oversees sustainability issues linked to the activilies carried cut by UniCredit and the dynamics underginning
interactions between UniCredit and ali of its stakeholders,

Within this framework, in particular, the Commiitee:

» pre-examines the yearly integrated Repart, which constitutes a nan-financial declaration pursuant to the provisions of Sections 3 and 4 of
Legislative Decree No.254/2016, to be submitled for approval to the Board of Directors;

» drafts praposals with regard to the Group envirgnmental and social strategy, annual objectives and targets, monitaring over time that they are
implemented;

= oversees sustainability-related developments also in light of international guidelines and principles. monitering the Graup's performance.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee consists of 3 non-executive Directors.
The composition of the Remuneration Committee is the following: Mr. Lamberto Andreotli (Chairman}, Ms. Elena Carletti and Mr. Diego De Giorgi.

All members of the Committee meet the independence requirements prescribed by the Code and the UniCradit Articles of Association, and are
independent pursuant to Section 148 of the Consolidated Law on Finance ("TUF").

At least one member of the Committes has adequate knowledge and experience in finance or remuneration policies, which the Board of Directors
assesses at such time as they are appointed to the Committee.

In order for the incentives included in the compensation and incentive schemes to be consistent with the Bank's risk, capitat and liquidity
management, as well as lo get updates on the market trends, compensation levels and regulatory developments, an external advisor also attends
Committee meetings.

The Group Chief Risk Officer is invited, upon need, to attend Committee meetings to ensure that incentive schemes are appropriately updated to
take into account all of the risks that the Bank has taken on, pursuant to methodologies in cemptiance with those adopted by the Bank in managing
risk for regulatory and internal purposes.

In 2020, the Committee held 10 meetings.

Duties

Among cther things, the Committee:

» puts proposals to the Board regarding the remuneration and the performance goals associated with its variable portion, for the members of the
Board of Directors, the General Manager, Deputy General Managers, Heads of the corporate control functions and personnef whose remuneration
and incentive systems are decided upon by the Boarg;

 exercises oversight on the criterla for remunerating the most significant employees, as identified pursuant to the relevant Banca d'italia provisions,
as well as on the cutcomes of the application of such criteria.

Furthermare, the Committee issues opinions to the Board on:

a} the remuneration policy for Senior Executive Vice Presidents, the Group Management Team (Executive Vice Presidents) and the Leadership
Team (Senicr Vice Presidents);

b} Group incentive schemes based on financial instruments;

¢) the remuneration policy for corporate cfficers {(members of the Board of Directars, Board of Statutary Auditors and Supervisory Board) at Group
companies.

Committee members regarding whom the Committee is called upon to express its opinion on their remuneration as a result of their specific
assignments shall not attend meetings at which the proposal for such remuneration is calculated.
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Furthermare, the Committee:

« coordinates the process for identifying material risk takers on an on-going basis; ‘

« directly oversees the correct application of rules regarding the remuneration of the Heads of corparate control functions, working closely with the
Board of Statutory Auditors;

« works with the other committees, particularly the Internal Controls & Risks Committee. to verify that the incentives included in compensation and
incentive schemes are consistent with the RAF, ensuring the involvement of the cerporate functions respensible for drafling and monitoring
remuneration and incentive policies and practices;

= provides appropriate feedback on its operations to the Board of Birectors, Board of Statutory Auditors and the Shareholders” Meeting:

« where necessary drawing on informaticn received from the refevant corporate functions, expresses its opinion on the achievement of the
performance targets associated with incentive schemes, and on the other conditions laid down for bonus payments.

Related-Parties Committee

The Related-Parties Committee consist of 3 independent Directors.

The composition af the Related-Parties Committee is the following: Ms. Maria Pierdicchi {Chairwoman), Mr, Vincenzo Cariello and Mr. Stefano
Micossi.

In reference to the Related-Parties Committee's meetings, only for reasons of urgency, in specific cases dealing with fransactions falling into the
decision-making powers of the Board of Directors, a meeting may be convened at least twelve hours in advance.

In 2020 the Commitiee held 12 meelings.

Duties

The Committee oversees issues concerning transactions with related parties pursuant to CONSCB Regulation No.17221/2010 and transactions with
associated parties pursuant to Bank of aly Circular No.285/20113 (Part (I, Chapter 11}, carrying out the specific role attributed to independent
directors by the aforementicned previsions. Furthermore, it carries out any other duties assigned to it within the Global Palicy for the management of
transactions with persons in conflict of interest.

The Company's competent cffices ensure a constant monitoring of transactions envisaged by the procedures for the identification and management
of transactions with related and/or associated parties, also in view of enabling the Committee to propese corrective actions.

a) Temporary replacement in cases of conflict of interest
For each individuat transaction, Committee members must be different from the counterparty, its associated parties andfor any entities related to it.

If a Committee member is a counterparty to the transaction under examination (cr is related/asscciated with the counterparty), hefshe must promptly
inform the Chairman of the Board of Cirectors and the Committee Chairman (provided he/she is not in a canflict of interest situation), and abstain
from attending further Committee proceadings with regard fo the transaction in which the relationship exists. Having consulted with the Committee
Chairman (provided he/she is not in a conflict of interest situation), the Chairman of the Board of Direclors shall immediately take steps to replace
ihe member who has this conflict of interest with another member from the Board of Directors who qualifies as independent pursuant to the ltalian
Corporate Governance Code for listed companies, after contacting them beforehand, in order to restore the Committee to three non-related and
non-associated independent Directors.

b) Temperary replacement of unavailable members in the event of an urgent transaction

For transactions that need to be finalised urgently and require the intervention of the Related-Parties Committee during negotiations and due
diligence and/or during the issue of opinions, having acknowledged the urgency and noted that the majority or all members are unable to mest or
carry out the required activities in time to conclude the transaction, the Committee Chairman shall promptly inform the Chairman of the Board of
Directors of this situation.

In any event, these circumstances must be communicated no fater than the day after the Committee Chairman was informed that the majority or all
Committee members were not available.

Having consulted with the CEQ and determined that the transaction cannot be delayed, the Chairman of the Board of Directors immediately takes
steps to find three Directors to sit on the Committee and follow the process for temporary substitutions in the eveni of confficts of interest.
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As regards sections a) and b) above, it should be noted that: _

e replacements must be provided with all available information in good time before the mesting at which the Committee is called upon 1o express Its
opinion regarding the transaction;

» replacements undertake the duties aliocated to them until the conclusion of the decision-making process regarding the specific transaction in
question, and remain involved in the decisions taken by the Commitge.

Board Committees

R L : - GOVERNANGE, h S
|- INTERNAL NOMINATION AND RELATED.
CONTROLS & SUSTAINABILITY REMUNERATION PARTIES
RISKS COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE
INDEP. AS ‘
PER ]
i EXEC.  EXEC. - ANDCODE o L o i o “ n i
Biseoni Cesare X M 100%
Andreotti Lamberto X X C 100%
Mustier Jean Pierre X
Al Mehairi Mohamed Hamad X X
Balbinot Sergio X
Cariello Vincenzo X X M 100%
Carletti Elena X X M 100% M 100%
De Giorgi Diego X X [Vt 100%
Lara Bartolomé Beatriz X X
Micossi Stefano X X C 100% M 100%
Padoan Pietro Carlo X X M 100%
Pierdicchi Maria X X M 100% G 100%
Tondi Francesca X X M 100% M 100%
Wolfgring Alexander X X C 100% M 100%
----- Members who left during the Period --—-—-
De Wismes Isabelle X X M3 50%
Zambon Elena X X Mt 90% i 85.71%
No. of meefings heid during the financial year CCI&R: 16 CCGN&S: 15 CR: 10 CPC: 12
Notes:

1 A'C" (Charman} or an M (Member) in this column shows that the member of the Beard of Directors belongs to the Committee and also indicates his/her position.
{**) Meetings attendance percantage {number of megtings attendednumber of megtings held during the concerned party’s term of office with regard 1o the penod)

{1) Office held untl 27 February 2020.
{2} Office held since 4 Novermber 2020,
{3) Office held unti 4 March 2020,

{4} Office held untit 13 October 2020.
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Board of Statutory Auditors |
Pursuant to the UniCredit Articles of Association, the Ordinary Shareholders' Meeting appoints 5 permanent Statutory Auditors, among whom the
Chairman, and 4 suostitute Statutory Auditors. Both the permanent and substitute Statutory Auditors may be re-elected.

Permanent ang substitute members of the Board of Statutory Auditors are appointed on the basis of a proportional representation mechanism ("voto
di lista") in abidance by the composition criteria regarding, infer alia, the appointment of the Chairman of the Board by the minority shareholders and
the balance hetween genders, as established by the UniCredit Articles of Association, and in compliance with current legal provisions, In detail, the
candidate who has obtained the highest share of vates among the candidates belonging t¢ the slate that cbtained the highest number of votes
among the minerity slates, as defined by currenl puvisions (alse regulatory) in force, shall be selected by the Shareholders’ Meeting as Chairman of
the Board of Statutory Auditors.

Their term in office is 3 financial years and ends on the date of the Shareholders' Meeting called upen to approve the financial statements relating to
the last year in which they are in office.

Members of the Board of Statutory Auditors shall meet the requirements envisaged by current provisions, also of a regulatory nature. in particular
the professianal experience, integrity and independence ones, and they can hold administrative and control appointments with other companies
within the limits set by current laws and regulations.

The Shareholders' Meeting of 11 April 2019 appointed the permanent and substitute Statutory Auditors for the 2019-2621 financial years, with term
of office until the date of the Shareholders' Meeting called upon to approve the 2021 financial statements.

In the following chart the information regarding the members of the Board of Stalutory Auditars in office.

Statutory Auditors _
S : S M OFFRCE SLATE  INOEPENDENT Nm{)ﬁs
FOSIBON - _ MEMBERS ; SINCE - UNTIL (e RS PER CODE * POSITIONS™
Chaiman Rigotti Marco Giuseppe Maria 04.11,2019 ___ Approval of 2021 financial statements m X 100% 1
Fermanent Statutory Auditor Bonissani Angelo Roccg 04.11.2018  Approval of 2021 financial statements M X 100% -
Permanent Statutory Auditor Navarra Benedetta 04.11.2019  Approval of 2021 financial statements [ X 100%

Permanent Statutary Auditor Paolueci Guido 04.11.2019  Approval of 2021 financial statements M X 100%

Permanent Statutory Auditor Bientinesi Antonella 04.11.2019  Approval of 2021 financial statements m X 100% 1
Substitute Statutory Auditor Pagan Raffzella 04112019 Approval of 2021 financial siatements M X Ll
Substitute Statutory Auditor Manes Faola 04.11.2019  Approval of 2021 financial slatements M X 1
Substitute Statutory Auditor Rimoldi Enrica 04.11.2018  Approval of 2021 financial statements m X -

—- Statutory Auditors that left off during the Period --—

Substitute Statutory Auditor Franchini Roberta!? 04.11.201¢ 14.28.2020 m % -
Quorum required for the submission of the slates for the latest appointment. 0.5%

Number of meetings held during the financial year: 62

Notes:

{*} M = Member elected from the slate abtaining the majority of the Shareholders’ votes, m = Member elected from the slate voted by a minority.

{**) Meetings' attendance percentage (number of meetings attencedinumber of meetings held during the concerned party 5 term of office with regard to the period).

™) Number of positions as Director or Auditor held by the concerned party pursuant to Section 148/bis of the Consolidated Law on Finance (TUF™). A complete list of such positions is published by the CONSQOB an its
website pursuant to Saction 144-quinquiesdecies of the CONSOB Issuers Rules.

(1} Mr. Roberta Franchini rasigned as Substitute Statutory Audtior. starting from Apri 25, 2020
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Share capital

As at 31 December 2020, the fully subscribed and paid up UniCredit share capitai amounted to Euro 21 ,059,536,950.48, divided into
No.2,237,261,803 ordinary shares with na nominal value. The ordinary shares are issued in a dematerialised form and are indivisible as well as
freely transferable.

No other types of shares, equity instruments ar canvertible or exchangeable bonds have been issued.

Major Shareholders

At 31 December 2020, or the basis of the communications receivad pursuant to art, 120 of the Cansolidated Law on Finance ("TUF"), registered on
the Shareholders Register, the relevant direct or indirect investments in the share capital are fisted below. Considering the CONSOB regulations in
force on this date, the shareholders listed befow hold more than 1% and they are not exempted from the reporting proviced for by art. 118-bis of the
CONSO8 Regulation 1197198,

’ % OF QROIRARY | %OFVOTING

i o . DIRECT SHAREHOLDER CAPITAL CAPITAL

BlackRock Inc. 5.075% 5.075%

BlackRock Institutional Trust Company, Na 1.325% 1.325%

BlackRock Fund Advisors 1.203% 1.203%

BlackRock Advisors {UK) Lid 0.622% 0.622%

BlackRock Advisors, LLC 0.534% 0.534%

BlackRock Investment Management, LLC 0.512% 0.512%

BlackRock Asset Management Deutschiand Ag 0.453% 0.453%

BiackRock investment Management (UK) Ltd 0.253% 0.253%

BlackRock Asset Management Canada Lid 0.066% 0.066%

BlackRock Investment Management (Austraifa) {td 0.042% 0.042%

BlackRock Financial Management, fnc 0.025% 0.025%

BlackRock Japan Co. Lid 0.022% 0.022%

BiackRock (Netherlands) B.V. 0.012% 0.012%

BlackRock (Singapore) Lid 0.003% 0.003%

BlackRuock infernational Lid 0.002% 0.002%

BiackRock Asset Management North Asia L td 0.001% 0.001%

Capital Research and Management Company 5.022% 5.022%

EuroPacific Growth Fund 3.503% 3.503%

Norges Bank Norges Bank 3.011% 01%
ATIC Second International Investment Company

Mubadala Investment Company SPJC LLC 2.016% 2,16%

Delfin S.a.r.l. Delfin S.a.rl. 1.925% 1.925%
Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di VE-VI-BL e Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di VE-VI-BL e

AN AN 1.792% 1.792%

Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Torino Fondazione Cassa di Risparmio di Torino 1.643% 1.643%

Allianz SE 1.130% 1.130%

Generaticn Vie S.A. 0.000% 0.000%

Allianiz Benelux S.A. 0.001% 0.001%

Aflianz Life Luxembourg S.A. 0.001% 0.001%

Allianz S.p.A. 0.110% 6.110%

Investitori SGR S.p.A. 0.015% 0.015%

AZ Euro Investments S.A. 0.007% 0.007%

Alfianz Finance !t Luxembourg S.a.rl. 0.994% 0.994%

Aflianz Global Life dac 0.002% G.002%
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Participation Rights

Eligible 1o attend Shareholders' Meetings are those who hold voting rights and in respeet of whom the Company has received, from the broker
holding the relevant securities account, the notification within the deadtine set forth by applicable law (racord date, 1.e. seven market trading days
before the Shareholders’ Meeting date).

Those who hold voting rights may arrange to be rapresented in the Shareholders’ Meeting, in compliance with the provisions of the prevaiting law.
UniCredit has always encouraged its shareholgers to exercise their participation and voting rights and, for that reason, some time ago it adopted the

Regulations governing Sharehoiders' Meetings to ensure their regular canduct. Said Regulations are avallablz on UniCredit website on the
Governance/Shareholders' Meeting Section.
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JEAN PIERRE
MUSTIER

Chief Executive Officer

FRANCESCO
GIORDANGC

Co-CEOD of Commercial
Banking WEU

RANIERI
DE MARCHIS

Co-Chief Operating
Officer

GIANPAOLO
ALESSANDRO

Head of Group Legal
Secretary of the BoD

OLIVIER
KHAYAT

Co-CEQ of Commerciat
Banking WEU

. CARLO

VIVALDI

Co-Chief Operating
Officer

MAURIZIO
BERETTA

Head of Group Institutional

& Cultural Affairs

»4

GIANFRANCO
BISAGNI

Co-CEQ of Commerciat
Banking CEE

" WOUTER

DEVRIENDT

Head of Finance
& Controls

MIRKO BIANCHI

CEO of Group Wealth
Management & Private
Banking

NICCOLO
UBERTALLI

Co-CEOQ of Commercial
Banking CEE

MARCO

BRESSAN

Group Data & Analytics
Officer
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Fa
RICHARD
BURTON

CED of CIB Division

ADELINE
DE METZ

Head of Group
Requlatory Affairs

T)
LM
Group Chief Risk Officer

STEFANO
PORRO

Group Chief Financial
Officer

| ANDREA

CASINI

T p—
Co-CEO of Commercial
Banking Itaty

- i

MICHAEL
DIEDERICH

CE£0 of Commercial
Banking Germany

AURELIO
MACCARIO

Group Chief Lending
Officer

REMO
TARICANI

Co-CED of Commercial
Banking Italy

PAQLO
CORNETTA

Head of Group Human
Capital

& Communication

" ANDREA FRANCESCO

MAFFEZZONI

Head of Strategy and
ME&A

GUGLIELMO
ZADRA

Head of Internal Audit*

SERENELLA

DE CANDIA

Chief Comptliance
Officer

" FINJA CAROLIN

KUTZ

Group Chief Transformatien
Officer & Deputy COD

ROBERTA
MARRACINO

Head of Group ESG Strategy
& Impact Banking

ROBERT
ZADRAZIL

CEQ of Commercial
Banking Austria

" Not EMC Member
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List of other members of Group Management Team*

EXECUTIVE
VICE PRESIDENT

COMMERCIAL BANKING WESTERN
EURCPE

Giuseppe Aquare
Head of Business Operational Excellence

Enrica Elena Belli
Head of CB WEU Strategic Marketing &
Business Development

Jerdme Frizé
Head of Investment Products CB WEU

COUNTRY AUSTRIA - UNICREDIT BANK
AUSTRIAAG

Gregor Hofstaetter Pobst
Chief Financial Officer

Georgiana Lazar
Head of Human Capital - Austria

Mauro Maschio
Head of Retail Barking

Wolfgang Schilk
Chief Risk Cfficer

Susanne Wendler
Head of Corporate Banking (Unterehmerbank)

COUNTRY GERMANY - UNICRED: T BANK A

Christoph Auerbach
Head of Human Capital and Co-Head of
Corporate Office

Markus Beumer
Board Member - Head of Commercial
Banking Germany

Joachim Dobrikat
Head of Accounting, Shareholdings &
Reg. Reporting

Jorg Frischholz
Board Member - Head of Commercial
Banking (Pbk)

Andreas Frugh
Head of Legal, Comporate Affairs & Documentalicn

Juergen Kullnigg
Board Member - CRO Germany

Simone Marcucci
Board Member - CFC Germany and CEE CFO

Barbara Roth
Head of Compliance Germany

COMMERCAL BANKING ITALY

Maric Agostini
CEQ UniCredil Leasing

Annalisa Areni
Regional Manager Sud

Andrea Burchi
Regional Manager Centra Nord

Lucio 1zzi
Co-Head Corporate Sales & Marketing

Salvatore Malandrino
Regional Manager Sicilia

Saivatore Pisconti
Regional Manager Centre

Francesco Salvatori
Co-Head Cerporate Sales & Marketing

Fabrizio Simonini
Regional Manager Nord Ovest

WEALTH MANAGEMENT

Manuela D'Onofrio
Head of Group Investments and Solutions

Dieter Hengl
Head of Wealth Management Bank Austria
and CEO of Schoellerbank

Stefano Vecchi
Head of Wealth Management Italy and CEC
of Cordusio Sim

COMVERCIAL BANKING CEMTRAL
EASTERN EURGPE

Davide Bazzarello
CRO Central Eastern Eurape

Graziano Cameli
Head of CEE Business Development

Romeo Collina
CEO - Croatia

Dalibor Cubela
General Manager - Croatia

Andrea Diamanti
Deputy CEQ/GM - Russia

Jakuh Dusilek
CEQ of UniCredit Bank Czech Republic
and Slovakia

Fahic Fornaroli
Head of CEE CIB & PB

Pierre Yves Guegan
Head of CEE Retait

Marco lannaccane
General Manager of UniCredit Bank
Czech Republic and Slovakia

Tsvetanka Mintcheva
Deputy CEQ - Romania

Teodora Petkova
CEO - Buigaria

Septimiu Postelnicu
General Manager - Buigaria

Rasvan Radu
CEQ - Romania

Feza Tan
CEQ of UniCredit Serbia

Balazs Toth
CEOQ - Hungary

Luba Uram
Head of COO CEE & CIO CEE

Ivan Viaho
General Manager - Hungary

CORPORATE & INVESTMENT BANKING

Luca Corsini
Global Co-Head of Global Trasaction Banking
(GTB)

Alfredo Maria De Falco
Head of CIB lialy & Deputy Head of CIB

Laurence Fraissinet-Dubois
Head of Multinaticnals & Deputy Head of CIB
Germany

102 2020 Annual Report and Accounts - UniCredit



Goffredo Guizzardi
Co-Head Global F&A

Francesco lannefla
Deputy Head of CIB Italy

Jan Kupfer
Board Member UCB AG - Head of Corporate
& Investment Banking / Markets Germany

Guy Laffineur
Deputy Head of CIB

Maria Chiara Manzoni
Head of HR C1B and Head of CIB Business
& Process Transformation

Christian Reusch
Co-Head Global F&A

Marcelio Vittorio Ronco
Head of Digital Platforms and Ecosystems

Guenter Schubert
Head of CIB Austria

Giovanni Solaroli
Co-Head of Global Transaction Banking (GTB)

Patrick Soulard
Head of CIB France

CHIEF OPERATING CFFICE

Fabio Cesaretti
ClO Western Europe

Paolo Chiaverini
Head of Group Operaticns

Marco Cravario
Head of Group Procurement & Cost
Managemant

Salvatore Greco
Head of Group Real Estate

Artur Gruca
CIO Finance & Contrals

Tina Pogacic
Head of COC Austria and CEQ UniCredit
Services Austria

Luca Rubaga
General Manager UniCredit Services

Boris Scukanec
Board Member UCB AG - Chief Operating
Officer Germany

Daniele Tonelfa
Group CIO & CEQ UniCredit Services

Stefan Vogt
Head of Group Chief Security Office

GROUP HUMAN CAPITAL

Carlo Appetiti
Staff Group Human Capital™

Tommaso Campana
Head of Group Organizational Develcpment
& Governance

Angelo Carletta
Head of HR COO0 Area

Dalila Dabbicco
Head of HC Service and Transformation
Management

Luigi Luciani
Head of HR WEU

Georg Rohieder
Head of Group Human Capital Strategies

lvan Tardivo
Head of HR Governance Functions

Andrea Vintani

Head of CEE Human Capital
INTERNAL AUDIT

Fabio Amaboldi

Head of Group Audit Compliance,
Cperational, Credit & Finance Risks
FINANCE & CONTRCLS

GRGUP CHIEF FINANCIAL GFRICE

Alessandro Brusadelli
Head of Group Finance

Bonifacic Di Francescantonio

Head of Group Accounting & Regulatory Reporting

Mihaela-Alina Lupu

Co-Head Group Planning & Capital Management

Roberto Monachino
Group Data and Analytics

Jorg Pietzner
Head of Graup Relation Investor

Ljuhisa Tesic

Co-Head Group Planning and Capital
Management & CEE CFO

Giuseppe Zingare

Head of Group Tax Affairs

GROUP COMPLIANCE

Martin Boehm
Head of Group CIB Comgliance

Michele Valeriani
Head of Group Anti Financial Crime Compliance

GROUP LEGAL

Shannon Lazzarisi
Read of Group Litigation

GROUPLENDING OFFICE
Corrado Pavanati
Head of CLO ltaly

Alexander Tumminelli
Head of Group Credit Transaction

GROUR RISK MANAGEMENT

Jose Brena
Head of Non Core Asset Management

Andrea Cesaroni
Head of Group Risk Models &
Credit Risk Governance

Giandomenico Miceli
Head of Group Operational
& Reputational Risks

* (ata as at 10 February 2021
** SEVP Group Title
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Consolidated financial statements | Consolidated accounts

 Consolidated accounts

Consolidated balance sheet

(€ million}
- AMOUNTS AS AT
ASSETS 12312020 12312819
10. Cash and cash balances 101,707 17.305
20. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss: 87,825 81,880
a) financial assets held for traging 72705 63,280
b} financial assets designated at fair value 226 -
c) other financial assets mandatorily at fai value 14,894 18,600
30. Financial assets at fair value threugh other comprehensive income 72,737 79,702
40. Financial assels at amortised cost: 623,501 626,463
a) loans and advances to banks 117.489 101,669
b} loans and advantes to customers 506,012 524,794
50. Hedging derivatives 3.802 5934
60. Changes in fair value of portfolic hedged items (+-) 3,886 3.286
70. Eguity investments 4,354 4,787
80. Ensurance reserves charged 1o reinsurers - -
80. Property, plant and equipment 9,939 11,097
100. Intangible assets 2117 2,800
of which: goodwill - 886
110. Tax assets: 13.098 12922
aj current 1,737 793
b deferred 11.361 12,129
120. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 2,017 2512
130, Other assets 6,473 6,949
Total assets 931,456 855,647
(Emilion)

C S AMOUNTS AS AT )
- LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 1231.2020 A2.12018
10, Financial liabilities at amortised cost; 775,747 704,840
a) deposits from banks 172,473 135672
b} deposits from customers 500,750 472 967
c) debt securities in issue 102,624 96,301
20. Financial liabilities held for trading 47,787 41483
30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value 10,568 3678
40. Hedging derivatives 5.69¢ 7,186
50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+-) 6,065 4,964
60. Tax liabilities: 1,358 1378
aj current 742 685
b} deferred 566 693
70. Liabilites associated with assets classified as held for sale 781 725
80. Other liahilities 12,749 12,549
90. Provision for employee severance pay 582 661
100. Provisions far rigks and charges: 10,188 10,398
a) committments and guarantees given 1,388 1,089
b} post-retirement benefit obligations 5677 5619
¢) other provisicns for risks and charges 3,123 3,690
110. Technical reserves - -
120. Valuation reserves (6,158} (6,120}
130. Redeemable shares - -
140. Equity instruments 6,841 5,602
150. Reserves 31,167 24,344
160. Share premium 9,386 13,225
170. Share capital 21,080 20,995
180. Treasury shares (-] (3 &)
190. Minority shareholders’ equity (+/-) 435 369
200. Profit (Loss) of the year (+-} (2,785) 3.373
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity 931,456 855,647
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Consolidated financial statements | Consolidated accounts

Consolidated income statement

(€ million)
YEAR
i i I ) 2020 213
10, Interest income and similar revenues _ | 13,182 14793
of which: interest income calculated with the effective interest method o L . _ 11.095 o 13,186 |
20. Interest expenses and similar charges ~ ‘ N (3.685) {4.521)
30. Net interest margin ] o o 9497 L 10,272
40. Fees and commissions income o . L 7,169 _7.606
5C. Fees and commissions expenses . ) N (1.212) {1.288)
60. Net fees and commissions ~ ' B 5957 6318
70. Dividend inceme and similar revenues L o 28 295
80. Net gains (losses) on trading ] 6% . 1,298 |
90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting o » o {54} L 42
100. Gains (Losses) on disposat and repurchaseof. L L 230 L 287 |
a) financial assets at amortised cost i ‘ 80 L 138
b} financial assets at fair value through other comprehgnsive income 144 R 160
o) financial liabiliies _ T 6 _ (11},
110. Net gains (losses} on other financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: i 225 B (370}
a) financial assets/liabilities designated at {air value . L 242 i {530}
b) other financial assets mandatorily at fair value R {17 . 160
120. Operating income 16741 18,142
130. Net losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: o | .. (4656) (3,489) |
a} financial assets at amortised cost L i 4B (3,478)
b} financial assets at fair valug through other comprehensive income _4 o (16 L (11
140. Gains/Losses from contractual changes with no cancellations L (20} . (20)
150. Net profit from financial activities ; 12,065 14,633
160. Net premiums o - o
170, Other net insurance income/expenses i ; - -
180, Net profit from financiat and insurance activites | 12065 14,633
190. Administrative expenses: | 11419 {10,684}
a) staff costs : 7388 . (6588)
b) other administrative expenses o {4,001} (4,096}
200. Net provisions for risks and charges: {488 {103) |
aj commitments and financial guarantees given _ s (330} 45
bjothernetprovisions . _ L. L .. . . .o o (158) (148) °
210. Net value adjustmentsfwrite-backs on preperty, plant and equipment _ {980} {1 ,425)__:
220, Net value adjustments/write-backs on intangible assets ‘ (471} {746) |
230. Other operating expenses/income ; 1 - N 897
240. Operating costs | (12885 (12,061}
250. Gains (Losses) of equity investments e i _ 11,290 3186
260. Net gains (losses) on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured at fair value | R L 4
270. Goodwil impairment ‘ (886) -
280. Gains (Losses) on disposals on investments 488 129
290. Profit (Loss) before tax from continuing operations (2,505) 3,021
300. Tax expenses {income) of the year from continuing operations (322 (862
310. Profit (Loss) after tax from continuing operations (2,8271) 2,159
320. Profit (Loss) after tax from discontinued operations 49 1332
330. Profit (Loss) of the year S NS - ;) N ¥ |
340, Minarity profit {loss} of the year T e ¢ N ¢ k- B
350. Parent Company’s profit {loss) of the year _ Lo (2185 . 3373
Eamnings pershare{€) L ) --(1‘-306) 1.462
Diluted eamnings per share (€) o I ' o Yus3
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Consolidated financial statements | Consolidated accounts
Consolidated accounts

Consolidated statemment of other comprehensive income

{€ milion)
LT ASAT ’
TEMS < , 12,31.2020 - 2312019
10. Profit (Loss) for the year _ ! {2,778) 39
Other comprehensive income after tax not reclassified to profit or loss : (462} : 469
20. Equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income Mz | 39
30. Financial liabilities designated at fair value through prafit ar loss (own creditworthiness changes) 83y | o (125] |
40. Hedge accounting of equity instruments designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income . _. L -
50. Property, plant and equipment 30 . 1,445
60. Intangible assels o o - -
70. Defined-benefit plans o \ {288) ~ {867)
80. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as heid forsale ~ L 5 -
80. Portion of vatuation reserves from investments valued at equity method _ (4} {23) |
Other comprehensive income after tax reclassified to profit or loss 560 , 899
100. Foreign investments hedging - 'r I
110. Foreign exchange differences o - } (922) | 308 |
120. Cash flow hedging R (40) ! (85) |
130. Hedging instruments (non-designated items) L B ‘_A_ - 4
140, Financial assets {different from equity instruments) at fair value through other comprehensive :
Income - ST I __ 808 |
150, Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale 3 656 _ -
160. Part of valuation reserves from investments valued at equity method - - o730 _ {181y
170, Total other comprehensive income after tax L . _ 98 j 1,368
180. Other comprehensive income (tem 10+170) - {2,680} ? . 4,859
180, Minority consolidated other comprehensive income _ 2 o (127)
200. Parent Company’s consolidated other comprehensive income {2,678) | _ 4,732
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Consolidated financial statements | Consolidated accounts

onsolidated accounts

Statement of changes in the consolidated shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2020

{€ millign)
W CHANGES IN THE YEAR
LOss) . SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY TRANSACTIONS
ALLOCATION
8
&1 8
3813
3 2] 4]
-
3 § 5 - Z
b |§ £ o 2 2 < g
FINEHRE R
81 =2 " b @ .
S IRIENE R IR IR IR IR IR IR IR D
. : LB S . = . - - )
18] % g1 gl g R
; B IS .. B 2!l 3 L 2 = . - 3 i
81 8 8| 8 8 5| B ‘ g
R . & B g . §‘ o | & g R
Share capital 1,166 - | 21,166 12} 65 - - . 21229 | 21.060 159
- trdinary shares 21,168 - | 23,158 - - (2} 83 -1 21,229 | 21.060 169
- ather shares - - - - l - I - - B - _
Share premym 13,311 - | 13,311 1555; { - | (3,280} 9.476 | 9,386 990§
Reserves: 24337 - | 24327 | 4043 ) - 2979 {65) 50 - -1 31334 31157 167
- o prolits 6,694 - | 16,694 4,043 -1 2823 {65} S| 23495 | 23,455 40
- ather 7633 - 7,633 - - 156 - 50 - -] 7G| 72 127
Valuation reserves {6,108} - | (6.109) - - {146} 98 | (6,157} | 5,159, 2z
Advanced dridends - - - - - . - - - N
Equity instruments 5,602 - | 5602 - - o - I 1,238 - - N -1 6841 ] B84
Treasury shares m - 3 - - - - - -1 -] - - - - - 3 3 -
Profit (L oss) for the year 3491 -1 3491 | {3,488 {3) - - - - - - - - < (2778) § 2778 | (2785 7
Total shareholders equity 61,785 - | a1,788 o] ey - - - - 11,299 -] s + | (2.680) | 59,942 | s9.507 | 435
Groug shareholgers’ equity 81,416 - | 81,416 - 2 519, - - - -1 1238 - 50 -] {2678 | 59507
Minonty sharghalders' equity 369 - 369 - {1) 69 - - - - - - - - {2} 435

The amounts disclosed in column *Stock Qptiens” reprasent the effects of the defivery of shares {Stoc Options, Performance Shares, Discount and

Matching Shares connected with the ESOP Plans and other Group Executive Incentive Plars).

The cumulated change of valuation reserves, for -€48 million, includes the effect of the variation far:

= +£726 million of investments valued at net equity and +€858 million of non-current assets classified as held for sale, mainly cue tc the disposal of
respectively 11,93% and 9.02% stake of Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi AS with the consequent recycle mostly to profit or loss of these reserves basically
referred o exchange rate differences on Turkish Lira;

» +€25 million of property, pant and equipment related 10 the properties used in business, ruled by IAS16 "Property, plant and machinery";

* -£41 million of cash-flow hedges;

* €80 miliion of financial asset and fiabilifies at fair valug;

* €434 million of defined-benefit plans related to pensions and other post-retirement benefits obligations and provision for employee severance pay
(€264 million for liability remeasurement and the residual mainly for temporary Deferred Tax asset sustainability test);

€822 million of exchange differances, mainly related to effect of Russian Ruble for €684 million, Hungarian Forint for -£99 million and Czech Crown
for -€81 miifion.

The change in Group share capital refers to the increase for +€85 million toflowing the resolution of the Board of Directars of 5 February 2020 of

UniCredit S.p.A. executed through a withdrawal from the specifically constituted reserve. for the issue of the shares connected to the medium term

incentive plan for Group personnel,

Following the resolutions of the Shareholders' Meeting of UniCredit S.p.A. of 9 April 2020 occurred: {i) coverage the entire foss of UniCredit S.pA. from

the 2019 financial year through the use of the Share Premium Reserve (€555 million; (i coverage of the negative reserves totaling €3,408 millicn. partly

by use of Share premium resarve ta eliminate the negative components related to the payment of AT4 coupons (€525 million) and to the first time

adoption of the IFRSG (€2,759 million) and partly by use of the Statutory reserve o cover the negalive resarve arising from the payment of usufruct

cantract signed with Mediobanca S.p.A. on UniCredit shares Supporting the issuance of convertible securities dencminated *Cashes” (€124 million),

It should be noted that, following the Recommendation 20:20/35 published by ECB on 27 March 2020 not to pay dividends until October 2020, 2019

Group result of +€3,373 million has baen entirely allocated to the reserves without proceeding with the dividend distribution during 2626, following the

resslutions of the Shareholders' Meeting of UniCredit 5.p.A. of @ April 2020, On 15 Decamber 2020, the Eurapean Central Bank issued the

Recommendation 2020462 “on dividend distributions during the Covid-19 pandemic and repealing Recommendation ECB/2020/35": the recommendation

asks banks to “refrain from or limit dividends unti September 2021".
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Consolidated financial statements | Consolidated accounts
 Consolidated accounts -

For the implications related 1o its application at UniCredit group, refer to the paragraph "Capital and value managemenit - Capital ratios” of the
Consdlidated report on operations.

Mareover, the change of the other reserves includes the payment of coupons on AT1 equity instrumenits for -€326 million.

For further detaits about the Shareholders' equity changes rafer to Fart B - Consolidated bafance sheet - Liahilities, Seclion 13 of the Notes to the
consolidated accounts,

Statement of changes in the consclidated shareholders’ equity as at 31 December 2819

€ million}
PREVIOUS CHANGES IN THE YEAR
YEAR PROFIY .
N SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY TRANSACTIONS
N - - E
: : ' ] a1 91| &
. S - B = P <
| |3 g g : g
: § 3 < § £ § El B
= 2 e ) > E 5 = i - E
LR T g NIEIE El § £ A
. . |- b & = & i g
Bl R OB 3 3 E £l 8 5 g g
=Bl X 21 2.2 5 81 2 2 g ¥
‘2135 | .| 2 =|8 = g 2 g 3
: i ‘ 2 & 8. 8 4 2l 8 B
% L3 D » 3 ‘g b e
f~ IRINIE IR R IR E IR R IR IR
] %%s?{ Sl : j & me S |- ‘B 2 5 B & =] § g
Share capial ‘ 21.248 - | 21,28 S - w8 - - - - - - - - | 2186 ¢ 20908 | 171
" |- ordinary shares 21,248 - | 21048 -4l | s 21186 1 20995 | 174
- other shargs : - - - % DR B T AT U NG N SUUTET DTS S e
Share premiym : 13.480 - | 13480 - {169) e e e 3] 1322 | 86|
Reserves: T nas S| 28 | 3548 S| e | ss) - - - - - | ag - < | s | omae | oun
- fom profits - | 13776 - | 13776 | 3548 7 R N R S R 1ol - o | 16654 | 16838 | (144
- iher | 7408 - | 7 - - | 156 S R I A A A - I - 7633 7506 | 127
Valuation reserves ) Lorasy | - (7.494) - - 17 - - - - - . - | 1368 | t6108) ; (6120 1
Advanced dividends - TS B - B - - - - - R
" |_Equty instruments U oagto | . amin | - g2 L 1 - | set2 | ss0z
Treasury ;hares - {18 _:_ AL T 15 - - 3 3 -
Profit (i oss) for the year 4,340 -, 4340 | (3548) | @en |- | - - - 3491 3491 3373 118
Total shareholders' equity 57,350 - | 57350 - | oG9 | (e | - - - | o - | &8 -+ | 4859 | 61785 | €418 | 389
Growp shareholders' equity . | 56389 - | 55389 - | 04 | (e | - - - - 9 -8y - | 4732 | 81416
Minarity shareholders' equity 961 - 961 B L) I 5 O L S S - - 127 369

. The amounts disclosed in column "Stock Options” represent the effects of the delivery of shares (Stock Options, Performance Shares, Discount and

Matching Shares connected with the ESOP Plans and other Group Executive Incentive Plans).

The cumulated change of valuation resarves includes the effect of the variation mostly for:

= +£1,445 million of property, plant and equipment due ta the transition from the cost model to the revaluation model for the properties used in
business, ruled by 14S1€ "Property, plant and machinery";

o +£720 million of financial asset and liabilities at fair value,

» +€507 millien of investments valued at net equity mainly due to the change of Turkish Lira for -€110 million and +€677 millian of non-current
assets classified as held for sale due to the reclassification of 9.02% of the valuation reserve of Yapi Ve Kredi Bankasi AS for -€660 million {mainly
referred to cumulated change of Turkish Lira for -€643 million);

« +£292 million of exchange differences, mainly related to effect of Russian Ruble for +€324 millian;

+ -€55 million cf cash-flow hadges;

« €858 million of actuarial gain {losses) on defined-benefit plans.

The change in Group share capital refers to the increase of +€55 million following the resolution of the Board of Directars of & February 2018 of
UniCredit S.p.A, executed through a withdrawal from the specifically constituted reserve, for the issus of the shares connectad to the medium term
incentive plan for Group personnel.

Following the resolutions of the Shareholders' Meeting of 11 April 2019 of UniCredit 5.p.A., the coverage of the negative other reserves for +€293
million was executed by using: i) the share premium reserve for the component related to the payment of AT1 coupons in 2017 for -£168 mitlion;
ii) the statutory reserve, included in reserves from profit, to cover the negative reserve arising from the payment of usufruct contract signed with
Mediobanca S.p.A. on UniCredit shares supporting the issuance of convertible securities denominated *Cashes” for €125 million,

Mareover, the change of the other reserves includes the payment of coupons an AT1 equity instruments for €285 million,

The change in net equity of minorities is mainly due to the sale of FinecoBank S.p.A. This transaction has impacied mainly share capital and
reserves from prafits.
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solidated ac

Consclidated cash flow statement (indirect method)

{€ million}
YEAR .
DR ) : 2020 - 2018
A. OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. Operations: o 8,486 11140 ¢
- profit {loss} for the year {+-) L . (2,778 3441 |
- gains/losses on financial assets held fer trading and on other financial assets/liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss (-/+] L ~.(453) 571 _
- gains (losses) on hedge accounting (-/+) o 54 (42} .
- net impairment losses/writebacks on impairment for credit risk (+-} 10w 5,288 _
- net value adjustments/write-backs on property. plant and equipment and intangible assets (+/-) 1420 ¢ 2167
- net provisions for risks and charges and other expensesfincome {+-) I i L (174) |
- uncollected net pramiums (-) ~ ‘ -
- other uncollected insurance income/expenses (-/+) o - o -
- unpaid dutigs, taxes and tax credits (+-} e 18 687
- impairment/write-backs after tax on discontinued operations (+-) 3 o 18 {1,239)
- other adjustments (+-} R .. < 387
2. Liquidity generatedfabsorbed by financial assets: T 7 {58,982)
- financial assets held for trading e (1,583) 1888 |
- financial assets designated at fair value {224) : -
- other financial assets mandatorily at fair value 3k’ 3647
- financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income L 6,452 8,863
- financial assets at amertised cost o T () (75408} |
- other assets 1,507 e
3. Liquidity generated/absorbed by financial liabilities: 72,338 o 31,635
- financial liabilities at amortised cost . o Te0M 38.352
- financial liabilities held for trading (1085) ~ (2045
- financial liabiliies designated at fairvalve 93 {158)
- other liabilities o T (3,031} (4,514)
Net liquidity generated/absorbed by operating activities : 83,323 (16,207}
B. INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES :
1. Liquidity generated by: o 2025 5020 |
- sales of equity investments e L 508 84
- collected dividends on equity investments - L 61 64
- sales of property, plant and equipment L I 1 V4 2978
- sales of intangible assets e - 1
- sales of subsidiaries and business units 39 1123 |
2, Liguidity absorbed by: o D {145) {2,205) |
- purchases of equity investments B L oy (29
- purchases of property, plant and equipment (730} (1,543)
- purchases of intangible assets 5 (7003 (642} ¢
- purchases of subsidiaries and business units ) (16} -
Net liquidity generatediabsorbed by investment activities ? 569 2,813
C. FUNDING ACTIVITIES )
- issue/purchase of freasury shares e - -
- issue/purchase of equity instruments o 128 9_9_2___J
- dividend distribution and other o o B T S B 'L I
- sale/purchase of minority control o - -
__Net liquidity generated/absorbed by funding activities : __ 6E0 o ™ l
NET LIQUIDITY GENERATED/ABSORBED IN THE YEAR CoBass2 (13707) |
{i?;enermed;
(-} absorbed,
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Reconcitiation
(€mlulqnj
\ , . YEAR :
TENS o : 220 209
Cash and cash balancss at the beginning of the year o ) : - 17,305 . 30891 §
Net liquidity generatediabscrbed in the year ) o 84552 (13707) |
Cash and cash balances: foreign exchange effect L 18, 2
’ Cash and cash balances at the end of the year o oot 17308

The item "Cash and cash balances” refers to the definition according to Banca d'ltalia {Circular No.262 of 22 December 2005 and subseqguent
amendments). For further details on item's compasition refer to Part B - Consolidated balance stieet - Assets, Section 1 - Cash and cash batances -
Item 10 of the Notes to the consolidated accounts.

The information related to the significant restrictions are provided in Part A - Acgounting Policies, A.1 - General, Section 3 - Consolidation scope and
methads.
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Consolidated financial statements | Notes to the consolidated accounts

A-Accountingpoices

A.1 - General

Section 1 - Statement of compliance with IFRS

These Consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS issued by the Intemational Accounting Standards Board
(IASB), including the interpretation documents issued by the SIC and the IFRIC, and endorsed by the Eurcpean Commission up t 31 December
2020, pursuant to EU Regulation No.1806/2002 which was incorporated into Italian legislation through Legistative Decree No.38 of 28 February
2005 (see Section 5 - Other matlers).

These financial statements are an integral part of the Annual financiat statements as required by Art.154-ter, par.1 of the Single Finance Act
(Consolidated Law on Finance - “TUF", Legislative Decree No.58 of 24 February 1998).

In Circular No,262 of 22 December 2005 of Banca d'ltalia {and subsequent amendments), with regard to the banks and financial institution subject to
supervision, Banca d'ltalia has established the formats for the financial statements and Notes to the accounts used to prepare these Consolidated
financial statements.

Banca o' ltalia issued on 30 November 2018 with its Circular No.262 adjusting the formats for the consolidated accounts and Notas 10 the
consolidated accounts 1o the requirements of IFRS16; Leasing. Such update has been integrated by the 15 December 2020 Banca d'ltalia
Communication “Integration 1o Circular No.262 requirements - Banks financial stalements: schemes and compilation rules" which has mainly
foreseen the need to provide further information regarding impacts coming from Covid-18 and related relief and support measures,

Section 2 - General preparation criteria
As mentioned above, thase “Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020" have been prepared in accordance with the international
accounting standards endorsed by the European Commission.

The following documents have been used to interpret and support the application of IFRS, even though they have not all been endorsed by the

European Commission:

= The Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting;

+ Implementation Guidance, Basis for Canclusions, IFRICs and any other documents prepared by the [ASB (including the IFRS Foundation
communication of 27 March 2020 congerning "IFRS9 and Covid-13") or International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC)
supplementing the IFRS;

« Interpretative documents on the application of the IAS/IFRS in Italy prepared by the Organismo aliano di Contabilita {QiC) and Associazione
Bancaria Italiana (ABI);

» ESMA (European Securities and Markets Autharity), European Banking Autharity, Eurcpean Central Bank and Consab documents on the
application of specific IFRS provisions also with specific reference to the presentation of the effects arising from Covig-19 pandemic and their
effects on the evaluation processes. in particular, refer fo the statement of ESMA dated 25 March 2020, 20 May 2020 and 28 Octoher 2020, 1o the
statement of European Central Bank dated 1 April 2020 and 4 December 2020, te the statement of European Banking Authority dated 26 March
2020, 2 April 2020, 2 June 2020 and 2 December 2020 and to Consob Call for attention. The content of these statements, when relevant, has
been reported in "Section 5 - Other matters” of the Consolidated financial statements of UniCradit group, Notes to consalidated accounts Part A -
Accounting policies, A.1 General, in the context of the description of the evaluation choices made by the Group as at 31 Decembar 2020.

The Cansolidated financial statements include the Balance sheet, the Income statement, the Statement of other comprehensive income, the
Statement of changes in sharehciders' equity, the Cash flow statement (compiled using the "indirect method”) and the Notes 1o the consolidated
accounts, together with the Cansolidated report on operations and Annexes.

Figures in the consolidated accounts and Notes to the consalidated accounts are given in millions of euros, unless otherwise specified,

Risks and uncertainty relating to the use of estimates

Under the IFRS, management must make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting principles and the
amounts of agsets and liabilities and income and expenses reported in the accounts, as weil as the disclosure concerning centingent assets and
liabilities.

Estimates and related assumptions are based on previous axperience and on the avallable infermation framewaork with reference to the current
context and have been used to estimate the carrying values of assets and liabilities not readily svailable from ather sources.

Estimates and assumptions are regularly reviewed. Any changes resulting from these reviews are recognised in the period in which the review was
carried out, provided the change only concerns that period. If the revision concerns both current and future pariods, it is recogrised accordingly in
both current and future periods.

In particular, estimated figures have been used far the recagnition and measurement of some of the largest items in the Consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 202C, as required by the accounting policies, statements and regulations described above.
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art A - Accouning policies

The current market environment is furthermore affected, compared with the past, by an increased risk of a lower predictivity of the macro-ecenomic

projections arising from a substantial degree of uncertainty about the evolution of the pandemic and the consequent uncentainty of predicting timing

and extent of the economic recovery which may occur in future periads. The existence of a higher uncertainty reprasents, in fact, a key factor of the

statements issued by supranational authoritative hodies such as the International Monetary Fund (‘IMF") and the European Commission {'EC"):

= in its statement *Octaber 2020 Warld Economic Outlook”, the IMF has stated, among other things, that "there remains tremendous uncertainty
around the outiook”; “the uncertainly surrounding the baseline prejection is unusually large”; “the growing restrictions on trade and investment and
rising geopolitical uncertainty could harm the recovery”;

= in its statement of November 20207 “Autumn 2020 Ecanomic Forecast: Rebound interrupted as resurgence of pandemic deepens uncertainty”, the
EC has stated, among other things, thal “the epidemicicgical situation means that growth projections over the forecast horizon are subject fo an
exiremely high degree of uncertainty and risks” and that “a high degree of uncertainty with downside risks to the outlook”.

Additionally, as already stated, through the communicalion issued on 28 October 2020. ESMA published a Public Statement (" Europsan common

enforcement priorities for 2020 Annual Financial Reports"} addressing the enforcement priorities on measurement and disclosure, in light of Covid-

19 pandemic for 2020 year-end financial statemenis.

Among the athers, for the topics under discussions in the present section, the following are worth 1o be mentioned, as they refer to uncertainty:

» impairment tost: in order to reflact the higher level of uncenainties, the adoption of multigle scenarios might be required in calculating future cash-
flows;

* estimation uncertainties: the issuers shall disclose sources of estimation uncertainties in the measurement of items of financial statements,

in the cantext of high leve! of uncertainty explained above and considering the aforementioned ESMA communication, UniCredit group has defined

different macro-econamic scenarios, to be used for the purposes of the evaluation processes of 2020 Financial statements,

In particular, in addition 1o the "Baseline” scenario, which reflects the expectations considered most likely concerning macro-econamic trends,

alternative scenarios have been oullined that assume different trends in the main macre-ecenomic parameters (e.g. gross domestic product, interest

rates}; in this respect:

* with reference to the impairment test of goodwill and deferred tax assets, a worst-case scenario (called "Downturn”} was defined, reflacting a
downward forecast of the expected profitability of the business;

* with reference to the valuation of credit exposures {JFRS9), two alternative scenarios {"Positive” and "Negative®) were oullined, which provide for
different assessments regarding the expected trend of the parameters that can influence the assessment of the prospective credit risk.

The paragraphs below provide a detailed description of the characteristics associated with the above scenarios.

Goodwill and deferred tax assets

As shown above and in light of the afcrementionad considerations, UniCredit group has defined certain macro-sconomic scenarios, used for the

measurement of goodwill and deferred tax assets:

= Baseline scenario: on the basis of this macro-ecoromic scenario, prepared last October 2020, were determined the budget for year 2021,
approved by the Board of Directors {BoD) &t meeting held on 13 January 2021, anc the projections for years 2022 and 2023, presented to the BoD
at the same meeting cn 13 January 2021. This macro-econamic scenario foresees a gradual recovery starting from spring 2021, also supported by
a higher distribution of vaccines and a reduction of restrictions on mobility and cn some econcmic activities introduced in Europe to manage Cavid-
1S infections. Moreover, this scenario foresees that central banks maintain favorable manetary poticy measures. In 2022 and 2023 a normalization
of econemic activities is expected with a moderate recovery of rates, in particular of medium-long term rates (Mia Swap 10Y). For details refer to
the table below.

* "Dawnturn” scenario, alsa in light of the context of uncertainty considered by ESMA and supranational bodies (e.g. IMF) the “Downturn® scenario
has been stressec considering worse macro-ecenomic conditions compared 1o the “Baseline’, in particular foreseeing a halving in the Eurozone
GDP in 2021 and a stable trend in long-term rates, thus leading to a downward revisien of the results forecast in the 2021 budget and in the 2022-
23 projections. In particular, the "Downturn” scenario considers a new phase of infections for Covid-1§ at the beginning of 2021 with a consequent
increase in restrictions an mobility and on econamic activities compared to the "Baseling” scenario, The 2021 GOP therefore reaches in the main
countries a growth in 2021 equal to about half of the base case (e.g. Western Europe +2.4% vs. +4.8% of the base case), settling at the same
growth as the base case in 2022-23, thus not recovering the variation seen in 2021 aganst a long-term impact on the economy. Consistently with
a reduced economic growth, it is assumed that central banks maintain favorable monetary poficy measures and that interest rates therefore remain
at lower levels compared to the "Baseling” scenario, with a significant impact also on medium- and lang-term rates, resulfing in a fatter rate curve
than in the base case.

7 hitps iiee.suropa.aufcammission/presscorneridetailitip_20_2021.
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The table below shows the most significant macro-economic data characterising the "Baseline” and "Downturn’ scenarios, also in order o highlight
the different assumptions underlying these scenarios.

 teraat rtes and yivid environment, EoP% 2020 2024 072 nn
Euribor 3M {hps) 50 50 45 40
_ Mid Swap 10Y (bps) 23 +20 +0 +55
gaselmg Spread BTP — Bund (bps) +150 +160 +160 +160
o0 Real GOP growth yly, %
Western Eurape® £.8% 4.8% 2.5% 2%
CEE (excluding Turkey) 4.9% 3.2% 2.6% 2.5%
Euribor 3M (bps) - -60 -55 -50
Mid Swap 1GY (bps) -10 M +10
gg;’;‘ﬁg” Spread BTP — Bund (bps) - 180 160 60
2020 Real GDP growth yly, %
Westarn Europel® - 24% 2.5% 20%
CEE {excluding Turkey) - 1.6% 2.6% 2.5%
Notes:

{1} Data 2020 are shown only for the Baseling scenario for information purpases, data referred to the real GDP for Western Europe and the CEE are forecasts prepared during the fourth quarter of 2020.
(2) Western Europe calculated as a weighted average considering the nominal GDP of the cauntries relevant fer UniCredit (Italy, Germany and Austnaj.

it is worth to note that, for comparalive purposes, the macrg-economic data used for the assessments performed for Consolidated financial
statements as at 31 December 2019 foresaw: (i) for 2020, real GDP growth of 0.6% for Western Europe and 1.4% for the CEE {excluding Turkey);
(ii) for 2023 real GDP growth of 1.2% for Western Europe and 2.1% for the CEE (excluding Turkey).

With reference to goodwill and deferred tax assets, the measurement is significantly influsnced by assumptions on future cash flows, which in turn
incorporate assumptions on the evolution of the macro-economic scenario. As a result, for the measurement and with the aim to reflect the
aforementioned degree of uncertainty, pursuant to requirements of ESMA public statement of 28 Oclober 2020, both the scenarios oullined above
have been considered. In particular future cash flows have been estimated by weighting the “Baseline’ scenario and the “Downturn” scenaric with a
higher probabifity attributed to the ‘Baseling” scenario (60% vs. 40%).

Moreover, additional parameters impact on measurement: (i} for goodwill, the measurement is influenced by Cost of Equity, CET1 ratio target and
long term growth rate; (i) the sustainability of deferred tax assets is influenced by the volatility of expected results and by the confidence level used.
In the context of measurement as at 31 December 2020, the evaluation of these items has been updated through the redetermination, if needed, of
the underlying parameters.

For further information on the methadology, results and base assumptions used in the impairment test of goodwill and deferred tax assets, refer
respectively to sections Section 10 - Intangible assets - ltem 100", "Section 11 - Tax assets and tax liabilities - ltem 110 (Assets) and Item 60
{Liabilites) of the Consolidated financial statements of LiniCredit group, Notes to the consclidated accounts Part B - Cansolidated balance sheet -
Assets,

The results of these evaluation might be subject to changes net foreseeable at the moment depending an the evolution of the pandemic, the effect of
the relief measures adopted and, ultimaiely, on the existence and degree of the ecanomic recovery. Possible deviations of the actual

economic recovery compared with the assumptions which form the basis of the evaluations might require a re-determination of the parameters used
for valuation purposes, in particutar with regard fo the future cash flows, and the consequent change in the valuation,

In this context it should be noted that an update of the strategic plan Team 23, that reflecls current conditions. may be approved by the new Board of
Directors, that will be appainted by the sharshclder's meeting 1o be held on 15 April 2021, during 2021.

Measurement of Real estate portfolio

Always with reference to the valuation of the non-financial assets, it is worth to mention the valuation of the real estate portfolio which has become
relevant following the adoption, starting from 31 Cecember 2019, of the fair value model (assets held for investment) and the revaluation model
(assets used in the business). For these assets, on 31 December 2020, fair value has been determined through external appraisats. Further
information has been reported in the paragraph "Section § - Property, plant and equipment - Item 50" of the Consolidated financial statements of
UniCredit group, Notes 1o the consolidated accounts Part B - Consolidated balance sheet - Assets.

In this context it is worth ta note that in the upcoming financial years, fair value of these assets might be different from the fair value observed as at
31 December 2020 as a result of the possible evolution of real estate market which will also depend on the new practice, in terms of remote working,
that could prevaif once the lock-down measures will be lifted.
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Measurement of Credit Exposures

With reference to credit exposures, it must be noted that the slow-down of the economic activity resulting from the pandemic Covid-19 ana the
associated fock-down measures has also affected the estimates on their recoverability and the calculation of the associated loan loss provisions, In
this regard it must be noted that the amourt of loan loss provisions is determined considering the classification, current and expected, of credit
exposures as norn-performing, the sale prices, for those non performing exposure whose recovery is expected through sale 1o external
counterparties, and credit parameters (Probability of Default, Loss Given Default and Exposure at Defauli) which, in accordance with IFRSS,
incorporates, ameng other factors, forward locking information and the expected evolution of the macro-economic scenaric.

In this context, the Group has updated macro-economic scenarios as at 31 December 2020 considering, as atready underlined, in addition to a base

scenario (as already mentionad in the section on Goadwill and deferred tax assels), a negative scenario and a positive scenario and applying proper

weighting factors.

= Negative Scenaric, which reflects the assumption that Europe will faca a further prolonged pandemic wave at the beginning af 2627, Although,
with the mild climate, the economy may recover during spring, the distribution of vaccines, under this scenario, will proceed slower than expected
in the Baseline scenario. As a resllt, mass immunity will enly be achieved gradually at the end of the three-year forecast period. Such factor will
cause a higher reduction in growth mainly in 2021 {e.g. Weslemn Europe +1.2% vs 4.8% in the base case). Governments will maintain expansionist
economic palicies o mitigate the negative effects of the pandemic and to maintain social stability. The rate curve will have a more gradual
normalization (steepening) compared to the "Baselineg” scanario, Compared to a hypothesis of a flat rate curve until 2023, in this scenaric the
increase, however existing, of the long-term companent influences the prospective credit risk by affecting the cost of financing for clients, For
details refer 1o table below.

= Positive Scenario is based on the assumption that an effective distribution of vaccines increases the confidence and that GOP grows more than
what has been foreseen in the “Baselineg” scenario. In this scenario. although the 2021 trend remains in line with the base scenaric, the pace of
recovery in 2022 is expected significantly more solid, driving an increase in demand that will bring GDP back to pre-pandemic levels by ihe end of
2022. In this context, it is assumed that governments will gradually reduce support measures. In detail, annual real GDP growth for Western
Europe would stand at +5.4% in 2021, rising to +5.9% in 2022 to stabilise at +2.5% in 2023 in a context of short-term rates (3-month Euribar)
foreseen still negative in the three-year period 2021-2023.

For details refer to table below,

|- Tnerast rates and ylold sntvironinent, EoP® ' : 2621 202 2z
Euribor 3M (bps) 52 -52 -50
Negative Migd Swap 10Y (bps) -8 +13 +33
Scenario Spread BTP - 8und (bps) +184 +175 +160
2020 Real GDP growth yly, %
Wester Europe ™ 1.2% 2.8% 2.9%
L CEE (excluding Turkey) 1.2% 26% 2.3%
Euribor 3M (bps) -52 52 -50
Posilive Mid Swap 10Y (bps] +15 +30 +4]
Scenario Spread BTP ~ Bund (hps) +130 +141 +127
2020 Real GDP growth yly, %
Wester Eurcpe!™) 5.4% 5.9% 25%
CEE {excluding Turkey} 4.4% 3.5% 26%
Notas:

(*} For Baselne Scenario data refer to the table abave.
(™) Westem Europe calculated as a weighted average censdering the nominal GDP of the countries relevant for UniCredit {italy. Germany and Ausina).

Considering that a high degree of uncertainty still exists and that econamic forecasts show a high degree of volatility where the main uncertainties
refer to the continuation of the pandemic together with the effectiveness of the vaccines and thair distribution. the probability of the negative scenario
in December 2020 has been raised by 10% (thus brought to 40% from 30% in the first half of 2020} se to incorporate the risks of downturns. The
probabilities used for the base scenario and the positive scenario have been decreased by 5% each and set, respectively, at 55% (60% in the first
half of 2020) and at 5% (from 10% in the first half of 2020).

For additional information on the measurement of credit exposure refer to the paragraph 2.1 Credit risk” of the Consolidated financial statements of
UniCredit graup, Notes to the consolidated accounts Part E - Information an risks and hedging policies, Section 2 - Risks of the prudential
consolidated perimeter.

Also, in this case the measurement is affected by the already mentioned degree of uncertainty on the evoluticn of the pandemic, the effect of the
relief measures and, ulimately, the existence ang degree of econamic recavery.
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The evolution of these factars may, indeed, require in future financial years the classification of addifional credit exposures as non-performing thus
delermining the recognition of additional loan loss provisions related to both these exposures as well as performing expasures following the update
in credit parameters. In this context it will be relevant, amang other factors, the ability of the customers Lo service their debt once moratoria
measures granted by gavernments in which the Group operales or provided voluntarily Ly the Banks of the Group will expire.

In addition, adjustments to the loan loss provisions, might derive from the occurrence of a macro-economic scenario different from the one estimated
for the calculation of the credit risk parameters or by the prevalence on the market of non-performing exposures of prices different from those used
in the measurement,

Finally, the evolution of the real estate market could impact on the value of properties received as collateral and may require an adjusiment to the
loan loss pravisions.

Other measurements

I addition 1o the assets mentioned above, the slow-down of economic aclivity and the associated degree of uncertainty on the economic recovery
has also affected the valuaticn of the following items:

« fair value of financial instruments not listed in active markets;

« severance pay {in ltaly) and ather employee's benefits;

» provisions for risks and charges.

While evaluations have been made on the basis of information deemed tc be reasonable and supportable as at 31 December 2020, they might
subject 1o changes not foreseeable at the moment, as a result of the evolution in the parameters used for the evaluation.

Further elements, in addition to Covid-19 pandemic, that determine uncertainly in the evaluations are (i) domestic and international socic-economic
conditions and subsegquent impact on the Group's profitability and customers’ creditworthiness, {ii) financial markets which affect changes in interest
rates, prices and actuarial assumptions.

Statement of going concern
In their joint Document No.4 of 3 March 2010, Banca d'italia, Conscb and ISVAP made a few cbservations on the current situation of the markets
and businesses and reguested that information essential for a better understanding of business trends and outiook be disclosed in financial reports.

The Directors sbserved that the emergence of Covid-19 pandemic during the financial year 2020 and the associated lock-down measures, have
determined, as mentioned above, negative effects that are offset, only in part, by the economig relief measures put in place by the Governments.
The Directors have considered these circumstances in the assessments of significant tems of the financial statements, and on the basis of these
assessments, also acknowledging the current uncertainty surrounding the economic recovery and the long-term impact of the lock-down measures
adopted, believe with reasonable certainty that the Group will continue to operate profitably in the foreseeable future; as a result, in accordance with
the provisions of IAS1, the document *Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020" was prepared on a going concern basis,

Based upon the aforementioned evaluations, the main regulatory ratios have been taken into account at 31 December 2020, in terms of: (i) the exact
figures at 31 December 2020 (CET1 ratio transitional equal tc 15.96%; TLAC ratic equal to 26.87%; Liguidity Coverage Ratio at 171% based an
monthly average on 12 months); {ii} the related buffer versus the minimum requirements at the same reference date (CET1 ratio transitional; excess
of 693 basis points; TLAC Ratio. excess of 743 basis paints; Liquidity Coverage Ratio: excess of mare than 71 percentage paints); (i) the expected
evolution of the same ratios during 2021 {in particular, in 2021, it is expected to maintain a significant margin above the capital requirements, i.e. the
so called CET1 ratio "MDA buffer’, ahove the range of 200-250 basis points thal the Group has sel as target in the medium/long term).

Consistently with such evidences, taking into consideration the recommendations issued by European Central Bank in December 2020 and further
corroborating the going cancern, the Directors intend to propose in 2021 to the Shareholders' Meeting to authorise the distribution of a remuneration,
in part in cash and in part through shares buy back, the latter conditianal on the reception of the proper authorization by the Eurapean Centrai Bank.

The measurement criteria adapted are therefore consistent wilh this assumption and with the principles of accrual-based accounting, the relevance
and materiality of acecunting information, and the prevalence of economic substance over legal form.
These criteria have not changed with respect to the previous year.
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Section 3 - Consolidation scope and methods

The consofidation criteria and principles used to prepare the Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020 are described below,

Consolidated Accounts

For the preparation of the Consolidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020 the fellowing sources have been used:

« UniCredit S.p.A. general meeting draft accounts as at 31 December 2020;

« the accounts as at 31 Dacember 2020, approved by the competent bodies and functions, of the other fully consolidated subsidiaries duly
reclassified and adiusted to take account of consolidation needs ang, where necessary. to align them to the Group accounting principies;

« the sub-cansolidated Accounts as al 31 December 2020 of Nuova Compagnia di Partecipazioni Group, incluging Nuava Compagnia di
Partecipazioni .p.A. {formerly Compagnia Italpetroli S.p.A.} and its direct and indirect subsidiaries.

Amounts in foreign currencies are converted at closing exchange rates in the balance sheet, whereas the average exchange rate for the year is
used for the income statement.

The accounts and explanatory notes of the main fully consolidated subsidiaries prepared under IAS/IFRS are subject to limited review by ieading
audit companies.

Subsidiaries
Entities, including structured entities, over which the Group has direct or indirect control, are considered subsidiaries.

Controt aver an entity entails:

« the existence of power over the relevant aclivities;

« the exposure to the variability of returns;

o the ability 10 use the power exercised in order to influence the returns to which the Group is exposed.

In arder to verify the existence of contral, the Group considers the following factors:

« the purpose and establishment of $he investee. in order to idenlify which are the entity's objectives, the activities thal determine its returns and how
these activities are governed,

« the power, in order to understand whether the Group has contractual rights that attribute the ability to govern the relevant activities: Lo this end only
substantial rights that provide practical ability to govern are considered,

« the exposure held in relation to the investee, in order to assess whether the Group has relations with the investee, the retumns of which are subject
to changes depending on the investee's performance,

« the existence of potential {principal - agent) relationships.

If the relevant activities are governed through voting rights, the existence of control is verified considering the voting rights held, including the
natential ones, and the existence of any shareholders' or other agreements which attribute the right to control the maijority of the voting rights, 1o
appoint the majority of the governing body or in any case the power fa determine the entity's financial and operating policies,

Subsidiaries may also include any “structurag entity” in which the voting rights are not significant for establishing controi, including special purpose
entities and investment funds.

In the case of structured entilies, the existence of control is ascertained considering both the contractual rights that enabie governance of the
relevant activities of the entity {or those that contribute most to the results) and the Group’s exposure to the variability of returns deriving from these
activities.

The carrying amount of an equity interest in a fully consolidated entity held by the Parent Company or another Group company is eliminated against
the recognition of the assets and liabilities of the investee as an offsetting entry to the corresponding portion of net equity of the subsidiary
attributable ta the Group.

Intragroup balances, the off-balance sheet fransactions, the income and expenses, and the gainfosses between consolidated companies are
gliminated in full, according ta the method of consolidation adopted.

A subsidiary's income and expenses are included in the consolidation from the date the Parent acquires the control. On disposal of a subsidiary, its
income and expenses are consotidated up to the date of the dispesal, i.. until the Parent ceases to control the subsidiary. The difference between
the cansideration received of the subsidiary and the carrying amount of its net assets at the same date is recognised in the Income statement under
item “280 Gains (Losses) on disposal of investments' for fully consolidated companies.
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The portion attributable to non-contreliing interests is presented in the Balance sheet under item *180 Minorities”, separately from the liabilities and
net equity attributable to the Group. In the Income statement, the portion attributable to minorities is also presented separately under item "340
Mingrities”.

With respect to companies included in the consolidation scope for the first time, the fair value of the cost paid to abtain control of this equity interest,
including ancillary expenses, is measured at the acquisition date.

The difference between the consideration received of an interest heid in a subsidiary and the carrying amount of the nat assets is recognised in the
Net Equity, if the sale does not entail loss of controt.

Joint arrangements

A joint arrangement is a contractual agreement under the terms of which two or more counterparties arrange to jointly control an entity.

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of contrel of an arrangement. which exists only when the decisions about the relevant activities
require the unanimous cansent of the parties shariny cuntrol.

According to the standard IFRS11 - Joint Arrangements, such agreements must be classified as Joint Operations or Joint Ventures according fo the
centractual rights and obligations held by the Group.

A Joint Cperation is a joint arrangement in which the parties have rights on the assets and cbligations with respect to the liabilities of the
arrangement.

A Jaint Venlure is a joint arrangement in which the parties have rights on the net assets of the arrangement.

The Group has assessed the nature of the joint arrangements and has determined that its jointly controlled equity investments are of the Joint
Vanture type. These equily investments are recognised using the equity methad.

Carrying amaunt of the Joint Ventures is tested in accordance with I1A336 as a single asset, by comparing it with the corresponding recoverable
amount (i.e. higher of value in use (VIU) and fair value (FV) less cost to sell).

Associates
An associale is an entity over which the investor has significant influence and which are not subsidiaries or joint ventures.Significant influgnce is
presumed when the investor:
e holds, directly or indirectly, at least 20% of the share capital of anothar entity, or
# is able, also through shareholders’ agreements, to exercise significant influence through:
- representalion on the governing body cf the company;
~ participation in the policy-making process, including participation in decisions about dividends or other distributions;
~ the existence of significant transactions;
- interchange of managerial personne;
- provision of key technical information.

Its to be pointed out that enly companies which are governed through voting rights can be classified as subject to significant influence.
Investments in associates are recognised using the equity method. Carrying amount of Assaciates is tesled in accordance with }AS36 as a single
asset, by comparing it with the correspanding recaverable amount {i.e. higher of VIU and FV less cost to sell),

Equity method

Equity investments in companies measured using the equity method include the goodwill {less any impairment loss) paid to purchase them.

The investor's share of the profit and loss of the investee after the date of acquisition is recognised in the Inceme statement under item *250 Profit
{Lass] of investments”. Any dividends distributed reduce the carrying amount of the equity investment.

I the investor's share of an investee's osses is equal to or greater than its carrying amaunt, no further losses are recognised, unless the investor
has incurred specific abligations or made payments on behalf of the associate,

Gains and losses on transactions with associates o joint arrangements are eliminated according to the percentage interest in the said campany.

Any changes in the revaluation reserves of associates or joint arrangements, which are recorded as 2 contra item to changes in value of the
phenomena relevant 1o this purpose, are reported separately in the Statement of other comprehensive income,

The following table shows the companies included in the scope of consolidation,
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GWNERSHIP RELATIONSHIP
. TPEOE o VOTIHG
ADMISTRATIVE RELATRMSHE :ﬁﬂﬁ!ﬁ
OFFICE L HELD 8Y
A. LINE BY LINE METHOD
1 UNICREDIT 5PA MILAN MILAN PARENT COMPAKY
Issued capital EUR 21,059,536,950.48 T
ART-PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 GRUNDSTUCKSAKTIENGESELLSCHAFT AM .
2 POTSDAMER PLATZISERLIN G ’ POTSDAMER PLATZ (HAUS VATERLAND)
. Issued capital EUR 613,550
3 " ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UND . GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN- UND 100.00 9.1
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMPBH & C0. PROJCETCHTWCKLUNGS GMBH
OBERBAUM CITY KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000
4 ACIS IMMOBILIEN- UNC GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 A&T-PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. 100.00 98.11
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CC. POTSDAMER PLATZ BERLIN KG
PARKKOLONNADEN KG
issued capital EUR 26,000
5 ACIS IMMOBILIEN-LND - GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 HYB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MEH & CO 100.00 98.11
. PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. XG
STUTTGART KRONPRINZSTRASSE KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000
[ ALLEGRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT MB.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 LA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
: COKG
" Issuad capital EUR 34 500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA} GMBH 99.80
7 ALLIB LEASING 3.R.0. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ A8, 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,000
[] ALLIE NEKRETNINE 0.0.0. ZA POSLOVANJE ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 LOCAT CROATIA DOO 100.00
NEKRETNINAMA ‘
Issued capital HRK 20,000
9 ALMS LEASING GMEH. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,000
10 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD, GRAND GEORGE TOWN 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
. CAYMAN
Issued capitai EUR 798
" ALTUS ALPHA PLG DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG .. "-‘
12 ALV IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UCLA IMMQ-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. CA kG
Issued capttal EUR 3§ 500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
13 AMBASSADOR PARE DEDINJE D.0.C. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UCTAM D G 0. BEQGRAD 100.00
Issued capial RSD 98 672 974
14 ANTARES IMMUBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
MBH. COKG
issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
15 ANTHEMIS EVC LLP LONDON LONDON 4 UNICREDIT S5PA . b
16 AQ UNICREDIT BANK, MOSCOW MOSCOW 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.60
Issued capital RUB 41 747 805,174
17 ARABELLA FINANCE DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG i
18 ARENA NPL ONE S.R.L. [CARTOLARIZZAZIONE VERONA VERCONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA A
2014)
19 ARGENTAURUS IMMOSILIEN-VERMIE TUNGS- MUNICH MUNICH t HVEB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
UND VERWALTUNGS GMBH
Issued capital EUR 511,300
20 ARNO GRUNDSTUECKSYERWALTUNGS VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 49.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B H. GESELLSCHAFTMBH,
lesued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
COKG
21 ATLANTERRA IMMOBILIENVERWALTUNGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HYB PROJEKT GMBH 90.00
Issued capital EUR 1,023,000
22 AUSTRIA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT .40
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.40
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH,
UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
3 BA ALPINE HOLDINGS NG, WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREQIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital USD 74,435 918
24 BA BETRIEBSOHJEKTE GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 5,630,000
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- st AT POLDWG | ROHTAS
[ e - AN OFFICE i OFFRE " BY % il
™2 BA CA SECUND | EASING GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 ggL:GlMMO-BETEILLGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 2980
% BA EURCLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 ;NA%REDIT TEGA L EASING-GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
MBH. B
Issued capital FUR 363,64
77 BA GEBAEUDEVERMIETUNGSGMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA GVG-HOLDING GMBH 83.00
Issued cavitai EUR 36,336 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG 1900
GESMBH
PAYTRIA UNTERNEAMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 1.00
GMBH
] BA GYG-HOLTING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICRECIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100 00
Issued capital EUR 18,168
29 BA-CA ANDANTE LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.09
Issued capital EUR 36,500
0 BA-CA FINANCE (CAYMAN) Il LIMITED GEQRGE TOWN ~ GEORGE TOWN 1 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15,000
3 BA-CA FINANGE [CAYMAN) LIMITED GEORGE TOWN  GEORGE TOWN 1 ALPINE CAYMAN ISLANDS LTD, 100.00
Issued capital EUR 15.000
37 8A-CA LEASING DREI GARAGEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSYERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99 80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMEH
1ssued capital EUR 35,000 ggl%f\ GIMMO-BETE\LIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
33 BA-CA LEASING MAR IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
GMBEH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 99.80
34 BA-CA MARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 400.00
GESM.BH.
Issued capital EUR 127177
[ 35  BACAPRESTO LEASING GMBH WIENNA VIENNA 1 ggu\ IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
KG
Issued capital EUR 35,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
36 BA-CAWIEN MITTE HOLDING GMBH WIENAA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 10000
Issued capital EUR 35,000
7 BAJCA-LEASING BETEILIGUNGEN GMBH VIENNA WIENNA 1 E:ALBG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
H
Issued capital EUR 454,000 ggu\ IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 9.20
kG
KT BACA CENA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA WIENNA 1 ggLA MMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
%G
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA} GMBH 99.80
3 BACA HYDRA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 USLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHGLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
15sued capital EUR 36,500 UNIGREDIT £ FASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
40 BACA KOMMUNALLEASING GMBH VIENMA VIENNA 1 UNICRECIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 100.00
Issued capial EUR 35,500
Lil BACA LEASING ALFA S.R.0. FRAGUE PRAGUE i UNICREDIT LEASING CZ A 5 100.00
Issued capital CZK 110,000
42 BACA LEASING UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMEH 98.80
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,287 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 1.00
43 BACAL ALPHA DOG ZA POSLOVAN.E ZAGRER ZAGREB 1 LQCAT CROATIADOO 100.00
NEKRETNINAMA
\asued capital HRK 20,000
H BAH-KAPPAKFT VA BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GME
tsswed capital HUF 10,000,000 "
45 BAH-OMEGA ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 gngERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
MEH
Issued capital HUF 70,000,000
5 BAHBETA INGATL ANHASZNOSITO KFT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 gmeRSALE INTERMATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
H
lssued capiial HUF 30,000,000
a7 BAL CARINA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 ggu\ IMMO-BETEILI GUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
kG
Issued capital EUR 35,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 59.80
8 BAL HESTIA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 ggL&\ IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
e
Issued captal EUR 35,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH RN

UniCredit - 2020 Annuat Report and Accounis 121




Consolidated financial statements | Notes to the consolidated accounts

A-

- Accounting policies

ROV -1 """ T S—
o TYPEOF vamme
. . ADVIMSTRAYE RELATIONSHP HOLOING  RIGHTS %
o S 1WA OPRIGE oKE o 8y % £
BAL HORUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GMBH
Issued capnal ELIR 36,500 UGLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
56 BAL HYPNGS IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 g:ilLE,c:—lDELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.50
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GWMBH & 0.20
COKG
1 BAL LETO IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UCLACiMMO—BETEIUGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COK
tssued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEM ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
52 AL OSIRIS IMMCBILIEN L EASING VIENNA WVIENNA t UGLA IMMQ-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREBIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 99.80
53 BAL SOREK IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA i UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBR & .20
COKG
Issued capial EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 49,80
M.B.H.
54 BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
IMMOBILIENANLAGEN GMBH GESELLSCHAFT M.BH.
{ssued captal EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
55 BANK AUSTRIA FINANZSERVICE GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 430,542
56 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING ARGO IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
LEASING GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 WOEM GRUNDETUECH SVERVALTUNGS- 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
57 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING HERA IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA MMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 4.20
LEASING GMBH COKG
{ssued capital EUR 36,337 UNICRED{T GARAGEM ERRICHTUNG UND 9980
VERWERTLUNG GMBH
58 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING IKARUS IMMOBILIEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMQ-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 94.80
54 BANK AUSTRIA LEASING MEDEA IMMOBILIEN WVIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMQ-BETEILIGUNGSHCLDUNG GMBH & .20
LEASING GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA} GMBH 99.80
1] BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST CLIENT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
INVESTMENT GMBH MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capial EUR 145,500
61 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA HEAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
KAPITALANLAGE GMBH MANAGEMENT GMBH
tssued capitat EUR 5,000,000
62 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 94.95
MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 10,900,500
63 BANK AUSTRIA WOHNBALIBANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 18,765,944
64 BARD ENGINEERING GMBEH EMDEN EMDEN 4 BARD HOLDING GMBH N
&5 BARD HOLDING GMBH EMOEN EFDEN 4 UNICREXT BANK AG - &
66 BAULANDENTWICKLUNG GDST 1682/8 GMEH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 1.00
CO OEG
Issued capital EUR € CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMEH 99.00
&7 BAYERISCHE WOHNUNGSGESELLSCHAFT FUER MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & GO 100.0¢
HANDEL UNG iNGUSTRIE, GESELLSCHAFT MIT ]
BESCHRAENKTER HAFTUNG
Issued capital EUR 51,150
[] BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA WIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA} GMBH 100.00
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500
69 BF NINE HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 ALLEGRQ LEASING GESELLSCHAFT MAH. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000
70 BIL LEASING-FONDS GMBH & CO YELUM KG GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 BIL LEASING-FONDS VERWAL TUNGS-GMEH 3333
L Issued capital EUR 2,556 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00 KERK]
| BIL LEASING-FONDS VERWALTUNGS-GMBH GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 WEALTHCAR PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH 100.00
L. Issued capital EUR 26,000
72 BORGO DI PEROLLA SRL MASSA MASSA 1 FONDIARIA LASA SPA 100.00
MARITTIMA MARITTIMA
Issued capital EUR 2,043.952
73 BREWO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT PEGASLS LEASING GMBH 100.60
GESELLSCHAFT MB.H
Issued capital EUR 36,337
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T4 BUITENGAATS HOLDING B.Y. EEMSHAVEN EEMSHAVEN 4 BARD ENGINEERING GMBH . 3
IE) CA-LEASING OVUS S.R.C. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZK 100,060
76 CA-LEASING SENIOREN PARK GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capitat EUR 36,500 UCLA MMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
1 CA-ZETA REAL ESTATE DEVELOPMENT LIMITED BUDAPEST BUDAPEST t UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
LIABILITY COMPANY GMBH
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
m CABET-HOLDING GMEH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UNICRECIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 290,909
79 CABO BETEILIGUNGSGESELL SCHAFT M B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 CABET-HOLDING GMBH 100.00
Issued camtal EUR 35,000
én CALG 307 MOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 100.00
M.BH.
{ssued capital EUR 36,500
1 CALG 443 GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 98.480
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
tssued capital EUR 35,336 CALG IIMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 1,60
UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH 3 Q.20
COKG
82 CALG 445 GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG MMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 99,60
[ssued capital EUR 18,163 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 040
COKG
43 CALG 451 GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
CGKG
84 CALG ALPHA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 9980
GMBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 38, 500 UCLA IMMO-BE TEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
85 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & T.20
CAKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 49.80
86 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH & CO MUNICH MUNICH 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 9998
GRUNDSTUECKVERMIETUNG UND -
VERWALTUNG KG
Issued capital EUR 2,326,378
a7 CALG BELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING CMBH 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,36 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & .20
COKG
88 CALG GAMMA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMGRILIEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UGCLA IMMC-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
] CALG GRUNDSTUECKVERWAL TUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 74.80
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDHT LEASING [AUSTRIA} GMBH 25.00
90 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 4 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
Issued capital EUR 254.355 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & Q.20
COKG
9 CALG MINAL GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNA WVIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 9380
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,286 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
92 CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL {CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT 5PA R
BIPCA CORDUSIO RMBS)
93 CAPITAL MORTGAGE SRL {CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA - N
CAFITAL MORTGAGE 2007 - 1)
94 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 50.10
Issued capital EUR 6,000,000
95 CASTELLANI LEASING GMBH VIENNA WIENNA 1 UCLA IMMQ-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 14.00
COKG
Issued cagital EUR 1,800,000 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 90.00
MB.H
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L EASING GE .8.H. WIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUN ,
% CHARADE SELLECHAFT M DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BE TEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
47 GHEFREN LEASING GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 100.00
|ssued capital ELR 38,500
98 CMTAS IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.BH. COKG
Issued captal EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.5¢
99 COMMUNA - LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 REAL-LEASE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 99.80
GRUNDSTUECK SVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT GESELLECHAFT M.BH.
M.BH
issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
100 COMPAGNIA FONDIARIA ROMANA - SOCIETA' A ROME ROME 1 NUOVA COMPAGNIA DI PARTECIPAZIONI SPA 100.00
RESPONSABILITA LIMITATA
Issued capital EUR 103,400
1 CONSUMER THREE SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA -
CCNSUMER THREE)
102 CONTRA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H WVIENNA VIENNA, 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 JAUSERN-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT MBH 25.00
UGLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
103 CORDUSIO RMBS - LCFIN SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA A
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: CORDUSIO RMBS UCHN -
SERIE 2008)
104 CORDUSID RMBS SECLRITISATION SRL WERONA VERGNA 4 UNICREQIT SPA .
(CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: CORDUSIO RMBS
SECURITISATION - SERIE 2007)
105 CORDUSIO SIM §PA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 97.12 “'
Issued capital EUR 75,282,051
108 CORDUSIO SQCIETA' FIDUCIARIA PER AZIONI MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT S5PA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 520.000
107 CRIVELL} SRL MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT §PA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1G,000
108 DC BANK AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 5,000,000
109 OC ELEKTRONISCHE ZAHL UNGSSYSTEME GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 KSG KARTEN-VERRECHNUNGS- UND 100.00
SERVICEGESELLSCHAFT M.BH.
Issued capital EUR 35,000
1e DEBQ LEASING SRL BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING IFN 8.4, 0.01
Issued capital RON 724,400 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION IFN $.A, 99.99
mn DELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO.
GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT ALPHA
MANAGEMENT KG
Issued capital ELIR 265 850
12 CELPHA IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HYB PROJEKT GMBH $00.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO.
GROSSKUGEL BAUABSCHNITT GAMMA.
MANAGEMENT KG
Issued capital ELR 255 650
113 DINERSCLUBCS 5SRO, BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 DC BANK AG 100.00
1ssued capital EUR 985 000
114 DINERS CLUB FPOLSK4 SP 7.0.0. WARSAYY WARSAW 1 DC BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital PLN 7 500,000
115 DIRANA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100.00
LIEGENSCHAF TSVERWERTUNGSGE SELLSCHAFT GMBH
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 17,500
116 DLV IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHALT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 1000
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 90.00
117 DUODEC 2 IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UGLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFTMEB.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 99.80
118 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 28 DAC DUBLIN ouUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 1
119 ELEKTRAPURCHASE NO 31DAC DUBLIN CUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG K
120 ELEKTRAPURCHASE NG 328 A LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG )
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 ADMNSTRATIVE RELATIONSHI® mm.%

: . L OFPGE, o HapHY % 5
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 33 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 LNICREDIT BANK AG B
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 36 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG .
ELEKTRA PURGHASE NO. 37 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG B
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 38 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG R
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO, 33 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG 3
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NQ. 41 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN [ UNICREDIT BANK AG )

127 ELEKTRA FURCHASE NC. 43 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG B
128 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 44 DAC OUBLIN DUEBLIN [ UNICREDIT BANK AG i
129" ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 26 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BARK AG i
130 ELEKTRAPURCHASE NO. 54 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN ] TINIGREDIT BANK AG
131 ELEKIRA PURCHASE NO. 55 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNIEREDIT BANK AG 2
132 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NQ. 66 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG H
133 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NQ. 57 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG B
134 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 64 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN [ UNICRECIT BANK AG B
135 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NC. §9 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 INICREDIT BANK AG E
136  ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 71 DAC CUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG D
137 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 718 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG B
138 ELEKTRAPURCHASE NG, 74 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG
133 ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO, 911 LTD ST. HELIER ST. HELIER 4 UMNICREDIT BANK AG . 3
140 EUROLEASE ANUBIS IMMGBILIEN [EASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMEH & .20
GESELLSCHAFT MB M, COKG
Issued capital EUR 35 500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99,80
141 EUROLEASE ISIS IMMOBILIEN LEASING IENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
142 EUROLEASE MARDUK IMMOEBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH, COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
143 EUROLEASE RA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA. IENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.60
VERWERTUNG GMBH
144 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA [ UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH, COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,336 UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA} GMBH 29,80
145  EUROPA BEFEKTETESI ALAPKEZELOE ZRT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
[EUROPA INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT GMaH
LT}
Issued capital HUF 100,000,000
148 EUROPA INGATLANBEFEKTETESI ALAP (FUROPE  BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 4 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 3
REAL-ESTATE INVESTMENT FUND)
147 EUROPEAN-OFFICE-FONDS MUNICH MUNICH 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG
148 EXPANDA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT — VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 35 500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
149 F-E MORTGAGES SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE F-E VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA E
MORTGAGES 2005)
150 F-E MORTGAGES SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: F-E  VERCNA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA 9,
MORTGAGES SERIES 1-2003)
151 FACTORBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA 4G 100 00
Issued capital EUR 3,000,000
152 FINN ARSENAL LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIERNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSYERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAET 99.60
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMEH
Issued capital EUR 35,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEIIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA) GMBH 020
153 FMZ SAVARIA SZOLGALTATO KORLATOLT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 BAHBETA INGATLANHASZNOSITO KFT 75.00
FELELOFSSEG TARSASAG
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
154 FMZ SIGMA PROJEKTENTW/ICKLUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMEH
155 FOLIALEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEHLIGUNGSYERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,336 UCLA IMMO-BETEIIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
166 FONDIARIA LASA Skp ROME ROME 1 NUOVA COMPAGNLA DI PARTECIPAZION] SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 3.102.000
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FOOD & MCRE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 100,000
ATO LEAS| HAFT MB.H. VIENNA VIENNA [ BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
158 FUG NG GESELLSC DER BANX AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
159 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG VIENNE VIENNA 1 CALG IMMCBILIEN LEASING GMBH 9880
GESELLSCHAFRT M.8.H
Issued capital EUR 27,434 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMEH & 0.20
' COKG
160  GEBAEUDELFASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 98.80
GRUNDSTUCKSVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
M.B.H. GMBH
(ssued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.70
' COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
167 GELDILUX-TS-2015 §.. LUXEMBOURG LUXEMEOQURG 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG . .
162  GEMEINDFLEASING VIENNA VIENNA T BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 3730
GRUNDSTUECKVERWAL TUNG GESELLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
MBH, GMBH
issued capital EUR 18,333 CALG MMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 3750
UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMEH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 76,00
163 GEMMA VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & BULLACH FULLACH 4 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH A
CO. VERMIETUNGS KG
164 GRUNDSTUCKSAKTIENGESELLSCHAFT AM MUNICH MUNICH 1 TERRENO GRUNDSTUCKSYERWALTUNG GMEH 98.24
POTSOAMER PLATZ (HAUS VATERLAND) 2 CO. ENTWICKLUNGS- UND
FINANZIERUNGSVERMITTLUNGS -KG
tssued captal EUR 4,086,245
185  GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT SIMON MUNICH MUNICH 1 HvB GESELLSEHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 10000
BESCHRANKT HAFTENDE KG
KOMMANDITGESELL SCHAF
Issued capital EUR 51,500
166 GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNG LINZ-MITTE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMEH & 0.20
GMBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 9280
167 HF.5. IMMOBILIENFONGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,565
168 HF.S LEASINGFONDS DEUTSCHLAND TGMBHE&  MUNICH MUNICH i HVE IMMOBILIEN AG 100,00
CO. KG IMMOBILIENLEASING)
Issued capital EUR 97,755,806
189 HF.S. LEASINGFONDS DEUTSCHLAND 7 GMBH & MUNICH MUNIGH 1 HVB IMMCBILIEN AG 941
CC.KG
Issued capital EUR 85,430,630
170 HF.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 300,00
Issued capital EUR 26 000
178 HF.S. LEASINGFONGS GMBH & CO EBERSBERG EBERSBERG ) WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING
DEUTSCHLAND 10 KG IL. GMBH
172 HF.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CO. EBERSBERG FBERSBERG 4 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING ¥
DEUTSCHLAND 11 KG I L. GMBH
173 HF.S LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CO. EBERSBERG EBERSBERG ] WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 3
DEUTSCHLAND 12 kG GMBH
174 HF.S.LEASINGFONGS GMBH & CQ. EBERSBERG EBERSBERG [ WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 3
DECTSCHLAND 8 KG1.L. GMEH
175 HF.5. LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CO. EBERSHBERG EBERSBERG 4 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING B
DEUTSCHLAND 9 KG i L. GMEBH
176 HAWA GRUNDSTUCKS GMBH & CO OHG MUNECH MUNICH 1 HYB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO G950
IMMOBILENYERWALTUNG KG
Issued capital EUR 54 300 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 0.0
177 HAWA GRUNDSTUCKS GMBH & CO. ORG MUNICH MUNIGH 1 HVE GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 99,50
HOTELVERWALTUNG KG
jssued capital EUR 276.200 TIOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHART 0.50
178 HELICONUS SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE' VERONA VERONA [ UNICREDIT SPA
HELICONUS)
179 HERKU LEASING GESELLSCHAFT MB . VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGEVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 7480
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA (MMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
CoOKG
UNICREDIT L EASING (AUSTRIA| GMBH 2500
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i ; . Mﬁﬁ‘ mA T %GUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT * 74,80
180 HONEU LEASING GESELLSCRAFTMEH. VIER DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
MBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336 EEL: C:MMO—EETEWL\GUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 25,00
181 HUMAN RESQURCES SERVICE AND VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.0¢
DEVELOPMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 18,163
182 HVBCAPITALLLC WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capitai USD 10.00¢
183 HVBCAPITALLLCH WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK 4G 100.00
Issugd capral USD 14
184 HVE CARITAL LLCII WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
|ssued capitat USD 10,000
185  HVB FUNGING TRUST WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG . E
186  HVB FUNGING TRUST I WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 1 UMCREDIT BANK AG 100,00
Issued capital USD 2,451
187 HVB FUNDING TRUSTII WILMINGTON WILMINGTON 4 UNICREDIT BANX AG . El
188 HVB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GERAUDE MEH & CO MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICRECIT BANK AG 100.00
kG
Issued capital EUR 10,000,000
189 HVB HONG KONG LIMITED HONG KONG HONG KONG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100,00
Issued capital USD 129
190 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 10000
Issued capital EUR 520,000
191 HVB LEASING CZECH REPUBLIC S.R.0. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ A.S. 100.00
Issued capital CZ¥ 49,632,000
192 HVB PROJEKT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVE IMMOBILIEN AG 94,00
Issued capital EUR 24,543,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
193 HVB SECUR GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
184  HVB TECTA GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 24 00
Issued capital EUR 1,534,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 5.00
185 HVB VERWA & GMEBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
issued capital EUR 128,300
196 HvB VERWA 4.4 GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB VERWA 4 GMBH 100,00
issued capital ELR 25,000
197 HVZ GMEH & CO. OBJEKT KG MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO
OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 148.090,766
198 HYPO-BANK VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM GMBH & MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVE GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100.00
GO. KG OBJEKT ARABELLASTRASSE KG
Issued capital EUR 25,600
199 ICE CREEK POOL NO.1 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNIGREDIT BANK AG B
200 ICE CREEK POOL NO.2 DAC DUBLIN DUBLIN 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG R
201 IDEAFIMIT SGR FONDO SIGMA IMMOBILIARE ROME ROME 4 UNICREDIT $PA v
202 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.60
{ssued capital EUR 36,336
203 IMMOBILIEN RATING GMBH IN LIQU, VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDXT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100,00
Issued capitai EUR 50,000
204 IMMOBILIENLEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS 74.80
GRUNDSTUECHSYERWALTUNGS- GESELLSCHAFT M.E.H,
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
205 IMPRESA TWO SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE CONEGLIANO CONEGLIANO 4 UNICREDIT §PA A
IMPRESA TWG)
206 INTERRA GESELLSCHAFT FUR MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVE IMMOBILIEN AG 93.85
IMMCBILIENVERWALTUNG MBH
Issued capital EUR 28,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.15
207 INTRO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT MEH VIENNA VIENNA 1 PROJEXTLEASE 10000
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH,
Issued capital EUR 36,336
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208 I1SB UNIVERSALE BAU GMBH BERLIN BERLIN 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 100400
GMBH
tssued capital EUR 6,288,890
209 JAUSERN-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B H. WVIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMEH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 36,336
214 KAISERWASSER BAU- UND ERRICHTUNGS GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA )] UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99 80 0.00
LND C0 0G
Issued cagital EUR 36,336
1 KSG KARTEN-VERRECHNUNGS- UND WIENNA VIENNA 1 CARD COMPLETE SERVICE BANK AG 100.00
SERVICEGESELLSCHAFT MB.H,
Issued capital EUR 44,000
2 I\UTRA GRUNDSTUEUKSVERWAL TUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 94.60
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GMBH
Issued caprtal EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
213 LAGERMAX LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMO-BE TEILIGUNGSHOLOUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNIGREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
214 LAGEY IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLAE!'MMO-BETEILtGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
MBH, COK
tssued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
5 LARGE CORPORATE ONE SRL VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT §PA 3
{CARTOLARIZZAZIONE. LARGE CORPORATE
ONE)
216 LARGO LEASING GESELLSCHART M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
|ssued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
VAPE COMMUNA LEASINGGESELLSCHAFT 98.80
MBH
217 LEASFINANZ ALPHA ASSETVERMIETUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 LEASFINANZ GMBH 100.00
Issued capital ELR 35,000
218 LEASFINANZ BANK GMBH VIENNA VIENNA, 1 BACA LEASING UND 160.0¢
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMEBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500
219 LEASFINANZ GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BACA LEASING UND 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSMANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 218,014
20 LEGATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.BH, IENNA WIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSYERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74 80
OER BANK AUSTRIA CREGITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
pril LELEV IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT WVIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
M.BH. GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital ELR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & .20
COKG
222 UNO HOTEL-LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
2% LIPARK LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. WIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSYERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74 80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
22 LIVA IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
M.BH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
225 LOCAT CRCATIA DOD ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital HRK 39,000,000
226 LOCAT SV SRL (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: SERIE CONEGLIANG CONEGLIANO 4 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA Bl
2016}
227 M. A7, BANK AUSTRIA LEASING VIENNA VIENNA ? UCLA WMMO-BETERIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 1.96
BAUTRAEGER GMBH & CO.0G COKG
Issued capital EUR 3,707 UNICREDIT LUNA LEASING GMBH 98.04
28 MBC IMMOSILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
MBH. COXG
|ssued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.60
22 MENUETT GRUNDSTUECKSVERWAL TUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.29
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
{ssued capital EUR 36,337 UNICREDIT LEASING [(AUSTRI&) GMBH 99.80
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MERKURHOF GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH t UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
MIT BESCHRANKTER HAFTUNG
13sued capital EUR 5,112,419
23 MM OMEGA PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
Issued cagital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 94.80
WVERWERTUNG GMBH
232 MOC VERWALTUNGS GMBH & CQ. MMOBILIEN MUNICH MUNICH 4 HVE PRCJEKT GMBH &
KG
233 MOEGRA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGESVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 7480
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEAEING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
234 MOMENTUM ALLWEATHER STRATEGIES - LONG HAMILTON HAMILTON 4 UNICREDIT SPA "
TERM STRATEG
235 MOMENTUM LONG TERM VALUE FUND HAMILTON HAMILTOM 4 UNICREDIT SPA w A
236 NAGE | OKALVERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMEH & 0.20
M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36.500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
237 NF OBJEKT FFM GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 10600
Issued capital EUR 25,000
238 NF OBJEKTE BERLIN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN &G 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
239 NOE HYPO LEASING ASTRICTA VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 95.00
GRUNDSTUECKVERMIETUNGS GESELLSCHAFT
M.BH.
Issued capital EUR 36,337
240 NUOVA COMPAGNIA DI PARTECIPAZIONI SPA ROME ROME 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital EUR 200,000
241 OCT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETE|LIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & .20
MBH COKG
|ssued capttal EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
247 OLG HANDELS- UND VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
BETEILIGUNGSYERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
M.BH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,336
243 OMNIA GRUNDSTUCKS-GMBH & CO. OBJEKT MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB IMMOBILIEN AG 94,00
HAIDENAUPLATZ KG
Issued capital EUR 26,000 UNICREDIT BANK AG 6.00
244 OMNLA GRUNDSTUECKS-GMBH & CO. OBJEKT MUNICH MUNICH 1 QRESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH 9478 93.87
PERLACH KG
Issued capital EUR 5,125,701 WEALTHCAP LEASING GMBH 522 5.14
245 Q00 UNICREDIT GARANT MOSCOW MOSCOW 1 Q00 UNICREDIT LEASING 100.00
Issued capital RUS 106,998,000
246 OO0 UNICREDIT LEASING MOSCOW MOSCOW 1 AO UNICREDIT BANK 100.0¢
Issued capital RUB 149,160.248
247 ORBIT PERFORMANCE STRATEGIES - ORBIT US HAMILTON HAMILTON 4 UNICREDIT SPA 4
CLASSE U
248 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMEH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HYB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 10,149,150
24% OTHMARSCHEN PARK HAMBURG GMBH & CG. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PRCJEKT GMBH 10.00
CENTERPARK KG
Issued capital EUR 51,129 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT B.V. 30.00
T & P VASTGOED STUTTGART B.Y £0.00
250 OTHMARSCHEN PARK HAMBURG GMBH & CQ. MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 10.09
GEWERBEPARK KG
issuad capital EUR 51,129 T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT B.V. 30.00
T & PVASTGOED STUTTGART BV §0.00
251 PAI (BERMUDA} LIMITED HAMILTON HAMILTON 1 UNICREDIT §Pa 100.00
{ssued capital USD 12,000
252 PAI MANAGEMENT LTD DUBLIN DHUBLIN 1 UNICREDIT SPa 100.00
{ssued capital EUR 1.032,000
253 PALAIS ROTHSCHILD VERMIETUNGS GMBH & CO VIENNA VIENNA 1 SCHOELLERBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
|ssued capral EUR 2,180,185
54 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,336
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255 FELOPS LEASING GESELLSCHAFT MBH, VIENNA VIENNA 1 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN LEASING 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT MLE.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLA IMMG-BE TEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
COKG
256 PENSIONSKASSE DER HYPO VEREINSBANK MUNICH RMUNICH 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG a
VWAG
287 PIANA LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UGCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & Q.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
258 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNCRERIT SPA 100.00
Issued capitai EUR 2,067,138
259 POLLUX IMMOBILIEN GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 020
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 44,80
260 POMINVEST DD SPLIT SPLIT 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 87.00 97.33
issued capital HRK 17,434,000
261 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- MUNICH MUNICH 1 HYB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100,00
VERWALTUNGSGESELL SCHAFT MBH & CO. kG
OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 500,013,550
282 POSATO LEASING GESELLSCHAFTM.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 74.80
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 6.20
COKG
LINICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 25.00
263 PRELUDE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 9%.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMEH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1,00
264 PRO WOHNBAU GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 BA-CAMARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG 0.3
GESMBH,
Issued capital EUR 35,000 IMMOBILIEN HOLDING GMBH 9969
265 PROJEKT-LEASE VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNGO GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS 74 80
GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- GESELLSCHAFTMEBH.
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital ELUR 36,500 UCLA IMMG-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 2500
266 QUADREC Z MMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA WIENNA t UCLA IMMOQ-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREGIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
267 QUART Z IMMOBILIEN L EASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.80
M.B.H.
issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
268 QUINT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
MB.H COKG
issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA} GMBH 99,80
268 RANA-LIEGENSGHAFTSVERWERTUNG GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERMATIGNAL REALITAETEN 86 90
GMEH
1ssued capital ELR 72,700
270 REAL INVEST EUROPE DER BANK AUSTRIA REAL VIENNA VIENNA 4 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG R
INVEST IMMCBILIEN- KAPI
M REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN GMBH WVIENNA VIENNA 1 TREUCONSULT BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.00
M.B.H.
Is5ued capital EUR 36,400
272 REAL-LEASE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 LCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.BLH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
273 REAL-RENT LEASING GESELLSCHAFTMB H, VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & ¢.20
COKG
|ssued capital EUR 73,000 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99 8t
274 REGEV VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMC-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
REALITAETENVERWERTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT COKG
M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 726,728 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
275 ROLIN GRUNDSTUCKSPLANUNGS- UND - MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAR INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 10¢.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 30,677
276 ROSENKAVALIER 2008 GMBEH FRANKFURT FRANKFURT 4 UNICREDIT BANKX AG H
277 ROSENKAVALIER 2015 UG FRANKFURT FRANKFLURT 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG -
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278 ROSENKAVALIER 2020 UG FRANKFURT FRANKFURT 4 UNICREDIT BANK AG . "
279 SALVATORPLATZ- MUNICH MUNICH i HvB GESELLSCHAFT FUR GEBAUDE MBH & CO 100,00
GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO. OHG KG
SAARLAND
Issued capital EUR 1,533,900
280  SALVATORPLATZ- MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 9775
GRUNDSTUCKSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & Q. OHG VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO.
VERWALTUNGSZENTRUM OBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 2,300,850 TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 2.22
281 SANITA'-S.R.L IN LIQUIDAZIONE ROME ROME 1 UNICREDHT SPA 93,60
Issued cagital EUR 5.164,333
282 SCHOELLERBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BAYTRIA UNTFRNFHMEMSBETEILICUNCEN 0.01
GMBH
{ssued capital EUR 20,000,000 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 99.59
783 SCHOELLERBANK INVEST AG SALZBURG SALZBURG 1 SCHOELLERBANK AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT 100.00
Issued capital EUR 2.543,549
284  SECA-LEASING GESELLSCHAFT M.BH. VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 74.80
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHCOLDUNG GMBH & .20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRiA} GMBH 25.00
285  SEDEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
MB.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.60
VERWERTUNG GMBH
286  SELFOSS BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 HVB PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,000
287 SEXT Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
M.BH GMBH
Issued capitai EUR 36,500 UCLA TMMS-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
COKG
288 SIA UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER RIGA RIGA 1 SIA UNICREDIT LEASING 100,00
Issued capital EUR 15,080
280 SIAUNICREDIT LEASING RIGA RIGA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued caprtal EUR 15,569,120
290 SIGMA LEASING GMEH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG ANLAGEN LEASING GMBH 99.4¢
Issued capital EUR 18,286 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMEH 0.40
291 SIMON VERWALTUNGS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 59.08
IL.
\ssued capital EUR 2,556,459
292 SIRIUS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVE PROJEKT GMBH 5.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH
issued capital EUR 30,000 SOLOS IMMOBILIEN- UND 96.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. SIRIUS
BETEILIGUNGS KG
293 SQCIETA' DI GESTIONI ESATTORIALIIN SICILIA PALERMO PALERMQ 1 UNICREDIT SPA 30.00
SO.GESLSPA INLQ
Issued capital EUR 36,151,500
204 SOFIGERE SOCIETE PAR ACTIONS SIMPLIFIEE PARIS PARIS 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
(IN LIQUIDAZIONE}
Issued capital EUR 40,000
295  SOLOS IMMOBILIEN- UND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HvE PROJEKT GMBH 100.00
PROJEKTENTWICKLUNGS GMBH & CO. SIRIUS
BETEIIGUNGS KG
{ssued capital EUR 12,537,500
296 SONATA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 ARNG GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS 1.00
GESELLSCHAFT MB.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,336 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHCOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 98,80
767 SPECTRUM GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 WOEM GRUNOSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 100,00
GESELLSCHAFTMBH GESELLSCHAFT MBH,
Issued capital EUR 36,336
298  SPREE GALERIE MUNICH MUNICH 1 ARGENTAURLE IMMOBILEN-VERMIETUNGS- 100,00
HOTELBETRIEBSGESELLSCHAFT MBH UND VERWALTUNGS GMEH
Issued capital EUR 511,300
299 STEWE GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA WIENNA 1 PROJEKT-LEASE 24.00
GESELLSCHAFTM.BH. GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS-
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H,
Issued capital EUR 36,337 UCLATMMO-BETELIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 7580
VERWERTUNG GMBH
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STRUCTURED INVEST SOCIETE ANONYME LUXEMBQURG LUXEMBOURG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital EUR 125 500 :
n SUCCESS 2015B.V. AMSTERDAM AMSTERDAM 4 UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA) GMBH . E]
n T & P FRANKFURT DEVELOPMENT B.V. AMSTERDAM MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GMEH 100.00
Issued capitai EUR 4,938 271
03 T & PVASTGOED STUTTGART B.V. AMSTERDAM MUNICH 1 HVB PROJEKT GWBH §7.50
{ssued capital EUR 10,769,773
304 TERREND GRUNDSTUCKSVERWALTUNG GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVB TECTA GMBR 749.00
& CO. ENTWICKLUNGS- UND
FINANZIERUNGSVERMITTLUNGS-KG
1ssued capital EUR 920 4nn
s TERZ Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA&MMO-BETE\LIGUNGSHOLDUNG CGMBH & 0.20
MB.H. CoK
Issuec capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND %480
YERWERTUNG GMBH
306  TIVOLI GRUNDSTUCKS-AKTIENGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 PORTIA GRUNDSTUCKS- 100.00
VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CO.
QBJEKT KG
Issued capital EUR 6,240,000
Kl TREDEC Z IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT WVIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLAGNMO-EETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
MB.H. COK
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND §9.60
VERWERTUNG GMBH
308 TREUCONSULT BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BANK AUSTRIA REAL INVEST IMMOBILIEN- 100.00
M.EBH MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 385,000
A8 TRICASA GRUNDBEBITZ GESELLSCHAFT MBH & MUNICH MUNICH 1 CRESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00 99.09
CO. 1. VERMIETUNGS KG
Issued capital EUR 6,979 476
310 TRICASA GRUNDBESITZGESELLSCHAFT DES MUNICH MUNICH 1 ORESTOS IMMOBILIEN-VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00
BURGERLICHEN RECHTS NR. 1
Issued capital EUR 13,687,272
n UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA EUROLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 90.00
COKG tM.B.H.
[ssued capital EUR 10,000 BA-CA ANDANTE LEASING GMBH 10.00
kiva UCTAM BALTICS SIA RIGA RIGA 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GBH
|ssued capital EUR 4,25 585
313 UCTAM BHD.0.0. MOSTAR MOSTAR 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital BAM 2,000
4 UCTAM BULGARIA EQOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 106.00
GMEH
Issued capital BGN 20 000
Kk UCTAM CZECH REFUBLIC SR PRAGUE PRAGUE t UNICREDIT TURN-ARQUND MANAGEMENT CEE $00.00
GMBH
Issued capital CZK 45 500,000
k1l UCTAM D.0.0, BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT TURN-ARCUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital RSD 631 564,325
n7 UCTAM HUNGARY KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 EUROPA BEFEKTETESI ALAFKEZELQE ZRT 1.00
{EUROPA INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT
LTD.}
Issued capital HUF 10,300,000 UNICREDIT TURN-ARQUND MANAGEMENT CEE 99.00
GMBH
18 UCTAM RETAIL HUNGARY KFT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 EURQPA BEFEKTETESI ALAPKEZELCE ZRT 1.00
{EUROPA INVESTMENT FUND MANAGEMENT
LT0,
Issued capital HUF 10,000,000 UNIGREDIT TURN-ARQUND MANAGEMENT CEE 99.00
GMBH
kil UCTAM RO S.R.L. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT TURN-ARQUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital RON 30,560,080
20 UCTAM RU LIMITED {IABILITY COMPANY MOSCOW MOSCOwW 1 UCTAM BALTICS §la .
Issued capital RUB 4,000,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
n UCTAMSVK 5.R.0. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UCTAM BALTICS Sla 15.00 oM
issued capital EUR 5,000 UNICREDIT TURN-AROUND MANAGEMENT CEE 85.00 99.99
GMBH
322 UCTAM UPRAVLJANJE D.O.O LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT TURN-ARGUND MANAGEMENT CEE 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 7 500
323 UFFICIUM IMMOBILIEN LEASING GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 KUTRA GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- 500
M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 35,337 UNICREDIT LEASING (ALUSTRIA) GMBH 95.00
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kP ”%ﬁﬂmm CERSING GESELLSGTWRT  VIENNA VIENNA, 1 gg%‘“MO'BETE'UGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
::SEI!J::I capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMEH 99.80

325 UNICREDIT AURORA LEASING GMEH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 10000
Issued capital EUR 219,000

326 UNICREDIT BANK A.D. BANJA LUKA BANJA LUKA BANJA LUKA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 99.42
Issued capital BAM 97,055,000

kris UNICREDIT BANK AG MUNICH MUNICH H UNICREDIT SPA 100,80
Issyed capital EUR 2.407,151,016

328 UNICREDIT BANK ALSTRIA AG VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPa 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,689,033.521

129 UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC AND PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT SPA 10000
SLOVAKIA, AS.
Issued capital CZK 8,754,517.898

330 UNICREDIT BANK D.D. MOSTAR MOSTAR 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 99.35 99.31
tssued capital BAM 119,195,000

KR UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issyed capital HUF 24,118,220 000

33z UNICREDIT BANK IRELAND PLC DUBLIN DUBLIN 1 UNIGREDIT SPA 100.00
{ssued capital EUR 1,343,118,650

333 UNICREDIT BANK 5.A. BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT SPA 98.63
Isgued capita RON 1,177,748,253

334 UNICREDIT BANK SERBIA JSC BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Issued capital RSD 23.607,620.000

335 UNICREDIT BAMKA SLOVENIJA D.0. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
ts5ued capital EUR 20,383,698

336 UNIGREDIT BETEILIGUNGS GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK &G 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,000.000

37 UNICREDIT BIZTOSITASKQEZVETITO KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 100.00
Issued capital HUF 5,000,000

338 UNICREDIT BPC MORTAGE SRL {COVERED VERONA VERONA 4 UNICREDIT §PA i)
B

338 UE;)%SQDIT BPC MORTGAGE SR L. VERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT 8PA 60.00
Is5ued capital EUR 12,000

340 UNICREDIT BROKER S.R.0. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA AS. 100.00
ts5ued capital EUR B.266

1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD SOFiA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 99.45
Issued capital BGN 285,776,674

2 UNICREDIT CAPITAL MARKETS LLC NEW YORK NEW YORK 1 UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC 100.00
Iskued capital USD 100,106

M3 UNICREDIT CENTER AM KAISERWASSER GMSH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
Issued caprial EUR 35,000

344 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING EAD SOFA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AR 100.00
Is5ued capital BGN 2,800,000

5 UNICRECIT CONSUMER FINANCING IFN 5.4, BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT BANK 5.4, 50.10
Issued capital RON 103,269,200 UNICREDIT SPA 49.90

346 UNICREDIT DIRECT SERVICES GMAEH MUNICH MUNICH t UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Is5ued capital EUR 767,000

347 UNICREDIT FACTORING CZECH REFUBLIC AND PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC AND 100.00
SLOVAKIA, A 5. SLOVAKIA, A S,
Issued capital CZK 222,600,000

348 UNICREDIT FACTORING EAD SOFA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issyed capital BGN 1,600,000

349 UNICREDIT FACTORING SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SP4 100.00
Issued capital EUR 414,348,000

350 UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT EQCD SOFIA SQFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGM 100,000

351 UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT S.R.C. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ A8 100.00
|ssued camtal CZK 5,000,000

352 UNICREDIT FLEET MANAGEMENT S.R.C. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA AS. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 6.639

353 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND VIENNA WVIENNA 1 EUROLEASE RAMSES IMMOBILIEN LEASING 93.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH GESELLSCHAFT M.BH.
Issyed capital EUR 57,000 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 4.20

COKG

354 UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING EXPCRT GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.06

Issued capital EUR 38.336
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UNICREDIT GLOBAL LEASING PARTICIPATION VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA 100.00
MANAGEMENT GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
356  LINICREDIT GLISTRA LEASING GMBH VIENNA, AIENNA 1 ggL: GWMMO-BETEILiGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 10.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMBH 90.00
357 UNICREDIT HAMRED LEASING GMBH VIENNA AAENNA 1 ggL: G1MMo.E!ETElLLGL.INGSI-tOLDUNG CMBH & 10.00
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMEBH 50.00
358 UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER EQOD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD 100.00
tssued capital BGN 5.000
359 UNICREDIT INSURANCE BROKER SRL BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATIONIFN S.A. 100.00
Issued capital RON 156,000
360 UNICREDIT INSURANCE MANAGEMENT CEE VIENNA VIENNA 1 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMBH 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 156,905
361 UNICREDITINTERNATIONAL BANK LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 1 UNICREDIT SP4& 100.00
{LUXEMBOURG} SA
Issued capital EUR 13,406 600
362 UNICREDIT JELZALOGBANK ZRT. BLUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 106.00
Issued capitai HUF 3,000,000.000
363 UNICREDIT KFZ LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 100.00
GESELLSCHAFT MBH.
Issued capital EUR 648,000
364  UNICREDIT LEASED ASSET MANAGEMENT SPa MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA 100,00
Issued capital EUR 1,000,000
365  UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA] GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 gAcA MARKETS & INVESTMENT BETEILIGUNG 10.00
ES.M.BH.
Issued capital EUR 17,296.134 PAYTRIA UNTERNEHMENSBETEILIGUNGEN 0.02
GMBH
UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG §9.98
366 UNICREDIT LEASING ALPHA ASSETVERMIETUNG — VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 100 00
GMBH DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 35,000
367 UNICREDIT LEASING AVIATION GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,600,000
368 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATION IFN 5.A, BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 UNICREDIT BANK S.A. 99.96
!35ued capital RON 90,983,013 UNICREDIT CONSUMER FINANCING IFN 5.A 0.04
369 UNICREDIT LEASING CROATIA D.0.0. ZA ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
LEASING
issued capital HRK 28,741,500
370 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ, AS. PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT BANK CZECH REPUBLIC AND 100.00
SLOVAKIA, A.S.
Issuad capital CZK 981,452,000
371 UNICREDIT LEASING EAD SOFIA SOFIA 1 UNICREDIT BULBANK AD 100.00
Issued capital BGN 2,605,000
372 UNICREDITLEASING FINANCE GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 17,580,000
373 UNICREDIT LEASING FLEET MANAGEMENT SRL.  BUCHAREST BUCHAREST 1 PIRTA VERWALTUNGS GMEH 96.02
Issued capital RON 680,000 UNICREDIT LEASING CORPORATIONIFN §.A, 998
374 UNICREDIT LEASING GMBH HAMBURG HAMBURG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 10050
Issued capital EUR 15,000,000
375 UNICREDIT LEASING HUNGARY ZRT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT 100.00
Issued capital HUF 50,000,000
376 glgCOREDIT LEASING INSURANCE SERVICES BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA i UNICREDHT LEASING SLOVAKIA A, 100.00
Issued capital EUR 5,900
377 UNICREDIT LEASING SLOVAKIA AS. BRATISLAVA BRATISLAVA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ. A.S. 00.00
Issued capital EUR 26,560,000
378 UNICREDIT LEASING SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UMICREDIT SPA 100,00
Issued capital EUR 1,106,677,000
379 UNICREDIT LEASING SREIJA D.0.0. BEQGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT BANK SERBIA J3C 100.00
Issued capital RSD 1,078,133,000
380 UNICREDIT LEASING TECHNIKUM GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 LEASFINANZ GMBH 99,80
Issued capital EUR 35,000 gCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLOUNG GMBH & 0.20
OKG
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UNICREDIT LEASING VERSICHERUNGSSERVICE ~ VIENNA WIENNA 1 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 100.00
GMBH & COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500
382 UNICREDIT LEASING, LEASING, 0.0.Q. LJUBLJANA LJUBLJANA 1 UNICREDIT BANKA SLOVENIJA D.D. 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25,039,658
38 UNICREDIT LUNA LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMQ-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMEH & 0.20
COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
384 DIT MOBILIEN UND KFZ LEASING GMEH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 98,80
UNICREDI DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMQ-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
COKG
UNICRED|T LEASING {AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
85 UNICREDIT OBG SR L. YERONA VERONA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 60.00
Issued capital EUR 10,000
386 UNICREDIT 0BG SRL (COVERED BONDS) VERONA VERCONA 4 UNICREDIT SPA b
387 UNICREDIT GK1 LEASING GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 10.00
COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 90.00
M.B.H,
Joa UNICREDIT QPERATIV LIZING KFT BUDAPEST BUDAPEST 1 UNICREDIT BANK HUNGARY ZRT. 10000
Issued capital HUF 3,000,000
389 UNICREDIT PARTNER D.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNICREDIT BANK SERBIA JSC 100.00
Issued capital RSD 2,001,875
kb UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG IMMOBILIEN LEASING GMBH 7480
Issued capital EUR 36.500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 25.00
9 UNICREDIT POUISTOVACI MAKLERSKA SPOL.S PRAGUE PRAGUE 1 UNICREDIT LEASING CZ A5, 10000
R.O.
Issued capital CZK 510,000
382 UNICREDIT POLARIS LEASING GMBH WIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKS
1ssued capital EUR 36,500 UNIGREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
393 UNICREDIT RENT B.0.0. BEOGRAD BELGRADE BELGRADE 1 UNIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN 106.00
GMBH
Issued capital RS0 3,285,948,900
394 UNICREDIT SERVICES GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SERVICES S.C.R.A 100.00
Issued capital EUR 1,200,000
385 UNICRED{T SERVICES SCP.A. MILAN MILAN 1 CORDUSIO SIM SPA
Issued cagital EUR 194,158,415 CORDUSIO SOCIETA' FIDUCIARIA PER AZICNI
UNICREDIT BANKX AG
UNICREDIT FACTORING SPA .
UNICREDIT SPA 100.60 100.00
384 UNICREDIT STERNECK LEASING GMBH VIENNA WVIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 10.00
COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,000 UNICREDIT PEGASUS L EASING GMBH 90.00
397 UNICREDIT SUBITO CASA SPA MILAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
Jasued capital EUR 500,000
39 UNICREDIT TECHRENT LEASING GMBH VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEILIGUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.00
DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMEH
Issued capital EUR 35,336 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 1.00
ki UNICREDIT TURN-ARQUND MANAGEMENT CEE VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT SPA 100.00
GMBH
Issved capital EUR 750,000
400 UNICREDIT U.S. FINANCE LLC WILMINGTON NEW YORK 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
{ssued capital USD 130
401 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEIL{GUNGSVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
M.B.H. DER BANK AUSTRIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA iMMO BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
402 UMIVERSALE INTERNATIONAL REALITAETEN VIENNA VIENNA 1 UNICREDIT BANK AUSTRIA AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capstal EUR 32,715,000
403 V.M.G. VERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25, 565
I
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N MB.H. VIENNA VIENNA 1 BETEMLIGUN A
404 VAPE COMMUNA LEASINGGE SELLSCHAFT DER BANK ALSTRLIA CREDITANSTALT LEASING
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UGLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
' COKG
UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 25.00
405 VERMIETUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH & CC MUNICH MUNICH 1 HVE MMOBILIEN AG §9.28 §4.23
OBJEKT MOC K3
Issued capital ELR 48,728,161
406 VERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
KATHARINENHOF MBH
Issued capital EUR 511,292
407 VISCONTI SRL MiLAN MILAN 1 UNICREDIT SPA 76.00
Issued capital EUR 11,000,000
408 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 26,000
409 WEALTHCAP ENTITY SERVICE GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT 100.06
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
10 WEALTHCAP EQUITY GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 500,000
41 WEALTHCAP EQUITY MANAGEMENT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP EQUITY GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 25.000
412 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH MUNIEH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH 100.00
Issued cagital EUR 512.000
413 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 1 GMBH & CO. kG MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT 160.00 5000
GMBH
Issbed capital EUR 5000 WEALTHCAP VORRATS-2 GMBH . 50 00
414 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT 94 34 56.00
GMBH
issued capital EUR 10,600 WEALTHCAP VORRATS-2 GMBH 556 50.00
415 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 43 KOMPLEMENTAER MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP ENTITY SERVICE GMBH 109.00
GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
416 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIENANKAUF MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP ENTITY SERVICE GMBH 100.00
KOMPLEMENTAER GMBEH
Issued capital EUR 25,000
417 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIENFONDS DEUTSCHLAND MUNICH MUNICH 1 HF.3. LEASINGFONDS GMBH 100.00
36 KCMPLEMENTAR GMBH
Issued capital EUR 25 585
418 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIENFONDS DEUTSCHLAND MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAR ENTITY SERVIGE GMBH 100.00
38 KOMPLEMENTAR GMBH
Issued caprial EJR 25,000
418 WEALTHCAP INITIATOREN GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 100.00
GMBH
Issued capitat EUR 1,533 875
420 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 10.00
{ssued capital EUR 4,000,000 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 9000
GMBH
421 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENTS INC. WILMINGTON ATLANTA 1 WEALTHCAP FONDS GMBH 100.00
Issued capital USD 312,000
422 WEALTHCAP INVESTORENBETREUUNG GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 100.00
Issued capital EUR 60,000
423 WEALTHCAP GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 100.00
KAPITALVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH GMBH
Issued capital EUR 125,000
424 WEALTHCAP LEASING GMBH GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING 100.00
GMBH
issued capital EUR 25,000
425 WEALTHCAP MANAGEMENT SERVICES GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH 100.00
Issued caprtal EUR 50,000
426 WEALTHCAP OBJEKT DRESDEN GMBH& CC. X6 MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & €O, KG 10.1¢ nn
Issued capital EUR 10,000 WEALTHCAP 89.50 BN
KAPITALVERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
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427 WEALTHCAP OBJEKT ESSEN Il GMBH & CO. KG SUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP IMMOEILIEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG 10.10 3333
| £UR 10,000 WEALTHCAP 89.90 3333
Issued capra KAPITALVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
428 WEALTHCAP OBJEKT MAINZ GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & CO. KG 1010 nn
ital EUR 10, WEALTHCAP 89.90 333
tssued caplta o KAPITALYERWA TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MaH
425 WEALTHCAP OBJEKT STUTTGART INGMBH &CO.  MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP IMROBILIEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG 1010 EREE]
*G
Issued capital EUR 10.000 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 43 KOMPLEMENTAER ERS)
GMBH
WEALTHGAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT 89.90 333
CMBH
430 WEALTHCAP OBJEKT-VORRAT 25 GMBH & CO. MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG 1010 76.00
KG
Issued capital EUR 10,000 WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 2 GMBH & CO. XG 1010 200
WEALTHCAP 76.80 75.00
KAPITALVERWAL TUNGSGESELLSCHAFT MBH
431 WEALTHCAP PEIA KOMPLEMENTAR GMBH GRUENWALD GRUENWALD 1 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH 100,00
Issued capital EUR 26,000
437 WEALTHCAP PEIA MANAGEMENT GMBH MUNICH MUNICH 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 5.00
Issued capital EUR 1,023,000 WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAFITAL HOLDING 94,00
GMEH
433 WEALTHCAP REAL ESTATE MANAGEMENT GMBH  MUNICH MUNICH 1 WEALTHCAP INVESTMENT SERVICES GMBH 105.00
Issued capital EUR 50,000
437 WEALTHCAR SPEZIAL- AIF-5V BUERO 8 GRUENWALD GRUENWALD [} WEALTH MANAGEMENT CAPITAL HOLDING o
GMEH
435" WEALTHCAP YORRATS-2 GMBH MUNIGH MUNICH 1 WEALTHGAP FONDS CMBH 100.00
issued capital EUR 25,000
436  WEICKER S. ARL. LUXEMBOURG LUXEMBOURG 1 UNICREDIT BANK AG 100.00
Issued capital ELR 20,668,840
437 WOEM GRUNDSTUECKSVERWALTUNGS- VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA WkIG-BETEILICUNGSHOLDUNG GMBY & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH. COKG
Jssued capital EUR 36,336 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99,80
4385 Z LEASING ALFA IMMGBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETELIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 39,80
430 Z LEASING ARKTUR IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BE TEIIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH. COKE
Issuec capital EUR 35,500 UNICRED!T LEASING [AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
40 Z LEASING AURIGA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.60
VERWERTUNG GMaH
41 Z LEASING CORVUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA EUROLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH. MBH.
tssued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMEBH & 0.20
COKG
447 7 LFASING DORADO MMCBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG GMBH 96 80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UGLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOL DUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
443 7 LFASING DRACO IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. GESELLSCHAFT MB.H.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & .20
COKG
444 7 LEASING GAMA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFTMB H. COKG
1ssued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING [AUSTRIA} GMBH 99,80
445 7 LEASING GEMINI IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 3 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTUNG GMBH
445 7 LEASING HEBE IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GEBAEUDELEASING 99.80
GESELLSCHAFTM.BH. GRUNDSTUCKSYERWALTUNGSGESELLSCHAFT
MaH
Issued capital EUR 36.500 UCLA IMMC-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
447 Z LEASING HERCULES IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.B.H. COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND 99.80
VERWERTLNG GHMBH
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448  Z LEASING IPSILON IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA. VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH, COKG —
tssued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT GARAGEN ERRICHTUNG UND %9,
souedoap 50 VERWERTUNG GMBH
449 ZLEASING {TA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT MBH. GESELLSCHAFT M.BH.
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETE/LIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
' COKG
450 7 LEASING JANUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 9380
GESELLSCHAFTM.B R, GESELLSCHAFT MBH.
1ssued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA IMMO-BETEIIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 20
COKG
451 Z LEASING KALLISTCY IMOBILIFN | FASING VIFNNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
GESELLSCHAFT M.B H COKG
Issued capital EUR 3€,500 UNICREDIT LEASING {AUSTRIA} GMBH 92 80
452 7 LEASING KAPA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99,80
GESELLSCHAFTMBAH. GESELLSCHAFT MLBH.
Issued capital EUR 3§ 500 UCLA IWMO-BE TEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
453 Z LEASING LYRA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 GALA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99 80
GESELLSCHAFT MBH. GESELLSCHAFT MBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA MMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
454  Z LEASING NEREIDE IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 URICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA} GMBH 99.80
455  Z LEASING OMEGA IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 CALG DELTA GRUNDSTUECKVERWALTUNG 99.80
GESELLSCHAFT M.BLH, GMEBH
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UCLA MMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
COKG
456 Z LEASING PERSEUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMD-BETEILIGLINGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 10.00
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH. COKG
Issued capital EUR 35,500 UNICREDIT ZEGA LEASING-GESELLSCHAFT 50 00
M.B.H.
457 Z LEASING SCORPIUS IMMCBILIEN LEASING YIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BE TEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M1, COKG
fssued capital EUR 35,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
458 Z LEASING TAURUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 BA EUROLEASE BETEILIGUNGSGESELLSCHAFT 99.80
GESELLSCHAFTMBH, M.BH.
Issued capital EUR 73,000 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 020
COKG
459 7 LEASING VENUS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT MBH, COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT LEASING (AUSTRIA) GMBH 99.80
460 7 LEASING VOLANS IMMOBILIEN LEASING VIENNA VIENNA 1 UCLA IMMO-BETEILIGUNGSHOLDUNG GMBH & 0.20
GESELLSCHAFT M.BH, COKG
Issued capital EUR 36,500 UNICREDIT PEGASUS LEASING GMBH 99,80
461 ZABAPARTNER D.0.0. ZA BROKERSKE ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.0. 10000
POSLOVE U OSIGURANJU | REGSIGURANJU
Issued capital HRK 1 500,000
462 ZAGREB NEKRETNINE D.O O. 7A POSLOVANIE ZAGREB ZAGREB 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA .0, 100.00
NEKRETNINAMA
Issued capital HRK 300,000
463 ZAGREBACKA BANKA DD, ZAGAER ZAGRER 1 UNICREDIT SPA 84.48
{ssued capital HRK 6 404,839, 100
284  ZANE BHDOO SARAJEVO SARAJEVC 1 ZAGREB NEKRETNINE D.0.0. ZA POSLOVANJE 100.00
NEKRETNINAMA
Issued capital BAM 131 529
465  ZAPADNI TRGOVACK] GENTAR D.0.0. RIJEKA RIJEKA 1 UNIVERSALE INTERMATIGNAL REALITAETEN 100.00
GMEBH
Issued capital HRK 20,000
456 ZBINVEST D.0.0. ZA UPRAVLJANJE 7AGREB ZAGREE 1 ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 100.00
INVESTICISSKIM FONDOVIMA
Issued capital HRK 4 000,000

Notes to the table showing the investmants in subsidiarias:

(1} Type of relabenship:

1= majority of voting rights al prdinary shareholders’ meabng,

2= dominant influence at ordinary shareholders’ meeting:
3= agreements with ather sharehalders,

4= other types of control,

§= centralised management pursuant to paragragh 1 of Art.39 of “Lagislative decree 136/2015",
6= centralised management pursuant to paragrash 2 of Art.39 of “Legislatve decree 136/2015"

{2} Voting nghts available in gereral mesting. Voling rights are disclosed only if different from the percentage of gwnership,

3 C‘:’ml’a".ies. wnsolidatgd ling by line under IFRS10 as a result of the simulianeous availability of power to govern the relevant activities and exposures to variability of related returng,
{4) The equity investment in Cordusio SIM 5.9.A. is consolidated at 100% by wirtue of UniCredit S.p.A.'s 97.123% and its option on minonty interests representing 2.877% of the share capital,
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Changes in the scope of consolidation .
Companies consolidated line by line, including the Parent Company and those ones classified as non-current assets and asset disposal groups,

decreased by 16 entities compared wiih 31 December 2019 (17 inclusions and 33 exclusions as a resuit of disposals. changes of the consolidation
method and mergers}, from 482 as at 31 December 2019 to 466 as at 31 December 2020,

Wholly-owned subsidiaries
The following table shows the changes in equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries.

Equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries {consolidated line by line}: annual changes
N , ' ‘ NUMBER OF COMPANES
A. Opening balance {from previous year} 482
B. Increased hy 17
B.1 Newly established companies 13
B.2 Change of the consolidation method 4
B.3 Entilies consolidated for the first lime in the year -
C. Reduced hy EE]
C.1 DisposallLiquidation 13
.2 Change of the consolidation method 18
C.3 Absorpiion by other Group entities 1
D. Closing balance 466
The tables below analyse the other increases and decreases occurred during the year by company.
increases
Newly established companies
| COMPANYNAME AN OFEIGE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
UNICREDIT STERNECK LEASING GMBH VIENNA UNICREDIT QK1 LEASING GMBH VIENNA
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO, 69 DAC DUBLIN {CE CREEX POOL NO.2 DAC DUBLIN
WEALTHCA® OBJEKT TUEBINGEN GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH WEALTHCAP SPEZIAL- AIF-SVY BUERQ 8 GRUENWALD
ROSENKAVALIER 2020 LG FRANKFURT H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CO. DEUTSCHLAND EBERSBERG
8KGLL.
H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CQ. DEUTSCHLAND EBERSBERG H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CO. DEUTSCHLAND EBERSBERG
GKGIL. 10KG L.
H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CO. DEUTSCHLAND EBERSBERG H.F.S. LEASINGFONDS GMBH & CO. DEUTSCHLAND EBERSBERG
11 KGLL. 12KG
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO, 74 DAC DUBLIN
Change of the consolidation methed
CGOMPARYNAME =~ - o MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
WEALTHCAP QBJEKT MAINZ GMBH & CC. KG MUNICH WEALTHCAP WOHNEN SPEZIAL-AIF 1 GMBH & CO. MUNICH
GESCHLOSSENE INVESTMENT KG
WEALTHCAP OBJEKT STUTTGART Ill GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH WEALTHCAP IMMOBILIEN 43 KOMPLEMENTAER MUNICH
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Reductions
The above table refers to disposals and liquidations of inactive companies.

Disposal/Li uidatiqn

IMMCTRUCK ZRT )

- COMPANT NAME - ; e MAN OFFICE - GOMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
KUNSTHAUS LEASING GMBH VIENNA PISANA S.P.A. ROME
CAVE NUQOVE SPA ROME SVILUPPO IMMOBILIARE PESCACCIO - SOCIETA'A ROME

RESPONSABILITA' LIMITATA
ELEKTRA PURCHASE NO. 63 CAC DUBLIN CARDS & SYSTEMS EOV-DIENSTLEISTUNGS GMBH VIENNA
RSB ANLAGENVERMIETUNG GESELLSCHAFT MBH. VIENNA GENERAL LOGISTIC SOLUTIONS LLC MOSCOW
UNICREDIT LEASING FUHRPARKMANAGEMENT VIENNA CORDUSHO RMBES SECURITISATION SRL VERONA
GMBH (CARTOLARIZZAZIONE: CORDUSIO RMBS
SECURITISATION - SERIE 2006)
BAVARIA SERVICOS DE REPRESENTACAQ SAOPAULO E{.EKTRA PURCHASE NO. 34 DAC DUBLIN
COMERCIAL LTDA.
FINECO VERWALTUNG AG MUNICH |
Change of the consohdatlon method
COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE | COMPANY NAME ~ MAIN OFFICE
BERTRAM PROJEKT UNODECIMA TECHNIKZENTRUM MUNICH Al BETEILIGUNGS GMBH VIENNA
GMBH & CO. KG
REAL INVEST PROPERTY GMBH & CO SPB JOTA KG VIENNA SHOPPING PALACE BRATISLAVA V.08, V BRATISLAVA
LIKVIDACI
BA CA LEASING {DEUTSCHLAND) GMBH HAMBURG WEALTHCAP WOHNEN SPEZIAL-AIF 1 GMBH & CO. MUNICH
GESCHLOSSENE INVESTMENT KG
WEALTHCAP WOHNEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH WEALTHCAP WOHNEN 14 GMBH & CO. KG MUNICH
CAPITAL DEV SPA ROME ISTITUTO IMMOBILIARE DI CATANIA SPA CATANIA
PARSEC 6 SPA ROME C.E.CO.S. COMPLETAMENTQ EDILIZIO CORSO CATANIA
SICILIA SPA
ISTITUTC PER L'EDILIZIA POPQLARE DI SAN CATANIA S. MARIA DELLA GUARDIA SR.L. CATANIA
BERILLO SRL IN LIQUIDAZIONE
SAMAR SPA ROME PARCO DELLE ACACIE DUE S.P.A. ROME
VICOVARO RE SRL ROME WEALTHCAP OBJEKT TUEBINGEN GMBH & CC. KG MUNICH
WEALTHCAP OBJEKT LUDWIGSBURG GMEH & CO. MUNICH
KG
Absorption by other Groug entities

“COMPANY NAME OF THE MERGERED ENTITY MAN OFFICE "COMPANY NAME OF THE TAKING IN ENTITY MAIN OFFICE
HJS 12 BETEILIGUNGSGESELL SCHAFT MBH MUNICH UNICREDIT BANK AG MUNICH
Entities line by line which changed the company niame during the the year

COMPANYNAME - MAIN OFFICE COMPANY NAME MAIN OFFICE
WEALTHCAP WOHNEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG {(ex. MUNICH UNICREDIT STERNECK LEASING GMBH (e ( VIENNA
WEALTHCAP OBJEKT-VOHNEN 1 GMBH & CO. KG) STERNECKZ6 GMBH)

UNICREDIT OK1 LEASING GMBH (ex. OK IMMO VIENNA IMMOBILIEN RATING GMBH IN LIQU. (gx, IMMOBILIEN VIENNA
GMBH) RATING GMBH)

WEALTHCAP OBJEKT MAINZ GMBH & CO. KG (ex. MUNICH BAH-KAPPA KFT. V.A. (ex. BAH-KAPPA KFT) BUDAPEST
WEALTHCAP OBJEKT-VORRAT 38 GMBH & CO. KG)

BAH-OMEGA ZRT, (ex. UNICREDIT LEASING BUDAPEST
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2. Significant assumptions and assessment in determining the consolidation scope ‘ o

The Group determines the existence of contral and, consequently, the consolidaticn scope, checking, wiih reference 1 the entifies in which it holds
eXposures:

« the existence of power over the relevant activities;

» the exposure to the variabifity of returns;

= the ability to use the power exercised in order to influence the retums 1o which it is exposed.

The factars that have been considered for the purposes of this assessment depend on the entily's governance mathods. purposes and aquity
structure. On this point, the Group differenliates between entities governed through voting rights, i.e. operafing entities. and entities not governed
through voting rights, which comprise special purpose entities {SPEs) and investment funds.

In the case of operating entities, the fullowing facters provide evidence of contral:
« mare than half of the company's vating rights are hielg directly or indirectly through subsidiarfes (also when they act as trustee camipanies) uniless,
exceptionally, it can be clearly demonstrated that this cwnership does not originate control;
« half, or a lower proporiion, of the votes exercisable in the shareholders' megting are held and it is possible to govern the relevant activities
unilaterally through:
- the control of more than half of the voting rights based on an agreement with other investors;
- the power to determine the entity's financial and operating policies based on a contract or a statutory clause;
- the power to appaint or remove the majority of the members of the Board of Directors or the equivalent governing body, and that board or body is
responsible for managing the company;
- the power to exercise the majority of voting rights in meetings of the Board of Directars or the equivalent goveming body, and that board ar body
is responsible for managing the company.

The existence and effect of potential voling rights, including those incorporated in oplions, way-out clauses, or instruments convertible into shares,
are taken into consideration when assessing the existence of contral, in case they are substantiat.

In particular, potential voting rights are considered substantial if all the following conditions are met:

» they can be exercised either immediately or at least in gocd time for the company's sharehaiders' meeting;

+ there arg na legal or economic barriers to exercise them,

= gxercising them is econamically convenient.

As at 31 December 2020 the Group halds the majority of the vating rights in all the aperating entities subject to consclidation, with the exception of
two companies for which the Group, although not holding the majority of voting rights, (i) has signed sharehciders’ agreements which enable it to
appoint the majority of members of the governing body, or contractual agreements which determine the possibility of managing the company's
business unilaterally, and {ii} is exposed to the variability of the said company's retums.

It should also be noted that there are no cases in which control derives from holding potential voting rights.

Special purpose entities are considered controlled if the Group is, at one and the same time:

* exposed to a significant extent 1o the variability of returns, as a result of exposures in securities. of disbursing loans or of providing quarantess, In
this regard it is assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure te variability of returns is significant if the Group has at least 30% of the
most suberdinated exposure, and

* able 1o govern the relevant activities, also in a de facto manner. Examples of the power to govarm on this peint are performing the role of spansor
or servicar appointed to recover underlying receivablas, or managing the company's business.

In particular, consolidated special purnose entities include:

» Conduits in which the Group plays the role of spanser and is exposed 1o the variability of returns, as a result of subscribing Asset Backed
Commercial Paper issued by them andfor of providing guarantees in the form of letters of credit or liquidity lines;

» vehicles used 1o carry out securitisation transactions in which the Group is the originator as a result of subscribing the subordinated tranches;

= vehicles financed by the Group and estabiished for the sole purpose of performing financial or operating leasing in faveur of customers which are
financed by the Group;

= vehicles in which, as a result of deteriorating market condilions. the Group has found itself holding the majority of the financial exposure angd, at
the same time, managing the underlying assets or the related collections.

It should be noted that, in the case of special purpose entities set up as part of securitisation transactions pursuant to Itafian Law 130/99. the
segregated assels are analysed separately with respect to the analysis of the SPE. For ihe latter, control is assessed on the basis of possession of
the voting rights atiributed to the company's shares.
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Investment funds managed by Group companies are considered contrelled if the Group is significantly exposed to the variabllity of returns and if the
third-party investors have no rights to remave the management company.

In this regard it is assumed as a rebutiable presumption that the exposure to the variability of retums is significant if the Group has al least I%asa
result of sudscription of the units and commissions received for the management of the fund's assets.

Funds managea by Group companies that are in seed/warehousing phases are not considered controlied.

In this phase, in fact, the aim of the fund is to invest, in accordance with fund's regulation, in financial and non financial assels with the aim of
allotting the quotas 1o third parly investors. Consequenily it has been evaluated that the management company is not able to exercise power due o
its limited decision power.

Investment funds managed by third-party companies are censidered contrailed if the Group is significantly exposed to the variability of returns and at
the same time, has the unilateral right to remove the management company.

In this regard it is assumed as a rebuttable presumption that the exposure to the variability of retums is significant if the Group has subscribed at
least 30% of the fund's units.

With reference to 31 Decernber 2020, it should be noted that 196 controlled entities {of which 15 belonging to the Banking Group) were not
consolidated pursuant to IFRS10, of which 189 for materiality threshold andfor liquidation procedures.

Amaong the 7 remaining non consolidated entifies it shouid be noted:

« 5 operating entities deriving from restructuring procedures or work- out, whese risks are measured as part of the overall credit exposures;

« 2 entities with total assets lower than €10 million, which do not have an operating structure that may allow them to prepare |AS/IFRS Financial
Statements and that the Group has decided not to consolidate on a cost/benefits basis.

Based on available information, it should be considered that their consolidation would not have impacted sigrificantly the Group shareholders’
equity.

3, Equity investments in wholly-owned subsidiaries with significant non-controling interests

3.1 Non-controlling interests, availability of votes of NCls and dividends distributed to NCls

o ) E . MINCRITIES EQUITY MINORITIES VOTING DIVIDENDS TO

s T o o o RATIOS RIGHTS MINORITIES
ANYMAME = . - . - .- %) . £4) & milion}
ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 15.53 15.53 -

3.2 Equity investments with significant non-controlling interests: accounting information

- {€ mtlhon}

S, S _TOTAL CASH  FINANCIAL  INTANGIBLE  FINANGIAL NET INTEREST

COMPANY I . " ASSETS  EQUIVALENTS ABSETS ASSETS  UIABILITIES EQuTY MARGIN

ZAGREBACKA BANKA D.D. 18.449 3,854 12,321 167 13,928 2214 318
continued. 3.2 Equity investments with significant non-contralling interests. accounting infermation

e " PROAT . PROFT . .
o . C o {1088 © {LOSS) - PROAT {LOSS) OTHER -

P ] BEFORETAX  AFTERTAX -  AFTERTAX CGOMPREHENSIVE GTHER

R Sl FROM .~ FROM - - FROM  PROFIT INCOME AFTER  COMPREHENSIVE

C oo .i COPERATING  OPERATING:  CONTINUING CONTINUING  DISCONTINUED  (LOSS) TAX - - INCOME

; COMPANY NAME INGOME - COSTS _OPERATIONS OPERATIONS  OPERATIONS )] jri} B+ |

ZAGREBACKA
BANKA D.D. 489 (268) 56 45 - 46 (27) 19

The exposures above refer to the amounts of individual accounts of subsidiary as at 31 December 2020.
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4. Significant restrictions
Shareholder agreements, regulatory requirements and contractual agreements can limit the ability of the Group to access the assets or settle the
liabilities of its subsidiaries or restrit the latter from distribution of capital and/or dividends.

With reference to shareholder agresments, it should be noted that to the cansalidated entities UniCredit BPC Morlgages S.r.l. and UniCredit OBG
S.r.. companies eslablished according to Law 130/89 for the execution of securitisation transactions or the issuance of covered bonds,
shareholders agreements allow the distribution of dividends only when the credit claims of guaranteed lenders and bearer of covered bonds are
satisfied.

in the course of the demerger of the CEE Banking Business from UniCredit Bank Austria AG to UniCredit S.p A. effected in 2016, UniCredit SpA.
undertook vis-a-vis its co-shareholders in UniCredit Bank Austria AG and UniCredit Bank Austria AG that until 30 June 2024, envisaging: {i) the
restriction, as shareholder of UniCredit Bank Austria AG, from resolving on any dividend distributions of the latter in case UniCredit Bank Austria
AG's consolidated and solo CET1 ratios, as a cansequence thereof, fall below (a) 14% or (b} the higher minimum CET1 ratio required at the time by
the applicable regulatory framework, plus any required buffers, and {ii) the support to any management decision and board resolution of UCBA
aimed at safequarding such CET1 ratios.

UniCredit group is a banking group subject to the rules provided by Directive (EU) 2018/878 of the European Pariiament and of the Council (so
called CRD V), amending Directive 2013/36/EU on “access to the activity of credit institutions and the prudential supervision of credit institutions and
investment firms" and by Regulation EU) 2019/876 of the European: Parliament and of the Council (so callea CRR2), amending Regulaticn (EU) No
575/2013 on *prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms” and that controls financial institutions subject to the same
regulation.

The ability of the controlled banks, and of the other requlated entities, to distribute capital or cividends may be restricted to the fulfilment of these
requirements in terms of both capital ratios and “Maximum Distributable Amount” as well as further eventuat regulation applicable at national level
and recommendation by competent authorities provided time by time.

In particular, with referance to the measures adopted in the context of the Covid-19 epidemic by the European Supervisory Authorities, the
European Central Bank (ECB) on 15 December 2020 has issued a recommendation ‘or dividend distributions during the Covid-19 pandemic and
repeafing Recommendation ECB/2020/35 (ECB/2020/62)" asking banks to refrain from dividend distribution and shares buy-back until 30 September
2021. According 1o this recommendation. dividends shall remain below 15% of the cumulated profit for 2019 and 2020 adjusted for certain
components CET1 neutral and shall not be higher than 20 basis points of the CET1 ratio. This recommendation repeals the previous measures
issued by ECB dated 27 July 2020 and 27 March 2020, that complementing EBA measure dated 31 Mareh 2020, suspended dividend distributions
far 2019.

Finally, also in consideration of recommendations received from the local supervisory autherities. scme subsidiaries of the UniCredit group, during
the 2020, canceled the resolution to distribute the 2019 dividend.

The capital ratios requested for 2021 from UniCredit greup and agreed upon with the European Central Bank {ECB), alse as a result of the
Supervisory Review and Evaluation Process {SREF) performed in 2020, are higher than the minimum requirements set by the mentioned
regutations.

With reference to subsidiaries, we note that in some jurisdictions and for some foreign entities of the Group, commitments te maintain local
supervisory capital higher than regulatory thresholds may exist also as a result of SREP performed at local level.

With reference to free flaw among entities based in different countries, available liquidity at Group levet bears some restrictions related to the Large
Exposure prudential limits, according to both CRR definition and decisions adopted by Member States (with reference to cross border intragroup
exposures) some of them recently implemented with the aim to face the recent heafth emergency: consequently, a portion of available liquidity may
suffer impadiments that hinder iis transfer among group entities. Further details are reported in tha Notes to the consolidated accounts as at 31
December 2020, Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies, Section 2 - Risk of the prudential consclidated perimeter, 2.4 Liquidity risk.

With reference to contractual agreements, UniCredit group has also issued financial tiabilities whose callability, redemption, repurchase or
repayment before their contractual maturity date is subject to the prior permission of the competent authority. The carrying value of these
instruments as at 31 December 2020 is equal to €40,199 million and includes capital instruments and TLAC eligible instruments.

5. Other information

For informaticn on jointly-controlled companies and companies subject to significant influence that have not been consolidated in accordance with
IFRS10 as at 31 December 2020, in adaition to the controtled ones disclosed in previous paragraph 2, Significant assumptions and assessment in
determining the consolidation scope, reference is made to the paragraph “7.6 Valuation and significant assumptions to establish the existence cf
joint control or significant influence” of the Consalidated financial statements of UniCredit group, Notes to the consolidated accounts Part B -
Consol:dated balance sheet - Assets, Seciion 7 - Zquity invesiments - Item 70.
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art AAccountmg policies

Section 4 - Subsequent events

No material events have occurred after the balance sheet date that would make it necessary 1o change any of the information given in the
Consdlidated financial statements as at 31 December 2020.

For a description of the significant events after year-end refer to the information below.

On 4 January 2021, following the signing of the binding agreement on December 2019 and the obtainment of the retevant regulatory approvals, the
parent company UniCredit 8.p.A. completed the disposal of SIA UniCredit Leasing and its subsidiary SIA UniCredit Insurance Broker to AS Citadele
banka. The intragroup funding has been fully reimbursed at closing.

On 12 January 2021 the parent company UniCredit $.p.A. launched a dual tranche Senior Preferred €1 bilion with 5 years maturity and €1 pillion
with 10 years maturity. The combined amount represents the largest Euro institutional Senior Preferred issuance ever done by UniCredit.

On 27 January 2021 the Board of Directors of UniCredit S.p.A. unanimousty nominated Andrea Orcel as designated Chief Executive Officer (CEQ),
far inclusion in the list for the renewal of the Board of Directars, to replace the outgaing CEQ, Jean Pierre Mustier. The list wilt be presented for
approval at the upcoming AGM an 15 April 2021, Upon AGM approval of the list, the Board will confirm his appointment as CEO.

Section 5 - Other matters

in 2020 the following standards, amendments or interpretations came into force:

= Amandment to IFR$16 Leases Covid-18 Related Rent Concessions (EU Regulation 2020/1434);

+ Amendments fo IFRS3 Business Combinations {EU Regulation 2020/551);

e Amendments to IFRSY. 1A839 and IFRS7: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform (EU Regulation 2020/34);

» Amendments to 1AS1 and 1AS8: Definition of Material (EU Regulation 2019/2104);

= Amendments to References to the Canceptual Framework in IFRS Standards (EU Reguiation 2019/2075).

whose adoption has not determinea substantial effects on the amounts recognised in balance sheet or income statement. With reference to the
*Amendment to IFR$18 Leases Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions”, additional explanations are provided below in this section.

As at 31 December 2020, the accounting standard *Amendments to IFRS4 Insurance Contracts - deferral of IFRSS" (EU Regulation 2020/2097)
applicable to reporting starting from 1 January 2024 has been endorsed by the European Commission.

As at 31 December 2020 the IASB issued the following accounting standards whose applicaticn is subject to completion of the endorsement process

by the competent bodies of the Eurapean Unian, which is still ongoing:

 IFRS17 Insurance Contracts (May 2017} including Amendments to IFRS17 {June 2020);

« Amendments to 1481 Presenlation of Financial Statements: Classification of Liabilities as Current or Nan-currant and Classffication of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current - Deferral of Effective Date (January 2020 and July 2020 respectively);

« Amendments to IFRS3 Business Combinations; IAS16 Property, Plant and Equipment; 1AS37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets as well as Annual improvements {May 2020);

« Amendments to IFRSS, |AS39, IFRS7, IFRS4 and IFRS16 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2 (August 2020). It should be noted that
these amendments have been endorsed by the competent bodies of the Eurapean Union on 13 January 2021. The Group has not early adopted
these amendments.

Risks, uncertainties and impacts of Covid-19 pandemic
Reference is made to "Section 2 - General preparation criteria” for a description of risks and uncertainty relating to Covid-19 pandemic.

Contractual modifications arising from Covid-19

1) Contractual modifications and accounting derecognition (IFRS9)

In order to limit the effects of the restriction measures put in place 1o contain the Covid-19 pandemic. starting from the first half 2020. the Group has
granted to its customers debt moratoria measures, These measures have been granted both foliowing the approval of specific laws by the
gevernments in which the Group operates and as a result of specific inifiatives of Group's credit institutions so to complement government initiatives
or in thase countries in which the local government has not issued specific laws.

These moratoria measures generally aliowed to postpone the payment of instalments for a period comprised between 3 and 12 months, either upon
request by the customers or, in some countries, automatically for all the loans in scope of local laws, with the consequent increase in the maturity of
the loan and the accrual of interests on the capital being postponed.

As a result of the cantinuing heaith emergencies, restrictions measures have not been fifted and these initiatives have been renewed in the second
half of 2020 allowing the possibility to further postpone payments at a future date defined by local measures which is within 31 December 2021,
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In accardance with ESMA's declaration® which clarified that it is unlikely that the contractual changes resulting from these moratoria can be
considered as substantial, the Group has not derecognised the related credit exposures®. A madification loss is consequently recognised in item
“140. Gains/L.osses from contractual changes wilh no canceliations” if the increase in future payments is not sufficient to remunerate the Group for
the postponement period also in light of local laws and regulations. As at 31 December 2020 the amount deriving from the madification loss
recognizing through Profit & Loss was equal to €13 mitlion.

2} Amendment to IFRS16 accounting standard

The IASB published 28 May 2020 the *Amendment to {FRS16 Leases Covid-19 Related Rent Concessions’ which has been endorsed on 15

December 2020.

Such amendments provide lessees with an exemption {permitted and not required) from assessing whether a Covid-19-related rent concession is a

lease modification. Entities applying the exemption, available from 1 June 2020, would account for the changes as if they were not lease

madifications.

If the exemption is applied by the lessee then.

» forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for as a variable lease payment against the derecognition of the part of lease liability
forgiven ar waived;

» change in lease payments that reduces payments in one period but proportionally increases payments in another, reguires interest to be accrued
on the lease liability and lease liability to be reduced in arder to reflect lease payments made 1o the lessor.

The exemption can be used only if the following conditions are met:

e rent cancessions ocour as a direct consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic;

« the revised consideration for the Jease is the same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease immediately preceding the change;
» the reduction in lease payments affects only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2021;

« there is no substantive change to other terms and conditions of the lease.

The Group has not applied the exemption foreseen by the IFRS16 amendment.

Reorganization of Wien Permanent establishment (“WPE") of UniCredit S.p.A. (“UCI"}

In the cantext of Team 23 Strategic plan the Group is implementing a re-organization of GEE activities executed through the streamlining of the

functions attributed to the *“WPE" of “UCI", 50 to achieve the cost efficiency provided by Team 23.

In September 2020 “UCI" agreed, coherently with the obligations toward UniCredit Bank Austria ("UCBA"), in the context of re-organization of

activities within CEE made in 2016, 1o review existing intercompany agreements, indemnifying UCBA for costs which it will ingur in the context of

“WPE" re-organization.

The rg-organization has implied during 2020:

« the free-up of office space for which the rentals obtained from subleasing with third parties, are lower than the rentals paic under the head-lease.
As a result, an impairment of right of use associated to this office space for €5.3 million has been recognised as the difference between its carrying
value and the present value of the rentals set up by such subleasing contract;

« the mandatory purchases, under existing contracts, having limited possibility of renegotiation, of services that will be not more used in the context
of business operations. As a result, the benefils expected from such contracts are lower than their cost and therefore an expense for €29.5 million
(including VAT) has been recognised.

TLTRO

On 6 January 2021, ESMA published a document which, referring to the changes introduced by the ECB during 2020 due to the Covid-19
emergency with particular reference to the interest rates applicable to the third series of targeted longer term refinancing operations {TLTRO Ill}.
recommends an adequate level of ransparency regarding the accounting treatment applied for the purposes of preparing the financial statements,
with particular reference to considerations regarding the gualification of transactions as lcans at market rates (IFRS9) or at an interest rate lower
than the market rate {IAS20), method of calculating the effective interest rate and any changes in the estimate of payments for changes in the
valuation regarding compliance with the "eligibility” criteria. In such document ESMA, also specifies that, taking into account the different accounting
treatments observed on the market, it will send a guestion to the IFRIC on this matter. Therefore, the accounting treatment adopted by the Group,
described below, may be subject in the future to different interpretations by the competent bodies.

The TLTRQ liabilities are banking book funding instruments to be subsequently measured at amortised cost according to IFRS9.4.2.1.

The prospect for the borrowing bank to be charged of a variable negative interest margin on “lorig term refinancing operations'. additicnal to the
average Deposit Facility Rate (*DFR") or Main Refinancing Operation ("MRQ"} rale, is linked 1o the achievement of specific thresheld on Cumulative
Net Lending toward eligible counterparties’d,

In particular, financial conditions incorporated into TLTROs are reflecting ECB monetary policy initiatives to prospectively reduce market "cost of
funding" for banking institutions by using “non-conventional” tools and reflected in money market operations.

8 ESMA public statement *Accounting implications of the Cowvid-19 autbreak on the calculation of expected credit losses in accordance with IFRSS” of 25 March 2020.

9 According to IFRS9, the contractuat modifications must be accountad for {i} if significant, through the derecognition. (i) if nat significant. through the recalcuiaton of the gross exposure by discounting the contractual cash
flows after the medification at the ongmal eflective interest rate. The standard does not provide any indication as to whether a change 1s signficant or nat. For further information on accounting principles used by the Group
on this matter, refer to Part A - Accounting policies, A 2 - Main items of the accounts.

10 Loans to non-financial corparations & Laans to househelds excluding loans for house purchase.
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As a result, accounting analysis rejected such a margin would have been assimilated to either () @ government grants {being ECB TLTRO a "limited
access & banking specific’” market by its own}, or (i} an embedded derivative (not filing with IFRSS derivative definition).

Therefore, such contractuat term must be seen as contractual cause included inta a ane-coupon floating-rate'! financial liability (the refinancing
operation), and to be considered part of the cafculation of the liability's interest revenues accerding to IFRSS.

Under the said accounting principle, the interests shall be calculated using the “effective intarest method" that allocates interest revenues over the
application period of the “effective interest rate”. The Jatter is defined as the rate that discounts estmated future cash flows through the expected life
of the financial instruments to the net carrying amount.

Accordingly, having introduced a new/prospective “performance-related” remuneration within the ECB TLTRO "market" specific financial features are
handled similarly to changes in market-index for floating-rate liabilifies.

Therefore, referencing EIR rules for *markets-driven” variable remunerations, changes in "market index’ (e.g. base rate and spread) are reflected by
adjusting instruments' carrying amount calculated by referenue Lu lhe evolution of the "TLTRG index” and limited to the accrued (to-date) portien'?,
As a result, TLTRO Il effective interest rate for a 3y funding is comprised between -0.33% and -0.83%¥, coherently with (i) benchmark
achievements for Cumutative Nei Lending (“CNL") as at March 2021 and December 2021 and (ii) curreni MRO and DFR levels.

With reference to 2020, a Net Interest Income contribution equal to +€165 million, agditional to” DFR’, has been recognised for the outstanding €94
billion TLTRQ funding, fully subscribed in June 2020, refiecting expected CNL threshold achievements as supporied by (i) outstanding CNL
production and (i) expected business develapments incorporated inte FY2021 budget plan. also corraborated by statistical model used for
calculating the probability related to the achievement of the relevant "minimum thresholds”.

Tax credits connected with the "Cura ltalia" and "Rilancio” Law Decrees purchased following the sale without
recourse by the direct beneficiaries or previous buyers

The DL 1812020 (s0-called "Cura Italia’) and 34/2020 {so-calied "Rilancio™), converted into law Na.27 and No.77 of 2020, introduced into the Itatian
legal system same tax incentive measures retated to both investment expenses (e.g. Eco and Sismabonus) and current expenses (e.q. rents for
non-residential premises).

These incentives applies to households or businesses, are commensurate with a percentage of the expenditure incurred (which in some cases even
reaches 410%) and are disbursed in the form of tax credits or lax deductions (convertible, on apticn, into tax credits).

The holders of these credits, nol refundable by the State, can use them o offsef taxes and contributions or they can further transfer them {in whole
or in part) to third parties.

Starting from the third quarter of 2020 UniCredit S.p.A. faunched commercial inifiatives aimed at:

e providing "bridge" loans subject tc the presentation of appropriate documentation proving the intervention and the future generation of tax credit, to
support the financial needs related to the cost of the interventions;

« simultaneously underwriting commilments related to the purchase of the future tax credit with the associated obligation of the assigning customer
to use the amount collected from the transfer of the tax credit to reimburse the granted "bridge” foan;

« directly purchasing tax credits from assignors whao do not require any "bridge” loan.

The specific features of thase tax credils are such that these assets are not in the scope of specific 1AS/IFRS.

Therefare, the paragraph of IAS8" which require the management te define an accounting policy suitable for providing relevant and reliable
information is applied.

In accordance with what is indicated in the paper published by the QIC on 17 May 2020 and in Document No.§ jointly published by Banca d'lalia,
CONSOB, IVASS on § January 20217 it is beiieved that an accounting model based an IFRSS is the accounting model more suitable for providing
relevant and reliable information.

As a result of the above, on initial recegnition tax credits are booked among assets in item "130. Other assets” for a value equal to the purchase
price assumed equal to a Level 3 fair value of the fair value hierarchy.

On subsequent measurement, the provisions of IFRS3 relating to the "Held to collect portfotio” are applied. As a result, these tax credits are
measured at amortised costs recognising in the Income statement in item *10. Interest income and similar revenues® the portion, accrued in the
period, of the difference between the value at initial recognition and the value that is expected to be utilised through the offsetting with tax liabilities.
This latter value is subject to periodical re-assessment with recognition into income statement, item *10. Interest income and similar revenues” of the
associated difference in term of carrying amount to such tax credits.

As at 31 December 2020, the tax credit recognised in “Other assets’ amounts 10 €0.1 mitlion,

11 Either for the base rate {Avg CRF ar Avg MRO) and the spread {(up to -50bps with @ mimimum of -1% for a portion of the liability's expected duration}.

412 Similarly, {o cther “market indexed” variable rate notes

13 Early termination wauld resultn lower § e. more negative) EIR with addibonal NIl effect.

14 |AS8 paragraph 10.

15 "Cessione del credito dimposta” - Law 17 July 2020 No.77.

16 Accounting treatment of tax credits associated with the "Cura Italia* and "Rilancic” Law Decrees purchased following the sale by direct beneficianes or previous buyers,
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The commitments connected with the purchase of the future tax credit are recognised, for a value equal to the price that will be paid when the
commitment will be used by the custemer, among “Cther commitments” (€1.9 million at the end of 2020} and wilt be subject to impairment tesls in
relation to their effectively offset value with recognition in Income statement under item "200. Net provisions for risks and charges’.

For the sake of completeness, it should be noted that the “bridge” loan (€1.2 million as at 31 December 2020} is a financial instrument that is
measured at amortised cost according to the ordinary provisions of IFRSS.

Interbank Offered Rates (IBORs) transition

A comprehensive reference rates reform is currently taking place following the concerns raised in recent years abaut the integrity and reliability of
major financial market benchmarks. In order to assess the relevant risks associated with the global benchmark reforms mandated by the Financial
Stability Board (FSB), and taking appropriate actions to ensure an adequate transition lo alternative or reformed benchmark rates ahead of the
dgeadtine of the end of 2021 specified in the revised EU Benchmark Regulation BMR, UniCredit group launched in October 2018 a Group wide
project in order to manage the IBORs discontinuation,

Accordingly, a multiyear roadmap has been defined based on both Group expasure {mainly focused on Eure) and transition timeline.

In 2020, UniCredit has followed up the activities defined to ensure a smooth transition away from LIBOR, consistently with the latest international
working groups’ developments and recommendations.

fn this sense, it is worth to mention that, after a slowdown at market level on recommendaticn developments, due to Covid-19 crisis, during the last
part of the year, a number of consultations have been issued both by European ECB Waorking Groups on Eurc Risk-Free Rates, focused on Euribor
fallbacks and cessation triggers, and by other intemational working groups and bodies (e.g. International Swaps and Derivatives Association - ISDA,
ICE Benchmark Administration - IBA; LCH), focused on LIBOR discantinuation and alternative rates, whose outcomes will be known during 2021
and will be taken into account while envisaging recommendations and market practices to consider on transition.

At the same fime, the regulatory discussion has accelerated both within European Commission {i.e. to define possible amendments to the current
Benchmark Market Regutation), within the other maindy involved international market authorities (e.g. Financial Conduct Authority and Bank of
England in the UK, New Yerk State Department of Financial Services in the US), and at local level, in order to support a smooth transition.

Such discussions and consultation outcomes, while aimed to bring further stability in the market and reduce conduct risk, may affect timing and/or
fallback rules applied to outstanding stock of assets, liability and derivatives linked to JBOR yet to be transformed or transitioned.

To address potential source of uncertainty on the effect of the Interbank offered rates {IBOR) reform on existing acceunting hedge relationships the
“Amendments to IFRS9, 1539 and IFRS7 Interest Rate Benchmark Reform” (the Amendment) clarifies that the reform does not require to terminate
such hedge relaticnships, whose volume as of 31 December 2020 is presented below.

Hedging contracts: notional amount®)

{€ millign)

MDEX , ;
) o . . OTHER CEE v
o s , LIBOROTHER COUNTIRES I

; F HEDGED TEMS . . . LIBOR USD _ CURRENCIES . BORS . OTHERSH
Fair value Assets 9,810 5,547 466 -
Liabilities 27136 3415 245 74

- Cash flows Assets 10,214 3,725 215 -
) : ) Liabilities 7,211 587 36 1,313
Total 54,371 13,275 962 1,387

Note:
(*} Double-entry method when relevant.

In order to closely follow the developments on IBGRs and to proper manage the transitior: and the discentinuation impacts, UniCredit group is
continuously monitoring the market, also attending the European working groups. the industry working groups (e.g. international Swaps and
Derivatives Association - 1SDA) and participating 1o the relevant public consultations.

sk

The Company financial statements of UniCredit S.p.A. and the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit group as at 31 December 2020 are

audited by Deloitte & Touche S.p.A. pursuant to Legislative Decree No.39 of 27 January 2010 and to the resolution passed by the Shareholder's
Meeting on 11 May 2012.
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UniCredit group prepared and published within the time limits set by law and in manner required by Consch, the Consolidated first half financial
Report as at 30 June 2020, subject to limited scope audit, as well as the Consofidated interim reports as at 31 March and 30 September 2020, bath

as press releases,

The financial statements of UniCredit S.p.A. and the Consalidated financial statements of UniCredit group as at 31 December 2020 have been
approved by the Board of Directors' meeting of 10 February 2021, which autharised its disclosure to the public also pursuant to IAS10.

The whole document is filed in the competent offices and entities as required by law.

A.2 - Main items of the accounts

It should be nated that the descriptions of the main items of the accounts reported below are also valid for the Company financial statements of
UniCredit S.p.A., unless differently stated.

1 - Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

a) Financial assets held for trading

A financial asset is s classified as held for trading if it is;

= acquired ar incurred principally for the purpese of selling or repurchasing it in the short term;

* part of a porifolio of identified financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-
term profit-taking;

* a derivative contract not designated under hedge accounting, including derivatives with positive fair value embadded in financial liabilities other
than those valued at fair value with recognition of income effects through profit or loss.

Like other financial instruments, on initial recognition, at settlement date, a held-for-trading financial asset is measurad al its fair value, usually equal
to the amount paid, excluding transaction costs and income, which are recoanised in profit and loss even when directly attributable 1o the financial
assets. Held for Trading are recognised at trade date.

After initial recognitian these financial assets are measured at their fair value through profit or loss.

A gain or loss arising from sale or redemption or a change in the fair value of a held for trading financial asset is recognised in income statement in
item “80. Net gains (losses} on trading’, including gains or losses related to derivative contracts that are linked to assets and/er liabiiities designated
at fair value and other financial assets mandalorily at fair value. If the fair value of a financial instrument falls below zerg, which may happen with
derivative contracts, it is recegnised in item “20. Financial liabifities held for trading”.

A derivative is a financial instrument ar ather contract that has all three of the following characteristics:

* its value changes in response to the change in a specified interest rate, financial instrument price, commaodity price, foreign exchange rate, index
of prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other variable (usually calied the “underlying’) provided that in case of non-financial variable, this
is not specific of one of the parties to the contract;

+ it requires no initial net investment or an initial net investment that is smaller than would be required for other types of contracts that would be
expected 10 have a similar response ta changes in market factors;

» it is seftled at a future date,

An embedded derivative is a companent of a hybrid {combined) instrument that also includes a nan-derivative hast centract, with the effect that
some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar 1o a stand-alone derivative,

An embedded derivative is separated from financial liabilities other than thase measured at fair value through profit or loss and from non-financial
instruments, and is recognised as a derivative, if;

* ihe economic characteristics and risks of the embedded derivative are not closely relating to those of the host contract:

* a separate instrument with the same terms as the embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative and:

* the hybrid {combined) instrument is not measured entirely at fair value through profit or loss.

When an embedded derivative is separated, the host contract is accounted for according to its accounting classification.
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b) Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss | . _
A non-defivative financial asset can be designated at fair value if the abovementioned designation avoids accounting mismatches that arise from
measuring assets and associated liabilities according to different measurement criteria.

These assets are accounted for alike *Financial assets held for trading” however gains and losses, whether realised or unrealised, are recognised in
item “110. Gains (Losses} an financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profit or loss: a) financial assets/liatilities designated at fair value”, such
flem alsa includes changes in fair value on “financial liabilities designated at fair valug” linked to own credit risk, if such a designation creates or
increases an accounting mismatch in income statement according to IFRSS.

c) Other financial assets mandatorily at fair value
A financial asset is classified as financial asset mandatorily at fair value if it does not meet the conditicns, in terms of business modet or cash flow
characteristics, for being measured at amartised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,

Specifically, the following assets have been classified in this portfolio:

o debt instruments, securities and loans for which the business model is neither held to collect nor held to coflect and sell but which are not part of
the Trading book;

» debt instruments, securities and loans with cash flows that are not solely payment of principal and interest;

e units in investment funds;

» equily instruments not hekd for trading for which the Group does nat apply the option granted by the standard of valuing these instruments at fair
value through other comprehensive income.

These assets are accounted for alike “Financial assets held for trading”, however gains and losses, whether realised or unrealised, are recognised in
item “110. Gains {Losses) on financial assets/liabilities at fair value through profil or loss: b) Cther financial assets mandatarily al fair value”.

2 - Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A financial asset is classified at fair value through other comprehensive income if:
« its business model is held to collect and sell;
= its cash flows are solely the payment of principal and interest.

This category also inchudes equity instruments not held for trading for which the Group applies the option granted by the standard of valuing the
instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income.

On initial recognition, at setlement date, a financial asset is measured at fair value, which is usually equal to the consideration paid, plus transaction
costs and revenues directly attributable to the instrument.

After initial recognition, the interests accrued on interest-bearing instruments are recorded in the income statement according to the amartised cost
criterion in item “10. |nterest income and similar revenues” if positive, or in item “20. Interest expenses and similar charges” if negative.

The gains and losses arising frem changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of ather comprehensive income and reporied under item
“120. Valuation reserves’ in shareholders' equity (item “110. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial statements).

These instruments are tested for impairment as illustrated in the specific section 16 - Other Information - Impairment.

Impairment losses are recorded in the income statement in item *130. Net lesses/recaveries on credit impairment relating to: b) financial assets at
fair value through other cemprehensive income” with contra-entry in the statement of other comprehensive income and also reported under item
*120. Valuation reserves” in shareholders' equity (item “11C. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial statements).

In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and losses are recarded in the income statement in item 100, Gains (L.osses) on disposal and
repurchase of; b) financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”.

Amounts deriving from financiat assets carrying amount adjustment, gross of cumulated write-downs, in order to reflect modifications on contractual
cash flows that do not give rise to accounting derecognition, are recognised in Income statement in item "140. Gains/Losses from contractual
changes with no cancellations”; such line does not include the impact of contractual modifications on the amount of expected loss recognised in item
“130. Net losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: b} financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income”.
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Such item can also include on-balance credit exposures which are already non-performing on initial recognition. These exposures are qualified as
*Purchased Qriginated Credit Impaired - POCY'.

The amortised cost and the interest income generated by these assets are calculated by considering, in the estimate of future cash flows, the
expected credit losses over the entire residual duration of the assel.

This expected credit loss is subject to periodic review thus determining the recognition of impairment or write-backs.

For further information on "Purchased Originated Credit Impaired” assets see the paragraph "Setion 1 - Credit risk” of the Company financial
statements of UniCredit S.0.A., Notes to the accounts Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies, The same information is also provided in
the paragraph “2.1 Credit risk” of the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit group, Notes to the consolidated accounts Part E - Infcrmation
on risks and hedging policies, Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidaied perimeter,

With regard to equity instruments, the gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in the Statement of cther comprehensive
income and reported under item *120 Vatuation reserves” in sharcholders' equily (item "118. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial
statements).

In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and fosses are recorded in item *150. Reserves” (item "140. Reserves' in the Company financial
statements).

In accordance with the provisions of IFR$S, no impairment losses on equity instruments are recognised in the income statement. Only dividends are
recognised in Income statement within item *70. Dividend income ana similar revenues”,

3 - Financial assets at amortised cost

A financial asset, loan or debt securities, is classified as financial asset measurad at amortised cost if.
« its business model is held to coliect;
» its cash flows are solely the payment of principal and interest.

These items also include the net value of finance leases of assets under construction or awaiting lease, provided ihe leasas have the characteristics
of contracts entailing the transfer of risk.

On initial recognition, at setllement date, financial assets at amoriised cost are measured at fair value. which is usually equal to the consideration
paid, plus transaction costs and income directly attributable ta the instrument,

After initial recognitian at fair value, these assels are measured at amorlised cost which requires the recognition of interest on an accrual basis by
using the effective interest rate method over the term of the loan. Such inlerest is recognised in item "10. Interest income and similar revenues” if
positive or in item "20. Interest expenses and similar charges” if negative.

The amount of financial assets at amortised cost is adjusted in order to take inta account impairment losses arising from valuation process as
llustrated in the spegcific section 16 - Other information - Impairment.

Impairment losses are recorded in the income statement, in item "130. Net losses/recaveries on credit impairment relating to: aj financial assets at
amortised cost’.

In the event of disposal, the accumulated profits and losses are recorded in the income statement in item *100. Gains (Losses) con disposal and
repurchase ¢f: a) financial assets at amortised cost”.

Amounts deriving from financial assets carrying amount adjustment, gross of cumulated write-downs, in order to reflect modifications on contractual
cash flows that do not give rise to accounting derecognition, are recognised in Income statement in item "140. Gains/Losses from contraciual
changes with no cancellations”; such line does not include the impact of contractual modifications on the amount of expected loss recognised in item
“130. Net losses/recoveries on credit impairment relating to: a) financial assels at amortised cost'.

Such item can also include on-balance credit expaosures which are already non-performing on initial recognition. These exposures are qualified as
“Purchased Criginated Credit Impaired - POCI,

The amortised cost and the interest income generated by these assets are calculated by considering, in the estimate of future cash flows, the
expected credit losses over the entire residual duration of the asset.

This expected credit loss is subjec! to periodic review thus determiring the recognition of impairment or write-backs.

For further informaticn on "Purchased Originated Credit Impaired” assets see the paragraph *Section 1 - Credit risk" of the Company financiat
statements of UniCredit S.p.A., Notes to the accounts Part E - Information on risks and hedging policies. The same information is also provided in
the paragraph “2.1 Credit risk” of the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit group, Notes to the consclidated accounts Part E - Infermation
on risks and hedging palicies, Section 2 - Risks of the prudential consolidated perimeter.
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4 - Hedge accounting

Hedging instruments are created to hedge market {interest-rate, currency and price) and/or credit risk to which the hedged positions are exposed.

They may be described as follows:

« fair value hedge: a hedge of the exposure to changes in fair value of a recognised asset or liability, or an identifiable portion of such an asset or
liability;

e cash }(Iow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows thal is attributable te a particular risk assoclated with a recognised asset or
liability or & highly probable forecast transaction which could affect profit or loss in future periods;

» hedge cf a net investment in a foreign entity, whose operations are based or conducted in & currency other than suro.

It should be noted that the Group has exercised the option to continue applying the existing IAS38 hedge accounting requirements for all its hedging
relationships until the |ASB completes the project on accounting for macro-hedging.

Hedging derivatives are initially recognised on trade date and are valued at their fair value.

A hedging relationship qualifies for hedge accounting if there is formal designation and dacumentation of the hedging relationship inciuding the risk
management objective, the strategy for undertaking the hedge, and how the hedging instrument's prospective and retrospeclive effectiveness will be
assessed. It is necessary lo assess the hedge's effectiveness, at inception and in subsequent periods, in offsetting the exposure 1o changes in the
hedged item's fair value or cash flows attributable to the hedged risk.

Gerierally a hedge is regarded as highly effective if, at the inception of the hedge and in subsequent periods, it is determined prospectively te remain
highly effective, and retrospectively verified that the hedge ratic {i.e. the changes in fair value of hedged items and hedging instruments) is within a
range of 80-125%. The hedge is assessed on an ongoing basis and hus must prospectively remain highly effective throughout the financial
reporting perieds for which the hedge has been designated.

The assessment of effectiveness is made at each balance-sheet date or other reporting date.

If the assessment does not confirm the effectiveness of the hedge, from that time on hedge accounting is discontinued in respect of the hedge and
the hedging derivative is reclassified as a held-for-irading instrument.

In addition, the hedging relationship ceases when (i} the hedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated cr exercised, (i) the hedged item is sold,
expires or is repaid, {iii) it is no longer highly probable that the forecast transaction will occur.

Hedging instrumenits are so designated when identifiable with an ultimate counterparty outside the Group.

Hedging derivatives are measured at fair value. Specifically:

« fair value hedging, an effective fair value hedge is accounted for as follows: the gain or loss from remeasuring the hedging instrument at fair
value is recognised through profit or loss in item “80. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting’; the gain ar loss on the hedged item attributable to
the hedged risk adjusts the carrying amount of the hedged item and is recognised through profit or loss in the same item. Hedging inefectiveness
is represented by the difference between the change in the fair value of hedging instruments and the change in the fair value of hedged item. Ifthe
hedging refationship is terminated for reasons cther than the sale of the hedged item, the difference between the carrying amount of the hedged
item on termination of the hedging and the carrying amount it would have had if the hedge had never existed, is recognised through profit or loss in
interest receivable or payable over the residual life of the original hedge, in the case of interest-tearing instruments; if the financial instrument does
not bear interest, the difference is recognised in profit or lass under item "90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting” at once. if the hedged item
is sold or repaid, the portion of fair value which is stifl unamortised is at once recognised through profit or loss in item *10C. Gains {Losses) an
disposal and repurchase™;

« cash flow hedging, hedging instruments are valued at fair value. Change in the fair value of a hedging instrument that is considered effective is
recognised in equity item *120. Valuation reserves” {item *110. Valuation reserves” in the Company Financial Statements). The ineffective porion
of the gain o loss is recognised through profit or loss in item “90. Net gains {losses) on hedge accounting”. If a cash flow hedge is determined to
be no fonger effective or the hedging relationship is terminated, the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument that remains recognised in
itern *120. Valuation reserves” {item *110. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial statements) from the period when tha hedge was effective
remains separately recognised in revaluation reserves until the forecast hedged transaction occurs or is datermined to be no longer possible; in
the latter case gains or losses are transferred through profit or loss to item "30. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting”. The fair value changes
are recorded in the Statement of other comprehensive incame and disclosed in item “120. Valuation reserves” (item *110. Valuation reserves’ in
the Company financial statements);

+ hedging a net investment in a foreign entity, hadges of a net investment in a foreign entity whose activities are based or conducted in a country
ar currency other than those of the reporting entity are accounted for similarly o cash flow hedges. The gain or loss on the hedging instrument
relating to the effective portion of the hedge that has been recognised directly in equity is recognised through profit o loss on disposal of the
foreign entity. The fair value changes are recorded in the Statement of comprehensive income and disclosed in item “120. Valuation reserves (item
*110. Valuation reserves” in the Company Financial Statements).”; the ineffective partion of the gain or loss Is recagnised through profit or loss in
item "90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting”;
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« macro-hedges of financial assets (liabilities) - IAS39 allows a fair-value iter hedged against interest rate fluctuations tc be nat only a single
asset ar liability but also a monetary position contained in a number of financial assets or liabililies (or parls of them); accordingly, a group of
dervatives can be used to offset fair-value fluctuations in hedged items due to changes in market rates. Macro-hedging may not be used for net
positions resulting from the ofisetting of assets and liabilities. As for fair value micre-hedging. macrohedging is cansidered highly effective if, af the
inception of the hedge and in subsequent periods, changes in the fair value altributable to the hedged position are offset by changes in fair valus
of the hedging instrument and if the hedge ratio is retrospectively assessed falling within the range of 80-125%. Net changes, gains or losses, in
the fair value of the macro-hedged assets and liabilities atiributable to the hedged risk are recagnised in asset itern "60. Changes in fair value of
portfolio hedged items {+-}" or liability item “50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+-)", respectivaly and offset the prefit and loss
itern “90. Net gains (losses) on hedge accounting .

The ineffectiveness of the hedging arises to the extent that the change in the fair value of the hedging item differs from the change in the fair value
of the hedged manetary position. The extent of hedge ineffectiveness is in any case recognised in profit and |oss item “90. Net gaing (losses) on
hedge accounting”.

If the hedging relationship is terminated, for reasons other than the sale of the hedged items, cumulative gain or loss in items "60. Changas in fair
value of portfolio hedged items {+-)" or liability item *50. Value adjustment of hedged financial liabilities (+/-}" is recagnised through profit or loss in
items “10. Interest income and similar revenues” or “20. Interest expenses and similar charges”, along the residuat life of the hedged financial
assets or liabilities.

If the latter are sold or repaid, unamariised fair value is at once recegnised through profit and loss in item *100. Gains (Losses) on disposal and
repurchase”,

5 - Equity investments

The principles governing the recognition and maasurement of equity investments under IFRS10 Consolidated financiat statements, 1AS27 Company
financial statements, IAS28 Investments in associates and joint ventures and IFRS11 Joint Arrangements are provided in detaii in the paragraph
“Section 3 - Consolidation scope and methods” of the Consolidated financial siatements of UniCredit group, Notes te the consclidated accounts Part
A - Accounting policies, A.1 - General, where disclosure on the evafuation pracesses and key assumptions used to assess the existence of control,
joint control or significant influence in acgordance with IFRS12 (paragraphs 7-9) is provided.

The remaining inferests other than subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, and interests recognised in items *120, Non-current assets and
disposal groups classflied as held for sale” ang *70. Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale” are classified as financial assets at
fair value through other comprehensive income or other financial assets mandatorily at fair value and accerdingly accounted,

6 - Property, plant and equipment (Tangible assets)
The item includes:

* |and;

« buildings;

« furniture and fixtures;

« plant and machinery,

« other machinary and equipment;

and is divided between:

+ assets used in the business;

« assets held as investments;

= inventeries in the scope of IAS2 standard,

This item also includes tangible assets arising from collection of collaterals.

Assets used in the business and Assets held as investments
Assets used in the business are held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes and are expected to be
used for more than ore pariod. This category also conventicnally includes assets te be let or under construction and to be leased under a finance

lease, only for thase finance leases which provide for retention of risk by the tessor until the acceptance of ihe asset by the lessee and the start of
rentals under the finance lease.

The item *Property, plant and equipment” includes assets used by the Group as lessee under a lease contract {right of use) or levhired out by the
Group as lessor under an operating lease.
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Property, plant and equipment also include leasehold improvements relating to assets which can be separately identified. They are classified
acoording 1o the specific sub-items refating to the asset type (e.g. plants).

Leasehoid improvements are usually borne in order te make leased premises fit for the expected use.

improvements and additional expenses relating to property, plant and equipment identifiable but not separable are recognised in item *130. Other
assets” (item 420, Other assets” in the Company financial statements).

Assets held for investment purposes are properties coverad by 1AS40, i.e. properties held {owned or under a lease contract) in order to derive
rentals andfor a capital gain.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recognised at cost including all costs directly attributable to bringing the asset into use (transaction costs,
professional fees, direct transport costs incurred in bringing the asset to the desired location, installation casts and dismantling costs),

Subsequent costs are added to the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset only when it is probable that there will be future ecanamic

senefits in excess of those inttially foreseen and the cast can be reliably measured. Other expenses borne at a later time (e.g. normal maintenance

costs) are recognised in the year they are incurred in profit and loss items:

« "190. Administrative expenses: b) other administrative expenses” (item "160. Administrative expenses: b) other adminisirative expenses of the
Company financial statements, if they refer to assets used in the business, or

+ '230. Other operating expenses/income” (item *200. Other operating expensesfircome” of the Company financial statements), if they refer to
property held for investment.

After being recognised as an asset:

« Duildings and lands used in the business are measured accerding te revaluation modet;

» tangible assets used in the business, different from lands and buildings, are measured according to cost model,
« buildings and lands held as investments are measured accerding fo fair value model.

Revaluation model requires tangible assets to be exposed in Balance sheet al a value not significantly different from fair vatue. In this respect.
UniCredit group requests such assets to be revalued on a half year basis through *desktop” or “on site” appraisals, based on the asset relevance,
performed by external appraisers.

Posilive changes in fair value are booked in Other comprehensive income statement. item *50. Tangible Assets” and, cumutated, in item *120.
Valuation reserves” (item *110. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial staternents), unless they offset previous negative changes accounted
for in income statement in item *260. Net gains (lesses) on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured at fair value”.

Negative changes in fair value are booked in income statement in item “260, Net gains (losses) on property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets measured at fair valug” (item "230. Net gains (losses} on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured at fair valug” in the
Company financial statements, unless they offset previous positive changes accounted for in Other comprehensive income statement, item *50.
Tangible Assets” and, cumulated, in item 120, Valuation reserves” {item “110. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial statemants),

When the tangible asset is revalued at its fair value it is required to adjust both gross carrying amount and cumulated depreciation on the basis of
the net carrying amount revaluation.

Cost model requires the gross carrying amount to be depreciated across its usefut life.
Both tangible assets measured according to revaluation model and cost model are subject to straight-line depreciation over their useful life 1o the

extent they have a finite useful life.
Residual useful life is usually assessed, for the Group and UniCredit S.p.A. as follows:

TegtoaY: - o GROUP 4 , UniCredit S..A. :

Buildings up to 50 years up to 33 years
Furniture and fixtures up to 25 years upto 7 years
Electronic equipment up to 15 years up fo 12 years
Other up to 10 years up to 7 years
Leaseheld improvements up to 25 years up to 15 years

Depreciations are accounted for, peried by period, initem “210. Net value adjustmentsfwrite-backs on property, plant and equipment” (item *180. Net
value adjustmentsiwrite-backs on property, plant and equipment” in the Company financial statements).

An item with an indefinite useful life is not depreciated.
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Lands and buildings are recognised separately, even if acquired together. Land is not depreciated since it usually has an indefinite useful life.
Buildings have instead a finite useful life and are therefore subject to depreciation.

The estimate of the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each accounting period-end on the basis inter alia of the cor_ldi_ti()ns of use of the
asset, of maintenance conditions and expected obsotescence and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the depreciation amaunt for the
current and subsequent financial years is adiusted accordingly.

If there is clear evidence that an asset measure according to cost mode has been impaired the carrying amount of the asset is comparec with its
recoverable value, equal to the greater of its fair value less selling cost and its value in use, i.., the present value of future cash flow expected to
originate from the assel. Any value adjustment is recognised in profit and loss item “210. Net value adjustments/write-Dacks on preperty, plant and
equipment” (item *180. Net value adjustmentshwrite-backs on property, plant and equipment” in the Company financial statements).

If the value of a previously impaired asset is restared, its increased carrying amount cannot exceed the net carrying amount it would have had if
there had been no losses recognised on the prior-year impairment.

Buildings and land held as investments, including right of use on land and buildings classified as held for investment, are measured according to fair
value model which requires to account for in income statement in item “260. Net gains (losses) on property, plant and eguipment and intangidle
assels measured at fair value” (item "230. Net gains (losses) on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured at fair valug” in the
Company financial statements), changes in fair value. Such assets are not subject to depraciation and impairment test.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised (i} on disposal or {ii) when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or sale in
the future and any difference between sale proceeds cr recoverable value and carrying value is recagnised in profit and loss ttem “280. Gains
(losses) on disposals on investments”, “260. Net gains {losses) an property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured at fair value” or
“210. Net value adjustments/write-backs on property, plant and equipment’ (item "250. Gains (Losses} on disposals on investments”, 230, Net gains
(losses} on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets measured at fair value, or 180. Net value adjustments/write-backs on property, plant
and equipment” in the company financial statements), For tangible assets measured according to revalued amount, any gain from disposal,
including amounts cumulated in item 120, Valuation reserves”, (item “110. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial statements) is reclassified
to item “150 Reserves” (item “140. Reserves in the Company financial statements) with no impact in income statement.

Inventories in the scope of IAS2 standard

Inventories are assets held for sale in the ordinary course of business. They are accounted for at the lower of their carrying amounts and net
realizable value.

Any value adjustment arising from the application of the aforementioned criterion is recognised under item “210. Net value adjustments/write-backs
on property, plant and equipment” (itern *180. Net value adjustments/write-backs on property, piant ana equipment” in the Company financial
statements).

7 - Intangible assets

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance which is expected to be used for more than cne period,
controlled by the Group and from which future economic benefits are probable.

Intangible assets are principally goodwill, software, brands ang patents.
This itern alsc includes intangible assets used by the Group as lessee under finance leases or as lessor under operating leases (rentalhire).

Intangible assets other than goodwill are recognised at purchase cost, i.e. including cost incurred to bring the asset into use, less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses.

In case of internally generated software the expenses incurred to develop the project are recognised under intangible assets only if the following
elements are demonsirated: the technicat feasibility of the project, the intention to complete the intangible asset, its future usefulness, the availabifity
of adequate technical, firancial and other resources to complete the development and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to
the intangible asset during its development.

An intangible asset with a finite life is subject te straight-line amortisation over its estimated useful life.

Residual useful life is usually assessed as follows:
= software up to 7 years;
= other intangible assets up io 20 years.

Intangible assets with an indefinita life are not amortised.
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If there is clear evidence that an asset has been impaired, the carrying amount of the asset is compared with its recovpr_able value, equal o the
greater of its fair value less selling costs and its value in use, i.e. the present value of future cash flows expgcted to originate from the asset,
Any impairment lass is recagnised in profit and loss item “220. Net value adjustments/write-backs on intangible assets”.

For an intangitle asset with indefinite fife even i there are no indications of impairment, the carrying am_ount_is compared anngally with its
recoverable value. if the carrying amount is greater than the recoverable value, the difference Is recognised in profit and loss item *22C, Net value
adjustments/write-backs on intangible assets’.

If the value of a previously impaired intangible asset, other than goodwill is restored, its increased carrying amount canngt exceed the net carrying
amount it would have had if there were no losses recognised on the prior-years impairment.

An intangible asset is derecognised (i} on disposal or {ii} when nc further future economic benefits are expectec from its use or s_ale in the future and
any difference between sale proceeds or recoverable value and carrying value is recognised in the profit and loss item “280. Gains (Losses) on
disposals on investments” or "220. Net value adjustments/write-backs on infangible assets’, respectively,

Goodwill
In accordanice with IFRS3 goodwill, beoked in the Cansalidated financial statements is the excess of the cost of 2 business combination over the
interest acquired in the net fair value of the assets and liabilities acquired at the acquisition date.

Goodwill arising from the acquisitions of subsidiaries is recagnised as an intangible asset, whereas goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included in the carrying amount of the investments in associates.

At a subsequent financial reporting date, goodwill is recognised net of any cumulative impairment losses and is nat amortised.

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually, as for other intangible assets with an indefinite useful life. To this end it is allocated to the Group's
business areas identified as the Cash Generating Units (CGUs). Goodwill is monitored by the CGUs at the lowest level in the Group in line with its
business model.

tmpairment losses on goodwill are recognised in profit and loss ilem “270. Goodwill impairment’. In respect of goodwill, no write-backs are allowed.

For futher informaticn on intangible assets, goodwill, CGUs and related impairment tesis see paragraph “10.3 Intangible assets: other information” of
the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit group, Notes to the consolidated accounts Part B - Section 10 Intangible assets - Item 160,

8 - Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale

These categaries include individual assets held for disposal {tangible, intangible and financial assets) or groups of assets held for sale, with the
related liabilities, as required by IFRS5.

Individual assets (or groups of assets held for sale) are recagnised in item *120. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for sale’
and item “70. Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale” (item *110. Non-current assets and disposal groups classified as held for
sale” and “70. Liabilities associated with assets classified as held for sale” in the Company financial statements) respectively, at the fower of their
carrying amounts and fair values less costs to sell,

The revaluation reserves relating to non-current assets classified as held for saie, which are recorded as a centra item 1o changes in value relevant
for this purpose, are reported separately in the Staterment of other comprehensive income (see “Part D - Consalidated other comprehensive income”
of the of the Consolidated financial statements of UniCredit group).

The net balance of profits (dividends, interest income, etc.) and losses (interest expense, etc.} attributable to discontinued operations are recognised
in the income statement under item *320. Prefit {Loss) after tax from discontinued operations” (item .290. Profit {Loss) after tax from discontinued
operaticns” in the Company financial statements). Profits and losses attributable to individuat assets or disposal groups, that éc not constitute
discontinued operations, held for disposal are recognised in the incoms statemant under the appropriate item.
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9 - Current and deferred tax | o
Tax assets and iax liabilties are recognised in the Consclidated balance sheet respectively in item "110. Tax assets’ and item "60. Tax liabilities
(item *100. Tax assets” and” 60. Tax liabilities” in the Company financial statements).

In compliance with the “balance sheet method”, current and deferred tax items are:
= current lax assets, i.e. amount of 1ax paid in excess of income tax due in accordance with local tax regulations;
» current tax liabilities, i.e. amount of corporate tax due in accordance with focal tax regulations;
» deferred 1ax assets, i.e. amounts of income tax recoverable in future fiscal years and affributable to.
- deductible temporary differences,
- the carryforward of unused tax losses; and
- the carryforward of unused tax credits;
o geferred tax liahilities, i.e. the amounts of incoune [ax due in future tiscal years in respect of taxable temporary differences.

Current and deferred tax assets and tax liabilities are caicutaled in accardance with local tax regulations and are recognised in profit of loss on an
accrual basis.

In general, deferred tax assets and liabilities arise when there is a difference between the accounting treatment and the 1ax treatmant of the carrying
amount of an asset or liability.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised applying tax sates that at the balance sheet date are expected to apply in the period wher the
carrying amount of the asset will be recovered or the liability will be settled on the basis of tax regulations in force, and are periogically reviewed in
order to reflect any changes in regulations.

In addition, under the tax consalidation system adopted, deferrad tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be generated by the entity. In accordance with the provisions of IAS12, the probability that sufficient future taxable profit against
which the deferred tax assets can be utilised will be available is reviewed periodically. The carrying amount of deferred tax assets shauld be reduced
to the extent that it is not probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Current and deferred taxes are recognised in profit and loss item “300. Tax expense (income) for the period from centinuing operations” (item “270.
Tax expenses (incame) for the year from continuing operations’ in the Company financial statements™), except for tax referred to items that in the
same or in anather fiscal year are credited or charged directly to equity, such as those relating to gains er losses on financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive income and those relating to changes in the fair value of cash flow hedging instruments, whose changes in value are
recognised, net of tax, directly in the Statement of other comprehensive income among Revaluation reserves.

Current tax assets and liabilities are presented on the Balance sheet net of the related current tax liabilities if the following requirements are met:
* existence of a legally enforceable right to offset the amounts recognised; and
* the intention to extinguish for the remaining net, or realise the asset and at the same time extinguish the fiability.

Deferred tax assets are presented on the Balance sheet net of the related deferred tax liabilities if the following requirements are met:

s existence of an enforceable right to offset current tax assets with current tax liabikities; and

* the deferred tax assets and liabilities must refate to income taxes applied o the same tax authcrity on the same taxable enlity or on different
taxable entities that intend to settle the current tax Tiabilities and assets on a net basis {normally in presence of a tax consclidation contracs).

10 - Provisions for risks and charges

Commitments and guarantees given

Provisions for risks and charges for commitments and guarantees given are recognised against all revocable and irrevocable commitments and
guarantees whether they are in scope of IFRS9 or IAS37.

The item hosts the estimates of expected loss calculated on these instruments resulting from valuation process as described in Section 16 - Other
Information - Impairment.

The provision of the periad is accounted under item "200. Net provisions for risks and charges: a} commitments and financial guarantees given
(item *170. Net provisions for risks and charges a) commitments and financiat guarantees given in the Company financial statements).
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Note that all contracts that require the issuer 1o make specified payments to reimburse the halder for & loss it incurs because a specifiad debtor fails
to make payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument are considered financial guarantees.

Retirement payments and similar obligations .
Retiremant provisions, i.e. provisions for employee benefits payable after the completion of employment, are defined as contributian plans or
defined-benefit plans according to the nature of the plan.

In detail:

« Defined-benefit plans provide a series of benefils depending on factors such as age, years of service and compensation policies. Under this type
of plan actuariat and investment risks are bome by the company;

o Defined-contribution plans are plans under which the company makes fixed contributions. Benefits are the result of the amount of contributions
paid and return an contributions invested. The emplayer hears no actuarial and/or investment risks connected with this type of plans as it has no
legal or implicit obligation to make further contributions. should the plan not be sufficient to provide benefits to all employees.

Defined-benefit plans are present-valued by an external actuary using the “Unit Credit Projection method”.
This method distributes the cost of benefits uniformly over the employee’s working life. Obligations are the present value of average future benefits
pro rata to the ratio of years of service to theoretical seniority at the time of benefit payment.

Mare specifically, the amount recognised according to 1AS19 Revised as a net liability/asset in item *100. Provisions for risks and charges: bj post-
retirement benefit obligations” is the present value of the cbligation at the balance sheet date, less any pension charges refating fo benefits already
provided but not yet recognised, less the fair value at the balance sheet date of plan assets olher than those due to directly settle the abligations
adjusted for any effect of limiting a net defined benefit asset to the asset ceiling. Actuarial gains or losses are recorded in the Statement of other
cemprehensive income and disclosed in item 120, Vatuation reserves” (item “110. Valuation reserves” in the Company financial statements).

The discount rate used to discount obligations {whether financed or not) relating to benefits to be providee after retirement varies according to the
currency of denomination and country where the liabilities are aliccated and is determined on the basis of marke yield at the balance sheet date of
prime issuers' bonds (High Quality Corporate Bonds - "HQCB") with an average life in keeping with that of the relevant liability.

Other provisions

Provisions for risks and charges are recognised when:

« the entity has a present obligation (fegal or constructive) as a result of a past event;

« it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to setile the obligation;
« 3 reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amounts recognised as provisions are the best astimate of the expenditure required tc settle the present obligation. The risks and unceriainties
that inevitably surround the relevant events and circumstances are taken inio account in 